5199160

UNITE
STUDENTS

STRONG
FOUNDATIONS

FOR THE FUTURE HIj[l[llllIIHIW![l{!!l]{l!{!(llIlll!llfl)[[l!!l

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘
TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

M
NUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016



HIGHLIGHTS

> Excellent financiol » Positive reservations and

periormance rental outicok for 2016717
> Visible eamings > Development gipeline
growth outiook remains sirong
> Growth prospects
remain strong
Eamings per shore'-? Dividend per shore
Net asset value’ Tolal accounting retum
Profit betora fax Loan-fo-volue rato

T The finoncial staternents are prapared in accordance with Infemationo) Anancicl
Reporting Standands (IFRS). These financial rughlights are based on the European Public
RealEstate Associafion (EPRA) bes! practice necommendations ond these performance
meqsures are pubiished s they are intended to heip ysers in the comparability of these
results across other istad real astate compones in Europa. The metrics are also used
internally 1o measune and monoge the business and align to the performance related
congitions for Direciors' Remuneration ®

? 2015 and 2016 EPS is based on adjusted EFRA eamings

* A fullreconciliation of the fingncial statements signed under IFRS fo the EPRA
performance measures is set oyt in note 2.2 of the financial siatements,

161  Read more o our frequently used terms: Glossary

PROVIDING HOMES FOR QVER

49,000

STUDENTS

DELIVERED BY

1,450

PASSIONATE
PEOPLE

OPERATING

140

PROPERTIES

WE WORK CLOSELY WITH

60 ;

UNIVERSITIES
ACROSS THE UK

FOCUSING ON

24

UNIVERSITY TOWNS
AND CITIES




CELEBRATING
25 YEARS

«stwo,  UWE ARE THE LARGEST AND 200
3 % MOST EXPERIENCED PROVIDER e b oo 1

/¢ OF PURPOSE BUILT STUDENT inSheffied
“rws ACCOMMODATION IN THE UK. We aunchjoin

1992 1994 1999 200

We open our first property We acquire more properties in We ore listed on the Altemative We form Europ
in Bristol where we remain Bristal and start specialist property investment Market [AIM) specialist stude
hecd-guartered and now management services invesiment fur
have 140 properties, housing Accommodati
49.000 students for the 2016/17

academic year

1998 2000

We open our first London properties We are floated on London Stock
Exchange to expand into Manchester,
Liverpool and Portsmouth
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10th property -

1 ventune with GIC

6

='s largest unfisted

nt accormmodation
4. the Unite UK Siudent
on Fund [USAF)

Unite

Foundation

2009

We are voted one
of ‘Britain’s Top
Employers' by the
CRF Institute

2010

We open ¢ new

London office which

provides a base for
our property ond
development feams

2011

we have grown to house 40,000
students in 135 propearfies across 24
University iawns and cities every year

We are awarded the Invasiors in
Pecple Sitver Award

We lounch our employee recognition
prograrmme — the Stors Awords

2012

We found and donate £8 million

to the Unite Foundation —a chority
o support students without fomily
support. Our first 28 students are
recruited through four universities
and receive scholanhios made up
of accommodation and a fiving
aflowance to support them through
their study yeors

we raise £90 million after issving
a relail bond

we kaunch the (ondon Student
Accommodation Vehicle {LSAY)

We scoop the Student
Accommodation Operator of the
Yeor award ot Property Week's RESI
owornds which celebrate successes
in the residential property secior

2014

We launch our business purpose,
Home for Success

We invest £21 million in improving
lighting across ol of ow buildings
1o benefit our students and

the environment

2016

We are owarded ihe Investors in People

Gold Award

We open a sales and marketing office
in Befing

We donate a further £5 miliicon o the

Linite Foundkation in the form of USAF units

Qur studenits and employees wise
£175,000 for Sport Relief

We scoop the Student Acoommodation

Operator of the Yeadr award at
Week’s RES| gwards for the third time

2015

we become the first Living Woge
Employer in our sector

Tha first four unite foundation
scholars gradudie

Tre Notional Union of Students
awards our students 12 Green
Impact Awards for thelr sustainable
work while lving with us

v
1/2 MILLION
STUDENTS
HOUSED

SINCE 1991
*
WE LAUNCHED
OUR INNOVATIVE
TECHNOLOGY
SOLUTION, PRISM
$
WE EXPANDED
OUR BUSINESS,
OPENING AN
OFFICE IN CHINA
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STRONG
FOUNDATIONS

FOR THE FUTURE

More than half a million students have lived
with us during our 25-year history and we
confinue to grow. in 2016, we opened five
new properlies which means we have the
privilege of housing our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. As the UK's biggest and
most established provider of purpose built
student accommodadation we have leamnt

a huge amount from our students and

the universities with which we work.

It is critical o our 1,450 employees
that we use our unique experience
to continue to develop the most
supportive student experience,
which delivers for our current and

future students, our universities and,

of course, for our employees.

Qur consistently strong
performance throughout 2016
and visible development pipeline
and operational expertise mean
we are well positioned to deliver
sustainable eamings growth in
the coming years for our investors.

2 For more information
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WHERE WE OPERATE

WE OPERATE ACROSS THE UKIN  “7omian ramertics
24 CITIES, WITH OUR TOP TEN by value
MARKETS MAKING UP 75% OF OUR

TOTAL BEDS. 47% OF OUR CAPITAL

IS INVESTED IN LONDON.

Moonroker Poinl, London beds: 44 (Wholly ownedd)
Moonraker Port offers 147 studios and 527 roorms
incluster fiats. Stuatedin Zone | ond next o the

Tate Modem, Mooniaker Poirt provides o home

for King's College, London students.

Our development and forward
funds pipeline

This is cur cevelopment pipeiine unfil 2019,
Once complede it willbring 6.965 beds 1o the market.

© o o o

| .
1 New openings .+ Opening 1‘ Opening . Opening
in 2016 | In2017 | in2018 | in 2019
i Greetharn Sireet, Porlsmouth $t Leonards, Ecdinburgh ' Newgate Siraet, Newcastie Skethomae, Liverpool
(Wholly owned)” {(Wholly owned) i (Wholty own {(Wholly owned)
| 836 beds . 581 beds [ 575 beds ) | 1,085 beds
Cousewayend, Absrdeen MBlgnniom Way, Covenlry ! Brunel House, Bristol | Old 8RS, Bristol
399 bads 391 beds i 232beds ‘ 706 beds
For Gosford Street, Coventry Tora Housa, Liverpool ChaucerHouse, Porlsmouth | Consftiulion Sirest,
(Whotly * [Wholy owned) (Wholly owned) ! Aberdeen
284 bed:'mm 776 beds 484 beds j {Wholty owned)
Stopieton House, London Beech House. Oxford™ St Vincents, Sheffleld © 600 beds
(LsAV) | {USAF) 167 beds {Wholly owned)
842 beds i Lution Court, Edhml‘l' 545 bads }
Otympic Way, London {USAF) 237 beds infemational House, Bimingharm
(LSAV) (Wholy owned) .
699 baeds . 586 beds

New beds New beds New beds New beds

3082 12152 2422 2,391

* Soid to USAF dunng 2016
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Stapielon House, London
Beds: 842 (L3AV)

Great vokve, high quaily
student occommeodation
next fo Holioway Road
tube stafion. quick inks
to gl central London
Unvarsities.

Stratford ONE, London
Sedx 1,001 (Wholly owned)
This 28 fioor property is
Unita's lorgest in London
with paroramic views.
actoss London and the
Olympic Park.

The Plaxa, Leeds

Beds: 1,500 (USAF)
Completedin two phases,
the property k convenient
for both Universihes m
Leeds. It offers amange

of en-suite rooms in
three- o six-bedroom
fiats and shuckios.

]

located adjocent to threa
University compuses and is
ot the heart of student fife

mn central London.

$t Pancras Woy, London P
Bodz 571 (Wholly ownad)

St Pancras Way is a short

walk from King's Cross and

5t Pancras stotions. The

building provicies a home

for 571 UCL students,

Angef Lane, London 10
Badx 757

Opened in September
2015withamange of

en suite and studio
accormmedation, Ange!

Lane is located in Strotford

with Westfield shopping

canire and the Olympic

Park on the doorstep.

Emily Bowes Court, Lordion
Bedx 693 (USAF)

A conlemporary room
design, Ione 3location
and gquick finics info certral
London make thisa
popular choice for
students seeking o lower
rent offeding.

QOlympic Way, London
Beds: 599 (LSAV)
Openedin Seplember
2015, this property
offers a brood ange
of studio rooms and
providing qurck inks
1o central London.

The: Forge, Sheffield

Beds: 1,381

{Wholly owned}
Campus-styte Bving within
a city centre erwironment
providing homes

for students ot both
Undvarsities in $heffield,

Top ten cities In which we operate®

Ronk  City SO ess | mmpers | shore
Q@ oo 10124 292706 35%
€@  simingham 484 57,767 8.4%
@  shetfiew 3731 51,095 7.3%
© w0 3479 41.286 84%
© o 3458 53,185 465%
©  Monchester 2,33 65,664 1.6%
©® vermoo 2239 46245 45%
9 Portsmouth 2222 18828 11.5%
@ Leicester 1.687 3329 5%
®  cooow 1,643 57.921 28%
Tolal 35,745 717.9% 5.0%
Proporiion of Unike poriiolio 75%

* Top ten ciiles in whikch we operate has been odjusted fo reflect the
portfoio changes in February 2017, Aston University on-campus
acquisition (3,067 beds| and the regional portfolio disposal [4,175 beds)

i ; % capital invesied in London

34 Read more: Property review
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OUR PURPOSE

Home for success

Individually and
collectively, our 1,450
people are driven by

a common purpose:

1o provide the students
who live with us o '"Home
for Success'. This means
providing the best home
for all students, helping
them grow and succeed
at University and beyond.

We do so through the
passion of our people,
great properfies and o
deep-rooted commitment
to customer service for
both our students and
our University partners.

The best home...

We provide a high quailty and secure Rving
anvironment where young peopie can develop
academically ond socioly.

Because we know that while, for most people,
University is & tame of exciterment and opportunity,

it can atso be a fime of anxiety and siress. Qur
research shows that students who feel wedl
infegrated are more resilient and befler equipped
to navigate the ransition Yo University, We therefore
aim fo provide an envionment, which, in every way.
heips thern achieve this,

for all students...

We undertiand thot a University education i
nowadays a significant investment for young people
and befleve thot no-one shoulkd miss out simply
becaute of thelr personal circumsiances.

we therefore offer a variety of accommeodation

at different price points, ranging from rooms with
shared bathrooms, to clusters of ensuite bedrooms
with shared kilchens and living spaces to seif-
contained studio apartments. in addition, the Unite
Foundation is cumently providing accommaodation
and a generous iving alowance for 134 students
kom severely disadvantaged packgrounds at
Universities across the UK.

helping them grow and succeed...

For many people, University s where the academic
foundations of ther career are kzid. Bul, for avery
generation of students, University is more than simply
astepping stone 1o a job.

It rouikds thern as individuals and provides o crifical
bridge o adulthood, where they can isom the
interparsonal skils they will need for ife. We therafore
aim lo create an environment that is caring and
supportive but also allows our students fo express
their natural desire for independence.

at university and beyond..,

Wer befieve that where a student kves has a material
impact on their academic and social axperence of
University and, ultimately. their kves.

Through our people, our buildings and our focus on
custamer service, we aim to help our students moke
the transition fiom teenagers to resilient adults,
equipped for everything that lies ohead. We
regulary measure how well we are meeting their
needs and are continuously looking for ways to
improve owr proposition,
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Delivering our purpose through our business model

Unite Students is the sector-leading
manager and deveioper of student
accommaodation, with a high quality.
welHocated portiolio of approximotely
140 properties in the UK's strongest
University towns and cities. We have
customerfocused approach and work
closely with our University partners fo
provide a seamless service fo over 49,000
students, providing them with a safe and
secure home at a wide range of price
points and roorm sizes, talloring our service
to meet ther needs.

Qurfocused business moded seeks o
delver low double-digit total returns and
sustainable, growing earnings, by
maintaining our competitive advontage,
growing and mainfoining the highest
quality portfolio and being the most
frusted brand in the sector, underpinned
by a strong capital structure.

11 Read more: Market review
12 Read more; Relationships

We operdte through two main Business Units:
Operations and Property. Qur Qperations
unit is responsitie for the portfolio. including
those owned by our co-investment vehicles,
USAF and LSAV. We aim o deliver operating
cashfliows and eamings. delivering
sustainable anrual growth inrental ncome
and profits, increasing the value of

our nvestrent portfolio through the
strengthening of our brand. Qur operating
plotform PRISM enhances and improves
our operational capabiities, delivering
improverments to customer services,
revenue management and demonshrating
the efficiencies of scale,

The Property business unit s responsible
for our development and asset
management strategy and oversees our
two co-investment vehicles, We identify
and manage acquisitions, disposals and
the development of operational assets
that enable us o leverage our highly
scalable operating platform.

2% Read more: Principal risks
ond unceriointies

EL Read more: Operations review

Detivering great customer service and
buikding strong relotionships with our
University partners, the communities in
which we operate, our custormers,
suppliers and 1,450 employees & crucial
o our success.

We work strategically with University
leaders. using our knowledge and
experience to help them with the
reqlisation of their estates and residences
strategies. We invest in our employees and
support their development, helping them
achieve their personal and protessional
potential. We work closely with the local
community, from the eqrly stages of
development and planning to providing
opportunilies for students living with us to
volunteer and bring positive benefifs to
the areq in which they live. Overall, we
aim te provide the homes and services
that enable and support our students’
pensonat and acadernic achievements,

34 Recd more: Pfroperty review
4@ Recd more: Ananciol review
44 Read more: Uplo us
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In 2016 we welcomed our largest ever number
of sfudents, 49,000. We are the first home from
home for the majority of our stiudents meaning
that almost one in 10 first year students live
with us. We are responsible for more students
than any single University.



DELIVERING
FOR OUR

STUDENTS

PRISM

We launched our innovative
technology sciution, PRISM,
which provides a huge range
of benefits for our students.

we will be able to process ther
bockings much quicker and book
them into thek rooms faster when
they arrive fo stay with us. PRISM abo
has the capacity to speed up how
we can respond to student requeslts
on maintenance issues.

15 For more information

Ambassador programme
In 2016 we piloted our Student
Ambassador programme,
which aimed o identify
students fiving with us who were:
willing and passionate to share
their own fist-hand experence
to help our new students
throughout their time with us.

The 12 initial Ambassadors were
recruited across four cily locations
and actively engaged in helping
new students, particularly during
the on-boarding experience. The
Ambassadors quickly became
recognised by new arrivals as the
‘go to’ people o halp them to settle
in and the programme will continue
to develop.

Focus on employability

As part of our Home for
Success commitrnent, cur
Employability initiafive identifies
ways in which we can help
students and their friends

to be successful in increasing
their employability once they
finish their University studies.

The Student Ambassador programme
piloted in 2016 was seen as d potenticl
stepping stone to identifying such
future opportunities, while ocur online
Student Life Hub was also further
developed in 2016 to include
employability tips.

Meanwhile, for students who finshed
ther University course in 2016, the Unile
Students Internship progromme gave
studenis the space and toois 1o ksam
rnore about our business, while building
empicyabie skills. Ten studenits joined
us as inferms in 2016, working In ok parts
of the business.

45 For more information
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DELIVERING
FOR OUR

UNIVERSITIES

Our long-term agreements with more
than 40 Universilies across England and
Scofiand guarantee that more than 50%
of our students are allocated rooms in our
buildings. As student numbers increase
and Unlversities seek to atiract students,
they look to us to support them by
providing attractive accommodafion
that fits with their student shategies.

Further strengthening

our University parinerships
Dedicated University
partnership team working
collaboratively with our

80 University partners,

70%

of 2016 openings are let to
Universities under nomination
agreements

58%

of allrooms let through
University agreements

=

L] For more information

First move into on-campus
In Brmingham

Asiton Student Village

(ASV} acquisition in central
Birmingham comprises
3.067 rooms in our first move
on-campus.

3 For more information

*1 Just think the Unite
product Is inspirational.

| think as a brand, they're
ahead of other providers
inthat they've kept

the prices not af an
unreasonable level.”

Unite Students Reputation Survey,
2016 — an independent survey of
Higher Education institutes

21 For more infosmation
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Investors In

People Goid

Unite Studenis joined the elite
group of UK companies to
achieve the coveted Investors
in Peopte Gold accreditation
in 2016.

Developing our teams cantinues ta
be a pricrity for us and this accolade
recognises that by providing efective
programmes across the company,
our teams can deliver excellent
customer service, while offering

o great plkace to work with

¢ clear commitment to

daveloping empkoyees.

Living Wage

2016

We were proud to receive the
Living Wage occreditation

Training

We have continued to develop
ouwr comprehensive range of
high quality training courses and
development programmaes for
our employees at all levels. In
iotal, 4,100 training days were
deifivered to help employees
evolve their skills and grow in
tangem with the company.

Owr leadership framework has aso
continued to mature, with 43 delegates
attending leadership courses
throughout the vear including

the programmes Becoming a
Supervisor, Becoming a Manager
ond leadership developmant.

4,100

We offered a total of 4,100 training
daysin 2016

Other related content
15 Chief Executive's review

38 Operations review
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We have 1,450 employees at Unite

Students with the majority working

with our students in 24 fowns and

cities. They are supported by

250 people in our Bristol supporl

centire. Our properly and development Q

leam have a central London base. g
2
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RELATIONSHIPS

LWE RECOGNISE THAT THE STRENGTH
AND SUCCESS OF OUR RELATIONSHIPS
ACRQOSS A VARIETY OF STAKEHOLDERS
HELP US TO CREATE LONG-TERM VALUE

FOR THE BUSINESS.

Qur success is founded on defivering great customer service ond buikding strong
relationships with our University pariners, the communities in which we operate,

our customaers and employees.

We are committed to high ethical standards in the way in which we engage with
our customers, pariners. employees, shareholgers, suppliers and other stakeholders.
Qur reputation as the most frusted brand in our sector is founded on our achievement

of these high standards.

THE UMKTE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2914
e

Investors and stakeholders

We seek lo provide balanced, clear
and fransparent communications that
allow our shareholders to better
uvnderstand Ihe business and our
strategy. through a programme of
regukar mestings, Capital Markets Days,
results briefings and trading updates
with its institutional shareholders, equity
analysts and investors. These provide
opportunities to discuss the progress

of the business. All presentations given
to institutional shareholders are made
availobls on our website,

In April 2016, we hosted a Capitol
Markets Day which allowed investors
to view Gur Coveniry portfolic and
development pipetine and the
opportunity to interact with our
cuting-edge operoting plattorm,
PRISM. In Dacember 2014, a second
Capital Markets Day held in London
included demonstrations on how
PRISM improves and streamlines
our operations.

Universities

We aim to maintain the strong
rekationships we have built with our
University partners who trust Unite
Students to provide students with o
safe and secure home thot supports
their personal and academic
achievement. In 2006, we have
continued 1o grow the proportion of
beds let through University parinerships,
increqsing the percentoge of the
partfolic let under nominations
agreements wilth Universities, to 58%.

We can boost our recruitment by offering
assurances to students (and thels
parents) obout qualiity accommodation.
When we understood Unite wos bullding
naxt o Wembiey Stadium we took the
opporiunity to take the whole building
tor our stucients at the start of the 2016/77
academic year. We bedleve this will help
our University become part of the
exciling regensrated community around
the stadium, snhoncing the expedence
for our current and future students.

James Kennedy
Chief Financial Cificer,
Middlesex University

Sludents

Unite Students is focused on providing
quality services to its students, at no
extra cost, to ensure that they have
the best resources and facilities
available. This includes SOMB/s Wi-Fi
access, free iortnightly cleaning
services for shared spacss, discounts
with retail partners and aflinclusive bills
and insurance, We also offer a number
of career opportunities to help them
develop their employablity and Iife skills.

We have also continued to add lo
the My Unite app and our online
platform, the Student Life Hub which
has improved our ability to
communicate in regl-time with our
students and engage with them on
relevant, interesting and useful topics.

Students’ welfare is o core pricrity for
Unite and there are a number of
initiatives in place to help better
understand ond address the issues
facing students, conducting extensive
research and working closely with
University partners to identify and
support struggling students.

The impact the Foundation scholanship
had on my academic ability and my
|#e in general has beenimmense. it
pravided me with a safe, comfortable
and independant environment -a
space | could call my own. And. most
importantly, a space which wasn't
going to sprout legs and run away.

Emily Drew
A student and Unite Foundation
graducte 2014
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People

Qur people are at the heort of our
business and our engagement with
all of our stakeholders. We recruit,
develop ond retain @mployees in
accordance with the following key
themes: Resourcing, Reward. Talent
and HR Poiicies and Procedures,
Diversity and Culture.

We are committed to fostering a
diverse and inclusive workforce with

a cuiture that is rewarding for all of our
pacple and that remains engaging
and challenging. We want to maintain
our culture, which delivers high
employee retention rales and career
development.

The welfore and professional
developmaent of cureémployees is a
high priority for us. we have effective
systems through which can identify
appropriate, high quality fraining
programmes for our empioyees to
evolve their skills and grow in tandem
with the company.

| have worked at Unite Students for
neary 12 yeors. | have leamt and
gained 310 much through my time
here, i reclly has been a great
experience. | siorled off a3 a
caretaker n Bimingham bul | always
had a particular intesest in electrical
work ond my mentor at the time,

saw potential In me. With his and the
business’ help | wes able go back to
college to compiete my basic English
and Numeracy exams ond move on
to study to be an Eleciriclon.

Jon Cash
Unite Students Central
Complionce Team

Suppliers

We rely on the strong relationships
that we develop with our suppliers
and partness. We airn to ensure they
share our corporate commitment

fo providing excellent service to our
customers and wider stakeholders,
and that they are most suited to our
leng-term stralegy. By selecting the
right suppliers through @ rigorous
tender process. we can ensure that
they enable us to drive efficiencies
and improve margins, from both

an operational and a development
point of view. This enabies the
forming of strong, strategic and
mutually beneficial partnesships with
consistently high stondards of quality
and inngvation,

Technology is an impartont resource
for Unite Students and fallowing the
appeintment of o supplier, we
conduct engoing and regular vendor
management activities through
collaboration between the
Procurement and IT departments. This
process is designed to not onty monitor
performance against agreed levels,
but to ensure we continue 16 take &
leading role inindustry developments.

Forbo Fooring Systems have been
working with Untte for overious years
now, and it is a parinership we are
proud to be part ol. From working

with the accommodation designers
to ensure we get the right Hooring
solutions for the application, to
managing the giont logistics and sock
control requiremants lo ensure projects
un smoothly, we are pleased to be port
of the process every step of the way.

Hizabeth Bushell
Key Accounis Manager,
Farbo Flooring Systems

Charities and communities

We appreciate the central robe that
we play in the many communities we
occupy across the UK. We work closely
with tha local community, from the
early stages of development and
planning to providing oppartunities for
students living with us to volunteer and
bring positive benefits to the area in
which they live.

In 2014, in support of our 20146 charity.
Spart Relief, our students, people and
marathon static cycling world record
holder Jarmwe Mclonald cycled
43,000 miles and raised £175,000 on
The World's Biggest 'Virtual' Tandem.
Fhis included a static bike challenge
in 24 cities where we have student
accommaodation and the John
QO'Groats to Lands End challenge.

We also continved ouw national
volunteering pregrarmme, lounched

in 2015, which aliows every employes

a paid day to volunteer for a good
cause, We also encourdge our students
te volunteer and support local and
national charities. For example through
clothing donations alone we rased
£3140.000 for Cancer Research. The Unite
Foundation continues o support young
peopke from the most challenged
backgrounds achieve a degree.

We are delighted that Unile Students
took on this amazing challenge and
raised such a fontastic amount for
Sport Relief 2014. The money ralsed
will help give exiremely vuinerable
ond disadvantaged people in the
UK, and across the world's poorest
communities, a helping hand to fum
their kves oround.

Anne-Ceclle Berthier

Heod of Fundraising & Partnerships,
Comic Rellef which manages Sport
Rellef, cur charity for 2016

0
2
g
%

SIUSLUBID)S |DIDUDULY

OO JBLUIO



%

CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT

STRONG PERFORMANCE DELIVERED
THROUGH TALENT AND HARD
WORK OF OUR TEAMS

Phil White
Chairman

Govemnance highlights

The Governance Report on pages
50 to 99 (inclusive) provides
details of the Group's approach

o govermnance and how it supports
the delivery of our strategy.

The highhights of the yeor inciuded:

> Succession planning and talent
development - CEQ fransition
during 2016

> Governance/risk manogement
following Leave vote and dynamic
externol markat

> Substantialinvestment in PRISM

» Preparation for REIT conversion
on 1 January 2017.

5@ For more information

2016 has been a landmark year for Unite
Students for several recsons: celebrating
our 25th year, welcoming our 500,000th
customer and providing hormes for 49,000
students, our largest ever Infake in a single
year. We also ochieved o Gold
accreditation in the ‘Investors in Pecpla’
pecple manogement standard, placing
us in the top tier of busingsses.

Performance has again been strong,
with o total accounting raturn of 15%
and growth in Adjusted EPRA earnings
o £61.3 milllion, up 24%, Profit before

fox was £201.4 million which includes
property revaluations of £136.3 million
[2015: £388.4 million and £324.6 militon
respectivaly). As a result of this strong
performance, we ara increosing our
dividend poy-out ratio to 75%, a year
aheod of schedule and declaring a final
dividend of 12.0p. This adds up to a totat
of 18.0p for the full year, on increase of
20% year on year.

Unite Students is a service brand and the
strong performonce we have delivered
for our customers, University partners ond
shareholders is only possible because of
the talent and hard work of our teams
across the business. On behalf of the
Boord, | would like to thank them: for
ancther excellent year.
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. On 31 May, Mark Allan stepped down as

Chief Executive, a role he held since 2006.
Mark played a key role in the success of
Unite Students and on behalf of the Board
and everyone at Unite, | would fike to
thank him for his service and wish him

well for the future.

Richard Smith has taken over as Chief
Executive, having been the Managing
Director of our Operations business for
the last five years, successfully lkeading
the transformation of aur service delivery
ond implementation of our PRISM
operating platform.

A core part of our recent success has
been owr consistent stirategy and we

wilt continue to focus on its three main
elements: 1o deliver greot service o

aur students and University pariners,

to operate briliant buildings and to
maintain high quality eamings ond o
strong capitat structure, As a resutt of our
continuing progress in these areas, we
have successfully transitioned fo become
a REIT, effective from t January 2017, and
we believe this is consistent with our focus
on income and capital discipline.

The outiook for our market remains
positiva with structurai growth being
supported by Ihe strength of the warld
renowned UK Higher Education sector,
increqsing participation rates, the
internationalisation of Higher Education
and the shortage of housing in the UK.

The impact of Brexit is starting to become
clegrer and we do not expect it to have
a materiaglimpact on student numbers,
Our high quality portfolio, University
relationships and market-leading
operoling plattorm leave us well placed
to continue performing strongly in the
years lo come.

Phil White
Chalrman
22 February 2017
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

MAINTAINED FOCUS TO DELIVER
HOME FOR SUCCESS FOR ALL
STUDENTS WHO LIVE WITH US

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Financial highlights

EPRA earnings

£62.7m

Adjusied EPRA samings

£61.3m

Adjushed EPRA EPS

27.7p

Einﬁi.lrm

Basic EPS

101.3p

Dividend per shore

18.0p

Total accounting retum

15%

34%

In my first year as Chief Executive, | am
pleased to report another strong set of
resulis for the year ending 31 December
2016. We have maintoined our focus on
delivering sustainable growth in recuring
profits and cash flow in the long term,
and detivering a Home for Success o all
of the studenis who live with us, We do
this by providing great service and
operating prilliant buildings that students
and Universities choose. We also ensure
investrment discipline to maintqin

a strong copilal structure and deliver
high-quaiity eamings,

Perfarmance in 2016 was driven by
ancther year of strong growth in EPRA
earnings, rental growth and development
profits, combining to deliver a totol
accounting return of 15%. Adjusted EPRA
earnings {adjusted to exciude the yield
retated elerment of the: USAF performance
fee] increased by 24% to £61.3 miilion
and now represents one-third of the

fotal shareholder return. As aresult of

the significant growth in earnings and
the positive outiook for further earnings
growth, we are deckaing a final dividend
of 12.0p {2015: 9.5p). making a dividend
per shore of 18.0p for the full year (2015
15.0p). an increcse of 20% year on yeqar.

We are continuing 10 focus on growing
eamings in absolute terms and also as a
propartion of our total return. This i driven
oy our ability to continue growing rental
lavels on an annual basis, the delivery of
cost afficioncies and from the completion
of our high-quality development pipeline.

Qur PRISM operating phkatform, which
become fully operational in 2016, provides
us with a unique capability to drive

vaiue from our portfolio through scale
afficiencies ond revenue management.
sypporting our ongoing incoma focus.

15

Since the year end, we have completed
two important strategic initiatives with the
acquisition of a 3,100-bed, on-campus
portlolio at Asion University and also

the sale of aregional portolio, which
together improve our portiolio quality
and focus on the best Universities.

The business completed its planned
conversion o become g RET on 1 January
2017. This transiticn supports our continued
focus on earnings. copital discipiine and
commiirment to dsirioute eamingsto
shaeholders. As a result of the strong
performance and positive outiook, we
have occelemted our increosed pay-out
ratio o 75% of Adjusted EPRA earnings
{excluding USAF performance fees}

o year ahead of schedule.

Defivering great service to our

students and University pariners
We provide o high-quality and secue living
envilonment where young peopia can
develop academically and socially and
make the most of their time at University.

For many peopie, University is where the
foundations of ther career are kaid. We
unhderstand that a University education is
o significont investment for young people.
ond believe that no-one should miss out
simply because of their personal
circumnstances. But, for every generation
of students, University is more than simply
a stepping stone 10 a job. If rhoulds them
as Individuals and provides a critical
brigge to adulthood, where they can
iearn the interpersonal skills thay will need
for life. We believe that where a student
lives has o material impact on their
academic and social experience of
University and, ultimately, the'r lives, We
therefore aim to creale an environment
which is caring and supportive, but also
allows our students 1o express their natural
desire for independencs,

We recognise that affordcbility of Higher
Education s an important consideration
and therefora we offer a variety of
accommodation at different price

points lo students with the maojority of

our occomrmodation focused at the
mid-ronge price point for purpose-built
student accommodation. 45% of our
customers are from the UK and we
continue to atroct growing numbers of
second and thid-year students, who now
moke up one-third of our cusiomer base.
we wlill continue fo focus on providing our
customers with excellant service and an
experience that they value,

Qur focus on the siudent experience s
completety aligned 1o the aims of our
University partness, for whom student
experience is a key measure. With
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

CONTINUED

students spending more time in their
accommodation than on campus, we
can demonsirate to Universities how we
can support them and their ambitions.
This focus has led to 58% of aur
accommeodation being let to Universities
through nominations agraemaeants, With
an average remaining life of six years, our
nominations agreements provide income
and rental growth certainty on over half
of aur revenue. In turn, this provides
protection from any polential changes to
student numbers. and has helped {6 defiver
average occupancy of 98% and rental
growth of 3.5% over the tost five years.

Students oo, expect more from their
occaommodation and this year, we
maintained cusiomer service satisfaction
levels - a key performance indicator for
us—at high level, placing uson apor
with some of the best European service
companies. we also secured excellent
results in our independantly assessed
employee effectiveness and University
trust scores. The delivery of great custormer
service to sludents and Uiniversities
transtates into our strong financial
perfarmance, delivering occupancy of
98% and rental growth of 3.8% in 2016
{2015: $8%, 3.B8%). With cur new opemting
system, PRISM we have also delivered
further improvements to our NOI morgin
and overhead efficiency measure.

Qur people, University redationships, the
quality of our portfolio, PRISM and the
broader operating piotform set us apart
from the other operators in the sector
and will suppart the ongoing growth

in our portfolio, service levels and
financial performance.

Operating briliiont bulldings

QOur strategy is built around the quality,
location and scale of our portfolic, We
aim fo operate buildings that are located
inand around the Universities with the
best prospects. We believe that our focus
on high-quality Universities across tha UK
is the best strategy o achieve continued
high levels of occupancy and rental growih.
We generate 82% of our income from
customers attending high and mid-
ranked Universities, increasing to 86% on
completion of cur development pipeline.

During 2014, we opened 3,100 new beds,
invested £12 million in asset management
and refurbishment progroammes and sol¢
£114 million of assets {on a see-through
basis). Toking info account these activities
together with vaiuation movemaents, the
value of cur investment portfolio {including
our share of co-investrment vehicles)
increased by 14% to £2.1 billion as ot

31 Cecember 2016 and is valued atan

average portfolic yiekd of 5.45% (2015:
£1.8 bilion and 5.55% yield).

We also mode excellent progress with

our development pipeiine during the yeor.
We completed five new buildings over the
summer and secured an additional four
rnew development schemes, which
increases our secured development
pipedne to 7,000 beds for dedivery aver

the next three years. Construchion of all
our 2017 openings is progressing in line
with plans, planning consents and buikd
contracts ane in place for all of our 2018
deliveries and planning permission isin
place lor alf but one of our 2019 schemes.

We are centinuing fo see attroctive
development oppartunities in strong
University markets and we pkan fo invest
selactively in target markets to enhance
portfolio quality and deliver target
retumns, whilst demand for student
occammodation remains strong in
London, the fallin land prices over the
last 12 months has not been sufficient.
when ¢combined with new planning
requirernents for atfordable student
housing provision, to enable us fo achieve
our target returns. We will confinue to
monitor the stuation for opportunities,

The anticipaied yvield on cost of our
secured pipeting is B.4% and prospective
returns on new schermes rernain attractive
at 8,0-8.5%. The secured development
pipeline & Mighly accretive and remains

a significant component of our future
sarmings growth and coukd contribute
12-14 pence per share o EPRA earnings
once built out,

We continue to target acquisitions of
completed assets and portfolios that
enhonce the quality of our portfolic and
the earnings profile of the business. These
acquisitions are targeted through our
co-invesiment vehicles due o their lower
cost of capital, allewing us 1o generate
enhanced retumns through our asset
management and acquisition fees.

USAF has acquired two assetfs under
development which wilt be opened for
the 2017 academic year, These ‘forward
fund' assets represent 404 beds, in Oxforg
and Edinburgh and were purchased for

o combined total of £56 million. Following
the yeaor end, LSAV acquired a £227 million
portfolio located on the Aston University
campus. This exciting development allows
us 1o build a strategic relationship with o
high-ranked University and to leverage our
PRISM operoting system 1o deliver strong
financial returns.

Disposals remain an important port

of our sirategy and we will continue

to recycle assets out of our portfolio to
ensure that we increase exposure to the
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best Universities in the UK, and also to
generate capital to invest in flurther
development aclivity and exciting
opportunities such as the Aslon Student
villoge acquisition, During 2016, we sold
£114 million of assels [on a see-through
basis) including the sale of two ossets to
USAF. These assets were sokd In line with
book valuations. we intend fo sell
£150-200 milion (Unite share} of assets on
a sae-through basis during 2017 to ioke
advantage of the ongoing srengthin the
imvestment market and to ensure that we
mainiain a strong andg flexible balance
sheet as we progress our developmant
pipeine, We have made good progress
already in 2017, having compieted the sale

, of 0 4175-bedregional portfoho in February

for £295 million [Unite shore £102 milbon)
in fine with book value.

Maintaining high quality eamings
and a strong caphtal structure

we have maintained full occupancy
across our portfolio {78%} with rental
growth of 3.8%, With 58% of this income
underpinned by nominations
agreemsnis, we have a high level of
visibility in the ongoing cccupancy and
rental growth outiook of the portfolio. In
addition to revenue growth, o focus on
efficiency has resulted in further
improvemants in our NO| margin up to
73.1% {2015: 72.5%), and in our overhead
efficiency revenue which shows that our
overheads, net of management fees.
now represents 40 basis points of gross
asset value (2015: 48 basis points). We
remain confident about our ability to
make further efficiency gains and to
deliver our targets of 75% and 25-30 basis
points by the end of 2017.

Unite's share of net debt grew by £45
million to £774 million in 2016, Qur capital
expenditure progromme {Unite shore
£146 million} was majority funded by

our disposal progromme and retained
egrnings. We maintained our LTV within
our farget range in the mid-30% level at
34% (2015: 35%) os development profits
and rental growth outstripped the
increase in net debt, Qur net debt to
EBITDA rafio is 6.5 (2015: 4.9). again within
our farget level which we intend to maintain.

Interest rates have remained at low levels
throughout 2016, and we have confinued
to fake advantoge of these historically
low rates both on new debt facHities and
through entering into forward starting
interest rale swaps in respect of future
borowing requvemants of our secured
developrment pipeline, As a result of these

- activities, cur average cost of debbt has

fallen o 4.2% fror 4.5%. We expect it to
fall a little further over the next few years
as forward starting swaps becomes
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affective. At these levelk, the spread to
ungeared development yields and
investment yields remains significant.

The Group's conversion to REIT status
reflects the consistency and quality of the
eamings profile and its conservative
financing strategy. The Group will ensure
that the balance of business, georing ratios
and dividend pay-out levels remain within
the guidefines sat out within the REIT regime.

Market and shrategy

The outiook for the student accommodation
seciorremains positive, with structun factors
confinuing to drive the demand: supply
imbalance in the University markets inwhich
we operate. The UK Higher Education sector
B recogniead gicbally for the strength of iis
Universities and contribution that it mokes to
research. innavalion, falent developrment
anrd the UK economy more broadly, The UK
is the second most popular destination for
internafional students and has 18 out of
the world's fop 100 Universities ond 47 of
Europe's top 200 Universities. We expect
the UK Higher Education sector to
maintain its giobal standing and reputation.

The number of applicants and the number
of students accepted into courses in 2016
was Qgain of record levels gt 725,000 and
540,000 respectivety {2015: 710,000 and
530,000}, driven by growth in demand from
both UK and internationol students, with
applicants outstripping the ploces offered
by Universities by 185,000, the sector is
weli placed to withstand any potential
reductions from UK demographics or the
impact of the UK leaving the EU.

Following the removal of the student
number cap in 2015, the Higher Education
sector is focing further change with the
introduction of the Teaching Excellence
Framework (TEF} in May 2017. This will provide
students with greater visibility of the quality
of teaching at Universities and also allow
Universities to incregse fees in line with
inflation if they meet certain criteria. we
expect tha TEF fo have a significant mpact
on the attractiveness of Universities,
particularly to UK students, and we are
well placed o respend fo changes
resulting from this new information.

The gap between the number of cpplicants
and tha number of University pkacas could
be reduced by external factors, incluging
the potential impact of the EU referendum
on student numbers. Since 2015, a
demographic frend has seen a reduction
in the number of 18-21 year olds, affecting
the next four years. Early appécations data
in Jonuary 2017 shows a S%reduction in
applicants for the 2017/18 academic year,
Howaever, we expect that the 185,000
surpius of applicants over places and the

I removal of the cop means the number of
students accepted onto courses will not
be materiolly impacted, and we expect
the high and mid-ranked Universities 1o
recruit more students than those at the
lower end of the league tables.

The quaiiies of the studient acocommodation
sector have attracted significant levels of
capitalinvestment over the last thvee yecrs
with over £1! bilion of Investrment aclivity. This
increasad investment octivity has aiso seen
the level of new supply increcdse and the
tolal number of purpose-built beds to
increaser to 250,000 beds (14% of the UK's
student population). The outiook for new
supply suggests that the mate of new supply
will continue at a simiior rate of around
20,000-25,000 over the next two years.
However, a significant proportion of the new
beds are focused on the upper end of
the price range which wilt have a minimal
impact on our type of accommodation.

Furthermore, our exposure fo changes

in student numbers is mitigated by our
high quality Univarsity relationships and
nomingtions agreements and therefore
we remain confident that wed-located,
mid-range, direct-lat student
cccommodation will be able to maintan
high levels of occupancy and rental growth.

Oullook

Building on o pericd of consistent sfrong
performance, and supportive market
fundamentals, the Group remains well
placed o deliver sustainable eamings
growth in the years ahead. Our
development pipeline and operational
expertise provides good visibility over the
future rental growth ond increasing
recurring earnings. Our portfolio is
focused on stronger Universities, plus our
highly scalable operating piatform ond
strong brand leaves us well pkaced to
extend our market leading position.

Despite the broader macro uncertointies
created by the EU referendum, the
supply/demand outiook for studeant
accommaodation remains in our

favour, and we willlook to benefit

from opportunities to extend our
development pipeline, grow on-campus
accommodation and strengthen University
relationships. With this bockdrop, ¢ strong
balance sheet and our new REI stotus,
we gre confident that the business
remains well piaced to defiver highly
aftractive shareholder seturns.

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer
22 February 2017

Chief Exscutive's QLA

Richard Smith
addresses some fopical
questions from our shareholders

What has the highlight of 2015
been forthe business?

R in 2016, we welcomed our
500,000th student to Unite

Students, a kantostic milestone in the
Company's 25-year history and
testament to the high quality service
we provide students during their
university careers. The launch of PRISM
wais angther important achievement
in 2016, which is delivering significant
efficiencies for the business and
considerably improving the customer
experience we can offer fo students,

Q

P How will the exit from Europe
offect the business?
PNl Following the EU referendum, the
Government has confrmed that
ak existing EU students and for the
2016/17 and 2017/18 acadeamic years
will have funding provided for the
duration of their courses, With 9% of
our students coming from the EU, any
potentialimpact on student numiers
from the EU referendum would have
a limited impact on Unite’s occupancy
given the continued supply/demand
imbakince. we continue to be positive
on the outiook for the higher education
sactor in the UK which is recognised
globally for its excellence ond its ability
to attract talent from across the workd,

25 Read mote: Brexit

Iy Dees the booed plan to expand the
execulive management ieam?

P The Board, senior management
and | remain focused on and
commitled to the continued success of
the busingss. The Board has established

a compreahensive senior lieadership
development programme to grow
and nurture our falent and develop
our high performers. This ensures we
have a clear takent pipeline for tuture
Board appointments.
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MARKET REVIEW

MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

REMAIN ROBUST

This yaar we are sgeing onother year

of student number growth with more
students accepling places for the 2016/17
academic year than ever befare, A total
of 535.000 students started ¢t University
in 2015/16, faking the tolal nember of
full-time students ta £1.8 million, up from
£1.7 million in 2014/15. Acceptances have
risen 15% snce huifion fees were intfroduced
in 2012. Applications continue o outstrip
occeptances. A record 723,353
opplicolions wete received for 2016/17
which left o dermand gap of 188,450
students. This number has rermained
stable for the lost five years. See Figure 1.

Demand drivers for student
accommodation

We fully expect the demand for UK Higher
Baucation ia continue from both domestic
and intermational studenits. More young

peope in the UK one choosing fo go to
University than ever before, with 37%

of 18-year-olds now applying to go to
University up frorm 33% 10 years ago.
Expectations confinye to rise and we
expect o see school leavers continueg 1o
place real value on o University education,
The UK remains the #2 dastination for
internationai students in Higher Education,
attrocting 10% of infemational students.
The UK draws almost double the number
of international students comparad

with third place Australic. See Agure 3.

The UK continues to attract intemational
students due 1o the high quality of the
Universitias in the UK, The UK now has
three universities in the global top ten,
fourin the top 20 and seven in the top 50
in Europe, six of the top seven universities
are UK institutions. See Figure 5.

Fgwe 1: Applcants and acceplances (thousands]

Figwe 2. PBSA beds (thousands)
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Education agents support these rankings
as 91% rated the UK, as a destination to
study as “attractive” or “very atiractive”.
This will support UK nationals’ desire 1o go
1o university af home as well as drowing
more international students to the UK.
international numbers grew by 15,000
between 2014/15 and 2015/16.

i Sthudent numbers

Total student numbers in the UK have

. been steodily increqsing since 2012. The

2016/17 year is expacting to see 1.8 million
students {under-graduate and post-
graduate] in the UK, This is a 2% increase
from 2015/16 and comfortably above 1%
average student growth of the previous
five years. See Figure é.

~ The number of interational students has
. grown since 2015/16 by 1% to 428,000,

Intérnational sfudents make up a

higher proporfion of demand for
accommodation. They account for 30%
of students needing accommodation,
compared with 25% of full-time students.
See FAgume 4.

Unite maintains its focus on providing beds

. for those segments of the market that

suit PBSA, namely international students,
who account for 35% and first years, who
account for 85% of our beds.

Figure 3: Infernafional
student mobity
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Agure 4 Demand for accommodalion (%)

Supply ol purpose built student
accommodation

The structural growth of the Higher
Education sector has attracted significant
levels of investment over the last three
years. This increased investment has seen
PBSA beds grow frorm around 200,000 in
2014 t0 250,000 in 2016. A further 50,000
beds cre expected to be built over the
next two years, tfaking the total 1o around
16% of the full-fime stludent population.

in g more competitive market place,

the quality of the portfolic, price point,
customer service and university
relationships are criticalto ensuring full
occupancy and ongoing rental growth,

Brexit and immigration

The fullimpoct of Brexit on the UK Higher
Education sactor will become Clearer
over the next few months, Funding
arangements have been confirmed

for current EU students and those starting
in 2007718,

Following Brexit, we expect fo see EU
students join other international students
and thergfore see on increase in fees.
However, given the quality of UK Universities
and the attracliveness of studying in

the UK, we esfimate that overall student
numbers from the EU should only fall by
around 20,000 - 30,000. Universities will
work hard to ensure that any foll in student
numbers & mitigated with additionat
recruitment from the UK, the EU and from
other international destinations.

Figuse 5: Universily ronkings (institutions)

Figure &: Full fime student numbers {milions)

The UK's immigration policy for
internotiongl students remains one of the
most robust in the world, compared with
other major destinations for international
students. Intermnational students make a
significant contribution 1o the UK economy,
genergting an estimated £10.7 billion of
export earnings for the UK, and over
135,000 jobs. (mrmigration and immigration
policy remains g political issue and the
seclor will confinue 1o manitor and assess
the impact of any further changesin

this areqa.

EU research funding currently accounts
for £688 miillion or 2.5% of total income

for Universities and there ore concems
regarding the long-term cutiook for ihis
funding. Universities' exposure o this issue
varies, with six UK institutions receiving over
50% of their research funding from the EU.

i However. the Government has stated that
1 Universities will hove certainty over future

. funding and should continue to bid for

i competilive EU funds while the UK remains
| a member of the EU, with @ commitment

i that the Treasury will underwrite the

| payments of such awords, even when

| specific projects continue bayond the

UK's departure from the EU.
I 5 Read more: Our business model
| and sirategy
i 2 Read more: Pincipal risks
ond unceriainties
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KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

FINANCIAL KPIS

Eamings per share®
Pence

28p

Mesasure

Our EPRA eornings KPisa
measure of profil per share
in fin@ with EPRA guidelines.

Netl asset vailue*
Pence per share

646p

Measure

Qur EPRA NAY per share
measuras the market value of
properties and developments
less any debt used to fund
them plus any working capital
in the business.

Comments Target
Sustainable growth in earnings  Daliver visible and
has been driven by high levels  meaningful grawth

Comments Torgel
Consistent NAY growth has To contfinue delivering
been delivered through rental  strong balanced retums,

of occupancy and rental in EPS by maintaining grow*h, yield compression. confributing to o double-
growth supported by afocus  high occuponcy fental development profits and digif fotal return.
on delivering operational growth and delivering the retained eamings. Qur
efficiency. The growth in development pipsiine. sustainuble growth in NAY 73 Remuneration
eamings underpins our redlacts the implementation
stratagic priorities of delivering of the business model and
great service ond growing our strategic priority 10 operate
and sustainable eéamings. briliant properties.
Alignment to strat Allgnment t0 strategy
= = 2@ . 90
Total accounting retum Loan-to-value ratio
% %
Meoasure Meqsure
The total return fo shoreholders is Our ratio of net debt to
the ratio of growth in EPRA NAV property values.
plus dividlends paid as
percentage of opaning
EPRA NAV.
Comments Maintaining a sirang lotal Comments Torget
Totalrelumn hos averaged 16%  retum from our portfolio Continued to deliver reduction  To maintain LTV around
in the \ast six years, driven by the  is a resylt of our business inLTV through ongoing focus  the mid 30% level.

growthin EPRA eamings, yiekd  model and delivery of
compression. rentol growth and  our strategic priorifies.
development profits. The

performonce in 2016 wos Target

delivered by focusing Continue o deliver

on growing rental kevets and double digil-total retums.
the delivery of our high quality

development pipeline.

Alignmaent to sivategy

00

* Resulfs are bosed on the European PUbic
Real Estate Association Parfermance measures,

an disposals and growing the

value of the property portfolie. 73 Remuneration
Our LTV reflects our strategy to

maintain the strongest capital

structune in the sector.

Allgnmant 10 strategy
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OPERATIONAL KPIS

Satety

Number of accidents

5

Measure
The number of reportable
accidents in our Operations

business each year as a means

of assessing our succass in

approaching health and safety.

n

Key

Great service Bnlligrt properties
Customer salisfaction

%

Measure

We underiake an independent
survey with INS twice ayear to

understand our relationship with

our cystomers, the exparience

0

Growing and
sistonoble somings

we provide and their likelhood to

rebook and recommend Unite.
Commenis priority within our Commants Torget
Our Accident iIncident business and supporis While there has been We aim foreoch the top
Manogement System (AIMS),  our strategic pricrity 1O improvement in customer 10% of benchmarked
has pravided us with greater offer great service. satisfaction over the prior four  companies within the
visibility on our incident years our 2016 result moved next three years.
neporting, enabling us fo Target back 3% points. We need to
implement new ways of Wae sirive to reduce the work hard through ourstrategic 72 Remuneration
working that have improved number of reportable priority o offer great service so
efficiency. Sciety is a high incidents year on year. that we put customers at the

heart of that process.
Alignment to strategy 2.3 Alignmaent lo strategy .2.13
Empiloyee effectiveness Higher Education trust
% %
Measure Measure
Wea have an employee survey Annual qualitafive research with
tool, run by the Hays Group, our Higher Education partnars to
called Employee Etfectiveness, understand their perception of

Unite and the degree fo which

we meet their needs.
Comments Target Commaenis focus of providing a Home
Our new survey resutts provided  We aim o increase the Understanding whet our Higher  for Success, we need o
detailed insight into the employee effectiveness Education partners need from  continue to work hard o
moftivations and drivers of our  percentage above the us, both for themselves as ensure this is reflected in
employeas and positions us 6% 60% threshoid. institutions and for their students, the score.
above the General UK industry is a vital part of improving aur
Benchmark [48%) and 1% level of service lo offer great ~ Torget .
behind the High Perforrring service, The overall score s in fing e aim fo reach the mid
Indusiry Benchmark [55%) in with last yearand whistour  80% level within the next
our third year. strong University partnerships  fhree years.

were supported by the ongoing.
Alignmant {0 strategy 2.3 Allgnmaent to strategy o 3
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STRATEGIC PLANNING AND
RISK MANAGEMENT IN A
DYNAMIC EXTERNAL MARKET

Chils Szpojnarowicz

Company Secretary and Head of Legal

2014 -~ the year we celebrated
our 25th birthday — was the most
dynamic external market the
PBSA sector has seen jo date.
With the Higher Education secior
and the broader economy facing
new challenges such as Brexit
and poiltical changes around
the globe. ous strategic planning
and risk management Is evolving
in sesponse to these changes.

Being well prepared for o combination

of risk events happening at the same time
is central fo our readiness preparation.
Affordobility and volue for money is
increasingly important and our risk
management focus on student experience
and the efficient delivery of g quality
product is more important thon ever.

The following pages provide insight nto
our key risks and how we navigate them.

Assessing our risk profile and key
risk developments during 2014

As anintrinsic port of our strolegic
plonning, and to support the Board’s
robust assessment of the Group's
principal risks and its ongaing longer term
viability, the Board conducted a thorough
review of our risk profie. This review
involved both a top-down approach:

> ihe Boord considered a wide range
of strategic and emerging risks and
opportunities and their impact

ond a bottom-up approach:

> the Board scrutinised and challenged
the risks identified in the Qpearations
ond Property Business Units, as well
our financing ond treasury risks.

Jo ensure g broader perspective, this
review included engagement with extemal
experts, such as property valuers & heatth
& safety auditars, as well as senior keaders

Rk bl @ cgrego v

Market risks

in the Higher Education sector. This
extemal engagement was especially
important this year as the sector starts fo
digest the impact of Brexit.

This risk profile review identified four
risk categaries:

Morket - supply and demand 26
Operational risks 27
Property/development risks 28
Financing risks Pl

Thase risk categories are consistent
with those identified in prior years,
with movernent in specific risks -
driven principally by uncerlainty
due to Brexit — os follows.

et in 200

increasing uncertainty following the Leave vote and the impact
(reduction on the Higher Education sector, UK plc and immigration poficy
iIn demand} uncertainty Hlowing fram this.
While the impact of 8raxit on the UK ecanomy and Higher
Education sector remaings unclear, it has led to greater unceriainty.
Related sec o We have focused a significant proportion of our risk activity
5 Business model and strafegy understanding the potentialimpact on our business.
12 Relationships Property/ Liquidity and uncertainty in the brooder real estate sector.
development risks + +has b " ’
18 Market overview Tne property market has been affected by Brexit cr]d broader
— macro economic factors. We have focused risk activity on
2 (eyperformance indicators (KPls} defermining how this impacts our property-reiated business
26 Principal risks and uncertainties activity during the year.
5 Corporate govemance 26 Read more: Principal risks ond uncertainties on pages 26 o 29.
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Re-calibrating our risk appetite in 2018

Tha Group's risk appetite is considered as a fundamental part of the Board's sirategy setting and annual budge! - it does not happen
in isolation. Our risk appetite is underpinned by our principal financial aim o continue delivering double-digit total retums and
sustanable growing eamings. Having regard fo the key risk developrments in 2016 set out on page 22, the Boord recalibrated our risk
appetite. This recolbrafion considers both threats 1o — and opportunities in —our business in the context of macre and minor developments,
not onty in the PRSA sector, but also the broader Higher Education sector, property market and economy more genenally.

el

Gregl service With higher fee levels, the affordability and velue of Higher Education remains a risk focus.
) Home for Success, PRISM and our University rekationships remain an opportunity for us fe differenfiate
. from competitors.
Brlllant properties  Focusing our portfolio on high quolity Universities and recycling our portfolic in o competitive market place.
e Undertaking develcpment activities. 0O
o
©
Growing ond During 2014, focus on becoming o RET and ongoing compliance with REIT tests 10 enabile REIT conversion g
susioinable eamings  effactive | January 2017, 13
~ Planning and completing our conversion to REIT status. b
0 Maintaining full cccupancy across our portfolio. E
g
Stress testing our §
strategic planning
Each year, the Boord develops and
retreshes the Group's Strategic Plan.
This is based on detailed three-year
strategic/financial projections {with
refated scenario planning) and rolls
forweralor et wo Yean g ncrease n vietd
. OQl + .
maps our three strategic objectives interest rates expansion
set ogainst our risk profile {described The influences B4
diracty betow), Recognising tha! risk of multiple g
events do not necessarily happen in combined 2
isQlation, the Board then siress tests risk events -
these projections agoinst various g
muyltiple combined risk events. Through 3
this process, o bose cose and stress b
tested Strategic Plan is developed. &
During 20i&. this stress tested aric Reduction in EU/
rin . this stress scen . :
planning considered a material international
reguction in the number of Buropean students
and infernational students, a maternial
rise in long term interest rotes and
yiekd expansion. together with a
combination of all these events
occumring at the same time.
Mapping our three strategic objectives against our risk profile g
5
Gregt service Morket (supply The health, safety, wellbeing and security of the 49.000 students who make Unite Students g
and demand) theirhome is the foundation of our reputation and confinued focus on heatth & safety & key g
o Operalional 1o building and maintaining this trust. B3
3
Affordabllity and value for money are increasingly crifical in the increasingly competitive
market place. Developing the most frusted brand in the sector continues to be criticol
to our sustainable ond longer term success.
8rliont properties  Property/ Cur focus on working with high and mid ranked Universifies means that we will
development recycle copital into higher performing cities. Property development is a higher risk,
0 higher return activity.
Growing and Hnancing Maintdin a timety opproach to amanging new debt and extending debt maturities,
susiainable eamings reducing the cost of funding, diversifying our funding sources and introducing new

- ©

lenders to the Group. Secure a strong Balance sheet with appropriate levels of lieverage
and liquidity to ensure the business can withstand any property cycle.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Creadting the right corporate
culture for effective risk

management

The Group's risk management framework
is designed to identify the principal

risks and ensure that risks are being
appropriately monitored, controls are in
place and required aclions have clear
ownership with requisite accountabifity.

The organisation hos an open ond
accountable culiure, led by a stable and
axperienced leadership team that has
operated in the secior for a number of
years. This culiure is set by the Board in the
wary it conducts its Board and Committee
meetings and cascades through the
organisation enabling the some culture
for risk management.

During 2014, this corporate cultyre wos
assessad as part of the Board's effectiveness
evaluation, using the key learnings from
the Financicl Reporling Council (FRC)'s
recent report, Corporate Culture and the
Role of Boards,

62 Read more: Efectiveness

The culture of the organisalion recognises
-and accepts — that risk is inherent in
business and encourages an open and
proactive approach to risk management
as opposed to a blome cullure. By viewing
our risks through the lens of our three
strategic objectives, the Group is able o
ensure risk management is proactive ond
pre-emptive and not a tick box exercise,

The Board has the overall rasponsibility for
fhe governance of risks and ensures there:
are adequote and effective systemnsin
place. It does this in various ways:

> Risks are considered by the Boord as
an mtrinsic part of strategy setting and
consideration of new opportunities -
risk is recognised as an inhement part
of each opportunity

> A twice yearly formal review by the

Boord of principal risks, how they

are changing and considering any

armerging risks

Risk Commitiee reviews the principal

risks that the Group is facing or

should consider

¥ Specificrisk managemantin
dedicated Board sub-cormmittees
allowing focus on specific risk areqs
(for example, the Audit Committee
and Heatth & Sofety Committeg)

v

Qur risk management framework

» Risk Commiltee scrutiny and challenge
of Businass Unit risk management
activity ollowing a focused forum
for risk identification and review )

> Board directors also sit on Business Unit !
boords and thus provide the Board with
direct line of sight to Business Unit risk
management octivity

> Risk assurance through external and
internal auditors as well as specialist
third party risk assurance where
oppropriate (e.g. specialist
independent heaith and sofety
compliance in the Qpemtions and
Property Business Units).

Robus! assessment

of principal risks

The divectors confirm that they have ;
conducted arobust assessment of the :
principal risks facing the Group. The

process for how the Board determined

these principal risks is explained above

and the specific principal risks are set

out on pages 24 fo 29.

The beard &
Risks assessed as part ¥ Owned by the Board and its Committees
of sirategy seffing ¥ Twice yearly formail risk review and ongoing monitoring
and risk oversight of risk integral to Board meetings
\L/ \[ -
Risk management Policies and controls Composition ]
of Risk Committee
> Owned by the Risk Committes and the Underpinning risk management Chrls Szpojnorowicz
Business Unit boards [such as Capital Openating Guidelines; Company Sectetary
> Monthly risk fracker review at Business Treasury Policy: Anti-Bribery Policy: Major and Head of Legal and
Unit boards Investment Approvals Commitiee and the Chair of Risk Committee
> Risk Committea review of allrisk frackers infernal controls framework)
Joe Lister

|

€

Chief Financial Officer
and MD of People
and Communications

Richard Smith

R
“
Q
People and culture N\
Embedded fisk Openness, fransparency and clear ownership of
managament culture risk management [through risk trackers) cascades

through the organisation

Chief Executive Officer

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director
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Key Risk Indicators (KRls)
linked o our KPis and our
three shrategic objectives
Gredt service Customer
satisfaction
Sofaty
- - Higher Education trust
% Noms v. Drect Let
Briltiont Net gsset value
properties Age of asset
Cccupancy
‘°‘ Rental growth
Growing and Earnings per share
sustainable Total return
samings Net debt

Loan-fo-value ratio
Net delbt : EBITDA

i

" Viabllity statement

The Diectors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a three-year period

o Decambier 2019, laking Gocount of the
Group's current position and the polentiol
impact of the principal risks. The Directors
consider the three-year lockout period 1o
be the most appropriate as this
tundamentally akgns with the Group's
own strategic planning period combined
with the levets of planning certainty that
can be derived from the development
pipefine. Based on this assessment, the
Dinsctors have @ reasonable expectation
that the Group wik be able to continue

in aperation and meset its kabilities as they
foll due over the: perfiod 1o December 2019,

As explained above, the Group has
developed an annual business planning
process, which comprises o Strategic
P1an, a financio! forecast for the curent
year and a financial projection for the
forthcoming three years [which inciudes
strass testing and scenario planning and
also rolls forwards for a further two years).
This plan is reviewed eoch year by the

| Board as part of its strategy setting
process. Onca approved by the Boord,
the plan & cascaded down across the
Group and provides a basis for setting all
detailed financial budgets and strategic
actions that are subsequently used by

. the Board to rnonitor performance.

Our risk management in action: Brexit

One tool in our risk management
process is arisk ‘deep dive’. This involves
an in-depth review of d specific risk with
Brexit a key focus since the prospect

of an In/Out referendum first crystalised
in 2015,

in the period Through 10 June 2004, our
risk deep dive process concluded that
no specific pre-emptive actions [other
than ongaoing engagerment with the
Higher Education sector) shoukd be
taken for our business in the event of

o Leave or Remain vote. This decision
was driven by the anticipated impact
to our business if there was a Leave vole
{see below] ond the minimum two-year
fransitionai period under Article 50,
Engagement with the Higher Educotion
sacior is helping inform our thinking on
implications for the PSA sector and
specifically our busingss.

Qurrisk deep dive process concludes
that Brexit should not significantly
impact our business for the
following reasons:

» Following a period of intfial
uncertainty immediately after the
result in June 2014, confidence has
returned to the PBSA market with

a high volume of portfolios and assets
trading in the second half of 2014

EU research funding is important to UK
Universities and his. fogether with the
immigration status of EU academics
and EU students in the UK more
generally, clearty creates uncertainty
for the Higher Edlucation sector along
with the broader uncertainty in the
widler aconormy. This uncertainty s
moderated by the strength of UK
Universities (the second largest
destination for intemational

students after the US). the ongoing
intermnationalisation of Higher
Education with the global rise of the
middle classes. Sterling depreciction
also makes UK Higher Education/
accommodation more affordoble
for international students

w

The forecast performance outlock is also
used by the Remunenation Committee to
establish the targets for both the annual
and longer term incentive scharmes.

The financing risks of the Group are
considered to have the potfential greatest
impact on the Group’s financial viability.
The two prinCipal financing risks for

the Group ore: the Group's ability to
arange new debl/replace expiing dobt
facilities, and any adverse interesi rate
movements. The Group has secured
funding for the committed future
development pipeliine and prepares its
Strategic Plan on a fully funded basis in
line with the three-year outiook period.
To hedge against the potential of
adverse interest rate movements the
Group manages its exposure with a
combination of fixed rate facilities and
using interest rate swaps for its ficating
rate debl. During the year tne Group hos
complied with all covenant requirements
attached ta Its fingncing facilities.,

40 Read more: FAnanclal review

» EU students’ fungding arrangements
under curment tuition fee amangements
are confirmed for 2016/17 and 2017118,
but there is uncerlainty beyond then.
EU students represent 9% of our
cystomers and so any impact on

EU student numbers would have
alimited impact on our occuponcy
Despite these broader uncertainties,
the supply/demand ocuticok remains
favourabile and with the benefit

of our development pipeline, the
strengthening of our University
relatiorships and our focus on high
and mid-ranked Universities, our
business is well placed to navigate
the uncertainty rigk.

v

We continue to monitor the
developments and engage in the

other risk management actions outlined
in the principal risks {see page 26).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

Market risks

1. Demand reduction (driven by Government policy or other macro events)

Possible events Impact

» Brextimpacting numbers of EU students coming to shudy in the UK

> Changes in Government polcy on Higher Eokioahon funding

> Immigratian policy changes afecting intemational student numbers
and behaviour,

Whai happenaed in 2014

* Student rumbers in e UK continue fo grow with appraxinately 3,000 maole opplicants than 2015/2014

> The totgl umber o applcants in 2015 olso Qrenw with 155,000 more appications thon places
» Shongergrawth {3% In acceptances) in the high gnd mid-ianif Universities
>

Urite Students accupancy of 58% (2016/2017} compared o 99% (2015/2014) bul more Deds 42,000

ot 31 December 2016 as comparad with 46,000 at 31 Dacermber 2015 Increase in overal student
numbers conhnuas o transiale 10 mare students taying at Unite

Eu studtents tunding amangements fof duration of study confirmed far 2014/2017 and 2017/2018
Durng 2018, we have seen an mcrease in nrommations with more comenitied to beds than ever
befora 58% beds ~ 2016/2017 vs. 57% 2015/2014

Ex Read mone' Occupancy and of -

v v

» Polentialreduction in demand ond hence profitability and asset values
> Deporiure from EUimpacting Elireseoich grosts and EU students
coming to the UK

Risk management

Ongoing montiormg of Brext implcahons.,
Govarnment polcy and iis impact on UK,

EU and infernational student numbers studying
i ihe LK, Reguiony reviewing our portiolio to
emnsure we have the highest quality portiolio.
appropdately sized and In the Aght locations.

Risk MIigation In 2016
Risk deep dive Into impact of Brexit,

5 Recxd more: Our sk management in achion: Saedst

Thicugh imnplementation of Home for Success - ol core purpose fo provide environmants that help
stugents achlave more during their ime at Universly - we dre seeing consistently high cusiomes
satsfaciion and Higher Education frust scones.

28 Reod more: Key performancs indicators (KPls)

Focustor 2017

Strategic objectie

Ofterng great service k key lo heiping us susiain
ony reduction i demand jos well as ensuring
we have brillant properiies ond growing

ard sustamable eamings ko manage any
demand deficit].

5 Read mora: Our sinahegy

00

Corntinued engagemeni with the Higher Education sector to understand and be ready for the impact of Brexit and other HE policy changes

2. Demand reduction (due o societal change)

Possible avenly impoct

> Concers aver the costs of a University education - atfcsdobiity and
value for money

> Afornalive course dedvery (such os Massive Open Oniine Courses)

> Sharler/more semestened courses.

What happened in 2014
During 2014, roled out PRISM, ouwr digiial ond scalable operating plattorm. dhving efficiency aond
custormer service

3 Read more: PRISM

Applications ond ccceptance data continue to provide evidence that stronger Universitias are
perorming beber.

18 Read more: Market Review

Erhanced service level over the ast Tew years with tasler wi-F speeds, free communai cleons and
anhanced common spaces.

> More competion for voke and seduced demand for year round
student accommedation in the iarger i resuiting m lower profitability
and asset values

fisk management

Ongoing monitoring of atfordabilty and value for
maney and the evolution af igial fearnmg and'
ensiring we parner with the stronger Universities
with properttes in the best locations

Risk mitigation acitvily In 2014
Ersured the successiul roll oul of PRISM. enabiling onfine and more fiaxible tenancies.

Conhnued investment in market knowledge and building on our relatiorshiprs with the strongest
Universties, dnven by Home for Success and our University partnerships team.

Focus for 2017

Simategic objective

Otfering greal service is key to ensurng we:

have relahonships with the higher and mediurm
tanff Universites {the ones most Ekely fo sustona
reduction in demand). PRISM helps us deliver the
best customer sarices sttciently

5 Read more. Qur sinalegy

Using PRISM to diive enhanced cyvstomer senace and value Iof money, through s scolabily and digital efliciency.

Continuad focus on Home foe Success and our partnerships with the sronger Urivarsihes.
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Key

27

Grea! sarvice

Braliant properes Growing ond
sustanabie sarmngs

3. Supply increase (due fo increasing inferest in the performance and appeal of the PBSA sector)

Fouzble avanis mpact

> New supply as sustained high levak of investrnent demand hiter into the
development market, primarly through investors providing lorward
commitments to smailer developers.

‘What hoppenad in 2014
Volume of PBSA assats fraded m 2016 moderated from record levets seenin 2015

> More compsethtion lor the best sifes
» Potentialimpact on rental growth and occupancy

During 2016 continued folf out of Home for Sucoess and maintaining astrong proportion of beds secured under nominations ogegements of 58% (2015, 57%).

Opening of live new properhes during 2016
B Read more Properties delivered
Lewvel of new supply

1 Read more’ Markat review

Risk MMgafion In 2014

we confinue with our focus and strategy on:

> Markels with supply/demand imbalance

> Exposwre fo the best Universities underpnned with new developments secuned with nominahons deals

30 Read more: Operaiions review
* Investrmentin our brand ond student expenence - creating better environments within our new

developments through Home for Success nitiahive
» Maintaining strong relationships wath key Higher Educchon pariness.

Focus for 2017

Sirategic objeciive

Offerng great service as well as having
briiant propertias it crtical o mitigahng
any supply surplus.

Confinued locus on owr portfolo In the towns and cities with the strongest growth prospects and using PRISM, ouwr scalable opefamng piatform, to differentiate

our brand ond offar consistently high jevels of service to students and Univessities alike
Ensuring a strong yet lexible caprtal structure so we can adapt approprictely Os supply grows.

Operational risks

4. Mojor hegalth & safety (HLS) incident in o property or o development site

Possible evenhs
»> Fotaity or maojor Injury from a fire or other iIncident at a property
* Mullipte contractor munes at a developmaent or operationalsite.

What has happened during 2014

with fire as our biggest safety risk in our opercting portfolio. dudng 2015 we established a Primary
Authoiity Agreement with Ine Avon Fire Authority to focus on

3 The development journey tor our fre strategy decisions

% Fire Salety Management — improved policies and procedures, risk assessments, training & fire reconds
> Maintenance ~tesfing ond plonned preventaiive manienance

> Specificotion lor new bulks and developmenls.

Extamal assurance sought through.
» Appoiniment of the British Salety Counci as ournew extemal satety auditor
» Physicalsecuniy raview of our properties by WSP Parsons Brinckerholf.

Continued good pertortmance agoinst our aperational salaty KP1, with five reporioble accldents and
positive resutts agalnst our KPlsin our develepment activity.

20 Read more: Key Performance Indicalons (KPis)

Impact
> tmpact to students iving with us. coniroctors working on-site and vistors.
> Reputational damoge and trust in Unite Students oz a rellabie partner

Risk
HE&S b given direct Board supervision by the H&S
Commitiee (o sub-committee of the Board)
which actively supervises H&S, ensuring robust
policies ond procedures ore in pkace and
consistently compted with.

70 Read more: HLS Committee report
HAS is also aclively reviewed in the Operations
and Property Business Units, ensuring that H&S s

top of mund in our day to day operations and
regulanly assessed and validated.

Risk Mitigotion in 2018

Regulor extemal arudits and infernal inspections of our properties. Full review of our operations risk
assessments o ensurs adequate hazord confrol, together with Impraved contractor mancgement and
permit 1o work systern for hazardous work actlivilies. improved satety training. using augmented reality,
focusing on driving lor wort, lone working, satety signage, housekesping/mamienance, hazards such as
chamicak. machinery. asbestos ond personal protechve squipment. This ncludes on interachve game for
accident. incident and near misses.

Focus for 2017

Stratepic cbjecitve

Emsuring the HAS of our customers, contractors
and employees is fundamental to ut offering
greqat service.

L Reod more: Our sirotegy

wark on tha joumey 1o interde pendence with empowement in day to day HAS monagement at the core of averything we do.
Ongoing focus on continuous Improvement (Inchuding prioritising the fire risk review, crisis management. sacurity review and extemnal audlt recommendations

and actions)
nfegrating welbeing into the HAS Managemeni System,
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

AND UNCERTAINTIES
CONTINUED
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Possible events Impact
> Sie acqukilion msk - increasing competition for the best! sites pushes

up prices
> Plonning risk - dekdys of failure 1o get planning
» Construchon sk = build cost infiation as the economy improves

What happened in 2074
Five sites ocquired, adding 3.082 bads to the development ppeine:

Frve planning consents secured.
2014 schemes defivered, on time and to budget.
34 Read more: Property review

> NAV ond EPS afiecied by aborted schemes and/or reducad financial
retums, wilh cash thed up in development.

Rk mancgement

Expenenced deveiopment team with extensve
site sefection and planning experise, coupled
with strong trock record and focus an project
dellvery and strong relahonships with
construction partners with appropnate risk
sharing. Group Board approveal for commitments
above a certain threshold

Rnancialinvestment in schemes carefully
managed prior to grant of planning

To ensure we hatve the highest qually porifolla, we
are pursang naw cpporunities on a condiicnal
basis, bt with g Imited number of sites contracted
not condiiona on planning following a detaled
mk assessment of that opportunity

Risk Miigotion n 2016
Reguiar development team and property review. with Group Beard director oversight to ensure foilure
to secure sites or complete on fima are monaged In the budget.

Detailed pkanning pre-applcations and due disgence before site dcguisiion
2 Raad more’ Developrnent aciivily

Build cost infiation reguiary approked and refreshed in Property Board meelings Mid-sized framework
controcion used and longer term relationships estabinhed to mitigate oycloal swings.

Focus for 2017
Main tocLs will be on delivening muitilocation developments ond securing pipefine for 202G.

2 Rend more Devetopment pipeiine

Strategic objechve
Briliani properties

5 Read more Our sirategy

Posslble svents Impact

> Buying orseling properties at the wrong point in the cycle.

What happened In 2014
volume of PBSA assets moderated in 2014 following record volumes in 2015

The value of the Group's investment porttolic (including our share of co-investment vehiclas) increased
to £2.277 million as af Decembar 2016 (31 December 2015 £2,065 milkon] with the average porticho
yiekd faling Pops 1o 54%.

During 2015 we conlinued to maximise our porifalie value through a programme of selective
developrments, acquisions. disposals and returbishrments.

3% Read more. Disposols
Custormer salisiaction continues at high tevek supporting rental growth and cur portfolic value.
36 Reod more. Rental growth and porifolio value

> Reduction n asset valves reducing financial returns

Risk management

Group Board and Properly Board ongong
maonitoring of property market, direction
and values

Forecas! rental growth and recurming profit
oltsels any yleld movement.

Ersuring we have a strang yet lexible capital
structure so we can adapt appropriatedy o
market conditions.

Clear and active gsset management strategy

Risk MRiga®ion in 201§
Disposal - ongolng monitoring of our entire portiolio with seiective disposals 1o benefit from keener

prices in the market. We sold £114 milkon of assets in 2015,

Acqumsifions - ascipined acquiitions strategy exercising caution over partiofio premiums being paidin
tha market.

Coretul managemant of net debt and see-through 1TV.
Maintaining discipined approach to new development fransachons by maintaining Group hurdie rates

Focus for 2017
To continue to acquire sites in ine with Group huidle rates and to procure contracts in kine with budgets,

Stratagic abjective
Brilant properties.

5 Readmong Ows tiralegy
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Financing risks

7. Unable to crrange new debt or expiring debt faclliities cannot be replaced or only
at high cost. Adverse interest rate movements

Possible evenis mpact
> Unite breaches aloan covenant of iails 1o replace debt on expiry > ifurkible foreplace debl, then possible forced sale of assets
> interesirate increase potentially keading to sales below valuation. Slowdown of

developmenl aclivity. Redyced level of protiabifity

> Adverse rate movermenis con kead lo reduced profitabitty
and reduction in property values (through resuling expansion
of valuation ylelds and lower valuclions).

What happaned in 2014 Rk management 8
During 2016, LTV ratic mproved to 34% from 35% at the end 0f 2015 and nel debt grew by £45 milion Proactively managing debdt malurities to 8
to £776 milvon. During 2016, £150 milkan of new dett was aranged. refinance thess facilities at least 6-12months 8
deb fixad rateswol before maturity and in paraliel divessifying our =
100% of tat ot pped. sources of finance 1o repay more expensive and 8
During 2014 our average cost of debt has falen to 4.2% from 4.5%; 2015 ond we expect it to 1afl further less flexible Bomowings.
by the end of 2017 as a proporhon of forwaord starting swaps become effective. Controd of future cash ¢ i 15 in fine with
4 Reodmore Ananciol review/capiial sinch progress of dtsposals and refinancing.
Interest rates monitored by the tunding team §

as anintegral part of our refinancing acthvity
—owned by the CFO and with Group Bood
avensighl. Gearing ratios definedin our Copliat
Operating Guideines.

Hedge exposure with interest rate swaps ond
refinance focilities with fixed rates.

Risk MWgation in 2016 Siategic objeciive

Reguior and reficble engagement with lenders. Growing ond sustainable samings.

with benigninterest rate environment. have continued to take aavaniage of historcally low rates (both 5 Read more: Our sivaiegy

on new debl and alsa enitedeg into forward starting interest rate swaps locking in rates for our 2007 and X

2018 development pipeine). 3

49 Read mose. Debt Vdevelop i derbt and swaps §

Focusfor 2017 [+

Funding fulure development acquisiions as well as 2017 funding requirements {or the Group, USAF and LSAY, 3
2
w
2
]
g
3
g
F
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

GREAT
SERVICE

Our commitment to providing

a Home for Success for students
and to be the most trusted brand
in the secior is centred around our
high quality propeiiies, helpiul
stafl and a commiiment to great
customer service for both our
students and University pariners.

The implementation of cur operating
platform, PRISM, has brought considerable
improvements to aur customer service,
attowing us 10 move o a seven day
operoling madel, ofter online room
viewings and to adopt paperiass fenancies.
These improvements have resutted in the
time for tenoncies to be confirmed
reducing to five days from 15 days.

30% of bookings are now done online or
fhrough mobille bookings, ensuring the
process of securing accommaodation is

as easy and as efficient as possible for
students. Additionally, through our Living
with Unite ape, 75% of maintenance jobs
are now fixed within 24 hours.

Qur Home for Success investment
programme, which has seen us invest

£40 million across key areas of the business
including physical, digital. customer
service and peopie, has been completed.
We have enhanced our Wi-Fi speeds
across student reoms and communal
spaces to SOMbps, compieted the
installation of our LED lighting prognamme
and our Student Life Hub continues to
prove popular with students.

We continue to build on Gur strong
redatfionships with over 60 high and
mid-ronk Universities, with nominations
agreements now representing 58%,
with new ferms agreed for afonger

THE UMITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2414

duration, on average 10 years, compared
to seven years for existing amangements.
Our partnerships ensure that Universities
are able to provide their students wilh
accommodation close fo campus and

o safe and secure environment in which
tolive, succeed in their academic studies
and meet fellow students.

Our continued focus on customer service
heos led to high occupancy levels with
98% of beds let ond rental growth of 3.8%.
In 2016, we achieved record high levels
of customer satisfaction and a growing
proportion of return sfudents,
demonstrating our commitment to
helping students grow and succeed

at University and beyond.
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3

BUILDING ON OUR GREAT
SERVICE THROUGH THE
LAUNCH OF OUR NEW
OPERATING PLATFORM

Simon Jones
Operations Director

Related sections

5 Business model and strotegy
12 Retalionships

18 Markat review

F2 Key perforrnance indicators (KPIs)

2 Principal risks and uncertointies

QeA

Simon Jones addresses some fopical questions
from our sharehoiders

How has PRISM benefitted the
services Unile provides?

A Our operating platform, PRISM,
which i unique 1o Unite, allows

us o drive gréater efficiencies of scole
while offering the best possibie service
fo our customers. PRISM has allowed
us to move to a seven doy operating
mode! ang offer new services suchas
online bookings and room viewings, in
addition fo papertess tenancies. These
mprovements have not only delivered
efficiencies for the business but greaily
improved the service we provide
to our students. As we continue
o grow the portfolio, PRISM enables
vs o demonsirate o cifferent
approach to other operations.

o Do you sfwvisage growing the
proportion of yous beds oftered
through University portnarships?

JNE Ve pride ourselves on our
partnerships with Universities

and work with therm 1o ensure that
they are able 10 offer high quaolity
accommodation and services 1o their
students, an important component

of the overall student experience.
Nominaticns agreements make up
58% of the portfoiic with the remaining
beds let directly to students. We continue
to explore future partnerships with
Universities, which typically span

10 years and provide visibility on future
income. We expect to remain at
arcund this level.

How important is the aftordabllity

of your accomenedation to your

business model?

Affordability is important for

students and therefore it is
important to us. We offer a wide range of
price points and rom sizes as part of our
focus on delivering o more affordable
proposition for students. Over the past
few yeors, Unite has focused on
delivering a more affordable proposition
for students. We also remvest each year
in the occommaodation and extend our
student services so that students get
value for money.

g How do you casess and volue
competition and what do you
do o counteract i?
JNll e monitor the market closely and
competition far sites and property
portfoios has confinued. We continue o
invest in our key differentiators such as our
portfolio scale and the lkocations or our
buikdings ¢is well as PRISM. through which
we deliver unmatched customer services,
ond through our Higher Education
industry experience and relationships.
Qur expertise continues to be important
as investor interest in the sector increases.

9
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Summary EPRA income stalemeni

0% 2015

tm £m

Lnite’s share of rental income 1591 144.3
Unite's share of property operating expenses (42.8) 13%.8]
Net operoling income (NOI) 1143 104.5
NOI margin 731% 72.5%
Manogement fees 4.0 120
Operating expenses (231} 21.9)
Finance costs {45.9) {48.1)
USAF acquisition and nel performance fee 59 220
Development and other costs (5.5) (72)
EPRA garnings 427 61.3
Yield reioled element of performance fee .4 {11.8)
Adjusted EPRA somings 413 4%.5
Adiusted EPRA EPS 27.7p 231p

* A lull reconcilation of Profit before taox to EPRA eamings 1s set out in note 2.2 of the finoncial statements

The Group continues to report on an IFRS
basis and to also presant its performance
in ling with best practice recommended
by EPRA. The Operations and Froperty
reviews focus on EPRA meagsures as these
are our key inferna! measures and aid
compambifity across the real estate sectar.

Sales, rental growth

and profitabliity

The key strengths of cur operating busirmss
Qre Gur people, our PRISM operating
phkatfarm, the strangth of ourbrond and
the strength of our relationships with
Universities, We have continued to build on
these strengths throughout 2016, resulting
in a £11,8 million, 24% increase in Adjusted
EPRA egmings to £61.3 million companed
to fast year (2015; £47.5 million]. This growth
has again been driven by high occupancy.
rentat growth and the impact of portfolio
movements as well as further operational
efficiencies and ongeing cost discipline.

The Group's share of rental income has
increased by £14.8 million, up 10%, os a
result of new openings and sustained
rental growth, NC! margin irnproved to
73.1% {December 2015: 72.5%), refiecting
further operaling efficiencies that were
driven by the implementation of our new
PRISM operating platform during 2014.
PRISM provides us with the ability to
differentiate ourselves from cthers, driving
efficiencies through the use of technology
which enables us 16 provide enhanced
levels of servica to our customers, we
rmaintain our expectation that NOI margins
will improve towards 75%, although
balqncing margin growih and service
level enhancerment will iemain our
overriding priority.

We are now managing 42.000 beds
compared to 46,000 at 31 December
2015, Alongsice this increose in beds
there has been ¢ growth in overheads of
£1.2 million, driven mainky by depreciation
costs associoted with the new PRISM
system, and we expect a further small
increase of depreciation costs in 2017,
Recuming manogement fee income from
joint ventures increased by £2.0 million to
£14.0 million (2015: £12.0 million), as a result
of the growth of assets under managerment
in USAF and LSAV. In addition 1o the
recurring asset management fees, a further
£4.9 million of net USAF performance

and acquisition fees were generaled
{2015; £22.0 million). Cur key overhaad
efficiancy measure (tolal operating
expenses tess management fees asa
propartion of Unite's share of property
valua) continues to improve and now
stands at 40bps (December 2015: 48bps),
and we remain focused on our target of
25-30bps by the end of 2017 based on
current yields.

The £6.5 million USAF net performance
fee is payable in units and is based

on USAF's cumutative total return at

31 December 2016. The component of
the fea that relales to yield moverment
has been excluded from Adjusted EPRA
earnings purposes 1o raflect a normalised
level of earnings. The operational element
of the performancea fee is driven by USAF's
incorme ond rental growth performance
and s not expected to significantly ada
{0 our earnings performance going
forward given the current valuotion yields,
gedaring levels and rental growth oullook.
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Finance costs decreased to £45.9 milion
(2015: £48.1 million). An increase in net
debt of £45 milion to £776 million (2015
£731 million) was offsat by a lower
average cost of finance of 4.2% {2015
4.5%) as we have added new deb!
facilities at tower average rates, taking
advantage of the historically low cost

of debt. In addition, the increose in net
debt has been driven largely by spend
on development activities which has in
tumn lead to an increase in the amount
of interast that is capilalised into
development schemes to £5.2 million, up
from £2.7 milion in 2015, We expect the
level of interest capitalisation to rermain
at around this level given the ongoing
tevel of developmenl octivity in 2017.
Development (pra-contract) and other
costs lell to £5.5 million (2015: £7.2 million),
refiecting the levels of site acquisition in
the business, the earnings impact of share
based incentives and our contribution to
our charitable frust. the Unite Foundation.

Occuponcy, reservations

and rental growth

Occupancy across Unite's partfolic for
the 2014/17 academic year stands at 8%
ond like-for-like rentot growth of 3.8% wos
oachleved on our stabdlised porifolic. We
have continued to grow the proportion
of beds let to Universities with 58% of
rooms under nominations agreements,
up by 5,000 beds over the last three
years. Enhanced service levels and our
deep understanding of sludent needs
have resulfed in longer term ang more
robust partnerships with Universities.

We expec! the proportion of beds let

to Universities 1o remain at or around

this level in the future. This balance of
nominations and direct-let beds provides
the benefit of hoving income secured
by Universitias, as well os the ability to
offer rooms o returning students and to
determine market pricing on an annual
basis. On average, rents on nominotions
reoms are £.5% below direct let
equivalents ond, based on ourrecent
axperience with new agreements, there
is an opportunily to close this discount in
tha coming years.

Reservations for the 2017/18 academic
yeaor are encouraging, at 73% (67% ot the
same paint last yeqr) as a rasult of our
cantinued focus of working alongside the
UK's best Universities as well as our local
presence in Ching building relationships
with Chinese Universities. This structural
growth within the cities we operate,
together with our differenticted service
offering, provides us with further
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69%

Reservations for the 2017/18
academic year

THE FINAL ELEMENTS OF
PRISM UJERE DELIVERED
IN 2016, PROVIDING FULL
ONLINE VIEWING AND
BOOKING FUNCTIONALITY
ALONGSIDE ENHANCED
MAINTENANCE SERVICE
LEVELS AND REVENUE
MANAGEMENT
FUNCTIONALITY

confidence in occupancy and rental
growth for the 2017/18 academic year
which we expect to be in the region of
3.0-3.5%.

Home for Success

Our Home for Success investrment
programme provides us with a reat

point of differentiation to other provickers
of student accommodation. The
programme, which was initiated in 2014,
genevated significant enhancements in
our operaling platform, the esiablishment
of communal study and relaxation
spaces that cur customers have told us
that they want and the development

of a sanse of horme within our properties.
These factors, together with our service
levels, student insight, prime locations
and mid-markat price points, make us
stand out for students and Universifies.

Investment in people,
technology and relationships
Satisfaction with service and the strength
of our reiationships with Universities has
been maintained at high levels as both
students and Universities benefit from

' the investments that we are making.

The final elements of PRISM were
delivered in 2014, providing full online
viewing and booking functionality
olongside enhanced maintenance

| service levels and revenue manage ment

functionality. We will conlinue to invest
in and evolve this platform fo maintain
our sector leoding advantage in this area.

We have continued fo invest in our
digital capabilities, focusing on the
student exparience. In 2014, this has
seen us deliver further enhancements

to cur student-focused apps and our
websile, a portolio-wide communications
portal to drive engagement and to help
students access the infarmation they
need to support them during the course
of the academic year. Our apps and
digital platforms provide students with

a hasske free solution ta every day
concems, provide them with the support

. they need ond so allow them to focus
. on their stugdies and fime at University.

3

Ceveloping our teams remains o priority
for us and we hove implemented new
leadership programmes across the
whole orgonisation over the past two
years. These programmaes ensure thot
we are providing our teams with the
training required to deliver exceilent
cusfomer service as well as developing
their careers, and they have been an
integral part of our successful attainment
of Investors in People Gold status in 2016,

We alto continue to invest meaningfully
in our Higher Education sector
retationships. Our Universities Parinerships
and Engaogement team is dedicated to
building strong working relationships
with key University partners, and this
approach has sean us incorporate
University reguirements into new
developments and driven the growth

in the number of beds under nominations
agreements.

In Ching, our marketing office is now
fully operational and our local oniing
presence has been esiablished. We
have also started to create meaningful
relationships with both local and British
Universitles in Chino, as well as providing
important support o our Chinese
customers before they fravel 1o the UK
and to their parents while their children
ore overseas. We are confident that this
investment will deliver long-term benefit
to the business as well as to Chinese
students and UK Universities.

Simon Jones
Operations Director
22 February 2017
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PROPERTY REVIEW

BRILLIANT ™

PROPERTIES

Slapleton House, London

In 2016, we opened five new
bulldings, adding to our portiolic
of high quality, conveniently
located occommodation for
students studying in the strongest
University towns across the UK.
The new bulldings Increased

our number of beds by 3,082

to a total of 51,310. The bulidings
compiise mainly cluster flat
accommadation and provide
fachities such as on-site laundry.
study space, communal areos
and dry cycle storage. We
entered 2016/17 with the largest
ever number of sfudents at the
start of an academic year,

More than half of the beds, 1,561, are
located in London at our two new sites:
Clympic Way and Stapleton House.,
Otympic Way, which has been let to
Middlasex University under @ nomination
agreemant, sits next fo the iconic Wermbley
Stadivmand i part of the regeneration
of that areq. Stapiaton House, Holioway
Road, also opened its doors to students
in September 2016 and is let under

Q nomination agreement 1o London
Malropolitan University.

Two further completions, Greetham

Street Portsmeouth and Far Gosford Street
Caveniry, were acquired by USAF, recycling
capital for the Group's development
pipeline, with an additional development
completed in Aberdeen. The acquisition
by USAF was funded with a new

£100 millicn, five-year facility provided

by Wells Fargo. Both properties are on
nomination agreements to Portsmouth
University and Coventry University and are
fully let for the 2016/17 academic yeaor.

We confinue to progress our 7,000-bed
development pipeline which extends out
o 2019, with five schemes set to openin
September 2017. These developments will
provide a home for students studying at
some of ttwe UK’s strongest Universities in
Coventry, Edinburgh. Liverpool and Oxford,  C0viemavend. Aberseo
In gddition 10 this, we acquired five
development sites: $t Vincent's Sheffieid,
Intermational House Birmingham,
Choucer House Portsmouth, Skelhorne
Street Liverpool and Millennium Way
Coventry and secured four planning
consents (Skelhorne Street Liverpool,
Intfernoational House Birmingham,
Millennium Way Caventry and Brunel

! Chaucer.|

Greethom Skee!, Porttsmoutt
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COMPLETION OF FIVE BRILLIANT
PROPERTIES AND STRENGTHENING
OUR DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director

Related saclions
5 Business model and sirategy

12 Relaticnships
18 Morket review

20 Kay performance indicators (KPts)

% Principal risks and uncertainties

QRA

Richard Simpson addresses some topical questions
from our sharehoiders

Has investor appetite for the
sector cortinued?

Nl Purpose built studeni

accommodation continued to
attract high levels of investment in 2016
at £3.25 bilion, albeit at slightly lower
levels than seen in 2015 at £5.5 bilion,
Transaction volumes have remained
healthy, supporting current valuations,
with arange of buyersin the market. This
continued interest reflects the defensive
neture of the asset class and attractive
rental growth outiook.

Q

Are you seeing fulure develepment
opporiunities given the levels of new
supply coming onto the market?
There is still strong demand for
affordable. well-lacated and

high quality accommodation in

leading University towns and cities.

Our development pipeline of 7,000 beds

spanning untit 2019 is progressing well.

We conlinue fo monitor the market for

development cpportunities that are in

line with our target returns for regional
development, focusing on high fo
mig-ranked Universities in fowns and
cities which we expact will see the
strongest growth.

Q Do you envisage the London marked
for developmenl opaning up?
Nl We are starfing to see signs that
opportunities may re-emerge in
London. However, returns on potentiol
new projects in London remaoin below
our hurdie rate due, principally 1o
excassive planning levies and higher
atternalive use values for prospective
sites. We monitor the market closely

and remain alive to future opporiunities.

;
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PROPERTY REVIEW

CONTINUED

EPRA NAV growth
EPRA NMAV per share increased by 12% to
446 pence at 31 December 2016, up from
579 pence at 31 December 2015. In fotal,
EPRA nel assets wera £1,557 million at

31 December 2016, up from £1,394 million
a yaar earlier.

Looking forwand, our portfolio iswell placed
o deliver continued value growth. Our
focus on the strongest University locations
undemins rental growth prospects and we
will continue to deliver meaningful upside
frorm cur developmeant activify. in fotal our
secured pipeline is expected to detiver

43 pence per share of NAY upliftand

w

Capital expenditure on developments
of £146 miliion and £12 million on
investrment assets relafing to
refurbishment and LED instoliations
Disposals of £114 million

> Voluation increases of £136 million on
the investment and development
portfolios, with like-for-like rental growth

v

The main factors behind the 67 pence per | 13 pence of eamings per share of 3.8% being generated on the
share growth in EPRA NAV per share were: | Once completed. stabilised porifotio
¥ Increqsed share of USAF of £32 miillion,
> The growth in the vase of the Group's | Property portfolio as a result of the performance fee
share of investment assets [+34 pence], | The volualion of our property portfalio ot earned in 2015.
as a resuft of rantal growth (+26 pence) | 31 Dacember 2014, including our share of
and yielkd compression (+8 pence) gross assels held in USAF and joint ventures,
¥ The valve odded fo the development was £2,277 milion (31 December 2015:
porttolio (+21 pence) £2,065 miffion]. The £212 million increase
> EPRA earnings for the period (+25 pence) | in portfolio value [Unite share) was
» Dividends paid of 14 pence attributable fo:
reduced NAV.
Summary balance sheet
014 2015
Wholly Share of Whotty Share of
owned Fund/Tv Total oawngd Fund/y Taral
£m m &m £m £m £m
Rental properties 1,062 1,023 2,085 1,024 a1l 1,835
Properties under development 185 7 1y2 150 80 230
1.247 1.030 2277 1,174 891 2.065
Adjusted net debt (432} (344) (778) {448} [283) 731
Other assets/{liabiities) (5 (14) @) {5 8 (23)
Convertible bond 85 - 85 83 - &3
EPRA net assely 885 672 1,557 BO4 590 1,394

* A reconciiation of the IFRS balonce sheet 1o EPRA nel assets is sef outin section 2.2 of the inancial statements

The proporfion of our property portfolio that is income generating is $2%, up from 89% at Decermiber 2015, with 8% now under
developrment, With the completion of the LSAV developmeant pipeline, the majority of development activity relates to wholly-owned
assels. We will confinue to manage the development weighting of our balance sheet and expect it fo remain at around these
levels. well within our internol cap of 20% going forward.
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Unlie investrment porticiio analysis at 31 December 2014

.

Wholly Uniie
USAF o el Lemcrse Yolal shate
London Vaolue (£m) 351 945 425 - 1.741 ¥88
Beds 2014 5861 1,989 260 10,124 aT%
Major provincial value [£m} 1,584 44 440 - 2,068 826
Beds 20,656 33t 5914 2,577 29.478 40%
Provincial Value [Em] 322 - 197 - 519 7N
Beds 4,804 - 3.253 1,059 2.116 13%
Tolal Value [£m) 2257 1,009 1,061 - 4327 2,085
Beds 27,474 5,192 11,156 3894 48,718 100%
Unile ownership share 23% 50% 100% -
Unite ownership (Em) 519 505 1,061 - 2,085

The investment portfoiio (see-through) is split between London (47%) and the rest of the UK {53%)}, broadly in ine with previous years.
The regional focus of our development pipeline means that the London weighting is ikely to fall to around 35% as the portiolio is buift out.

Student accommodation yields
The level of fransactions in the student
accommodation secior has remained
high in 2014 following the unprecedented
levels seen in 2015, with over £3 billion of
assats frading during the year. The majority
of buyers have been supported by global
institutional capital. An element of
uncertainty in the few months following
the EU referendum in June was repkaced
with confidence in the market with a high
volume of portfolios and assets trading

in the second haif of the year.

As aresult of Ihe investor appetite and
subsequent fronsactions, there has been
a modest level of yiekd compression
across the sector, This yielkd compression
hos been reflecied in our portfolio and
the average yield {on a see-through
basis) at 31 December 2016 was 5.45%,
aninwond movement of ning basis

points over the year.
indicative valuation yields

N1Dec 20l 31 Dec X015
london = 45-50% 4.5525%
Prime provincial §.28-5.75%  5.35-58%
Provinciat 6.0-6.5% 6.0-6.5%

Development actlivity
Development activity continues to be

a significant driver of growth in NAY and
future eormings. We ore confinuing 1o see
opportunitias to selectively secure sites
for delivery in 2019 and 2020 in strong
regional kacations giongside high-quality
Universities within our target range

of 8.0-8.5% yield on cost. Returns on
patential new projects in London skill
remain below our hurdie rate of 7.0%

due principally to higher atternative

wse volues for prospective sites and
planning levies. and we have not seen
the correction in lkond prices that were
anficipated following the EU referendum.

2014 ond 2017 compietions

we completed five schemes during 2014
in line with budget and programmae. Over
70% of these beds are let fo Universities
under nominations agreements for the
2016/17 academic year, with an average
duration of 10 years.

The 2017 pipeline is progressing weil.

‘We are on track to defiver three wholly-
owned schemaes in Edinburgh, Liverpool
and Covantry and, in USAF, two forward
funded developmeantsin Oxforg and
Edinburgh, adding a total of 2,200 beds.
We expect all of the schemes to be fully
let for the 2017/18 academic year.

Reglonal development pipeline

During the year, we have continued to
grow our 2018 and 2019 regional pipeline
and have now secured a total of eight
schemes which are expecied to deliver
approximalety 4,800 beds in addition

o our ongoing 2017 projects. All new
regional developments are being
undertaken wholty on balance sheet
and prospective returns for the secured
pipedine are very otiractive ot anavemge
8.5% yield on cost.

Planning is now in pkace on all ¢f the
schemes in the pipeline (with the
exception of the Old BRI site in Bristo!
which is expected toreceive consent
in the first half of 2017}, During the year,
we have reorganised the phasing

of deliveries in 2018 and 2019, with
Aberdeen and Bristol being pushed
back to 2019 and Birmingham and
Sheffield accelerated to 2018, This will
ensure a balanced level of activity
acioss the two yaars.
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PROPERTY REVIEW
CONTINUED

Secured development pipeline (wholly owned]

rolod Toiot Forecast
completad cevelopmant Copexin Capex Forecnt NAY yieid
Sacured bads value cOnts perod nermining EAG on cost
Na £m £m £m Em £m %
2017 complefions
St Leonarcis Edinburgh 581 64 41 I5 13 g 9.5%
Millenniurn Poirt Coventry » 34 24 12 12 4 B8%
Targ House Liverpoo! 776 45 44 24 13 9.3%
2018 completions
Newgate Street Newcastle 575 446 37 7 2 8 8.5%
BrunelHouse  Brstol 232 ) 21 1 10 5 85%
Chaoucer House Portsmouth 484 41 33 s 24 PR 8.0%
3t vincent's Sneffield 545 44 34 1 35 10 B.2%
International House  Birmingham 584 48 38 1 37 1 B.O%
2019 compietions
Skelhorne Liverpoal 1085 92 73 14 & 14 BO%
Old BRI' Bristol 704 93 74 2 58 2 8.4%
ronstitution Streat Aberdaen 400 54 40 1] 3_3_ . 7 o 8,4%
Total (wholly owned) 4,561 611 442 B3 324 102 8.5%

! Subject to obtainng planning consent.

Secured forward tund pipeline (USAF)
USAF has secured two assets on a forward fund basis in Oxford and Edinburgh. These acquisitions are consistent with its sinategy
1o inCrease exposure 1o high quality Univarsities and o expand its presence in markeds 1o take advantage of scale,

Whilst USAF has fully deployed its equity. USAF is making good progress with a smalt numiber of turther acqulisitions and could
expect 1o deploy more capital, released from parifolio recycling activities into these opportunities

Secures oomplT:g m::rl Conax Capex  Fomcost NAY Forgeas
bads volue couy m pariod rErIINg rnCareng Vel on cost
No. £m £m £m £m €™ %

USAF o

2017 complelions

Beech House Oxford 167 23 18 1 8 3 6.3%
Lution Court Edinburgh 227 e} 22 18 9 4 60%
Total USAF 404 56 47 2y 17 7 &1%
Undte share of USAF n/a 13 11 7 4 2 1%
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Qur developmenlt pipeline remains a source of significant future value and earmings growth and the fable below summarises its
potentialimpact on future NAV and earnings per share:

INustrGtive retorns tby 2079

Future Future
NAVDS EPS
Secured regional projects [wholly owned} £2 13
Secured USAF projects 1 -
Total secured pipeline 43 13

Assetl disposals

During 2016, £52 milfion of assets were sokd in third-party tronsoctions {Unite share: £46 million]. In oddition, Unile sold two whaolly-
owned assets in Portsmouth and Coventry to USAF for a combined total of £88 miliion, faking total disposals on a see-through basis
to £114 millien, All of the assets were sold in line with book volue.

Asset disposats remain an important part of our strategy going forward to ensure thot we olign our portfalio with our strategy to work
with high and mid-ranked Universifies. Disposals also provide the capital fo fund further growth in our development pipeline in 2019
and 2020. We rermcin focused on our capital discipline to balance furiher growth opportunifies with our leverage targets and
expect to make around £150-200 million [Unite share} of disposals in 2017. In February 2017, we exchanged contracts to sel
regional portfolio of 4,175 beds for £295 million {Unite share £102 milion) in line with bock value.

Richard Simpson
Group Proparty Director
22 February 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Gaostord Skmat, Coventry

GROWING AND
SUSTAINABLE

Our sirertegic objective

- 9

Qur consistent sirategy continves |
to deliver susicinable ond growing
earnings underpinned by our
highly accretive development
pipefine, strong University
parinesships and scalable
operational platiorm, PRISM.
Recvrring profits increased

by 247% and our dividend Is up

by 20'%, We achieved rental
growth of 3.8% increasing
earnings and NAV.

Our high quality portfolio with a wide
range of price points and room sizes,
sector-iBading brond and services continue
to attract students and to delivera
supericr expernience for students and
universities, driving sustainable income.

PRISM is fully implermented and delivering
improvements to customer service and
demonstrating efficiencies of scale.

EARNINGS

Qur net operating income margin is
up to 73% and our improved overhead
efficiency of 40lbps is on frock to meet
target of 25-30 basis points by the end
of 2017

We continue to operate a strong capital
structure maintaining LTV of 35%. Our
cost of debt has reduced to 4.2% and

' @ netdebt to EBITDA ratio of 4.5 remains

within our fargeted range of & ta 7 times,
QOur sirong debt position means we
have limited refinancing requirerments
before 2020,

in November 20146 ot a General Meeting
for sharahokders, the Company's
conversion o Reol Estate Investment
Trust (REIT) stoius was approved, effective
on 1 January 2017, strengthening the

eamings and dividend focus of the business.

Recycling capital through assef disposals
ramains an impoddont port of our strategy
to maintain capital dscipling ond to fund
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Ol Wiy, London

further grewth in our 2019 development
pipeline, In total we delivered £125 million
of asset disposcls during the year including
the disposal of two properties to USAF

in September 2014 and the disposal of
Curzon Gateway in Birmingham to H52
under o compulsory purchase order
agreement in July 2014, in line with the
book value of the assef.

In May 2014, USAF ssued £125 mitiion

of bonds under its existing debf funding
platform established in June 2013. The
proceeds were usad {0 repuy secured
gebi and o fund furiher growth in

the Fund.



THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AMD ACCDUNTS 2016

41

FOCUS ON DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN RECURRING PROFITS
AND CASHFLOW

Joe Lister

Chief Financial Officer and
Managing Director of People and Communications

QA

Joe Lister addresses some topical questions from our shareholders

During the year, the Group
elecled to be taxed as a REIT
with eflect from 1 Jonuary 2017.
The election will not change the
core business model of Unite
Students, and we remain focused
on providing affordable purpose-
built student accommeodation.

B} #hots orem

JNll RETs provide o way for invesiors to
access the risks ond rewards of
hoiding property without having to buy
it directly. REITs were infroduced by the
Government in 2007 with the aim of
supporting investiment in UK reol estate
and HMRC has supported groups
converting to REITs over the last ten years.

REIT status means that the Unite Group

is exermpt from paying corporation fax
on profits and gains arising from its UK
property rental business. However, it will
still pay corporation fax onincome
orising from any non-property related
activities such as management fees and
interest income. REIT status has no effect
on VAT, stamp taxes and employment
taxes, and REITs continue o pay these
taxes as normal.

Q Whot Is the impact on
diviclend paymenis?
Nl There are sirict conditions set by
HMRC for groups to remain as REITs,
including the requirement to distribute
at least $0% of their property profits
{as caiculated for tax purposes which
may differ to the accounting profit] to

sharehokders. For UK shareholders, this
distribution is treated for 1ox purposes
s property rantalincome rather than
dividends, and overseas sharghoiders
suffer withholding tax at the basic rale
of tax. The net eftect is that the taxation
of property income is moved from

the REIT to the shareholder thereby
aliowing tax efficiency while protecting
the UK Exchequer.

The tax-exermnpt property profits that are
distributed to shoreholders are known
as Property income Distributions ({PIDs),

A REIT can also distribute post-tax profits
from its other activities, known asa
Non-Property Income Distributions
{non-PIDs}. Any one distribution from

a REIT may be solety PIDs, solely non-PIDs
or a mixture of the two,

In ling with REIT conversion the dividend
pay-out ratio will be increased o 75%
of 2017 adjusted EPRA eomings.

PN Why is Unife Students becoming

il o RET?

il Unite: Students holds o large

porticiio of student accommodation

and has a shong dividend. ts business
is therefore aready well suited to
becoming a REIT which provides @
lax efficient enviranment for property
investment groups that meet a dividend
requirement. Conversion to a REIT will
enable Unite to continue with its core
business whilst increasing its investment
in its property portlolic and growing
the return fo shareholders. It can do
this without needing to consider the

impacts of tax on disposals of capital
assets and while offering an effective fax
transparent environment to investors in
relation to its property income.

As q REIT, Unite is able to attract a wider
pooi of investors, most especiaky those
who ane exermnpt from taxin the UK who wil
no longer indiectty suffer fax at the level of
the group. In addition, the concept of

Q REIT is widely understood and valued
by the global investor community.

A What s the impact in 2015 for Unite
il Shudenis of RET conversion?

Jll The Group has historically been
required under International
Accounting Standards to recognise
a defered tax liability in respect of
increases to the market value ofits
investment properties. This deferred tax
lialility is not tax that the Group owaes,
but instead is an accounting provision
for estimated tax that could become
payable were the Group to sell its
investment properties in the fulure
{on the excess of market value over
ther armount eriginally paid). As a REIT,
such gains will be exempt from UK
corporation tax and hence no pravision
for deferred tax is required to be
recognised. The provision at 1 January
2014 hos therefore been released during
the year. The Group has still provided for
the potential deferred tax kiability relating
to assets that are not exempt as a REIT
{including investments in joint ventures)
ot the balance sheet date where it is
expected that the timing difference witt
give rise 1o taxable profits as it unwinds.

BTN
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

income statement and

profit measures

A full reconciliation of profit before tax
10 EPRA samings measures is set out in
summary below and in fullin section 2
of the financial statements.

nu 05
tm £m

Adjusted EPRA eomings 413 495
EPRA eqrnings 42.7 613
Valuation gains and
profit/loss on disposal 1343 3244
Changes in valuafion
of interest rote swaps
ond debt break costs (1.0} 03
Minority interest
ond tax included
in EPRA earnings 34 22
Profit before 1ax 201.4 3884
Adjusted EPRA
eamings per share ¥ 2Blip
Basic eamings pershare 101.3p 1642p

EPRA eamings of £62.7 million to

31 December 2016 (2015 £61.3 rillion) is
stated after deducting lox charges, share
opfion costs and abortive/pre-contract
development spend of £5.5 million.

The significant reduction in profit belore
tax is prirmarily the result of a lower ievel
of unreolised valuation gains of
£136.3 million being recognised in 2016
compared with the £324.4 million
recognised in 2015.

Cashflow and net debt

The Operations business generated

£61.3 million of net cash in 2016 {2015:
£40.8 million] and see-through net debt
increased marginally to £726 million
{Z015: £731 million). The key componants
of the movement in see-through net debt
wera the operational cashRow and the
dispesai programme (generating total
inflows of £175 million) offset by lotal
capitol expenditure of £158 million and
dividends paid of £34 million. n 2077,

we expect net debt to increase by

@ sirilar kevel as capital expenditure

on investment and development activity
will exceed anticipoted osset disposals.

Dividend

Wa are increasing our dividend pay-out
level ta 75% of EPRA eamings [excluding
USAF performance fees) and are
recommending a fully covered final
dividend payment of 12,0 pence per
share {2015; 9.5 pence), making 18.0
pence for the full year {2015: 15.0 pence}.
Subject to approval at Unita's Annual

General Meeting on 11 May 2017, the
dividend willbe paid on 19 May 2017
to sharehokders on the register al close
of business on 21 April 2017,

Tax and REIT conversion

During the year, the Group elected to
convert to REIT siatus with effect rom

1 January 2017. This has resulted in the
release of the provision for deferred

jax on property business assets tolalling
£41.) million os disposals of nvestment
property, as a REN, will be exernpt from
tax. The remaining deferred tox ligbility
relating to unrealised gains on joint
venturg investments of £17.2 miflion, which
are not exempt from tax, exceeds the
deferred tox assel relating to tax adjusted
losses carried farward of £11.8 million.

As the losses can be set against gains as
they arise, the deferred fax asset relating
10 the lgsses can be recognised in full
ogainst deferred tax icbilities,

Certain activities, primarily the investment
management? of joint ventures, whilst
expected to fall within the limifs of the
balance of business tests, willinCcur o fax
charge which we expect to be in the
region of £2-3 million per annum.

Debt financing

During the period, we have maintained
our focus on controlling gearing lavels,
extending deb! maturities and minimising
finoncing costs:

Key debt sotistics (see-through basis)

0% 2005
Net debt ET76m £731m
LTV M 35%
Neat debtEBITDA
ratio 4.5 69
Averoge debt
i maturity 4.9years 5.6 vyears
. Average cost of
| debt 4.2% 4.5%
Proportion of
investment debt at
fixed rate 100% 0%

The Group's see-through LTV improved
to 34% at 31 December 2014, from 35%
at the end of 2015 as aresult of the value
growih of the portfolio exceeding the
increase in nat debl. Wa will continue

to maonage our gearing proactively and
intend to maintain our LTV around the
mid-30% level going forward, assuming
curant yialds. With greater focus on the
earnings profile of the business, we are
ako now monitoring our net debt to
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EBITDA ratio, which was 6.5 fimes in 2016
and we plan to keep this in line with
current levels going forward,

interest rate hedging

amangements and cost of debt
Our see-through cost of debt has
reduced to 4.2% {2015: 4.5%) as we have
secured additional debt on ourrecent
completions and refinancing in USAF ot
historically low levels. The Group hos 100%
of its seg-through investment debt subject
to a fixed interest rate [2015: $0%) for an
average term of 4.9 years.

Convertible bond

The Group's £%0 million convertible bond
is due to mature in October 2018. Under
the terms of the bond. earty conversion
of the deb! info equity could be triggered
by us from October 2016 onwards if

the share price frades over 1.3 times

the conversion price for a pericd of time.
The initial conversion price of £5.10 has
reduced fo £4.88 following share plocings
and dividend payments and therefore
EPRA NAV has baen prepared on the
basis that the bond will convert in the
future. This has resulted in NAY dilution

of 15 pence per shara os at 31 December
2016, Conversion would cesult in around

a 4% point reduction in LTV.
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SIS

-

Urule i
Property Net Other Net shore :
assets debt astets Rasls of NAY Total
£m £&m £m £m £m retum Matunty Unite shore:
Vehicie
USAF 2,288 (714} {51} 1,523 352 H% Infinite 23%
LSAV 1.009 {354) {15) &40 320 15% 2022 50%
Funds and joint ventures The asset management fees from both

The table above summarises the key
finonciak for sach vehicle.

USAF and LSAV have continued 1o
perform well in 2016, LSAV's tolal raturn

is driven by stronger capital growih from
development returns,

USAF cumentty does not have ony
gcquisition capeocity following the forward
fund acquisitions and acquisitions from
Unite made in the year, but will confinue
to monitor acquisition opportunities
funded by capital recycling.

Fees

During the yador, the Group recognised net
fees of £21.9 million {2015; £35.9 mitlion)
from its fund and asset management

activities as follows:

200 215

m £m

USAF N
Asset
management fee 10.0 8.7
Acquisition fee 04 18
Net
performance fee 6.5 20.2
LSAV
Asset and property
maonagement feg 4.0 33
Development
monagement feg 1.0 1.9
Totol fees 21.% as9

* A ful bregakdown of the net performance
fee 5.1 note 3 4(c) of the notes to the
financial statermnents.

USAF and LSAY have increased as a result
of thea growth in the portfolios under
management during the vear generated
by acquisifions and valuation growth,

A total perforrmance fee of £8.1 milion
was earned and will be paid in unils
during the first quarter of 2017. The net
fee recognised of £6.5 million is after
deducting £1.1 million, which represenis
the Group's share of the performance
fee paid by USAF and ofter advisory costs
of £0.5 miflien. The level of the fee is
sensifive o movemenis in property
valuctions and is theratore significantty
lawer than in 205 due fo the high level of
yield compression in 2015. After payment
of the fee, our stake in USAF will remain

at 23%.

Joe Lister
Chlef Finoncial Officer
22 Fetruary 2017
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEUW

UP

TO

Up tou$

Our ambition is to create homes
to support the development

of fulure generations of dynamic
and successful graduates,
equipped to make positive social
and economic contributions.
We have a unique opportunity
to make a valuable contribution
to soclety by helping our 49.000
studentis every yeartio leam,
adopt and develop responsible
Iving habits. The management
of, and accountability for,

our Impact on our world is
embedded as part of our
day-to-day operations.

uS

It has cways been important to Unite fo act
as aresponsible business. Qur first buildings
were renovations of existing vacant

properties in Bristol where here wos a lack
of good guality student accommedation.

In 2016 wea started work on a new
responsible business strategy. called Up
o uS, addressing the kay sustainability
issues affecting our busingss and supply
chains. Up fo us is a plan designed

o equip us for a future in which our
relevance to students will depend on our
ability to help them protect their world.

Up to us will deliver sustainable value

for our stakehaoldars and make us the
leading sustainable purpose-built
accommodation provider. However.

we want to go further than being the most
sustainable business in our sector. Further
even than making ongoing improvements
o what we do as we grow and the workd
evolves. Litimately ocur goal is fo use our
business to drive positive social change.
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WE'RE MAKING A POSITIVE
CONTRIBUTION TO OUR PEOPLE,
OUR UNIVERSITIES, OUR STUDENTS
AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Joe lister

Chief Financial Officer and

Managing Director of People and Communications

Up to u§ underpins our unique business
model to creata long-terrm value through
the effective use of resources and
relationships. It is driven by the same
strategic priorities as our business model;
to e the most trusted brand, to have the
highest quality pertfolic and strong est
copital structure.

Up to us covers four main themes:;

Great workploce 45

The environment &b

Social Iimpact 48

Trusted pariner L]
Great workplace

We want fo create an inclusive and
positive workplace for all of our people.

Highlights ond key commiiments

In 2016 we received Invesior in People
Gold Aword and our target now is to
achieve Investar in Pecple Platinum
by 2020.

We invasted £110,000 into a programme
for paid interns, supporting current
students towards empiloyability and
giving our employees opportunities fo
work directly with students, gaining
valuable insights into thewr worlds.

Qur pricrities in this area are;

Diversity and inclusion

We believe that inclusivity and diversity
across the arganisotion is crifical to our
continued success. OQur empioyees are
from many different backgrounds and
have diverse experiences, perspectives
and skills. We aim to have o workforce
that is ruly representative of all sections
of society, where ecch employee feels
respected ond able to give their besi.
Unite Students will promote a culiure

of equality and fairness for all and
ensure no person acting on our

behalf shall discriminate in any
situation against another individual

or group, direcity orindirectly.

In 2014 we conducted our first
company-wide Diversity Survey and
the insights provided by this will help
inform the development of policies
and working practices.

Coreef entichment

We have crealed 0 comprehensive
range of training courses and
development programmes for our
empioyees at all levels. These are
focused on technical skills, personal
deveiopment and management
competences. Our leadership fremework
Includes programmes such as Becoming
a Supervisor, Becoming a Manager and
oleodership development programme,

Wellbeing

The health and wellbeing of our
employees Is critical o creating
sustainable performance. In 2018 we

introduced a welbeing portai on our
infranet, providing advice and tips to
encble employees to look after their
personal haalth, financial and mental
wellbeing. Creating a cohesive welloeing
strategy will be o focus for 2017,

g
3
8
[ ]
[1s]
3
3
Q
g

S|UBLLIEIDYS jDUD UL

UOHOULIOK IS



L3

RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Human Rights

Unite believes that human rights ore
universal and recognises that the UN
Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights set a standarnd of conduct
expected of companies. We do our
best to ensure that everyone involved
or ossociated with cur business is
protected, freated fairly and subject to
our Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policies,
Health arkd Safety Policy. ond various HR
policies including those covering dato
protection, disciplinary, performance
management, Rlexible working,
grievance, leave, equality and diversity.

The environment

wa want to reduce our environmeniol
impact gnd encourage responsible
behaviourin our students, employees
and suppliers,

Highlights and commBEments

In 2016 we achieved further
improvements across varous metrics
including a four star rating from the
Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark (GRESB), were placed in the
98th percentile of the FTSEAGood index,
and were rated B for our climate change
performance by the Carkon Disclosure
Projact [CDP). These reflect our ongoing
efforts to reduce our confribution to
climate change, and improve our
broader environmental performance.
We were shortlistad for the 2016 Energy
Awards and the 2017 EDIE Sustainability
Awards for our behavioural change ond
engagement programme.

Our environmental strotegy focuses on
four main objectives, which together help
us reduce cur three malerial environmental
impacts: energy and carborn; water, and
rgsource use and waste.

In 2016 we pledged todevelop a
science-based carbon reduction target,
in line with the Parls Climate Agreemenl
fo limit warming to less than two degrees.
and hove been working with the Science

Based Targets Initiative (SBTI) 1o set
an ambitious ond credible torget.

we have also set a ronge of targets 1o
help reduce our other environmental
impacts too:

> Wa signed up o the intemational
REI00 scheme. committing to buy
100% renewable energy by 2020

> We are working 1o a target of doubling

our energy productivity by 2032 under

the internationa! EP100 programme,

rmeaning we will haive our energy

consumption per bed

We ofim to send zero waste to kandFill

from our sites by 2025

All new builkdings opening from 2018 on

will achieve o BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rating

> By 2020 we will aim to effectively
engoge 50% of our students every
year with sustainability campaigns
while living with us.

v

v

Sustainable bulkdings

Building on our Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme [ESOS) surveys and
Energy Performance Certificale update
in 2015, we are producing individual
oction plans for @ach of our buildings

to identify the fult range of energy and
water efficiency opportunitias, Over 2017
we will bring this into O coordinated plan
aiming to deliver significant energy and
water efficiency improvements. As well
as complying with the 2018 minimum
energy efficiency standards ond the
2019 ESOS deadline, this will deliver
significant carbon reductions across our
existing estate. Ahead of this we have
continued ocur ongeing £21 milion LED
lighting upgrade, and installed a range
of new technologies to undarstand how
best to achieve the energy and woter
efficiency improvements. During 2016 we
deployed wireless netwarked building
controls, instalied PV panals and air-source
heat pumps, and assessed arange of
other potential technologies including
demaond side responss and battery
storage. This activity has helped deliver
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a 10% reduction in energy per bed from
2014-2015 ond a 4.8% reduction from
2015-2014.

Sustainable behoaviour

Our Up 1o us Susteinability Engagemant
Programme is now in its third year, and
seeks to defliver losting changes in
behaviour towanrds more environmentally
responsible living and working habits. We
see this as a unique opportunity to heip
our students adopt enduring sustainable
living habits that stay with them after they
mave on from Unite Students, creating a
legacy of positive environmental impact.
Aligned with the NUS Green Impact
Awards, the programme uses individual,
iocal and national initiatives to moximise
engagement. During the 2015/16
academnic year we recruited mare than
120 student volunieers to help us defiver
a range of activities fo raise awareness
of sustainable living choices. Going into
2016/17 we lounched our Pledge for
Good campeign which includes
commitments to follow sustainable
behaviours that could deliver more

than 30 tonnes of carbon reduction.

Sustainable Construction

As well as improving the existing estate,
we are also committed to making sure
our new buildings deliver high standards
of energy efficiency and environmental
performonce, and help our students
live mora responsibly and sustainably.
From 2017 onwards all of our new builds
will gim for an ‘Excellent’ rating under
the widely used BREEAM anvironmental
assessment methodolkogy.

Sustainable Energy

As wall as improving energy efficiency,
we gre looking at haow bes? to use
renewabie energy o further reduce
our carbon emissions. Over 2017 we will
be boking at a range of short and long
term options to identify the best way

to use credible renewable energy o
reduce our tootprint and deliver wider
business benefits.

Calculation of market based emissions factor for grid elechicity supplied under contract

Coarbon Dioxde

Suppher's resduol emissons for egch  Resdual Fued Mix x CO,

fueh mx fuel source SMESONS

Primary energy source used for generation ] (kW) {kgfxwn]
Coal 14 (¢34 0.1454
Naiural Gos 46 0.39 02574
Nuclear | 0 4]
Renewables 16 0 0
Other Fuels | 0.59 0.0059

Overall amissions factor

10,4087 kgCO2/kWh
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Corbon
Contributions
Change vs Change vs
2014 215 Pror yexy 2016 pricr yeor
Year end bed numbers 43,039 45,447 5.59% 48,637 7.02%
Carbon contributing bed numbers 39125 43,084 10.12% 45,924 5.60%
Carbon contributing fleor area (M?] 1.097.060 1,207,804 10.09% 1282018 5.14%
Energy ond water consumplion
2014 2015 2014
Change vs Change v
CONBUMERICH Consumpion PN Yo Congurphion it yaor
Electricity Absolute (kWh) 111,948911 110,948,791 DBY% 112,524,053 1.42%
Relative to bed numbers [kWh/bed) 2861314 2,575.154 -10.00%  2,450.108 -A486%
Relative to floor area fkwh/me} 102.045 91.860 -9.98% 87.m -445%
Natural gos Absalute (kwh) 23,328,332 26%77.762 15.64% 29,075,659 7.78%
Relative to bed numbers [(kwh/bed} 594,251 626.162 2.52% 633.096 0.02%
Reiative to floor area (kWh/m?) 21,264 22.336 504% 22.680 1.54%
waoler Absolute {m?) 1,819,569 221820 21.91%
Relative 1o bed numbers (m*/bed} 42,233 48.300 143
Reiative to floor areo
{m/m?) 1,507 1.730 14.85%
Greenhouse gas emissions
X014 XI5 2018
Change vs Change v
Cormumption Consurmphon PROr yedxr Cotsumphion Prios yeor
Total Scope | Absolute {tonnes CO) 439376 537305 2.59% 5,750.32 7.02%
[aatiti]
emisions Relotive fo bed numbers ffonnas COe/bed) o 012 11.05% 013 0.40%
Reiative ta floor areo (kg CO-e/m?) 4.0050 4.4484 11.08% 4.4854 0.33%
Total Scope 2 Absolute [tonnes COze) 5602597 5238217 4.50% 4735215 -9.50%
?&f;?“smm Relative to bed nurmbers {iornes COe/bed) 1.43 122 B8.00% 1.03 1277
1on ! Relative to floor area (kg CO-e/m?) 51.0692 43.3498 -15.08% 36,9356 ~14.84%
Total Scope 2 Absolute (fonnes CO.e) 48,488.98 46,997.70 -3.08%
emissions Rektive to bed numbers {fonnes CO,e/bed) 113 1.02 -4.38%
[market based) "
Relative to flocr area (kg CCre/m?) 40,1464 36.6592 -B.47%
Total Scope Absolute (fonnes CO.e) 60,419.73 57.755.22 -4.41% 5310247 -8.06%
1+2 e?"*‘gg: o Relative to bed numbars {fonnes CO.e/bed) 154 1.34 4.14% 136 -10.51%
location base:
t Relative to floor area (kg COe/m?) 55,0742 478184 -13.47% 4140 -13.38%
Jotal Scope Absolute (fonnes CO-e) 5386203 52,748.02 -207%
1+2 groissions Relative to bed numbers {tonnes COa/bed) 1.25 115 ST9%
{market based) ;
Relative to floor orea (kg COe/m?) 44 5950 41.1445 -1.74%
Total Scope 3 Absolute [lonnes CO-e) 14,802.20 15,486.29 4.67% 15.486.29 -1.74%
emissions Relative to bed numbers (fonnes CO.e/bed) 0.38 0.3 -4.99% 035 -7.82%
{location based) .
Relative to floor area (kg COe/mé 13.4926 128219 -4.97% 12.0796 -5.79%

s Scope | emissions include gas consumption and business vehicies use.

* Scope 2 emissions Include grid electricity and heat
« Scope 3 emissions include supply chain emissions such O water and paper use, business 'ravel, and energy supply chain emissions ransmission
and distnbution lesses and welk-o-tank emissions).

Localion based emissions are colcuiaied using DEFRA 2014 emissions faciors.

* “per bed” emissions use pro roto bed numbers, faking info account the length of hme the site was under our ownership.

Market based emissions ame calculated using market basad ermsuions factor based on supplier's stated residual fugl mix shown below:
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Scope 7 and 2 emissions have been
cdlouiated in fine with the DEFRA
Environmental Reporting Guidelines
2013. DEFRA 2015 emissions foctors
have been used. except for market
posed smissions which have been
calculated using an emissions factor
reflective of our elechicity supplier's
generation mix s shown below:

Scope 142 CO,e emissions per bed

Scope 182 CO,e emissions per n¥

More details on our environmental
strategy and impaocts are available on
aur website and will be updoted over
2017 along with mone defails of cur wider
approach 1o Up to us.

The table on poge 47 summarises

our carbon footprint compared to the
previous Iwo years. Athough energy
afficiency improved, a 6% incregse in
total bed numbers resulted in an overall
1.4% increase in electricity consumption.
Gas consymplion also rose by 7.8% due
to more widespread use of gas in newer
openings compared o older properties
that typically use elecicity for heating.
Despite this, however, our carbon
footprint shrank: changes to the DEFRA
carbon emissions foctors in 2016 meant
our combined location-based Scope 1 +
Scope 2 carbon footpring shrank by 8% in
absolute terms, or 10.5% per bed. The
reduction in our absolute and per-bed
market-bosed Scope 1 + Scope 2 footprint
wqs 2% and 6.8% respectively, with the
smaller reduction nere driven by changes
in oyr supplier's net generation mix.

Soclalimpact

Delivering positive impacts ¢ help young
people succeed in Higher Education
and build sustainabie lives.

Highlights and commiiments

In 2016, we donated £2 million to charities,
inchuding the Unite Foundation and our
charity of the yeoar Sport Relief. Mora than
33% of our ermpioyees volunteered with
local communities,

These are our prigritigs:

Community

Qur students and employees hove o
crucial roie in shaping their communities,
ond have g more enriching experience
by being integrated with local residents
and groups. Over the forthcorning vears,
we are committed 1o doing even more
with our communities through use of our
properties, aiving support to community
groups and collaborating further with

Universities and students” unions. we want

to use the research we commission in our
onnual Insight Report to help develop
meaninglul engagement with young
people in the communities we operate
in to help prepare them for University life.

Charlty

Supporting charifable organisations is

at the heart of our values ot Unite
Students. We believe we have a unique
opportunity 10 heip raise awarenaess of
charitable giving to the future genaration
of choritable givers, while also providing

a great opportunity for engagement
between our employees, students and
Universities alike, We are commitied 1o
supporting charitable organisations that
are aligned 1o our business, whether this
is through cash orin kind donations.

Voluntwering

YVolunteering provides o brillions basis for
engagement with the locol communities,
giving valuable rasouwrce and axpartise
o anganisations to really make g tangible
diference, while alsoc developing skills,
team buiding and increasing mativation
for those taking part. In just two years,

our employee voluntesaring scheme has
achieved more than a 30% partficipation
rate and we are committed fo continuing
1o grow this in Future years, with particular
focys on skills-makched volunteering.
Alongside this, we absolutely recognise
the opportunily to develop student
volunteering opportunities, Whils done
on a smaot scale curmentty througn

our NUS Green Impact scheme, we

are locking to develop this so thot

it becomes scalable, providing
opportunities for students whether

they are loocking fo do this to develop
employability skilks, or just fo give Ineir
support o o great couse.,

Trusted pariner

We aim to devetop frusted and open
ralationships with our investors as well as
Universities and other stakeholders who
partner with us. This is fundamental to
our long term sustainability.

Highlights and commitmenis

In 2016 we were recognised in the
Building Public Trust Awards for our
strategic reporling. We were also
aworded Business of the Yeor 2016 by
the Bristol Post, in our home city, We are
committed to maintaining the highest
standards of kunsparency and integrity
in our reporting and our relationships.

Priorities

» Maintaining high ESG ratings, with
indices such as FISEAGood and GRESB.
In 2014 we received a FTSE4Good ESG
Rating ICB Supersecior Relative
Percentile Score 98, with 100 being
the highest possible, We achieved
Greenstar status for the third
consecutive year, increasing our
2016 score to 71, from &4in 2015

» Building Jonger lerm commercially
sustainable relationships with our
Univearsity pariners and increasing
our Higher Education tryst score

» Developing @ more susiginable supply
chain, working with suppliers cerlified
by the CIPS Sustainability index,
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Affordabliity

tUnite Students recognises that going

1o University now represents g big
investment for students, and their
accommodation needs represent a
significont component of those costs. we
have a responsibility to ensure that the
living envronment we offer our students
represants good quality accommodation
at the best possible value for money.

To meet the students' needs, we offer

a choice of roormn types at ditferent price
points, in punpose built envionments, which
include common spaces and, wherever
possible, a quiet stucdy foom, outdkoor space
and even a gym. Our propasition further
differs from traditional Homes of Multiple
OCccupancy [HMO) properties, wheare
we believe we represent better value in
anumber of key areas. These include not
charging booking or administration fees,
and offering a range of flexible payment
plans. Our rents akso include a mnge of
valve-added components such as
all-inclusive utility biils; high-speed
broadband access; a fortnightty cleaning
service for shared spaces: best-in-ckass
contents insurance; on-sile laundry service:
24-hour security; a 24-hour helpline service
centre; and discounts with well-known high
street retailers.

For scholars from the most challenging
backgrounds, the Unite Foundation was
established in 2012 to provide assistance
1o those who might not otherwise be able
o attend University. Working with 10
Universities across the UK, the Foundation
provides free accommodation and is
currertly supporting 128 octive scholars.

CREATING AN

ENGAGING
ENVIRONMENT

In setting our rents, we will continue

to routinely work with Universities'
accommadation services, through
nominations agreements and more widely,
to ensure that the living environment

we offer our students represents the best
possible value for money.

The Unite Foundation

Unite Students is the founder of and

a major donor to the Unite Foundotion,

o charity that helps undergraduates who
lack family support. The Foundation
provides its scholars with accommaodation
throughout ther study years and
appiicants are selected by the Universities
towhich they apply from the 10 Universities
which part of the Foundation programme.
Establshed in 2012, the Foundation

has supported 179 people to date

and currently has 128 active scholars.

The end of the 2015/16 academic year
saw 18 Foundation scholars graduate.

Unite Students hosted a Foundation
Fundraiser at the Natural History Museum
in 2014 lo celebrate its 25th anniversary.
Guests heard from 2016 Foundation
groduate Errily Drew about her experience.
Unite Students itseff donated a further

£5 million to the Foundalion in 2016, The
donation took the form of an investment
in the Unite Student Accommaodation
Fund {USAF) in order o give the
Foundation greater long term security.

Our 20156 Strategic Report from page

1 to page 49 has beenreviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors on
22 February 2017,

Joe Lister
Chief Financlal Officer
22 February 2017
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CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION

TO GOVERNANCE
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A GOOD GOVERNANCE
CULTURE SITS AT THE HEART
OF GROWING LONG TERM
SUSTAINABLE EARNINGS

Phil White
Chairman

I'm pleased to present our Corporale
Governance Report on behalf of the
Boord, 2014 has been a busy year. The
Leave vote has led io a dynamic external
market while in parcliel — as we Calebrate
Unita's 25th anniversary — we are seeing

a maturing PBSA sector.

Succession planning and corporate
culture has been o focus in 2014, We had
a change in Chief Exacutive, with Richard
Smith taking over from Mark Allan after

17 years with Unite, 10 as CEQ, as well as
the Group converting to o REIT effective

| January 2017.

The Bogord's governance role has focused
on the impoact of change in the wider

economy, whilg ensuring we are prepared
for change in the Higher Education and
PBSA sector. This preparation includas our
substantial investment in technology -
roling out our scalable operating platform
PRISM — as well as ensuring our development
pipeline is well funded.

Qur governance framework is designed
to help us navigate these extemal and
internal changes. it is imperative the
Boord is able to provide the necessary
oversight and challenge to secure the
Group's long fermn sustainable success,
building on afl we have learnt in our 25
years, and the following pages provide
insight as to how we are doing this.
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Governance overview underpinned by the Corporate Governance Code

Governance framework

Qur governance framework,
underpinned by the Corparate
Govemance Code, is designed fo
support our sirategy ond ensure
our long term sustainabie success.
Sirnilar to our risk management
Framework {described on

pages 22 to 25}, cur govemeance
frarmework is driven by an open
and collaborative Boord and
proader Unite Students culture,
creoting an environment for
paople to have confidence to
challenge the norm. For example.
we now consider proceeding with
certain site acquisitions not
conditional on plonning. Provided
certain planning risk thresholds ore
satisfied. Belkow and on tha next
two pages, we describe how
governance has supporied our
strategy during 2014 and how thisis
linked to our principal risks, we also
describe our governance priorities
for 2017.

Accountabiifty

The internal controls and the
Audit Committee Report {pages
64 10 £9), togather with ourtisk
management ramework ond
principal risks (poges 22 to 29),
describe how we ensure q fair,
baianced and undersfandable
assessment of Unite's position and
prospects, the assessment of our
principalrisks and their alignment
with owr strategic objectives and
how we maintdin an appropriate
relaticnship with Deloitte.

our external auditors, consistent
with the Code and statutary
requirements.

leadership

On pages 54 and 55. we describe the
composition of the Board explaining
their skills ang expenence. On pages
57 to 41 we explain how the Board
operaies as an effecfive board,
colectively responsible for the
long-term sustainable success of
Unite, the clear division of responsibilities
of the Board and the role of the
non-executive directors fo
constructively chalienge and
develop our strategy.

Remuneration

The Unite remuneration policy and
implementation chart [page 75)

and Remuneration ot a glance

chart (page 76) provide an overview
of this complex creq, together with
the detailed Remuneration Report
{pages 73 to 95) describing how we
ensure Exacutive Director remuneration
is designed to promote the long-term
success of the Comparny and how we
develop our remuneration policy.

Effectivensss

Pages 62 and 43 describe how

our governance framework ensures
the effectiveness of the Board.
Recognising how critical coporate
culture is to effectiveness and
sustainable success, during 2016
our Board evoluation focused on
{among other things) our corporate
culture and governance
leadership. In addition, in a year
when the CEQ role transitioned,
Richard Smith's induction as the
incorming CEQ has been crifically
important to deveiop his Chief
Executive skilk and relationships
and ensure a smooth fransition.
The Nomination Committee

Repon (poges 64 and 45) describes
how we manage our succassion
planning. our broader leadership
development, our approoch

to diversity and inclusivity ond

how we ensure we have a deep
talent pipeline.

Shareholder relations
and engagement

Page 56 describes how we engage
with shareholders, which during
2014 included a Capital Morkets
Day in April. which allowed
investors to see our Coventry
portfolio and development
pipeline and the opportunity to
interact with our digital operating
platform, PRISM, and then a second
Capital Markets Day in December
in London demonstrating how
PRISM impraves and streamlines
our operations. Wa also describe

in our Remunerafion Reporl [poges
73 to 95} how we have engaged
with shareholders during 2016

on our Remuneration Policy and
executive remunerotion.
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

TO GOVERNANCE
CONTINUED

How govemnance supported our stralegy during 2016
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SKRegic Link ko
objecive Soord's gOvernance rie Frincipol ek 2074 Board activity
Greatservice PRISM 26 Reod more Board reviaw of ocur digital stralegy.
Owversigh! on PRISM delvery ond the reloted Markes risk - supp Oversight that PRI elivers:
:ﬂl’;cedbistomr:ersmandopemﬁnq urddonm:nd N Ar::)muookizs:stem
nens.
ey * Anmproved and scalable plattorm for revenue
management and customer engagement
> Enhanced service levels tor both Universities and students
> Marke! differentation.
£l Read more Operations neview
AflerdabBity and valye lor money 26 Readmore  ANalss of the HE accommodation sector ond ensuring we
ket sk ~ ; conlinue to offer an atfordable and value for money product.
and demand 31 Read mona: ANosdabliity
Heoth & Solely 27 Read rore. The Board reviews the salety of cur students, visitors and
As we develop our brand through the Operuational Rk ampioyees, as well s contractors of our development shes,
implemaniation of Home for Suecess, the risk of —Major heoith & ot each Board meeling.
ety ncracaen. The Boards gvemonce ofhe | SIetY (HAS) incident  HAS Commitiee, @ suo-comrifion of iho Soard, facus o
heaith & salety, welbeing ard sscurlty of the Ina property ara » Fire. our biggest sctely sk, and the appelniment of the
49,000 students whomoke Unie Stucents ey S¥VioPmentste Avon Fire Aulhorily as ou Primary Authortty lead
home Is crifical fo the Group's confinued success > Extemal salety amurance through ihe appointment of
and trusted raputation. the British Safety Council as cur new extemal sofety cudidor
» Fhysical securlly review of our properties by WSP Parsors
Brinckerhott,
T8 Recdmore HAS Commities eport
Home for Succes 26 Read Board rewiew of the ongong Implementation of the £40 million
Challenging the subsiontiolinvesimentin Home oy risk ~ supply Home for Success reinvestmant progromme. Sirategic review
tor Success ond how it is franslating into real and and demand of the naxt phase of Home for Success to ensure the Group
Improved customer expenences ond songer confinues ta deliver improved customer  experience in an
University relationships. increasingty competitive marketpiace
39 Read mone: Operafions review
Beilkant Developmant pipeline 28 Read more: Board ersured deiivery during 2016 of five new deveiopments,
properties Boand scrufiny of City and site selection fof new Proparty/ " representing 3,082 beds on programme and budged. 2,000
developments ogainst bockdmp of ncreasing Development risk of these secured with long term nominations.

compattion for the bast sites. Governaonce of
developmenis/acquisiions to ensure they run fo
budge! ond schedule and are eamings accratve

34 Redad more: Properly review

Yield

2016 PCs Beds on cost
Stapleton House 8s2 a9%
Qlymplc wWay, Wembloy 499 88%
Gostord Gate, Coventry B4 0%
Greatham St, Portsmouth 834 93%
Couseway View. Aberdeen ¥9 985
Tobal T2 m
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Shromgic Unk to
objective Bodid'i QOVEMancs role Principol Ksk 2014 Boord ociivity
Briliant Property disposcis 28 Read more: Board ensuring further growih through develgprment activity.
properies Board oversight on disposol — ensuring value Property market " During 2015, fourschemes exchonged and five planning
obtaned and proceeds recycled efficiently. o sk consents. 2,152 beds due tor deltvery in 2017 and good
ey progress on our devetopment and funds pipeline.
2 Reod more. Development pipeline
viela
2017 PCs Bects on cost
Developmenis
St Leonand's Edinburgh 581 ?5%
Milliennium view, Coventry k-l B8% ~
Tara House. Liverpool 776 ?.3% %
1,748 93% =
Forword funds [USAF) ‘<
Beech House. Onlord 187 s0% I
Luton Court, Edinburgh n7 51% =
Tolal 2152 z
'K'-
Growing ond Capitalstucture ¥ roog Ongoing Board reviaw of owr Capital Oporaling Gudeines. o
sustainable Group Board focus on a strong ond flexdbie Fnancing fsk— Confinued locus an lockingin debt at histarically low rates for
eamings capltalstructure, which can adapt 1o market Uncbie jo arange new "= debl faclities and lorward starting Interest swops for
conditions. and reducing and diversdying the debl or expiring debt future borowings for sscured developmenl pipefne.
t of funding. .
cod faclesconnotbe At the end of 20i6:
replacad or only » Loon-to-value 34%
athigh coul. 3 Average cost ol debt 4.2%.
Adverss inlerest
rote movements 48 Read more. Financial review
Tax stralegy/RET conversion Board review of the Group's tax posifion and strategy  Analysis |
Group Board review of fax sirategy tor of eonwversion to REIT and why Fhis is right for the Group. 3
sublegtion In 2017 and our corvenation Cvensight of ongoing REM condifions and headroom for =]
to a RS, operqting within the Balance of Business REIT tests. 8
41 Reod more’ QLA on REIT comversion g,,
@
2
2017 governance priorities » Delivery of the development Compliance with UK Corporate g
» Greal service pipeline - fo budget and on time quemmc' Code @
Student and University expectations - with conlinued focus in towns During 2016, our governance framework
are constantly increasing. Governance and cifies with the strongest was builf on fhe UK Corporate
to ensure: growth prospects Governance Code [the Code). The Code
» Portfolic recycling with disposal remained the minimum standord ogainst
3 Continved investment in Home for proceeds deployed effectively. which we measured ourselves during
Success iransiating info value for ?Ol 6. We complled with all the provisions
mongy for our cusforners and > Growing and sustainable eamings in the Code during 2016 and expect fo
market differentiation In the uncertain world following the be fully compliant during 2017. The Code
» PRISM, our scakable digital Leave vote, Governance to ensure; is published by the Financicl Reporting
operaiing platform, delivering Council (FRC) and is available at
impraved customer service, » A strong and Rexible capital www.frc.org.uk. g
efficiency and thus offordability, siructure to enable us to odapt 2
appropriately to market condifions Phil White =
> Bdllant properties as the cycle evolves Chairman of the Board g
PBSA sector maturing. Govemance » Compliance with ongoing RET 22 Feruary 2017 2
to ensure: status following conversion on §

1 January 2017
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

From ledt to right
Chris Szpojnarowicz. Andrew Jjones,

Phil White, Joe Lister, Richard Simpson.

Richard Smith, Elizabeth McMeikan,
Tim Wilson and Manjit Wolstenholme.

Boord commiites key

A
R
R

Namination Committee
Audit Commitiae

Health & Safety Committee
Remuneration Committee

1 PhiH White
Chairmon
Chair of Nomination Commitiee
Remuneralion Committee

Retevant skills and experience

Phil was appointed Chairman in May
200%. The majority of his executive career
was spent in the publiic transport sector,
during o period of deregulation and
privatisation. He was Chief Execufive of
Naticnal Express Group plc from 1997

fo 2006, leading the business through
considerable growth both in the UK and
overseas. Phil is curmenity Non-Executive
Chairman of Kier Group plc and Lookers

plc. and Non-Executive Director of Vp plc.

THE UMITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPDRT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

2 Richard $Smith
Chief Executive Officer

H

Relevant skills ond experience

Richard was appointed Chief Executive
in June 2014. Prior to this, Richard was
Unite's Managing Director of Operations
from 201 1. That MD role involved Richard
leqding the service provided to

our custorners, and managing the
maintenance and facilities management
across the Group’'s portfoiio.

Richard joined Uinite as Deputy Chief
Financial Officer in 2010, Prior to this he
spent 18 years in the transpart industry,
working in the UK, Eurape, Australia ond
North America. Richord spent 13 years
of National Express Group where he
hetd a range of senior finance, strategy
and operations rofes, including Group
Development Director and Chief
Finoncial Officer, North America.
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3 Joe Uster
Chief Financial Officer and Managing
Direcior of People and Communications

Relevant skills and experdence

Joe joined Unite in 2002 having qualified
as a chartered accountant with
PricewaterhouseCoopers. He was
appointed as Chief Finance Officer

in January 2008 having previously heid
o variety of foles including Investment
Director and Corporate Finance Director.
In addition to the Group's finance
function and investment strategy, Joe is
now giso responsible for People and
Communications. Joe is a member of
the Council ot the University of Essex,

4 Richard Simpson
Group Property Divector

Relevant skills and expedence

Richord Is Group Property Diraclor and sels
the strategic direction for all aspects of
the property portfolio, oversees the fund
management of Unite's co-investment
vehicles and leads the property
development activities. Richard joined
Unite in 2005 anat has held a variety

of senior roles within the Group. He is

a qudlified chartered surveyor and

< fellow of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors.

Richard has been a Non-Executive of
Citywest Homes from January 2017

& Prolessor Sir Tim Wilson
Non-Executive Director
Chair of Health & Safety Commitiee

H A R N

Relevant skilis and experience

Sk Tim was appointed Knight Bachelor
for services to Higher Education and to
business in the 2011 New Yeor's Honours
list. He 1s o strong advecote of the role
of Universities in economic development
andis acknowiedged as cne of the
leading thinkers in University business
collaporation. He is the aouthor of the
government comemissioned Wilson
Review of Business-University
Collaboration, published in March 2012.

Formerly Vice-Chancellor of the
University of Herlfordshire, Tim served

on the Boord of the Higher Education
Funding Cauncil for England [HEFCE]

was Deputy Chair of the CBI Innovation,
Science and Technology Commitiee and
a trustee of the Council for Industry ond
Higher Education {CIHE]. He has extensive
experience in both UK and internafional
Higher Education.

Tirm was appointed 1o the Board in 2010,
He hoids Honorary Degrees from London
South Bank, Plymouth and Hertlordshire
universities and is currentty. as Chairman
of Arden University, a member of the
Committee of University Chaws.

§ Man]ikt Woltlenholme
Seniar Independent Director
Chair of Audit Commitiee

A R N

Relevant skills ond experience

Manijit qualified as a chartered
accountant with Coopers & Lybrand.
Her background inciudes roles as Director
and Co-Head of Investment Banking

at Dresdner Kieinwort Wasserstein, and
Partner ot Gleacher Shackkxck. She is
Chair of Provident Financial and Senior
Independent Director and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee of Future pic
as wellas Chair of Cala Group Holdings
and Chair of Audit at CMC Markets pic.
MoniTt was appointed o the Board

at the end of 2011.

7 Eiizabelh McMeikan
Non-Execulive Diractor
Chair of Remuneratfion Commitiee

R A N H

Relevant skifis and experence

Liz was appointed Non-Executive Drector
in February 2014. She has significant
exparience in customer-focused
businesses Tesco ond Coigate Palmolive,
where she was successful in driving
growth through an understanding

of custorner needs and an innovative
marketing approoch.

Liz is Senior Independent Director at

FTSE 250 pub group JD Wetherspoon
and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee at FiyBe pic. She is a Non-
Exacutive Drector at imporifexport fruit
and vegetable company, Frasca Group
Ltd, and CH & Co Lig, @ privalely-owned
catering company.

In November 2012, Liz was appointed
Chair of Maat Homes Lid, o keading
housing association working in the
South East.

3 Andrew Jones
Non-Execyitve Director

Relevant skills and expetence

Andrew Jones is Chief Executive Officer
of LondanMaetric Property, following the
2013 merger of London & Stamford and
Maetric. Andnew was a co-founder of
Maetric and Chief Exacutive Officer since
ils inception in March 2010, Andrew's
previous roles include Executive Director
and Head of Refail at British Land. He
joined British Land in 2005 following the
acquisition of Pillkar Property where he
was on the main Boord, with resporsibiliies
for their retail portfolio and the Herculas
Unit Trust.

Andrew was appointed to the
Board in 2013,

? Chrls Szpojnarowicx
Company Secretary

Relevant skills and experience

Chris was appointed Comparny Secretary
and Head of Legal n 2013, following
General Counselroles at GE, MTV
Networks and other multinationals and
previously an M&A /corporate and
commercial kawver at Clfford Chance
and Baker McKenzie, Chris uses his general
counsel and corporate/commercial legal
experience to fuse our corporate and rsk
governance with our business octivity, in
this way. Chris links his Company Secretary
and governance leocdership role with that
of Head of Legal.

poden diBsyoys

'_§"‘.
g
§
g

UOHOULIOJUL IBIO



56

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Board attaches a high pricrity o
effective comrmunication with shareholders
and with other providers of capital to the
business, and welcormes their views on
the Group's approach to corporate
governance. In addition to the final and
interim presentations, a series of meetings
between institutional shareholders/other
providers of capitol and senior
management were held throughout 2014,
The Board is made aware of the views of
major shareholders concerning the
Company through, among other means,
regulor analyst and broker briefings, and
surveys of shareholder opinion, That
process will continue throughout 2017,

During 2014, the Rermuneration
Committee conducted a consultation
with shareheclders representing around
two-thirds of the issued share capital,
as well as key UK instifutional imvestors,
regarding proposed chonges inour
Remuneration Policy

73 Remuneration

The Board, together with its professiona!l
advisars, actively onalyses the Register of
the Company with a view 10 ensuring the
long term stability of the Register.

The Company maintains g corporate
website containing g wide range of
information of inferest e institutional and
privata investors. The Company has
fraquent discussions with shareholders on
arange of isues offecting its performance,
both following the Company's
announcements and in response fo
specific requests. The Company regularly
seeks feedback on the perception of

the Company amongst ifs shareholders,
the investor community more brogdly
and its stakeholders.

Save in exceptional circumsionces,

all members of the Board attend the
Cempany's Annual General Meetings
and shareholders are invited to ask
quastions during the meeting and to
meet with Directfors prior to, and after,
the formal proceedings. At the meeting,
the Chairman reviews the Group's
cument treding.

The results of the votes at the Annual
General Maetings, together with details
of the leve! of proxy votes lodged for
each resolution is made available on
a regulatory information service and
on the Company's website af
www.unite-group.co.uk.

155  Notice of the Annual
General Meeting

Results of 2016 Annval General Meeting

For AQaunst

R voles % Votes

Resohstion cast cadt

1 Receive Annual Reports & Accounts 1000 0.0
2 Directors’ Remuneration Policy 98.9 1.1
3 Annual Report on Remuneration 9.7 03
4 Declare a final dividend 100.0 ¢14]
5-14  Appointment of Directors 938-999 Q.1-53
15 Appoint the auditor 100.0 000
16 Auditors' remunerction 1000 0.00
17 Approve performance share plan 983 .7
18 Approve arnpioyes share sicheme 991 0%
9 Authority to alict sharas 854 1.8
20 Pre-amption rights 98.6 1.4
B4.2 15.8

21 Alow general meeﬁrgs on 14 days' notice

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPGRT AND ACCOUNTS 20154

Investor days

We reguiarly hold investor days to
profile the latest developments in

our business and showcase our new
properties and locations. During
2014, these events included g Capital
mMarkets Day in April, which aliowed
investors to see our Coventry
portfolio and developrment pipeline
and the opportunity o interact with
our digital operating platform, PRISM,
and a second Capital Markets Day in
December in London demonstrating
how PRISM improves and streamilines
our operations. These events allow

us o demonsirate the breadth and
dapth of cur managernent team
who hetp ensure that Unite Studenis
continuas to evolve.

Shareholders by geography

Top 10 sharehoiders
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LEADERSHIP

Corporate culture ond
govemance leadership

The Board has ultimate responsibility to
Unite Students’ shareholders for alf the
Group's activities and also a broader
responsibility, extending to environmental
and socicl ssues, recognising that the
Group is home to 49,000 students during
a crucial stage of their personal
deveioprment and with Universities right
across the LK. To discharge this broader
responsibiity effectively, the Group needs

to operale in an open, harmonious and
ransparent manner. Cne way in which
this is achieved is by ensuring open
communication between the Board and
senior leaders. Various members of the
senior leadership team regulkarty present
to the Board. During 2016, Unite's
Operations Director, $tudent Experience
Director, Head of Digital, Area Managers.
Development Director, Funds Director
{representing our various co-investment
vehicles), University Partnerships Director
and Head of Legal & Company Secretary

57

[among others) presented to the Boord.
This direct access to management opens
diclogue beyond the board raom itself.

Further, with Boord meetings located in
cities across the UK, the Board visits our
new developments as well as axisting
properties meeting with our Operations
teoms and giving them a grounded insight
to the implementafion of our strategy.

Board structure
Board Unfte Operations
/’T\ /l\ /I N /T\
Unite Properly
. Board
Nominalion Audit Health & Safely Remuneration
Commitiee Commilttee Commitiee Commitiee
Pt White— Chalr Manjit woktenholme Sir Tin Wiison - Chair Efizobeth McMeikan
Andrew jones - Chair Richard Srmith - Cher
Ehzabeth Mciekan Eizabeth McMelkon ERzabeth McMekan Andrew Jones
Sie Tim Wikson Sir Tim Wilson Phil White Risk Commitiee
Manjlt woklenhokme St Tirn Wikson
Manjt Woktenhoime Christopher
& &8 70 3 Szpojnarowicz
Nomingfion Audit Health & Safety Remuneration {Head of Legal and
Committee Report Committee Report Commiftes Report Comrmittes Report Company
) Sacretary) Chair
I:he Refftrwrggrr" Richard Smith
ommiriee =] .
Joe Lister
15 Incorporated
into this Corporate Richard Simpson
Govemnance
Staternent
by reterence.
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LEADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Board operating rhythm - linked
lo sirategy and business overnsight
The Board has an annyal operating
rhythm with o forward agenda of tems
for the forthcoming year built around our
three strategic objectives. The Board's
meetings are split between strategy
{these consider the Group's longer term
strategy having regard to emenging risks
or the review and approva! of specific
investiments abave certain thresholds)
and routine operational, property and
financiolupdates (these provide context
for the strategic discussions as well as
governance oversight of in-year activity).

Meetings take place throughout the UK,
often at Universities in arder for the Board

Board operafing rhythm

Regular vpdotes from the Board
Commiftees on their activities
and recommenddations

Opaerational, property
and financial updates

Markst and Higher Education
sector updates

Strategy and five-year plon

Risk

Naw development schemes

Tralning

Review ol Group policles

o meet Vice-Chancellcrs and learn
about their experiences with Unite, their
accommodation requiremenis more
generolly and broader developments in
the Higher Education sector.

The Board s able to oversee the setting
and implementation of the Group's
strategy due to its flot management
structure; three members of the Board
are Executive Directors and therefore
actively involved in the day fo day
implementation of the strategy. This
executive perspective is bolanced by five
Non-Executive Directors. including the
Chairmnan, who bring a depth and breadith
of experience in senicr management.
Higher Educatian, finance, customer
service ond real estate.

Senior leaders are regularly invited to
attend meetings and present to the
Board. This provides the Board, and in
particular the Non-Executives, with direct
and open access fo keaders throughout
the Group and helps inculcote a culiure
of openness and directness. In addition,
external experts are also invited 1o
present to the Board (such as University
Vice-Chancellors and property valuers)
to give the Directors a broader and
indepandent perspective,

Details of the number of Boord and
Committee meetings held during the
year, and Direclor ottendance, is
available in the table an page 41,

Ensure that the detailed work performed in the Board Committees
is considered by the Board as a whole

Provide the Board with the necessary information to track the Group's
performance and challenge any problems with performance

Ensure the Boord is equipped with the most up to date knowledge and
undersianding of the industry and envionment we ore operating in

Discuss, review and approve our strategy and five-year plan, and track
how we are performing against our current strotegy anag the five-year plan

Review and discuss our principal risks at a Group level andg also a review

of our operational level risks (Ihe Board's operational risk review is 1o verify
that risks have been properly identified and that appropriate risk mitigation
plans are being comectly managed with clear actions and ownership]

Review and challenge new development schemes being recommended
by management and, due lo the significant capital expenditure

involved and key strategic decisions required, approve thase new
devalopment schames

A review of the Board's troining needs and also to ensure that the Board
is up o date on key legal and regulatory changes. During 2016, fraining
was conducted on how we are using techneology ond social media in
the business as well as governance training on various topics, including
the Market Abuse Regulations

Review of key Group policies, such as the Anti-Bribery Palicy. to ensure
they are appropriate and implemented effectively
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Board activity and annual programme
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February & EZeO 2O Ll K Y -
m Corporate Post completion Property —approval  Preliminary results Trecsury
responsibifity ond  review - reviesy of kond acquishon Policy raview
Home forSuccess  of 2015 property in Liverpool
completions
March o
m Mominations
Committee
- succession
pranning
Apdl o a &
E] Development Aporoval of lkand Traimng: Morket
pipefine coquisition Abuse Reguiations
i Birmingham
and construction
contractsin
Portsmouth
May & #gHe Be Ee L
m Unite Foundation  intemal audit plan  Assess auchtors Review infernal H L S Committee
6 a caNtiols
PRISM workshop 'e¢
Principal
Tisks revigw
June N © a ¢
E] Market review Half-year Acquisiiion Adophng
valuation opportunities new Inside
praview -approval of Information
fond acquisihon Policy aond Share
1 Sheffield Deaing Policy
Ity "
E] intenm resutts
September & ' . . o
E] Strategic Plan Board evaluation  USAFALSAVwhoIly Tax review ong H & 5 Committee
and talent review owned portfoio REIT conversion
& oo
November & g & o EHo@ L
E] Principal risks feview 2017 budget Sales cycie Copilal operating  REIT Circuler
themes review guidefines review  approved
Decembaear 1 AE ] W & o
m Customner Approve Prospacive Whistlablowing Training: Corporate H & 5 Comymittee
0 safisfaction 2017 budget yearend out-turn  review Govemance
Anli-bribery review
Financwal ond nsk Digstal
“ Strategy @ monggament 'a’ Operatonal h Commercial . Investor reictions ¢ Governonce D Worcshop

1 Great servk:eo Bakant pronorﬁese Growing ond astanabie eamings ~ Ne boord activity in Janugry, August and Oclober
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LEADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Compeosition and appointments
The compaosition of the Board during 2016
is set outin the table on page 57.

The Board currentty consists of the
Choirman, three Executive Directors and
four Non-Executive Directors.

Boord composiion

In accordonce with the requirerments of
the Code, each of the cumenl Directors
offers themselves lor re-glection at the
Annyol General Meeting to be convened
on 11 May 2017. Brief biographies of all tha
Directors are set out on pages 54 and 55.
Following the individual performance
evaluations of each of the Non-Executive
Directors segking re-alection, it is
confirmed thal the performance of each
of these Non-Executive Qireciors
continues to be effective. They each
demonstrate commitment 1o the role,
and add value and relevont experience
to the Board.

Description

THE UNITE GROUP FLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2006

Roles

The Group's fermns of reference for the
Chairman and the Chief Executive
clecrty establish the division of
responsibility between the two roles.
summarias of those roles, and that of the
Seniorindependent Director, are set out
in the fable below.

Chairman

Phil Whila's principal respansibilities are:

» To establish, in conjunction with the Chief Executive, the strategic objectives of the

Group. for approval by the Board
» To orgonise the business of the Beard

» To enhonce the stonding of the Company by communicating with shareholders,
the financial community ond the Group's stakehoiders generally

Chief Executive

Richard Smith has responsibiiity for:

» Establishing, in conjunction with the Chairman, the strategic obiectives of the Group.

for approval by the Board

¥ Implementing the Group's business pian and annual budget
» The ovemll operafional and financial performance of the Group

Senior Indepeandent Dreclor

As Senior Independent Director, Manjit Wolstenholme's principal responsibilities are tor

» Actas Chair of the Board if the Chairman is conflicted
» Actasaconduit to the Board for the communication of sharaholder concerns if
other channels of communication are inappropriate

v

Ensure that the Chairmon is provided with effechive feedback on his performance

Responsibility and delegation
A schedule of specific matters is reserved
for the Board. Those include:

> Approving the strategic objectives of
1he Group and the business pion to
achigve those objectives

> Approving major investments,
acquisitions. mergers and divestrments
Approving major development schemaes
Approving oppointmeants to and
dismissals from the Board

Reviewing systems of internal control
and risk management

W v

v

> Approving poficies relating to
Direciors’ remuneration.

. These topics ore scheduled os part of the

board's annual operating rhythm and
forward agenda or brought to the Boord
on an ad hoc basis, as and when this

s necassary.
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responsibilities 1o its Committees, as
detailed on the following pages. The
terms of reference for each Committee
are reviewed annuaily and the current
versions are availoble on the Company”s
website at www.unite-group.co.uk. The
current membership of each Committee
of the Board is set out in the chart on
poge 57.

Board tenure

Each of the Executive Directors has a rofing
confract of empioyment with @ 12 month
notice period, while Non-Execulive
Directors are, subject to re-efection by
sharehokders, appointed to the Board for
a term of opproximately three years. In
accordance with the recommendations
of the Code, the Directors wilt Gll retire

ot the Annuol General Meeting and will
submit thermselves for re-election by
shareholders.

Directors, including the Chairman.

Board fernune

[ "o eemeeRe——— e ¢, = " " —

Board and Commiliee oltendance at meetings in 2014

Dateof Heaith&
Cumrent Appointment Audit  Rermunengtion Nomnation Safety
Dwrectors Status 10 the Board Board Commiltee Cormrittee Cormmittae . Com!ﬂlﬂoﬂ
Phil White Chaiman 210108 s N/A 5 2 MN/A
Sir Tim Wikson Independent o210 9 4 5 2 3
Manijit Wolstenholme Independent 01.12.11 9 4 5 2 N/A
Andrew Jones Independent 01.0213 9 N/A 5 2 N/A
Elzabeth McMeikan Independent 01.02.14 9 4 5 2 3
Joe Lister Executive 02.01.08 9 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Richard Simpson Executive 010112 9 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Richard Smith Executive 01.01.12 9 N/A N/A N/A 3
Resigned during the year
Mark Allan
Resigned 31.05.16 Executive 17.11.03 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0
Patrick Dernpsey
Resigned 31.08.14 Independent 01.03.14 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1 1
Board Committees The graph below shows the curent Professional advice
The Board has delegated certain balonce of tenure of the Non-Executive and Board supporl

Directors are given access to
independent professionct advice at the
Company’s expense when the Directors
deem it necessary in order for them fo
cary out their responsibilities. The Directors
olsc have regular dialogue with, and
direct access fo, the advice and services
of the Compary Secretary whao ensures
that Board processes and corporaie
govemance prachices are folowed.

Insurance

The Company mainigins Direciors and
Officers liability insurance, which is
renewed on an annual Basis.
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EFFECTIVENESS

Induction

On appointment to the Boord,
each Director takes partina
comprehensive and personalised
induction programme covering:

*» The business ond operations of the
Group and the Higher Education
sector; the nole of the Board and
matters reserved for its decisions; the
terms of reference and membership
of Board Committees, and powers
delegated to those Committeas

> The Group's corpeorate govemance
practices and procedunes and the iatest
financialinformation albout the Group

¥ Their legal and regulatory responsibilifies
as @ Director and. specifically, as o
Direcior of a fisted compary.

As part of the induction pragrem, eech
Director also visits kay [ocations to see cur
business operations and properties first
hand and the Higher Education insfitutions
we pariner with. Also, they meet with key
senior executives so fram the outset they
rave access o managers throughout the
crganisation fo hefo them form their own
independent views on the Group and its
perforrnance, and the Higher Education
sector we operate in. In addition, they
are given the opportunity 1o meet

with representatives of the Company’s
key advisars.

This induction is aiso supplemented with
ongaing fraining throughout the year to
ansure the Board are kept up to date with
kay legal, regulatory and industry updotes.

Richard Smith's CEO induction
Following Richard Srnith's appointment
os CEQ, o specific induction plan was
developed. Richard already had
considenable experience with the
Company, but o plon was devised to
reflect his new role os CEQ. This included
meeting with various sfakeholders In fhis
new role as wel as building a development
ptan lo help ensure Richard's transition
into his new role.

2014 evaluation key themes
Corporate cufture and
govemance leadership:

This year, we expanded our Board
evaluation fo ask searching questions
about our corporate culture and
governance laadership (see quastions
set below] using the learnings from the
FRC report. Corporate Culture and the
Role of Boards. The output was very
encouraging. with a consensus that
we have a positive and coherent
corporate culture with strong
governance leadership. We plan fo
build on this for 2017, using our Home
for Success brand orchitecture and
ways of working 1o develop KPIs o
help measwre performance.

Collaborative team:

The Board and its Comimitiess operote
as o collaborative team, balancing
their collective responsibility
appropriately, Comments across

the Executive Directors and
MNon-Executive Directors were

broadly simitar, indicating no real
outliers or divergence of views.

Quesfions in Board Evaludlion focusing on corporate culfure and govemance leadership

Does the Board bave clear agreement on its role in shaping, embedding and overseeing the Group’s corporate culture?

Coes the Board devote sufficient time and resources to evaluating govemance leadership?

Does the Board have visoilty over KPis which measure corporate value arsing from Unite Students’ brand and reputation?

Are the Executive Directors aigned n Unite Students’ pupose and values?

Is the brooder leadership teom dligned with Unite Students’ purpose and valuese

Do the Nen-Executive Directors have appropriate line of sight occess o the business®

Does the Company Secrelary provide independent and fronsparent advice and guidance on corporate govemance matten?

Does Unite Students enjoy a high level of rust within its investor base, with a posifive say/do rafio?

Does Unite Students enjoy a high level of trust within its wider stakeholder base, with o positive say/do rafio?
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Performance evaluation

Each yeor the Board, its Committees

and Drectors are evaluated considering
{among other things) the bakance of
skills, experience, independence and
knowledge on the Board, its diversity
[including gander}, how it works fogether
as o unit and other factors relevant fo

its effectiveness.

During 2014, this Board evaluotion
specifically explored our corporate
culture and governance leadership.

The key leamnings from the FRC's recent
report, Corporate Culture and the Role

of Boards, were used as the basis for this.
In addition, the evoluation considered
the behaviours and processes of the
Boord, its Commitiees and each member
of the Board, including the Chairman.

The Compony’s policy is to conduct an
axternally facilitoted evoluation every
third year, During 20146, the evaluation
was conducted infernally. The previous
externat evaluation was 2014 ond the
next external evaluation is expected
to be during 2017,

Tha 2015 evaluation took the form of a
questionnaire asking searching questions
of the Board and Committees. This was
conducted on an ononymous basis — to
encourage frank and direct feedback
—and the results then coliated by the
Company Secretary and sharad with
the Group Board and each Commitiee.
In addition, the recommended actions
from the 2015 evaluation were reviewed
fo determine progress against them.

Chairman and

Non-Executive Directors

The Board considers each of its four
Non-Executive Direciors fo be
independent. Accordingly, the Company
meets the requirement of the Code in
relation to members of the FTSE 250 that
ot least half of the Board (excluding the
Chairman), is made up of independent
Non-Executive Directors. In aadition,
Phil White {Chairman of the Board)

was conskiered independent on his
appointment to that role.

The Chairman and the Non-Executive
Directors constructively challenge and
help develop proposals on strategy, ond
bring strong, independent judgement,
knowledge ond experiencea to the
Board's deliberations. Mon-Executive
Directors are expecied o commit
approximately 20 days per annum

to the business of the Group.

The lerms and conditions of appointment
of the Non-Executive Directers are
avaikable for inspection at the Company’s
registered office and at the onnuol
general meeting.

63

Training

The Board reviewed their training needs
and considered it important that the
Directors have a broader perspective

of the digital and fechnology needs of
the business. This led to a Digital and
Social Media Workshop for the Board,
demonsirating PRISM and its functionality
and user experience in May 2016.In
addition, the Board considered i
important that the Commitiee Chairs
confinue to receive relevant functionoat
training (such as on accounting, UK
Corporate Governance Code and
executive remuneration reporting
developments) and accordingly the
Committee Chairs attend relevant
external seminars. The Board receives
on-going fraining on corporate
governance developmaents, which in 2014
included training on the Market Abuse
Regulation in anticipation of this coming
injo effect during 2014,
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Phil White Chairman

Nomination Commiittee

Chalr's overview

Eariier in the report, | explained the Board
changes during the yaar, with Richard
Smith appointed Chief Executive following
Mark Allan's resignation after 17 years
with Unite, including 10 as Chief Executive,

With succession plonning and talent
development a key area of focus for the
Committee over the years, it has been
especially pleasing thot this culminated
in the smoaoth transition of the role of the
Chief Executive role with an intemnal hire.
This focus on succession planning and
talent development has Giso enabled the
expansion of the roles of our Chief Financial
Officer, Joe Lister, and Managing Direclor
of Property, Richard Simpson. Joe Lister's
role expanded to include Pecople and
Communications and Richarnd Simpson's
jo include Health and Safety, Procurement
ond Asset Managemenit. This has resulted
in the number of Execufive Directors on
the Board reducing from four o three.

This focus on succession planning and
tolent development has énabled the
Executive Directors to step up, with a
conespending stepping up in the senior
leadership team. On an ongoing basis.
the Committee reviews our talent pipeline
for future Board appeintments as weall as
raviewing the skills we need in our senicr
leadership team. These reviews are
measured against our three cora strategic
objectives. The Committes's focus
extends fo developing high performing
individuals below Board kevel, ensuring

a deep talent pipetine 1o secure the
business’s long term sustainability,

Phil White
Chailr - Nomination Committee
22 February 2017

Commitiee overview

Composition

The Commiltee consists entirely of
Non-Executive Directors. The members of
the Committea are set out on page 57 of
e Comporate Govemance Statement.
At the invitation of the Commitiee,

any other Director or other person may
be invited to attend meetings of the
Committee if considered desrable in
assisting the Committes in fulfiling its role.

Role
The role of the Cornmittee is fo:

» Ensure that appropriote procedures
are odepted and followad in the
nomination, selection. fraining.
evaluation and re-election of Ciractors
and for succession pfanning, with due
regard in afl cases to the benefits of
diversity on the Board, inciuding gender

*» Regularly review the structure, size,

compasition, skills and experience
of the Board and fo make
recommendations with regard to any
adjustments considered necessary

> when it is agreed that an appointment
to the Board should be made. lead a
selection process that is formal, rigorous
ond transparent

> Be responsible for kdentifying, reviewing
and recommending candidates for
appointment fo the Board.

Activities in 2014

Succession planning

Reviewing succession planning and
ensuring we have a clear falent pipeine
for future Board appeintments — this
considers both Exacutive Directors as well
03 the Non-Executive Directors. Specifically
for 2014, this succession planning led to
the appointment of our forrmer MD of
Operations, Richard Smith, as our new
CEQ, following Mark Alion's resignation.

As an integral part of our executive
succession planning, the Committee
oversees the senior leadership
developmeant programme {part of a
broader skils development programme)
to ensure we are growing and nurturing
our talent and developing our high
potential, high performers,
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Review of Boord composition

An angaing review af the Board's
compaosition to ensure it has the comect
baolance of skills, experiencs, ndependence
and knowledge. The Committee believes
the Boord has the correct balance al

the moment, but is conscious of the
developments in digital, fechnology and
customer experience and reviews this on
an ongoing basis.

Group Board Diversity Policy

We recognise that diversity and inclusivity
at Board level and throughout the Group
is crifical component of our long-term
sustainability. We are proud of the diversity
of the Group @s a whole, an crganisation
made up of employees, who like our
customers, are frorm many different
backgrounds and countries and hove
diverse experiences, perspectives

oand skills,

Beyond the Board room and within Unite
Students more generally, we have been
reviewing our approach to diversity and
inClusion guring 20148, We recognise this
s a key building block of our people
strategy and that the UK workforca and
our students are increasingly diverse. To
remain competitive we need to develop
a diverse and inclusive workplace that
willin tum best represent and support our
customers in creating a Home for Success.

During Q3 2014, we conducted an
anonymous survey of our employees,
which has led not only fo a greater focus
on femaile representation at senior levels
within the business but also brooder
diversity and inclusion initiafives.
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This is transiating into the following
actions and focus for 2017, being driven
by a senior leadership working group:

3 We are widening our recruitment
channels ko bring in increased diversity

? We are froining all recruiting managers
and the resourcing team on
unconscious bias to ansure that we are
recruiling the best person for the job

> We are ensuring that ofl customer
facing teams are diverse and
appropriately representative of our
jocol community and our students

> Wa are actively supporting our high
potential female employeeas

?» We are ensuring that alllieadership

raies have diverse candidates on the

short [ist

We are aclively working with

organisation such as Stonewall and

Business Disability Forum 1o raise

OUr awareness

> Wae are reviewing all HR policies and
procedures to be more inclusive with
redated line manager training

v

As regards the Boord itself, the Namination
Committee considered during 2016
whether it wanted to set specific forgets
for female representation on the Bogrd.
The Commiltee believes the cument
focus of diversity and inclusivity should

be on the Group as a whole with the
development of a diverse and inclusive
falent pipeline incorporaling the initiatives
outfined above. The Committee is not
currentty considering setting diversity
targets for the Board itself believing this is
not necessarily in the best interests of the
Group and its stakeholders, but gender
diversity, along with all other aspects of
diversity and inclusivity, will be considered
along with its more general remit to
consider the balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge when
reviewing appointments 1o the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibifity for

the Group's system of infernai control.
However, such a system is designed 1o
achieve business cbjectives and can onty
provide reasonable and not absalute
assurance against material misstatement.

The provisions of the Code in respect of
internal controls require that Direciors
review and monitor all controls including
operational. compliance and risk
management, as well as financial
controls. Through reports from the Boarg's
Commitlees, the Group's Risk Committee
and the Group's Business Units Boards
[Operations Board and Property Board),
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's system of internal con#rols
for the period covered by the Annuat
Report and Accounts ond has concluded
that such controls were effective
throughout such period.

Further information on the Company’s
intermal control framework is set out in
the Aydit Committee Repaort on the
following pages. The Board delegates
certain of its duties, responsibilities and
powers fo the Audit Committee, so that
these can receive suitably focused
attention, but in so doing the Audit
Committee acts on behalf of the full
Board, and the matters reviewed and
managed by the Audit Committee
remaqin the responsitiility of the Directors
token as o whole.

Going concem

After making enquiries, the Directors
have a reasonabile expectotion that the
Group and the Company have adequate
resources to continue in operational
existence for the foraseeabla future.

for this reason, they continue 10 adopt
the going concern basis in preparing

the accounts.

Risk management

The Board, when setting the strategy.

abo determines the nature and extent

of the principal risks and its risk appetite

in implernenting this strategy. Each year
the Board reviews the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management systems and
how the Board did this cluring 2014 is set
out on pages 22 to 25,

Business model
For a description of the Group's business
model, see page 5 of the Stratagic Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Manjit Wolstenholme Chairman

Audlt Commiitee Chair's overview
During 2014, the Audit Commitiee
continued its key aversighl role for the
Baard with its specific duties as set out

in its terms of reference foreassure
shareholders that their interests are
property protected in respect of the
Group's financial maonagement

and reparting.

The Audit Committea works to a structured
pragrarmme of activities, with agenda
items focused to coincide with key events
in the annual finoncial reperting cycle.
The Committes reports regularly to the
Boord on its work,

During the year, tha Committee has
confinued to monitor the integrity of

the Group's financial statements and
supported the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the Group’s risk
management and internal contral
systems in ling with the ennonced
requiremenls under the Corporate
Governance Code. The Committee also
determined the focus of the Group's
internai audit activity and reviewed its
findings and veried that recommendations
were being appropriately implemented.
In addition, recognising the value of an
effective whistieblowing channel, the
Comrmitee again reviewed arrangements
for Ihe Group's employees to raise
concems in confidence.

Further to the appointrment of Deloitte

at the Group's auditors during 2015 and
subsequent to the completion of their first
audit report in February 2016 the Audit
Commitiee undertook a full evaluation
of the audit approoch 1o ascerfoin the
effectiveness of the external audit
function, Further to the completion of the
evalyation of the exlernal audit process
we ore satishied with both the auditor's
independence and qudit cpproach and
hove recommended to the Board that
they be re-appointed in 2017,

As noled in this Corporate Govemnance
Stotement, the Board dalegates cerlain
of its duties, responsibilities and powers
o the Audit Committee. so that these
can receive suitobiy focused attention.
However, the Audit Committee acts on
behalf of the full Board, ond the matiers
reviewed and manoged by the
Committee remaln the responsibility

of the Directors as o whole.

Role of the Audit Commitiee
The Audit Committee has delegated
authority from the Board set outin its
written termns of reference. The terms of
refarence for tha Audit Commitiee take
into account tha requirements of the
Code and are availlable forinspection
at the registered office and at the
Annual General Meeting, and can

Qlso be found on the Group website

at www,unite-group.co.vk/about-unite/
corporate-governance.

The key objectives of the Audit
Committee are:

> To provide effective governance and
control over the integrity of the Group’s
finoncial reporting and review significant
financial reporting judgernents
To support the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the effectiveness of the
Group's system of internal conirols and
risk management syslems
To meniter the effectiveness of the
Group's internal audit function and
review its moterial findings
> Toovensee the relationship with the
extarnai auditor, including making
recornmendations to the Boord in
reiation 16 the oppointment of the
external auditor and maonitoring
the extemal auditor's objectivity
and independence.

v

v
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Composition of the

Avudit Committee

T™he members of the Committee are

set out on poge 57 of this Corporate
Gavernance Statement. The Committee
members are allindependant Non-
Executives and have been selected with
the aim of providing the wide range of
financicl and commerciol expertise
necessary to fulfil the Committee’s duties.
The Board considers that as a chartered
accountant | have recent and relevant
financial experience. In addition, in
contemplation of a change in the
Coarporate Governance Code effective
for our next Annual Report, the
Committea considered whether itasa
whole has compatence in the student
accommodation saector. Having regard
to the Audit Committee members’
experience in both the Higher Education
sector and their experience with Unite,
the Committee befieves it does have the
raquired competence.

Meetings are attended. by invitation, by
the Chief Financial Officer, the Deputy
Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Financial Controller,

1 also invite our external auditor, Deloitte,
to each meeting. The Committee
regularty meets separately with

Delcitte without others being present.

As approprigte. [ also invite our intermal
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC).
to attend the meetings. Deloitte and PwC
meet independently of manogement to
ensure alignment, to update on
respactive findings and consider the
impact on the relative opproaches of
thairwork.

Committee meesfings

The Committee meets four times during
the year and ottendance af those
meetings is shown on poge 41 of this
Corporate Governance Staternent.

Main activities of the Commiitee

during the year

Meetings of the Committee generqlly
toke place just prior fo o Group Boarg
meeting and Ireport to the Board as part
of o separale agenda item, on the
activity of the Committee and matters of
particular relevance 16 the Board in the
conduct of their work. At its four meetings
during the year, the Committee focused
on the activities described below.
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The Committee reviewed the half year
and annual financiol statements ond
the significant financial reporting
judgements, As part of this review, the
Committee supporied the Boord by
reviewing the financial viobillty and the
basis for preparing the accounts on a
going concem basis as outlined below.
The Committee also reviewed and
chollenged the external auditor’s
report on these financial statements,

As discussed above, the effactivenaess of
the external audit function was considered
during 2016, subsaquent to the tender
and appointment process of Deloitte in
May 2015. During the evaluation process
the Commitiee consiclerad: the
independence and objectivity of the
external ouditor; the make-up and
quality of the audTt team; the proposed
audit gpproach and the scope of the
audit: the execution of the audit and
the quafity of the audit report to the
shareholders; as well as ullimately the
fee structure.

The Committee discussed reports from
PwC as the Group's internal auditoron
their audit and assessment of the control
environment. The Committee reviewed
and proposed areas of focus for the
internal cudit programme of review
including the approach 1o ensure that
the internal audit activity is aligned to
the principal Group risks.

Firanclal reporting

The primary focus of the Committee, in
relation to financial reporting in respect of
the yeor ending 31 December 2016, was
o review with both management and
the external auditor the appropriateness
of the half year and onnual financial
staterments concentrating on:

> The quality ond acceptability of
accounting policies and practices

? The clarity of the discloswes and
compliance with financial reporting
standards and relevant financial ond
govermnance reporting requirements

> material areas in which significant
juagements have been applied
or where there has been discussicn
with the external audifor

> Whether the Annual Repart and
Accounts, tokan as & whole, 15 fair,
balanced and understondabie and
provides the information necessory for
sharehoiders 1o assess the Group's
position and performance, businass
model and strategy.

The Commitiee’s assessment of the
Annual Report to ensure that it is fair,
balanced and understandable tock info
account the following considerations:

> A review of what foir, balanced and
understandable means for Unite
» The high level of input from the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer with early opportunities for the
Board o review and comment on the
Annual Report
» Ensuring consistency in the reporting
of the Group's performance and
manogement information {as
described on pages 20-21), risk {os
dascribed on poges 26-29), business
model and strategy (as described
on page 5)
A cross-check between Board minutes
and the Annual Report is undertaken
to ensure that reporting is balanced
> Whether information is presanted
in a clear and concise manner,
fiustrated by appropriate KPis
to faciifate shareholders' access
to relevant information.

v

To aid our review, the Commitiee considers
reports from the Group Financial Confrolier
and also reports from the external auditor
on the outcomes of their half year review
and annual audit. As g Committee,

we support Deloitle in dispkaying the
necessary professional scepticism ther
role requiras.

Significant issues considered

by the Committee

After discussion with botth management
and the external auditor, the Committee
determined that the key sk of misskatement
of the Group's 2014 financial statements
related to:

> Property voluations
» Joint venture accounting.

Property valuations

The Group's principal assets are
investment properties ond investment
properties under development that

are either owned on balance sheet orin
USAF or LSAV. The investment properties
are carried at fair value based on an
appraisal by the Group's external valuers
who camy out the valuations in occomdance
with the RICS Red Book valuation guide,
taking into cccount fransactional
evidence during the year. The valuation
of property assats involves significant
judgement and changes in the core
assumptions could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of these
assets, Management discusses the

47

underlying performance of each asset
with the external voivers and provides
detoiled performance data to them
including rents, Univarsity lease
agreements, occupancy, property costs
and costs fo complete (for development
properties). Management receives
detailed reports from the valuers and
performs a defailed review of the
volugations to ensure that they consider
the valuations to be appropriate. The
valuation report is reviewed by the Chief
Financial Officer and Managing Director
of Property prior fo sign-off.

During the year. the Commities and/for
the Board met with members of the
Group's valuers and challenged them on
the basis of their valuations and their core
assumptions, including the yield for each
property, rentat growth and forecast costs.

The Committee questioned the external
vaksers on market frends and transactional
evidence that supports the voluations,
The Commitiee was safisfied that the
Group's valuers were appropriately
qualified and provided an independent
assessment of the Group's assets.

The Committee was safisfied that on
appropriate valuation process had taken
place, the core assumptions used were -
reasonable and hence the carying
value of investment and development
properties in the financial statements
was gppropriote.

The auditor expiained their audst
procedures to test the valuation of
investment and development properties
and the Group's disclosures on the
subject. On the basis of their audit work,
the auditor reported no inconsistencies
or misstatemenis that ware material in
the context of the financial statements
as awhole.

34 Further analysis and delail
on asset valuations
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CONTINUED

Joint venture accounting

Two of Unite's significant assets are its
investments in USAF and L8AV which the
Group has historically accounted for as
joint ventures.

The Group adopted IFRS 10-12 frorm the
2014 financiol year end which provides
guidanca on how an investor should
account for its interasts in other entities,
including a definition of control and
guidance on how to classify and account
for jointly controlled arangements,
During the year, Management undertook
a detailed review cf its classification

for both USAF and LSAV, and fotiowing
that analysis conciuded thot there had
been no materiol change in its original
assessment in 2014 that bott USAF and
LSAY should be treated qs joint ventures.
The Committee considenred this and
agreed there was no material change
ond occordingly it was appropriate to
continue Yo account for USAF and LSAVY
as ajoint venture under IFRS 11, with Unite
recording its 23% share of the results and
net assets of USAF as a joint veniure using
equity accounting. and likewise 50%

for LSAV.

Risk management

The Group's risk assessment process and
the way in which significant business risks
are managed is a kay area of focus for
ihe Commitiee.

Qur work here was driven primarily

by performing an assessment of tne
approach taken by the Group's Risk
Committee. The Risk Committes is
rasponsible for the delivery of the Group's
risk manageament framework, which

the Commitiee has approved, and the
Group's assessment of its principal risks
ond uncertainties, as sat out on pages
221029,

The Board also formally reviewed the
Groyp’s principal risks af two meaetings
during the year. Through these reviews,
the Commitiee considered the risk
management proceduras within

the business and was salisfied that

the key Group risks were being
appropsiately mancged.

The risk assessmeant flags the importance
of the intemal control flrkamework to
manage risk and this forms o separate
area of review for the Committee,

Internal controls

Led by the Group's risk assessment process,
we reviewed the process by which the
Group evaluated its control @nvironment,
Management s responsible for establishing
and meiniaining aodeguate internol
conitrols. intemal controls are designed fo
provide raosonalbie assurance regarding
[among other things} the relicbility of
financial reparting and the preparation
of the financial statements for external
reporting purposes. A comprehensive
strategic planning, bucdigeting and
forecasting process is in place. Monthly
financial information and performance
insight fs reporied fo the 8oard.

The Commitfee's work to review the
sffectivaneass of the intemal controls was
drivan by the Group Financiol Controlier's
reports on the effectivenass of internat
conirols, supported by the work of the
internal auditor ond their reports o the
Audit Commitiee. The feedback from the
Group'sinternal auditor on specific creas
of control is tested on a periodic basis
and they request our exfernal auditor fo
provide specific feedback and assessment
of the Group's financial controls

and highlight any areas of weakness.

No significant weaknesses were
identified through the course of the
Commitiae's reviews.

intemal audit

The Group engages PwC fo perform
internal gudit activity. with this intermal
audit function reporting directly to the
Audit Committee.

The Commitiee considered and opproved
the scope of the internal audit activity to
be undertaken during 2014 and looking
forward on o twelve-month basis to
ansure thot the infemal audit approach is
more adaptable 10 the risk environment.
Tha Committee olso discussed and
challenged the oulput from the intemal
audil reviews underiakean in the prior year
ond concluded that the reviews provided
good support for statements made by
managemeni and thot the control
etwironment is solid in the areos tested
aver the last threa years.
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During the year, PwC focused their internal
audit work on corporate tax, fund
manggement and revenue managerment.
All areqas of internal Qudit were being
reviewed for tha first fime in 2016 and
ovesall PwC concluded that contrals
wera wall dasigned and are operating
effectively. Since PwC first reported on
internal controls in 2011, it was noted that
in each subsequent reporting pericd
there has been an improvement in the
overall conirol environrment,

External audit

Thea effectiveness of the external audit
process is faciltated by appropriate audit
risk identification at the start of the audit
cycie which we receive fram Deloitte

in o detailed audit plan, identifying their
assessment of these key risks.

For the 2016 financial year the significant
risks identified were in relation to

the valuation of properties and the
classication of joint ventures due fo the
inherent managerment judgment required
in these areas. Thesa focus areas wene
discussed at the Cormmitlee and it was
agreed that they should be the principal
areas of focus as they represent the
araas with the greatest level of
judgement ond materially impact the
overall performance of the Group.

These risks are fracked through the yeor
and we challenged the work done by the
ayditor fo test management's assumptions
and estimates around these areas.

We ossess the effectiveness of the qudit
process in addressing these motters
through the reporting we receive from
Deloitte at both 1he half year and year
end and abso reports frorm management
an how thase risks are being addressed.
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For the 2014 financial year, the Commitiee
waqs satisfied that there had been
appropriate focus and challenge on the
primary areqas of audit risk anad assessed
the quality of the oudit process 1o be
good. We hold private meetings with

the external auditor at each Cornmiltee
meating to provide additional opportunity
for open diologue and feedback from
the Commitiee and the auditor withaut
management being prasent, Motiers
typically discussed include:

> The guditor's assessment of business

ond financial statement risks and

management activity thereof

The transparency and openness

of interactions with management,

confrmation that there has beenno

restriction in scope placed on them by

management and the independance

of their audit

> How they have exercised profassional
scepticism.

v

I also meet with the external lead audit
partner outside the formol Commitiee
pracess throughout the year.

Independence and external
auvdit tender

The Committee considers the re-
appaointment of the extemal auditor,
including the rotation of the audit partner
which is nequired every five years, each
year and also assesses thelr independence
on an ongoing basks, The Group tendered
the external audit in May 2015 and
appointed Detoitte as the axternal auditor
followIng a robust review; the 2015 year
end was the first year with Deloitte as the
Group auditors.

The Commitiee reviewed Deloitte’s audit
work and determined that appropriate
pikans are in plkace to camy out an effective
and high quality oudit. Detoitte confirmed
to the Committee that it maintained
appropricte intemnal safeguards to ensure
its independence and objectivity. As part
of tha Cormmitiea's assessment of the
ongoing independance of the auditor,
the Commitiee receives details of any
relationships between the Group and
Deloitte that may have a bearing on their
independence and receives confiimation
that they are independent of the Group.

As discussed above, on assessment of
Dalgitte's eHectiveness, its processes,
audit quality and performonce waos
undertaken in May 2014 following
complefion of the 2015 audit.

During the year, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the
Statutery Audit Services fior Large
Companies Market Investigotion
{Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Commitiee
Responsibilities) Order 2014,

Non-audit services

To further safeguaord the objectivity ond
independence of the external ayditor
from becoming compromised, the
Committee has a formal palicy governing
the engagement of the external auditor
fo provide non-audit services. No material
changes have been made 1o this policy
during the year, This precludes Deloitte
from providing certain services such

as valuation work or the provision of
accounting services.

For certain specific permitted services
(such cs reporting accountant oclivitias
and compliance work), the Committee
has pre-approved that Deloitte can be
engoged by management, subject ‘o
the policies set out above, and subject
to specified fee fimits for individual
engagements and fee limits for each
type of specific service. For all other
services, of those permitted services
that exceed the specified fee limits,

|- as Chairman, or in my absence
another member, can pre-approve
permitied services.

Throughout 2014, no fees have been
paid to the Group’s auditor {Deloitte)

for non-audit services. During the year,
Deloitte charged the Group £0.3 milion tor
audit services, The Comrnittee approved
the fees for audit services for 2016 aofter

a review of the levei and nature of work
to be performed, including the impact of
oacquisifions, and after being satisfied by
Deloitte thot the fees were appropriate
for the scope of the work required.

These fees are olso benchmarnked ogainst
other listed recl estate companies of
comparabie size and complexity.

Commiitee evaluation

The Commitlee’s activities formed part
of the evaluation of Boord effectiveness
performed in the year. Detalls of this
process can be found under
‘Performance evaluation”,

Manjit Wolstenholme
Chalir - Audit Commitiee
22 February 2017
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

Sir Tim Witson Chairman

Heatth and $afety Committee
Chair's overview

The Health and Safety Committee
ensuras effective governance of the
health, safety and wellbeing of cur
employees, customers, confractors

and other visitors fo our properties. ItHs
paramount the business recognises that
hedilth and safety does not stand still,
there will atwoys be lessons to learn and
scope for continuous improverment. L am
committed to ensuring that health and
safety is at the heart of everything that
ther business does and have visited

Q number of our properties this year,
accompanying the city and health and
safety teams, understanding and seeing
for myself how health and safety is being
implemenied within the business and

a positive culture is being established.

Unite Students is haorme 0 49.000 students
and their safety, wetibeing and security
is imperative. We work closely with
stakeholders including Universities and
emergency services to eénsure that health
and scfety is at the heart of our most
trusted brond. It is recognised that fire

is the biggest hazard 1o the operoting
portfolic and the business is proactive
inits opprooch 1o fire satety, setting up

a primary fine autharity agreement with
the Avon Fire Authaority, which ensures
appropriate advice and guidance fo
our strategic fire prevention decisions.

A successful fing safety carmpaign has
peen delivered to students focusing on
cooking safety. This will directly influence

ther behaviours and prevent firg related
mcidents, Security can be a chalenge
and an extemal review has been
undertaken to ensure that strengths and
waaknesses are ideniified and appropriate
measures designed and built in fo protect
both student and employee alike.

During the year, we appointed the British
Safety Council gs our new safety auditor.
They are conducting on external review
of cur HAS Management System to ensure
the appropriate systems and procedures
are developed and being implemented.
This provides assurance that the
appropriate checks and measures ore
being camried out.

Sk Tim Wilson
Chalr - Health ond Safety Commitiee
22 Februcry 2017

Commiitee overview
Composition

> Sir Tim Wilson [Chair)

¥ Elizabeth McMeikan

> Richard Smith

Richard Simpson (Group Property
Director), Steve Batiey [Estates Director),
Julie Jarvey {Head of Health and Safety)
and Anthony Amold (Construction
Diractor} reguiarly attend meetings

of the Committee.

Role
The roie of the Health and Safety
Committee is for

» Ensune that the Group’s health and
safety policies and procedures are
reviewed annually and effectively
Implementad o erisure legal
requirernents are met as well as siriving
for bast practice

» Ensure that the business is aware of
regulotory chonges and understands
the impact upor the business

*» Remoin updated on parformonce
and any mojor heatth ond safety
incigents sa as fo eénsure managemeant
identilies and implemeants appropriate
comective actions.

Activities in 2016

There have been positive improvements
throughout the year to embed the Keep
u§ Safe agenda fo develop sofe ond
healthy employees and custorners,

The mast trusted brand is ot the forefront
of gur minds and our core values are
the heart of health and sofety:

> Wa care about the health, safety and

wallbeing of our employees and

custorners and it is at ihe heart of

everything we do

We lead by developing robbust systems

and promoting good practice

¥ We unite with stakeholders to devetop
posifive engogement

? We dellver by always seeking confinuous
improvement and good procfice.

h 4

The H&S Management Systermn [HSG 45)
has been developed ond implemenfed
to include robust policies, proceduras
and hazard controfs. The scope of the
systern is o implerment effective policies,
hozand controks, heatth and safety
fraining, equipment management,
effective cammunication, occupational
health provision, auditing and réview,
documaent control os well as identifying
where legal complionce s required.

The Group H&S Policy documents the
Group's commiiment to a safe working
envionment and ansure the sofety of
our employees and anyone who may
be offected by cur business os wall

as demonstrating complicnce with
legisiative requirements. The policy isa
farmalmechanism for the adherence
of the principies of the H&S5 Managernent
System {H3G 65) and sets out our aims,
details the structure of our organisation
and how we will manage and promote
our health and sofety objectives.
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Along with embedding our H&S
Management System through HSG 45,
the key impravermnents this year have
included:

» The implementation of regional health

and safety commitiees to ensure

effective consuliation with employees

A full review and updcte of the

operations risk assessments to ensure

adequate hazrd control

> Revised contractor management and
permit lo work system jo manoge
hazardous work octivities

> Improved induction training platform

which encompasses host videos and

augmented reality learning and an

associated hondbook. The videos

focus on driving for work, long working.

safety signage, housekeeping/

maintenance harords such as

chemicals, machinery, asbestos and

personal profective equipment.

There is an interactive game for

accident, incident ang neor misses.

The augmented reality technology

is based on hazard spotting and picks

up key areas of risk Yhat employees are

likaly to come across

Updated property mspections with

maonthiy city and quarterly team checks

as well as additional devetopment

site inspections

Quarterty health and safety reviews

with all three framework development

contraciors which include directors

and health and safety representatives

» Anexiemal audit has alsoc been
undertaken of property development
sites and encompassed the principal
contractor and principal designer

> Unite branding has been introduced
on the development sitas to drive the
message from ¢ client perspective

¥ External benchmarking of site
inspection scores via Considerate
Constructor Scheme {CCS). and UKCG

» Elevaled Unite health and safety profile
by becoming a client partner
of the CCS$

> Implemented a Yellow Card system
at the development sites to halt works
immediately if there: is significant
concern over heqith and safety,

v

v

v

Extermnal audit

The British Sofety Councilwas appointed
o undertake a best proctice audit of the
H&S Management System (HSG é5) and
s effectiveness, The audit focused on key
areas including: policy and organisational
responsibilities, strategy ond planning,
implernentation and operation.
perfarmance measurement, evoluation
and review. leadership and commitment,
i also benchmarked performance
indicators, which formed part of the
evaluation and included: continual
improvement, ieadership, stakeholder
engagement, risk management and
heaith and wellbeing. The H&S
Manogement System was awarded o
three-star rating, with a number of areqs
of good practice identified as well as
areqs for continyous improvernent fo
attain baest practice and sfrive for a
four-star rating next year.

The lead quditor was impressed with

the properties, commenting: “If my child
needed student accommodation | would
definitely ensure they stayed with Unite."

The British Safety Council hos also
undertaken an qudit for the property
development operations of their principal
contractors and principal designer, visiting
three development sites and reviewing
appropriate documentation, As aresult
of these audits appropriate stakeholders
are now being consulted and regular
meeatings set up 1o work together on
taking recommendations forward.

Security

WSP Parson 8rinckerhoff undertook

an external security review providing
comprehensiva recommendations for
continuous improvement. A senicr level
steering group ks establishing the strategy
with a clear roadmagp for security fo be
built into our projects’ design, lkayout and
custormer impact. A business security
consuitant is being appointed to take
the lead ang provide the necessary
odvice and guidance to ensure the
recommendations ore taken forward.

THE ORGANISATIONAL
CULTURE WITHIN UNITE
STUDENTS AS A
BUSINESS WAS FOUND
TO BE QUTSTANDING, iT
WAS 0BVIOUS TO THE
SURVEY TEAM THAT ALL
STAFF THAT REPRESENT
UNITE STUDENTS ARE
COMPLETELY COMMITTED
TO THE ORGANISATION’S
FOUR CORE VALUES, IN
THAT THEY CARE, LEAD,
UNITE AND DELIVER

Security risk review report
WSP Parson Brinckerhotf

Crisis managernent also forms part of
this work and it is imperative to test our
amergency preparedness and response
plons and procedures. Hence, an
emergency lest took ploce atan
operafing property in Londan. A review
of the exercise has anabled the sharing
of good practice and lessons leamt, fo
drive further improvernents and build
on the positive engagement with the
emergency services.

vodas nBejoys
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

FIRE SAFETY

Richard Bobruk joined us in August as
our Primary Fire Authorily Lead Fire
Officer [photo above with Alastair
Weston, Health and Salety Manager
on the lett and Richard Bobruk. Avon
Fire tind Rescue on the right).

This will drive focus on fire security through:

» Integrating fire strotegy decisions into
the development journey

> Fire Safely Management - policies and
procedures, risk assessments, fraining.
fire records

» Mainlengnce Regimes — testing and
planned preventative maintenance

> Specification for new builds and
developments,

we have completed a benchmarking
exercise and produced a fire risk review
which provides clear direction far
designing out risk and suggestions for
fire safaty stratagies.

The extemnal fire risk assessrment
programme is being implemented with
a threa-year rolfing cycle and internal
onnual reviews. Clearer risk ratings

have been astablishad with prioritisation
and accountability.

Mental health and wellbeing
Mental health issues are of grave concern
1o the Higher Education sector and also
o us at Unite, especially since we are
their home whila at University. Employees
receive mental health first aid training

to look for signs and signpost help, The
studen support services team provides
support o employees and students

alike and works closely with the University
support teoms.

Incidents

Operations

incidents involving our empioyees,
customers or visitors:

> Five reportable injuries (under RIDDOR)
to employees relating to injuring
themselves following a fall or knock

¥ 314 minor {(nonreporiable) incidents
temnployees 166, customer 125,
contractor 23}

Develapment

Duning 2014, there have been four
RIDDOR reportable incidents and 20
minor incidents in our develkopment
activity. This performance is within our
Unile Students internal benchmarks -
beating the indusiry standarnd — as follows:

Incigents <Pt Benchmank
4RIDDOR 0.23 0.30
20 minor 1.13 5.00

* KPI calkculoted as: No, of ncidents x 100,000

hoursfhours worked
Development incldents for 2014
Non-
RIDCOR reportoble
Project Howrs Incidarts ncdents
Stapleton House 317,024 0 0
Olymnpic Way 365810 1 1
Greetham St 281,443 0 2
Couseway End 23%.090 1 4
Far Gastord 150,849 4] 1
Tara House 238,857 2 2
$t Leonards 96,544 o} 10
Millennium View 79,515 0 0
BRI Bristof 5780 o] o
TOTALS 1.7646.912 L 0
Priorities for 2017 The focus for continuous improvement by initigting a contractor forum to share

Qur vision for the next three years is
the journey to interdependence with
empowerment in day to day health
and safety management at the core
of everything we do.

Qur qim s to ensure the health, safety
and weilbeing of employees. ond have
a positive influence on customers

and Contractors.

inclsdes: prioritising and progressing

the fire risk review, crisis management,
sacurity reviaw and external audit
recommendotions and actions.

Specific topical projects include
bespoke manual handling training and
assassment, integrafing wellbeing info the
management syskerm, near miss reporting
campaign and engaging with our
stakeholders on health and safety

good practice, lessons learnt ana ensure
the very best confractars work on
our properties.
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

Ellzabeth McMelkan Chair

Dear Shareholdey,

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure
to present the Direclors' Remuneration
Report for 2016.

As in previaus years, this report is split into
three sections: this Annual Statement, the
Palicy Report and the Annual Report on
Remuneration, Our Remuneration Palicy.
deloiled on pages 77 1o 83, remains
consistent with that approved by
shareholders af the 2016 AGM, and

is reproduced in full for both ease of
reference and in order 1o providie context
to the decisions token by the Committee
during the year.

As evidenced earfier in this Annual Report,
2016 has been anaother strong year for
Unite. Financial highlights have included
a 20% increase in adjusted EPRA EPS, 0
total retum of 15%, further reductions in
see-through LTV, o three cence increase
in our annual dividend, and our 3-year
1SR confinuing to out perform the FTSE 350
Real Estate Index. Opertionally, we have
continued fo increase aur number of beds,
while also maintaining high occupancy
rates, customer satisfaction levels and
University trust scores. More broadly Unite
has continued fo dekver against its sirategy,
with progress ogainst the three piliars of
delivering grect service to students and
University partners, operating beilliant
buildings and maintaining high-quality
eamnings and a strong capital structure,
qiding our lransiion to REIT status effective
1 Jonuary 2017.

The year also sow a change in the
executive team, with Richard Smith,
formerty Managing Director ot
Qperations, taking on the Chief Executive
role further to the departure of Mark
Allan. There were changes too for our
other Executive Directors, as both Joe
Lister and Richard Simpsor: ook on a
number of key additional responsibilities
gs part of an overoll streamlining of the
axecutive team.

In light of the above, the Committee’s key
decisions during the yeor related fo the
following oreas:

Salaries for Executive Dicectors
During the sharehoider consuliation

thot preceded the 2014 AGM, the
Committee set out iis intention of Increasing
the salaries of Executive Directors by
between 6% and 9% for 2016, with a further
increase for the Managing Direclars of

up 10 9% in earty 2017. The first of these
planned increases was made with effect
from 1 March 2016 for each of Richard
Smith, Joe Lister ang Richard Simpson.
Mark Allan received a 2% increqse,
consistent with general increases for
employees ocross the Company.

Following Mark's resignation. addifional
salary increases were made to the
remaining Exacutive Directors with effect
from 1 June 2014, details of which are set
oyt below.

Changes in leadership

In fight of his promotion to CEG, the
Commitiee reviewed Richard Smith's
salary against ¢ ronge of foctors and
elected 1o set it at a level of £430,000 per
annum, representing o c.3% reduction to
his predecessor, effective 1 June 2014,

Reflecting the key additional responsibiities
taken on by the other remaining Executive
Directors, Joe Lister and Richand Simpson,
the Committee reviewed a number

of chternative approaches for their
remuneration with the yltimate aim

of ensuring that they remain focussed

on delivering Unite's strategy during &
period of potential instabiity. Following
careful consideration of the alternatives
permitted within our remunerotion policy.
and discussions with some of our major

The rermainder of each Executive Drecior’s
remuneration package has stoyed
consistent with that cutlined in last year's
report, namely edigibility for on annual
bonus of up to 144% of sakary (with personal
objectives updated for new roles and/or

' responsibilities), LTIP owords of 200% of

solary {rmoode in Juna 2018) vesting on

~ Unite's performance over three yeors

- and subject to a two-year holding

period, pansion contributions of 20% of
salory and other opplicable benefits,

Further delails of our considerations in
making these changes are set cut in the
relevant section on pages 85 and 86.

Annual bonus ovicomes

for the financlal year

Executive Directors will each receive
banuses of 62.5% of sakary (cf. a maxirmum
of 144% of sciary) inraspect of 2016
performance. Overall bonus oulcomes
reflect solid financial periormance by the
Group and the individual contributions
made by each of the Executive Directors
over the last year, including significant
progress in their new and exponded roles.

Despite strong performance against
profit tangets, the overall bonus outcome
is just below target and is some way
below that received in previous years,
which the Commitiee considers
appropriate in the context of a more
challenging year in ferms of broader
businass circumstances. Financial
performance was above target under
both the adjusted EPS and net debt to
EBADA ratio edements but this was offset
by total return performance being below
target and a set of strelching custormer
satisfaction kargets set by the Committee
at the start of the yoar being missed.
Reflecting a fransitionary period,

. and despile a number of notable
. achievements, the Committee assessed

shareholders, the Committee determined

to increase each of their base sakries
by ¢.20% 1o £350,000 and £325,000 per
annum respectively with effect from

1 June 2014,

| @ach of the Executive Directors' individual

performaonce as ‘on targat’, meriting
a 1.0x personal performance muitiolier
{cf. the maximurm 1,2x mulliplier].

Further detalls, including annual bonus
targets, outcomes and details of personal
achievements are included on page 87,

Hodau oiBajous
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Long-term Incentives

Executive Directors were each granted
an award under the LTIP in June 2016
based on parformance over lhe three
financial years to 31 December 2018,
These awards will vest to the extent thot
challenging EPS, tofal return and relotive

TSR targets are achieved over the petiod,

with ony aword vesting required to be
held for an additional two-year period.

Performance share awards made

in April 2014 vested on performance to
31 December 2014. These awards were
similarly based on EPS, Tolal Retum

and ISR outperformance of the FTSEAS0
Real Estate Super Secior index. The
Company exceeded maximum fargets
for each element, resulting in 100% of the
original award vesting. The Commitiee
is satisfied that the implied vesting level
reflects the undertying perfornance of
the Compoany and the progress made
over the last three years. Consistent with
the rules of the ptan af the fime of grant,
these awards shares will vest in tranches
with two-thirds releqsed on the thid
anniversary of grant in April 2017, ond
the rernaining one-third released after
a further year-long holding period.

Overall pay for 2014

The Committee is safisfied that overall
pay oulcomes are approgriate and
reflect Unite’s performance across the
vorious time horizons covered. Fixed pay
levels are competitive but not excessive
when taking into account similar rotes at
comparabie companies, individual
coniributions, experience and overall
levels of responsibility, Annual bonus
outcomes refiect a more challenging
financial year, with outcomes below
thase achieved in each of the last three
cyclas, whilst the LTIP - which makes vp
the majority of each Executive Director's
singte figure for the year - reflects sfrong
financial and operational performancs,
and significant volue creation over the
three-year maasurement period.

Implementation of policy for 2017
The Commitiee has reviewed the cument
Remuneration Policy and is confident
that it confinues to effectively support
Unite's short- ond long-term stralegic
objectives and promote management
and shareholder alignment. We are
satisfied also that the proposed
implementation is appropriate given the
Company's conversion to a REIT, which
becomae effective 1 January 2017,

Far 2017, the annual bonus will operate on
the same basis as in previous years, save
for two minor changes. The non-financial
element of the 'corporate’ scorecard,
currently based entirely on customer
satisfaction, will be supplemented with
University Reputation, with each measure
weighted 12.5% in order lo satisfy the
75/25 financial/non-financial split
permitted under our Rermuneralion Policy.
The incluslon of University Reputation
recognisas the equal importance of
Unite's retationships with Higher Ecucation
partners together with the opinicns of our
student customers directly, and has been
used as one of our operational KPIs for

a number of years. The other change
relotes to the individual performance
multiplier where it is proposed that the
maijority of chjectives will be shared
across each of the Executive Directorsin
order to refiect the collabomative ethos

of the executive tearn. As always, the
Committee will provide refrospective
disclosure on the key achievements

next yaar in order to allow shareholders
o make an informed voting decision.

Save for these minor changes. the
implementation of policy for 2087 wil

be consistent with that applied in recant
years. Further details, including proposed
salory and fee increases, are included
an page 90.

Leaver amongements tor

Mark Allgn

Mark Allan stepped down as Chief
Executive effective 31 May 2016 and
ceased being a director of the Compaony
from the same date, remaining employed
in on advisory capacity with the Company
until 31 October 2016. For the period

1 June 2014 to 31 October 2014, Mark
continued to receive base pay, pension
and other contractual benefits. Ha was
not eligible to participate in the 2014 i
annual bonus and there was no payment
i lieu of notice.

Full details of how the Commitiee treated
Mark Allan's outstanding long-term
incentives are set out in the relevant
saction on page %0.

Areas for fufure consideration
The Commitiee will continue o monitor
market Irends throughout 2017 in order
1o assess ongoing requirements for the
Company's remuneration practices,
and will consult with sharehaolders about
making changes should any significant
depaortures rom best practice arise. we
are mindfut of the continuing debate
amund Executive Director remuneration
and of the various updates to shareholder
thinking in this areq, and while we are
proposing no material changes for 2017,
this s something that we will continue

to fake into account as we review the
effectiveness of our amangements

each year,

Elizabeth McMeikan
Chair of Remunerotion Commiites
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Overview of Unite remuneration policy and implementation

Ovarvnew ol poicy

Rermunernfion in respect of 2016

Implementation of pokcy n 2017

AJOIOS 3508

¥ Reviewed from time fo fime,
with reference 1o saiary levels
for similar roles at comparable
companias, to individual
cantribution to performance;
and 10 the experlence of
each Executive

¥ Solaries increased oy batweaen 2%
and 9% effective | March 2016

> Following role changes, sakary of new
CEQ, Richord Smith, set at £430,000
effective 1 June 2016. Salaries of Joe
Lister and Richard Simpson increased
by ©.20% to £350,000 and £325,000
respectively iom the same date,
reflecting significant increase in
rasponsibilities

>

Salaries increased by 2% effective

| March 2017, as follows:

> CEQ, Richord Smith = £438,600

» CFO, Joe Lister = £357,000

¥ MD Property, Richard Simpson
= £331,500

77 Read more

85 Read more

¥1 Read mona

5§42U8Qq ‘UCISUS

> Pansion contributions of yp 1o
20% of salary or an equivalent
cash allowance

> Benefis typically consist the
provision of a company car
of a car aliowance, and
private health care insurance

» Inline with policy

>

No change to pension contribulion
rates or benefits for 2017

7 Reoad mome

a5 Read more

91 Read more

SNUOQ (PNUUY

> Maximum annual bonus
opportunity for ol Exacutive
Direciors of 144% of salary

> Perforrnance measures
typically include both
financial and non-financial
metrics, as well as the
achievement of individual
objectives

> Paymaenis delivered in cash,
exceapt whene an individual
has not met their
sharehoiding guidetines,
in which cose up
to 50% is deferred in shares
for three yeors

> Malus and clowback
provisions apply

> Annuoi bonuses of §2.5% of solary for
eoch Executive Drector (43.4% of
maximum opportunity} based on:
» a corporate scorecard outcome
of 62.5% of saiary {out of 120%)
¥ individual performance multipliers
of 1.0x {cf. 1.2x maxirnum)

» Bonuses to be poid in cash in early 2017

>

>

4

Maximym anauai bonus opportunities
to remain at 144% of salary

Payments to be determinad laking inte
consideration a corporate scorecard
based on 75/25 on financial/non-
financial perforrmance, and ofter
applying an individua! performnance
multiplier of up to 1,2x

For 2017, the non-financial element wil
be supplemented with a measure of
University Reputation; individucl
cbijectives to be more team focussed

8 Reod more

86 Read more

91 Read more

di1n

» Madmum award size for all
Executive Directors of 200% of
salory In normal circumstances

?> Awaords vest subject fo
performance over o
three-year period. Vested
shares are typically subject
to an odditional two-year
holding period

3> Malys and clawback
provisions apply

» 2014 LTIP vested at 100% based on:
> 2016 adjusted EPS of 27.7p vs.
a stretch targel of 23.5p
> Totat Retum over the period 2014-14
of 21.3% p.0. vs. o strelch farget of
14.5% p.a.; and
> Relative TSR outperformance of the

FTSE350 Real Estate Index of 10% p.o.

vs. a stretch target of Y% p.0.

v

Awards of 200% of salary to be made
to each Executive Director in Aprii 2017

» Performance to be measured over the

period | January 2017 to 31 December
2019 against EPS, total return and
relotive TSR

» Two-year holding pericd will opply

o vested shares

¢ Reod more

63 Read more

¥2 Read more
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF

THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

2014 Remuneration at a glance
2014 Single fotal figure of remuneration tor current Executive Direclors

Rchard loe Richard
Srrwth Lister Smmpson
Salary ISRE17 322702 298347
Taxable benefits 15,256 15,854 15,236
Pension benefit 50,863 55,979 55.604
AnnugiBonus 227,083 203385 188,802
LTP 528,559 584,742 528,559
Other 0 0 4]
Tolal 1,171,378 118246462 1,006,568
2014 Annuat Bonus outcomes
Corporate targeh
‘Iveshaid’ “Torget” Siegtcr
5% % 100% 120% vest  Corporale
Mecsure Weight of salary of schary of saiory of salary Actual % salory) veshng
Adjusted EPS 25% 24.7p 2570 27.2p 2.2 277 27.5%
Taotai Retum per share 25% 79p B87p 1000 108p 83p 150% £2.5%
Net debt 1o EBITDA ratio 25% 6.5% 6.3x 6.0x 58x 6.2x 20.0% '
Custormer satistaction 25% 83 84 B& 87 80 0%
Overall Overall bonus culcome
Corporaie Parsanal ol b 1-4
Exaciiive . veshing mult phat salory MM £
Richard Smith 1.0x 62.5% 434% 227083
Joe Lister 62.5% 1.0x 62.5% 434% 203385
Richard Simpsen 1.0x 42.5% 43.4% 188.802
2014-2014 LTI? ouicomes
Targets
Thrashokd Stratch Cvernal
Measure Weignt 25% vest 100% veast Actual % vesi % vors)
20156 Adjusted EPS 1/3 18.1p 23.5p 27.7p 100%
Total Returmn p.q. (2014-2016) 1/3 B.5% 14.5% 21.3% 100% 100%
Index Index
Relative TSR outperformance 1/3 Index +$%p.a. +I0%p.O. 100%
Qvarall vesting
Execulve Overal % vest nlevests versting Dale vashing Estmated vaiva
Richard Smith 84,566 0 12017 [273) £528,559
. April
Joe Lister 100% 95,753 10 April 2018 [173) £584.742

Richard Simpson 86,566 £528,559
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION POLICY

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of
the Large and Medium-sized Companies
ond Groups {Accounts ond Reports)
Regulations 2008 [as amended). It also
meets the requirernents of the UK Listing
Authority's Listing Rules and the Disclosure
and Transparency Rulas.

in accordance with the regulations, the
following sections of the Remuneration
Report are subject to audit: the single
total figure of remuneration for Directors
and accompanying notes [pages 85

to 88). scheme interests awarded during
the financial year (poge 0), payments
ta past directors (page 71}, payments for
loss of office (page 82) and the statement
of Directors' shareholdings and share
intevests (poge 80). The remaining secfions
of the report are not sublect fo qudit.

Unite's Remuneration Policy was approved
by sharehoiders at the 2016 Annual

v

References to financial years have
been updoted where appropriate

» Pay for performance scenario

charts have been updated to refiect
2017 salaries

Current Non-Executive Director
appointment expiry dates have

been updated

» Section on consideration of shanreholder
views updated to reference consultation
on pay increqses made during the year
to reflecting changes in responsibiities

v

Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The Group aims to balkance the need

to attract, retain and motivate Executive
Directors and cther sanior executives of
an appropriate calibre with the need to
be cost effective, while at the same time
rewarding excephonal performonce. The
Committee has designed a remunenation
policy that bakances those factors, toking
account of prevailing best practice, investor
expaciations and the level of remuneration
and pay awards made generally to

In addition to the cbove, the remuneration
policy for the Executive Directors ond
other senior executives is bosed on the
following key principles:

> A significant proportion of
remuneration shoukd be fied to the
achieverment of specific and stretching
perforrmance conditions that align
remuneration with the creation of
shoreholder vaue and the delivery
of the Group's strategic plan.

» There should be a focus on sustained
iong-term performance. with
pefrformance measured over clearty
specified timescales. encouraging
executives to fake action in line with
the Group's strategic plan, using goog
business management principles and
taking well considered risks,

» Individudls should be rewarded for
success, but steps should be taken,
within contractual coligotions.
fo prevent rewards for tailure.

General Meeting. The report below employess of the Group. This section of the report sets out the Policy
is as disclosed in the 2015 Directors’ for Executive Directors, which sharehoicers
Remuneration Report save for a number opproved ot the 2016 Annual General
of minor changes as follows; Meating and which carne into effect
from that date.
Policy Table
Function Operaticn Cpoportunity Performonce meincs
Base salory Bose salaries are reviewed from time fo Any base salary increases are appliedin None
Torecognise the  time, with reference to salary leve's for tine with the outcome of the review as port
individual's skills  similar roles ot comparable companias, of which the Committee also considers
and experience  fo individual contribution to performance; average increases across the Group.
and to proxlde and o the experience of each executive. in respect of existing Exacutive Directors
a competitive o ., N
base reward. it is anticipoted that salary increases v_n]
generally be in line with those of salaried
employees as a whole. In exceptional
circumstances (including, but not limiled
to, a matarialincrease in job size or
compiexity) the Committee has discretion
to make appropriote adjustments to salkary
fevels to ensure thot they remain market
competitive. This was the case for salary
increases aworded during the course
of 2016,
Pension All executives are either members of The Executive Directors receive g pension None
To provide an Unite Group Personal Pension scheme contribution of 20% of sakary or an
opportuntty for orreceive a cash pension allowonce. equivalent cash allowance.
exacutives to

build up income

upon retirement.

Salary is the oniy elemant of rermuneration
that is pensionable.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

funcion Qperation Oppoartunity Parlormance metncs
Benefits Executives raceive benefits that consist Benefits vary by role and individual None
To provide primarily of the provision of a company circumstances; eligibility and cost is
non-cash cqr or a car allowance, and private reviewed periodically.
benefits which heallh care insuronce, although can . . . .
are competitive  include any such benefits that the The Commlﬁeq refains h? dISCI'B‘!IOH
. X N " to gpprove a higher cost in certain
in the market in Commitiee deems appropriate. ! )
which the circumstancaes (e.g. mlocation)
g or in circumstances where factors
exacutive is " .\
ermplayed, outside the company's control have
changed materially (e.9. increqses
in insurance premiums).
SAYE An HMRC-approved scheme whereby Savings are capped at the prevailing None
To encourage employees (including Executive Directars)  HMRC limit at the fime employaes are

the ownership
of shares in Unite,

may save up to the maximum maonthly
savings fimit {as determined by prevailing
HMRC guidelines) over a period of three.
Options granted at a 20% discount.

invited to participate.

Function Operation Opportunity Parformance metrics
Performance Performance measures, lorgets and For Execufive Performaonce is assessed on an annual
related weightings are set at the start of the year.  Directors, the basis, s meaqsured against specific
annual bonus s . maximum annual objectives set at the start of each year. The
To incentivise The scheme has two a"eid' e?fs. a mf::o:.po D€ ponus opportunity s measures typically include both financial
and reward strong el[emen; Tf.?hon n;wf l:o mu ":) il 144% of bgse salary, and non-financial mefrics as well as the
performance elemant. A the &n Oiﬂ e ::::r, e e COMPrinG: achievement of personal objectives,
against financial Remuneroh«_an Commitiee emines the ) ) ]
ard non-financial extent to which tongets hkave been achieved. > A maximum Corporo_fe meacasures will be werg_hied
annual torgets Bon ts are delivered in cash bonus under oppropriately each year according to
thus deﬁivering' le"” poyrr‘;en idual's shameholdin the corporate business priorities. Measures may include,
vale o ;2};;;:9'23';;: n‘m are! nomeigin element of but are not limited to, adjusted EPS. otal
sharsholders which case up fo 50% obf fhee onm’;cl bonus E20‘.§ of salary; retum growth, the ratio of ngf de'bf
and being yabie to the re t Director is safisfied achieving to E_BITl:!A ond‘cu§f9mer safisfoction.
consistent with gyacn al tion oef s'haures in the pany. on-target Weightings of individual mecstfres may
the deli of which Or'°°°e heid in its £my e Shcmm performance vary between 10% oer S0%, with the range
the srrotegic, plan, hios Trust ploye: warrants & of performance required under each
Ownership ) bonus equivalent  measure callbrated with reference
Awards under the performance related to 70% of salary to Unite's internal budgets. Financick

annual bonus are subject fo malus and
clawback provisions, further details of
which are inciuded as a note to the
policy toble.

> A maximum
multiplier under
the individual
element cf 1.2,
with a riange
of zero to 1.2

For threshold level
performance, the
bonus will ba 50%
of base salary.

meaasures will make up at leost 75%
of the total opportunity under the
corporate element,

The individual element s based on the
Commitiee's assessment of an executive's
personal performance over the course of
the yeaor, as measured by the Performance
Development Programme raview.

The Commitiee has discration fo adjust the
formulcic bonus outcomes both upwards
[within the plan frmits] and dowrrwards
{including down to z2erm} o ensure alignment
of pay with performance, e.g.. in the event
of one of the targets under the bonus
being significontty missed or unforeseen
cirevmstances outside of management
control, The Committee qlso considers
measures autside of the bonus ffamework
{e.g. H&S) fo ensure there is no reward

for failure.

Further details of the meaqsures, weightings
and targets applicable are provided on
page 79, 86 and ?1.
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Funchon Opearaton Opportunity Pertarmance metrics
Lre The LTIP comprises a Performance Share The LTIP provides for  Vesting of LTIP awards is subject to
To drive sustained  Pion (P3P) and an Approved Employee an award up toa continued employment and performance
long-term Share Option Scheme [ESOS). normal aggregate  agoinst three equally-weighted measures,
ﬁ::?:;mnce The ESOS is used 1o deliver on linnit of 200% of ) which are cumently as follows:
pports ’ N propo sakary for Executive .
the creation of the_z LTIP in a fax-efficient manner, Directors, withan » Adjusied earnings per share (EPS):
of sharaholder and i fubieci 1o the same performance overall limit of > Tokal n:e!urn [TR): and
valve. conditions as awards made under the PSP, 300% of sakary » Relative total shareholder return (TSR)
Award levels and performance condilions  in exceptional the Committee has the discretion fo adjust
are reviewed before each award cycle ckcumstances. the performance measures to ensure thot
to ensure they remain appropriate and The currentintention  they continue fo be linked to the delivery
no bess stretching than the first cycle. is to award each of Company strategy.
Executive Director
Awords under the LTIP ore subject 1o Mols  gwards equivalent  Under each measure, threshold
and clawback provisions, further details to 200% of salary. performance witl result in 25% of
of which are included as a note to the maximum vesting for that element,
policy lable. Awards may inciude  /ising on o straight-ine fo full vesting.
a grant of HMRC .
opproved options Awards mode unger the LTIP will have a
not exceeding performance period of al least three years
£10,000 per annum, and a minimum vesting period of three
valued on a fair yeors, if no entitlemeant has been earned at
value exchange the end of the nelgvonf performcnc_e
{currently 50-60% period, awards will lapse. A Qropqrhon of
of a PSP award). vested awards may. at the discretion of the
Committee, be subject to o mandatory
A payment equat nolding period following the end of g
fo the value of three-year vesting period. The Committee's
dividends which intention is that under future LTIP cycles, all
would have awards will be required tc be held foran
accrued onvested  gdditional two-year period post-vesting.
shares will be made
follawing the As under the Performance Related Annual
release of awards Bonus, the Committee has discretion to
to participants; adjusl the formulaic TP outcomes fo
either in the form ensure alignment of pay with performance,
of cash or as i.e. o ensure the cutcome B atrue
additional shores. reflaction of the performance of
the company.
Details of the targets 1o be used in future
LT'P grants are included in the Annual
Report on Remuneration,
Notes fo the policy table a focus on tofalretum (also used in financial measures, targets are

The Committee is satisfied that the above
Remuneration Policy isin the best interests
of shaneholders aond does not promote
excessive risk-taking.

Performance measure selection
and approach lo target setting
Measures used under the performance
related annual bonus and LTIF are
seiected annually to reflect the Group's
main short- and long-term objectives ond
refiect both financiol and non-financial
priorities. as appropriote.

The Committee considers that EPS (used
in both the short- and long-term incentive)
is an objective ond well-accepted
measure of the Company’s performance
which reinforces the sirategic objective
of achieving profiobile growth, while

both the short- and long-term incentive}

is consistent with one of our stated
objectives ond a key indicator of company
performance in the real estate sector. The
use of relative TSR is strongly aligned with
shareholkdears and ensures that executives
ora rewarded only if they exceed the
returns that an investor coukd achieve
efsewhers in our seclor.

Targets applying to the performance
reiated annual bonus and LTIP ore
reviewed annually, based on a number
of internal and extemnal reference points.
Performance targets are set to be
stretching but achievable, with regard

to the particutar strategic priorities and
economic environment in a given year.
Under the bonus, target performance
typically requires meaningful improverment
on the previous year's outtum, ond for

typically in ine with the upperend
of market consensus.

Remuneration Policy

for other employees

Unite's approach to annual salary
reviews is consistent across the Group.
with considaration given to the level

of experence, responsibility, individual
performance and salary levels in
comparable companies. The Company
is aiso now a fully accredited Living
wage employer.

In terms of voricble incentives, all
emplovees are eligible to porticipate in
an annual bonus scheme with business
area-specific metrics incorporated
where appropriate. Senior monagers
[c.18individuals] ore eligible to
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

participate in the LTIP with annual awards
currently up & 75% of salary. Perfarmance
conditions are consistent for ol participants,
while award sizes vary by level. Specific
cash incentives are alsoin place to
rmotivate, reward and retain staff below
Board level.

Allemployees are eligible fo parficipate
in the Company’s SAYE scheme on the

sharehoiding in the Company.
Shareholding guidelines are in ploce that
require Executive Directors o acquire

a holding {excluding shares that remain
subject to performance conditions)
equivalent to 250% of base salkary for the
Chisf Executive and 200% of base satkary
for each of the other Executive Directars.
Until the relevant shareholding levels ore
acquired, up fo S0% of the annual bonus

Malus and clawback

Awards under the Performance Related
Annual Bonus and the LTIP are subject

to matus and, from 2014, clawback
provisions which ¢an be applied o both
vested and unvested awards. Clawback
provisions will apply for a period of at
least two years post-vesting. Circumstances
in which molus and clowback may be
applied include a material misstaterment

some terms,

Shareholding guidelines

The Committeg continues to recognise
the importance of Executive Direciors
aligring their interests with shareholders
through building up @ significant

on Remuneration.

Non-Executive Director remuneration

payable fo the relevant Direcior will ba
subect to deferral into shares and ore
ransferable to the Director after three
yaars. Details of the Executive Direclorns’
current personal sharehokdings

ore provided in the Annual Report

of the Company’s finoncial accounts,
gross miscenduct on the part of the
award-holder and evror in calculating
the award vesting cutcome.

Non-Executive Direclor Date of sarace confroct
P M White 10 January 2009

R JTWilson 1 December 2010
M Wolstenholme 1 December 2011
A Jones 18 October 2012

E MCMeikan 13 November 2013

Subject to annyal re-election by shareholders, Non-Executive Directors are appointed for an initial fterm of approximately three
years. Subsequent terms of three years may be awarded. Current gppointments will expire at the Annual General Meeting in 2017
in the case of Eizabeth McMeikan and Sir Tim Wilson; al the 2018 Annual General Meeting in the case of Phil White and Manjit
Wolstenholme, and al the Annual General Meeting in 2019 in the case of Andrew Jones. The oppointment ond re-appointment
and tha remunaration of Non-Executive Directors are matters reserved for the full Board.

The Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in the Company's performance related benus plan, long-term incentive

plans or pension arangements.

Details of the policy on feas poid o our Non-Executive Diractors are set out in the table below:

Function Operatron Oprortundy Perfermance metncy
Fees Fee levels are reviewed annually, with any  Non-Executive Direclor fee increases ore . None
To attract adjustments effective 1 January in the year opplied in ine with the outcome of the

and retain fallowing raview. annual fae review: Fees for the year
MNon-Executive ; . commencing 1 January 2017 are set oyt
Directorsof the 1@ f@es paid to the Choirman are in the Annual Report on Remuneratian.

highesf calibre determined by the Commr_ﬂee, 'whﬂsi ) )

with broad the tees of t_he Non-Executive Directors Fe':e hevel; will be next fe\_newad during 2017,
commearcialand e determined by the Board. with any increase effective 1 Jonuary 2018

other experience addifional fees are payable for acting It s expacted thatincreases to non-

relevant to as Senior Independent Director and as executive director fee levels will be in line

the Company. Chairman of any of the Board's Committees
[Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and

Health and Safety}.

Fee levels are benchmarked against sector
comparators and FISE-istad companies

of similar size and complexity. Time
commitment and responsibility are laken
info account when reviewing fee levels,

with solaried employees over the fife of

the poficy. However, in the event that there
is a materal misalignment with the markeat
or a change in the complexity, responsibility
or fime commitrnent required to fulfil

a Non-Executive Director role, the Board
has discretion 1o make an appropriate
adjustment to I1he fee level,
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Pay for performonce scenarios
The charts below provide an illustration of the potential future reward opporiunities for the Executive Directors, and the potentiol
spiit between the different elements of remuneration under three different performance scenarios: Minimum, On-target

and Maximurm.

Patential reward opportunities are based on Unite's Remuneration Policy, applied to the base salorias effective 1 March 2017, The
annual bonus and LTIP are based on the moximum opportunities set out under the Remuneration Policy for normal cikcurmstances:
being 144% of salary and 200% of salary respectively. Note that the LTIP awords granted in a year do nof nermally vest until the thira
anniversary of the date of grant, and the projecied value (s based on the face value at award rother than vesting {i.e.. the scenarios
exclude the impact of any share price movement over the period).

o

]

7
ar
X
=
-
n

Dbemhiyin

The Minimum scenario reflects base salary, pension ond benefits (i.e., fixed remuneration} which are the only elements of the

Executive's remuneration pockages not linked to performance. g’
&
=1

The On-target scenaric refiects fixed remuneration as above, plus bonus payeout of 70% of salary and LTIP fhreshokd vesting at 25% S

of maximum gward, g

The Maximum scenario reflects fixed remuneration, plus full payout of all incentives. g

Approach lo recruitment remuneration &

Extemnal appolintment fo the Board

In the coses of hiring or appointing a new Executive Director from cutside the Company. the Remuneration Committee may moke

wse of all the existing components of remuneration, as foliows:

Maximum annuol
Component Approach prant value
Base salary The base sakaries of new appointees will be determined by reference fo relevant market
data, experience and skills of the individual, internal rekativities and their current basic
salary. Where new appointees have initial basic solaries set below market, any shortfall
may be managed with phased increases over a period of two to three years subject to
the individual's development in the role. Q
Pension New appointees will receive pension contributions or an equivalent cash supplement g
not greater than the existing policy. g
3
Benefity New appointees will be eligible to recaive benefits which may include (but cre Q
-~ ———— notlimited to) the provision of a company car or cash atternative, private medical g
SAYE insurance and any necessary relocation expenses. New oppointees will also be
eligible to participate in oll empioyee share schemes.
Performance The siructure described in the policy tabke wil apply to new appaintees with the 144% of saiary
Reloted Annual  refevant maximum being pro-rated to refiect the proportion of employment over the
Bonus yeox. Targets for the individual element will be tailored to each executive.
e New appointeas will be granted gwards under the LTIF on the same terms as other 300% of salary

executives, as described in the palicy tabie. The normal aggregate limit of 200% of
salary will apply. save in exceptional circumsiances where up to 300% of salary may be

awarded.
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In determining appropriate
rermuneration, the Remuneration
Carmmittee will 1ake into consideration all
redevant foctors (including quantum,
nature of remuneration and the
jurisdiction from which the candidate was
recruited] to ensure that amangements
are in the best interests of both Unite and
its shareholders. The Committee may
make an award inrespect of o new
appaintment to buy- outincentive
amangements forfeited on leaving a
previous employer on a like-for-iike basis,
which may be owarded in addition fo
the remuneration stiructure outlined in the
table obove. In doing so. the Committee
will consider relevant factors including
time to vesting, any performance
conditions attached to these owords and
the likelinood of those conditfions being

met. Any such buy-out owards will
Woically be made under the axisting
annual bonus and LTIP schemes,
although in exceptional circumstances
the Committae moy exercise the
discration available under Listing Rule
9.4.2 R to moke awards using a differant
structure. Any buy-out awords would
have a fair value no higher than the
awards forfeited.

Internal promotion to the Beard

In casas of appointing O new Executive
Director by way of internal promotion, the
Rernuneration Committee and Board will
bea consistent with the policy for external
appeintees detaled above. Where an
indwvidual has confractual commitments
made prior fo their prometian to
Executive Director level, the Company

Service contracts and treatment for leavers and change of control
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will continue to honour these
amrangements. The Remuneration Palicy
for other ermployees is set cut on page 79.
Incentive opportunities for below Board
employees are typically no higher than
Executive Directors, but measures may
vary to provide better line-of-sight.

Non-Executive Directors

in recruiting @ new Non-Executive
Draclar, the Remuneration Cornmittee
will utilise the policy as set out in the table
on page 79. A base fee in line with the
prevailing fee schedule would be
payabta for Board membership, with
odditional fees payable for acting as
Senior Independent Director andfor as
Chairman of the Board's Committees,

Exacutive Date of service confroct
JJLister 28 March 2002
R C Simpson 28 Septemier 2011 —
R S Smith 28 Saptember 2011

Executive Director service contracts.
including orrangements for eorty
termination, are carefully considered by
the Committee. In accordance with
general market practice, each of the
Executive Directors has o ralling service
cantract requiring 12 months’ notice of
termination on either side. Such contracls
contoin no specific provision for
compensatian for loss of office, other
than an obligation to pay for any notice

period waived by the Company. where
pay is defined as sakory. benefits and any
other statutory payments only. Executive
Director service contracts are availoble
1o view at the Company's ragistered
office.

The Remuneration Committee will
exercise discretion in making appropriate
paymants in the contaxt of outplacement,
setfling legal clairms or patential kegal

claims by o departing Executive Direclor,
including ony other amounts reasonably
due lo the Executive Director. for
axample to meet the legal fees incurred
by them in connection with the
termingtion of employmant, where

the Company wishes to enter into o
settiement agreement and tha individuol
must seek independent legol advice.
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When considering exit payments, the Commitiee reviews all potential incentive oulcomes to ensure they ore fair 10 both shareholders
and participants. The tabile below summarises how the gwards under the annual bonus and LTIP are typically treated in specific
circumstances. with the final freatment remaining subject to the Committee’s discretion:

Ragson for ieaving Caiculaton of veshng/paymen!
Annuol bonus
Resignation No onnual bonus payable.
'Good' leaver' Cash bonyses will only be paid 1o the extent that financial and individual objectives set
Change of confrol at the beginning of the plan year have been met, Any resulting bonus wil be pro-rated
for time served during the year.
me
Resignation Outstanding awards lapse
'‘Good’ leaver’ The Committee determines whether and to what extent outstanding awords vest
Change of control based on the axtent to which performance conditions have been achieved and the

proportion of the vesting period worked.

The determination of vesting will be mode as soon as reascnably practicot following
the end of the performanca period or such eariier date as the Committee may agree
(within 12 months in the event of decth).

In the event of a change of control, Unite awards may alternatively be exchonged
for new equivaient awards in the acquirer where appropriate.

' ‘Good’ leaver i defined as a participant ceasing to be empioyed by Ihe Group by réason of death, disability. il health, redundoncy, retirement
or any other reason thot 'he Committee determines in its absolute discretion.

The treatrment of shares subject io defemral
or holding periods will be subject to the
Remuneration Committee's discretion
and will fake into account the
circumstancaes at the time.

External appointments

With the approval of the Beard in each
case, and subject to the overriding
requirements of the Group, Executive
Directors may accapt external
appointments os Non-Executive Directors
of other companies and retain any fees
received. Joe Lister is currentty a member
of the Council of the University of Essex
for which he does not receive a fee.
Richard Simpson joined the Board of
Citywest Homes at the beginning of 2017,
Richord Smith does not curently hold

an exiernal gppointment.

Consideration of conditions

elsewhere in the company
when making decisions on Execufive
Director remuneration, the Committea
considers pay and conditions across
Unite. Prior fo the annual solary réview,
the Group Pecple Director provides the
Committee with a summary of the
proposed level of increase for overall
employee pay. The Remuneration
Committee does not formally consult
with emplgyees on the executive
Remuneration Policy and Framework.

Considergtion of shareholdet views
The Remuneration Committee mainiains
aregular diakogue with ils major
shareholders, and is encouraged by

the support received at the 2014

Annual General Meeting for the new
Remuneration Policy. During 2016 we
consulted with shareholders representing
around two-thirds of Unite's issued share
capital ragarding Executive Direcior
salories following the role changes arising
as a result of Mark Allan's resignation

and subsequent neorganisation of
responsibilifies. The Commitiee wil
continue Yo moniter frends and
developments in corporate governance
and market practice to ensure the
structure of the executive remuneration
remains approgriate.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

The following section pravides detalls
of how Unite's Remuneration Policy was
implemented dursing the financial year
ending 31 December 2016

Remuneration Committee

membership In 2016
The primary rale of the Committee is to:

> Review, recommend and monitor the
level ond structure of remunerction
for the Executive Directors and other
senior executives

> Approve the remuneration packoges
for the Executive Directors and
ensyre that pay oufcomes reflect
the performance of the Company

> Determine the bolance betwaen
base pay and performonce ralated
elements of the pockage so as
to align Diractors’ interests fo those
of shareholders,

The Cornmittee's terms of reference are
set out on the Company's website, As of
3i December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee comprised five independent
Non-Executiva Directors.

» Elizabeth Mcmeikan (Cornmitlee Chair)
> Philwhite

* Sir Tim Wilson

> Manjit Wolstenholme

> Andrew lones

During the year, Patrick Dempseay, who
ioined the Board effective 1 March 2014
and resigned elfective 31 August 2014,
also served on the Remunersation
Committee, Certain executives, including
Richard Smith (Chief Executive),

Mark Allan (former Chiaf Executive)

and Ruth George {Group People Cirector)
have been, from time 1o fime. invited

to attend mewetings of the Cammiittee,
and the Company Secretary. Christopher

Szpojnarowicz, octs 0s secretary fo the
Committes, No individuals arg involved
in decisions relating to their own
remuneration, The Remuneration
Committee met five times during the year
and details of members’ altendance at
meetings are provided in the corporate
governanca section oh page 6.

Key activities of the Remuneration
Committee in 2014 included:

» Reviewed and opproved the Executive
Directors' performance against annual
objectives and LTIP targels; determined
bonuses payable (including talance
betwean cash and shares), and
approved LTIP vesting
Determined leaver treatment for
Mark Aban, including treciment
of outstanding incentives
» Reviewed Executive Direclor
remuneration following role changes
and regrganisation of responsibifities,
and undertook consultation with
mdjor shareholders on proposed
changes 1o Executive Director salaries
» Confirmad treatment of Mark Allan's
incantives following end of
employment and reaffimation of
duties conlained in comprormise
agreement, Followed up with
shareholders surnmuarising changes
made during the year
Considered remuneration
market trends and corporate
governance developments
» Reviewed and approved salary
increases for the Executive Directors
and senior management for 2007
Determined the Executive Directors'
bonus and LTIP performance targets
for 2017 in line with the strategic plan
Reviewed and approved the
Charman's fee
Prepared the Directors’
Remuneration Report,

v

A4

v

v

v

Summary of shareholder voting at the 2016 AGM
The following table shows the results of the binding vote on the forward-looking Remuneration Policy and of the odvisory votes on
ther 2015 Annual Report on Remuneration and the amendments 1o the 2011 Performance Share Plan at the 20156 AGM;

Advisers

Kepler Associates, o brand of Mercer
|'’kapler’) ware appointed as the
Committee's independent adviser
following a competitive tender process
in 2014, and were refained during the
yeor, The Commiittee undertakes due
diligence periodically to ensure that
Kepler remains independent and that
the odvice provided is imnparfialand
objective. Kepler s a founding member
and signatoty of the Code of Conduct
for Remuneration Consultants,

delails of which can be found at
www.remunefionconsutiontsgroup.com.
In 2016 Kepler provided independent
advice on revisians to Unite's
Remuneration Policy, updates on the
extemal remuneration environment:
performance testing for long-term
incentive pkans; and support during
the shareholder consuliation process.
Kepler reports dirsctly to the Chairman
of the Remuneration Commitiee and
does not advise the Company on any
other issues. Their tofal fees for the
provision of remunernation services o
the Committee in 2016 were £44,775

ort the basis of time and materials,

Rernunaration Annual Report Amsndments to
Policy on Remunenation 2011 PSP
For {including discretionary} 184,101,530 P8.9% 187.24].043 #9.7% 185,284.990 $8.9%
Against 2,088,144 1.1% 591,183 0.3% 3170079 L%
Total vates cast [excluding withheid votes) 188,187.674 187.892.226 188,457,069
Votes withheld 300,425 657,873 33,030
188,490,099 188,490,099 188,490,099

Total votes cast {including withhald voles)
A
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Single folal figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)
The ioble below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each Direclor for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the prior year:

Richard Soth Joa Lister Richard Simpson Mark Align’
0% 2015 206 2005 201 2015 0 2015
£ £ t £ £ I3 I E
Salary 359417 246,692 322,702 273,483 298,347 246,692 183,003 432,233
Taxable benefits? 153548 14,064 15854 15,266 15,236 13.874 7.694 23319
Pension benefit? 40,863 47 336 55,97¢ 49,147 55,604 43,355 2,162 75,964
Annual Bonys? 227,083 314,579 203,385 348,742 188,002 314,579 [+] 551,180
LFtpss 528,55¢ 748,451 584,742 828,041 528,559 748,451 o 1.299.189
Other’ 0 4,499 ] 2249 0 0 0 0
Total 1.191.378  1.3754620 1,182,482 1,516,928 1086568 1366970 222860 2381.885

' mMork Alian stepped down effective 31 May 2014 and ceased being a director of the Company from the same date He remained employedinan
odviscry capocity with the Company uni 31 Ociober 2016. Amounts obove reflect remunerotion freceived as o tesull of his role s Chief Executive,
with details of remuneration received for he period 1 June to 31 Octotier 2016 disclosed under 'Exit payments’ sechon on page 0.

2 Taxabile benefits for 2016 consst pnmanly of company car of Car alowance and private heqalth core ingurance.

The figures above include cor benehits of £74,167, £14,583, £14,167 and £7.223 for Messrs. Smith, Lister, Simpson and Allon respectively.

1 Pension figures include canribulions 1o The Unile Group Personol Pension Scheme and cash allowances, whare oppicable.

* Payment for performonce during the vear. Having aeady reached their share ownership guideines, each Executive Director will recelve 100%
of their 2014 bonus aword in cash. Mark Allan was nod afigible for a 2014 annual bonus payment. See following sections for further detaiks.

* 2075 figures: LTIF awords granted in 2013, and which vested bosecd on performance 10 31 December 2015, ore volued using the market prices ot
the dote of vesting (10 April 2014) of 634p. Thase amounts have been revised from last vear's report to reflect the actuol share prices on the dates
of vesting.

4 2006 Kgures: For the 2014 awards, the market price on the date of vesting is currently unknowr ond so the value shown is estimated using the
average market value over the last quarter of 2015 of 575.9p. Mark Alan's unvesied 2014 gwards Iapsed on his resignation from the Compony.

See following sections for further details. LTIP figures oo include cosh payments in ey of dividends for vested awards.

7 'Other includes the embedded vakue of SAYE options at grant.

Single totol figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (audited)
The table beiow sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by sach Non-Executive Director for the year ended
31 December 2016 and the prior year:

Base fes Commitiee Choo lees SID fee Tatal

20u 205 wu% 205 20% 05 2% o015

| 4 £ £ £ [ 4 £ £ £

P M white 129.650 127,100 - - - - 129.450 127100
R JTwilson 45,000 44,100 8,600 4,475 - - 51,600 50.575
M Wolstenhoime 45,000 44,100 9,350 9,150 5250 5125 5v.400 58,375
A lones 45,000 44,100 - - - - 45,000 44100
E mcMealkan 45,000 44,100 7.350 2.150 - - 54,350 53,250
P Dempsey' 22,500 - - ~ - - 22,500 —

' Patrick Dempsey jGined the Board on 1 Morch 2016 and nasigned effective 31 August 2015, during which time he served as a member of the
Remuneration ond Health and Safety Commitiees.

Remuneration outcomes lor the year ended 31 December 2018 (audited)

Base salarles

As foreshadowed in last year's report, salkary increases of between 6% and 9% were made with effect from 1 March 2014 to each of
Richard Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson. Mark Allan received o 2% increase, consistent with general increaseas for empioyees
across the Company, from the same date.

Following his promotion to CEQ, the Cormmittee reviewed Richard Smith's salary against a range of internal and external factors
and elected to set it at a level of £430,000 per annum effective 1 lune 2016, For the other remaining Executive Directors, loe Lister
and Richard Simpson, the Committea reflacted on the intention to operale with a smaller management team going forward, and
the additional key responsibilities taken on by each individuat. Specifically. Joe Lister will now lead investor rekations and has line
managemant responsibility for the Corporate Affairs and People directorates, while Richard Simpson hos been tasked with heading
up Unite's Health and Safety. Maintenance and Lifecycle ond Asset Management functions,
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Considering thase tignificant role changes, and mindful of the need to retain successfui, experienced and weil-regarded Executive
Directors in a competifive sector, the Committee reviewed a number of alternative approaches for the remuneration of Joe Lister
and Richard Simpson o ensure they remain focused on delivering Unite's strotegy during a period of potential instability.

Following carefut consideration of the citernatives permitied within the recently approved remuneration policy. the Committee
determined 10 increase the base salaries of Joe and Richard by ¢.20% to £350,000 ond £325,000 per annum respectively with effect
from 1 June 2014, In taking this decision, the Commitiee noted the oflemnative of making excepfional LTIP awards but conchuded that:

> Salary kevels were the element of remuneration most significantly below market (particularly laking into account the additional
responsibilities), whereas long-term incentive opportunities, at 200% of salary, ane market cormnpetitive

> Anincrease in fong-ferm incentive opporiunities had alecdy bean implemented for 2016 from 150% to 200% of salary; and

> Maintaining the currant ratio between fixed/variable pay and short-term/long-term pay is important so as not to incentivise
excessive risk-taking,

Details of the evolution of each Director's rofe and saiary over the course of the year is surmmarised in the fable below:

Base sakary from
Base soory 1o | Mk 2016 Barses sculary
28 Feoruary 162 May Perzanicge fFom 1 June Perceniage
Exgculive Director Roke 206 216 change 2014 chonge
MD, Operaticns £247,700 £270.000 9%
R S Smith 59%
{3% below
Chisf Executive o £430.000 predecessor]
1] Lister Chaef Financial Officer £274,600 £291,000 &%
Chief Financiaf Officer+ £350,000 2%
MD, Propert £247,700 £270,000 %
R C Simpson pery "
Group Property Director £325,000 20%
MC Allan Chief Executive £434,000 £442 880 2%
Tolal Boord £1,204,000 £1,273.680 5.8% £1.105.000 =13.2%

Performonce related annual bonus In respect of 2016 performonce

The 2016 annual banus consists of two elements, corporate and individual. The corperote element of the bonus is calculoted on @
sliding scale up 10 & moximum of 120% of base salary, in accordance with which on-target performance by the Group resultsin a
corporate banus of an amount equivalent to 70% of base solary, To determine the actual bonus payment lo an Executive Director,
a multiplier {being the individual elernent of the schema), ranging between zero and 1.2 & applied against the corporate bonus,

Applying the maximum Individual multiplier [of 1.2). against the maximum corporate bonus [of 120% of base salary), resultsina
maximum annual performonce ralated bonus apportunity of 144% of base salary. However, bonus payments at that level would
only be made subject to the achievernent of extremely streiching corporate performance targets and exceptional individual
performance by the relevant Director. Target performance typicaily requires meaningfulimprovement on the previous year's
outturn, and for financial measures, targets are lypically in {ine with the upper end of market consensus.

The performance related bonuses awarded in respect of 2016 reflect corporate bonuses of 62.5% of base salary. After applying
individual multipiiers, actual perlormance related bons payments awarded to the Executive Direciors were 62.5% of their
respactive base salaries (43.4% of their maximum bonus opportunities}. Further details, including the fargels set and performaonce
against each of the metrics, are provided in the fables below:

Corporate slement oulcomes
Onginal performance Iargets
“Threshoks* Target' “Strmich’
SO%of A% of 100% of 120% of Ves!
Myasure Weight sy sakry Hory sakory Actual % soiory]
Financial Adjusted EPS 250% 24.7p 2570 7.2 28.7n 27.7p 27.5%
Totalreturn 250% 79p 87p 100p 108p 83p 15.0%
per share
Net debt to 25.0% 6.5x 6,3 6.0x 5.8x 6.2x 200%
EBITOA ratio
Non-finoncial  Customer 250% a3 84 86 87 80 o%
satisfaction

Total corporate vesting (% of salaiy) 62.5%
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Individual element outcornes
Exscutive Actngvernants dunng the year incliuded: Parsonal muthpher

» Successful delivery of Operations and Group KPls covering both roles as Managing
Director. Operations and Group Chief Executive.
> Completed an effective transition to the Group Chief Executive role, providing clear
and valued leadership to the Group in the second half of the year.
R S smith » Effectively deliverad a reafignrnent of roles and responsibilities across the other two .0x
Executive Directors ond wider senior management teom ensuring the continued
delivery against the wider Group's KPis and the retention of the Group's key talent.
?» led the evoiution of the Group strotegy, focused parliculorly on the development
of our brand and eaming focus.
> Successful delivery of finance related KPIs and our capital aperating guidelines.
» Successful execution of the REIT conversion pian.
?» Execution and evolution of a debt finoncing, lundraising and hedging strategy aliowing
J J Lister fhe Group to fake advantage of low interast rales while retaining appropriate baiance [.0x
sheet strength and flexibility.
» Embraced new areqs of responsibility including the Group's People and Communication
agenda folowing the management change in mid-year.
» AllProperty related KPIs successfully delivered for the year.
» Delivery of high quality growth through a secured development pipeline in an
increasingly compefitive market,
» Oversaw product development and design innovation activities, allowing the Group 1.0x
to maintain attractive retums on new develocpment, !
Embroced new areas of responsibility including the Group's health and sofety
ond maintenance and procurement agenda following the managerment change
in mid-year.

o
]

A2
B
B
[

Jibwbsg g

R C Simpson

v

Individual objectives were updated following the changes in roles and responsibilities, with additional stretching goals set to test

exacutives in their new roles. The ratings above refiect @ holistic view by the Committee of the exient to which eoch individual has »
perforrmed in their exponded role during the year, guided by these new objectives. a
7
o
Overcll bonus outcomaes o
Owerall bonus outcame §
Execuhve Corporate vesting Personal multicler % of salory) % of meximumy £ §
R $ Smith 1.0x 625% 43.4% 227,083 3
J J Lister 82.5% 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 203,385
R C Simpson 1.0 62.5% 43.4% 188,802
The Committee is satisfied that the overall bonus outcomes are appropriate. The Company's sikiong finangial performance,
particutarty under the odjusted EP$ and net debt to EBITDA ratio elements, is testament fo both management and the broader
employee population, and whilke exacutives fell short of the stretching customer satisfaction torgets, the 2014 result still places
Unite in the upper quintile of our benchmark.
Each of the Executive Directors has been a significant contributor to the achievement of key business objectives, whilke continging
to demonsirate both strong personal progression and exceptional teamwork despite a year of significant change. The propased o
On-target individual multiptiers of 1.0x reflect our safisfaction with the progress that each individual has made in their new roles and ;F
wae wilt look for this 1o be progressed further as we move info 2017, S
=3
g
Having alrecdy reached their respective share ownership guidelines, each Executive Director will receive 100% of their bonus g
awards in cash., S
g
>
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2014 LTIP vesting (vesied on periorrnance o 3] December2014}
Awards in 2014 were made under the new TIP. consisting of the Unite Group plc Performance Share Pion and the Unite Group pic
Approved Employee Share Option Scheme. Vesting of the owards was depandent on three equally-weighted measures over
o thrae-yeor performance penod; total return per share, Earmings per share ond T5R cutperformance of the FISE 350 Real Estate
Super Seclor index. There was no retest provision, Further details, including vesting schedules and performance against each
of the metrics are provided in the table below:

Moosu_re . Wmghhrg Targe's Ouicome Yasl %
0% vesting below 18.1 pence 27.7 pence 100%
25% vesting for 18.1 pence

100% vesting for 23.5 pence or more;
Stroight-ine vesting between these points

2016 Adjusted EPS 173

O vesting below 8.5% 21.3% 100%
TR per share p.a. 1 25% vesting for 8.5%
{2014 - 2014) 100% vesting for 14.5% or more;
Stroight-line vesting between these points
TSR 0% vesting if Group underperforms the Index Inclex +10% p.a.  100%
outperformance 25% vasting for matching the index {55.6% return}
of the FTSE350 V3 100% vesting for outperforming Index by 9% p.a.;
Redl Estate Super Straight-line vesting between these points
Sector Index
Total LTIP vesting [sum product of weighting and vest %) W00%

The performance period for the eqch of the elements ended on 31 December 2014. Two-thirds of awards will vest on the third
anniversary of the date of grant, with the remaining one-third vesting after an additional holding period of one year,

Interests Intevests Dale Amumed Eshrated

Executive Drectar hed vestng % vesting vesting marke price wihos

R 5 Smith 84,566 86,566 10 ApHi 20 £498,572
i Apnl 2017 (2/3) T e oo

J JLister 95,753 100% 95.753 10 Aprik 2018 {1/3) 5755p £551.484

R C Simpson 86,566 86,568 £498.572

In line with regulations, the volue disclosed above ond in the single total figure of remuneration table on page 85 captures the full
number of interests vesting {i.e. excluding the one-year holding period}. As the market price on the date of vesting is unknown ot the
time of reporting, the value s estimated using the average market value over the last quarter of 2016 of 575.9p. The actual value af
vesting will be trued-up in the 2017 Annual Report on Remuneration, Executives ako became entitied to cashin fieu of the dividends
payable on vested LTIP shares over the three-year performance period. These payments are included in the row anfitied *LTIP" in ihe
single tokal igure of remuneration table on page 85, and amounted to £29,987,. £33,258, and £29.987 for Messrs. Smith, Lister anal
Smpson respectively.

Percentage change in CEO remwneration
The oble below shows the percentage change in CEO remuneration from the prior year compaored o the overage percentage
change in rermuneration for all employees.

The CEQ's remuneration includes base salary, taxable benefit and annual banus ond for 2014 1s calkculated as on aggregate of the
remuneration of Mark Allan until 31 May 2016 and of Richond Smith thereafter {[annual bonus relates to Richard Smith full year). The
pay for all other employeas is calculated using the increase in the earnings of fulk-time employees for tax years 2015 and 2016. The
analysis excludes part-time empioyees and is based on a consistent sat of employees, i.e. the same individuals appear in the 2015
and 2016 populations.

CEC Al @rmpioyees
201 L5  Rchange % chonge
£ E 2015-18 2015-16
Base salary ' 43037 432213 00% 20%
Taxabie benefits 7ary 23309 (26.6)% 4.4%

Annual bonus 227083 551,180 {58.8)% {58.6)%
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Relafive importance of spend on pay
The table below shows shareholoer distributions {i.e. dividends and share buybacks) and folal employee poy expenditure for the
financiat years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, qlong with the percentage change in both.

2016 2015 % change

£m £m 015- 16
Total ermployee pay expenditure ¥».2 437 N0.3)%
Distributions fo shareholders 35.3 33.2 6.3%

The Directors are proposing o final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 20146 of 12 pence per ordinary
share. Employee remuneration excludes sociol security costs.

Review of past performance

The following graph charts the TSR of the Company and the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index over the eight-year period from
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2014, While there is no comparafor index or group of companies that frufy reflects the aclivities of
the Group, the FTSE 350 Reat Estate Super Sector Index {the constituent members of which are all property hoiding and/or
development companies or real estate investment trusts within the UK), was chosen as it reflects trends within the UK property
market generally and tends to be the index against which analysts judge the performance of the Company. The toble below
deflails the Chief Executive's single figure remuneration over the same period,

ST

h

Ry

.
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[
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Historical TSR performance
EistovitGiH Shpesfiomewiner by pothetical £100 holding over the 8 years to 31 December 2016.
Growth in the value of a hypothefical £100 holding over the B years 1o 31 December 201é

o
2
4]
3
n'
o
g
i
Q
€009 a0 01 2012 2013 2014 2005 2014 i
MC Alan 3
MCARon  MCAlan  MCAlan  MCAdn  MCAlon  MCAflar  MCAllan RS Smith Q
CEQ single figure of £272 850 g
remuneration (£00Q) £4665313  £587,175 £1.475577 £993,754 £1.943734 £2.987,402 £2,381,885 £1,191,378 §
5Tl award rates against nfa
maximyum opportunity 42.0% 43.4% 75.8% 63.4% 84.0% 89.4% 88.2% 43.4%
LT award rates against n/a
maxirmym opportunity 0.0% 0.0% 824% 26.3% 83.1% 95.7% 100.0% 100.0%
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Scheme inferests awarded In 2014 (oudited)

(Rl d

In June 2016, Executive Directors were gronted owards under the LTIP with a maximum face value of ¢.200% of thei respective
salaries. The three-year performance period over which performance will be meagsured began on 1 January 20ts and will end
on 31 Decernber 2018, Any awards vesfing for performance will be subject lo an additional two-year holding period.

Shares over which Market prce af
Exsscu’ive Direclor Date of grant awoacks grantec! aate of award Foca valve
R'S Smith T 134,802 £865.268
J i Lister 23 June 2016 100,941 &41.5p £705,272
R C S$impsen 102,147 £855.273

' Combingtion of HMRC approved options under tha ESOS [735) and nil cost ophions under the PSP colculated using a share price of 441.5p. being
the closing mid-market price on the day the awards were calculatad.

Vesting of 2016 awards is dependent on three equolly-weighted meaasuras over a three-year performonce period: total refurn per
share. eurnings per share and TSR outperformance of the FISE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index. There is no retest provision. The
Committee considers that the targets applying under each of the performance measures ore na less siretching than in previous
years. Details of the vesting schedules are provided below:

Maasure wegniing Targats N
2018 Adjusted EPS 1/3 0% vesting below 30 pence;
25% vesting for 30 pence;

100% versting for 38 pence or more;
Straighl line vesting between these points

TR per share p.a. 1/3 O% vesting below 5% p.o.;
{2016 - 2018) 25% vesting for %% p.a.;
100% vesting for 15% p.a. or rmore;
Straight line vesting between these points,
TSR outperformance of the FTSE 350 Reail Estate [Super  1/3 0% vesting Iif Group underperforms the index:
Sector] index (2015 - 2017) 25% vesting for motching the index:
100% vesting for outperforming index by 9% p.a:
sn-uighf-line vesting between these points.

SAYE
During the year under review, no naw SAYE awards were gronted to the Executive Directors.

Exit payments made in the year (audited)

The terms of Mark Allan's exit were set out in an agreement at the time he gave notice 10 the Comparty. In formalising this agreerment,
the Committee sought to ansure that the ouicormes were fair to sharehoiders. to the Company and 1o Mark Allan, kaking info account
the terms of his deporture and his service o Unite over his 17 years of employment with the Group, including almost 10 years as
Chief Executive. The agreerment ako set out some additional undertakings which included rermaining with the business in an aodvisory
capacity unfil 31 October 20146 1o support the new Chief Executive, as well as strengthened non-compete and non-pooch arrangements,
all of which were considered ¢ be in the interests of the Company and of our shareholders.

For the paricd 1 June 2016 1o 31 Oclaber 2016, Mark Allan continued 1o receive base pay (£201.476), pension [£32,417) and other
contractual benefits {(£7.884) totalling £241.777. He was not eligible 1o parficipate in the 2016 annual bonus and there was no
payment in lieu of notice.

For the purposes of outstanding long-term incentives, Mark Alkan was not considened a 'good’ leaver, with the default policy pasition
dictating that all of his putstanding awards would kopse vpon leaving the Company, uniess the Committee wouki determine otherwise,
Reflecting o number of considerations set out below, the Committee exercised discretion to qilow vasting of LTIP awards that had
already baen parformance tested and were within a few days of vesting at the fime he made his announcement, This use of
discrefion ook into account that:

» The relavont owards would have ardinarily vested three days after the official announcement Of the change in Chief Executive
{i.e. 10 April 2018}, but that Mark elected to announce as early as possible in order 10 permit an orderty handover of his duties

> The applicable performance periods had been completed and vesting was sirong under each cycle and

» Other elements of Mark's package were minimised under the terms of the comprornise agreerment. Namely no onnual bonus
would be payable in respect of 2014, and the previously announced 6% salary increase woukd instead be kept in iine with general
increases across the group at 2%.
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As aresult, and having honoured his obligation 1o remain employed with the Cornpany in an advisory copacity through fo 31 Getober
2014, the final third of Mark's 2012 LTIP award [which vested as to 95.22% of maximum based on performance to 31 December 2014}
and the first two-thirds of his 2013 LTIP aword (which vested in fuil based on performance to 31 December 2015} were preserved and
became capable of exercise. subject to malus and clowback provisions, from 1 November 2016 and 1 April 2017 respectively —in
both cases being an increased deferral period from the origingl vesting date. All other outstanding and unvested awards (i.e. the
final third of his 2013 LTIP awards, and each of the 2014 ond 2015 LTIP owards) kapsed following Mark 's resignation. Details of the
preserved awards are included in the table below:

interests Original Revised Market pnce
Award &yCle vesting vashng dale vesting date ON vBsting VOius
200200 104,7. 1 Navember 2016 549p £574940
= 10 ApA 2016
201311 131,209 1 Api 2017 5755p' £755,623

' Asthe morket price on the dote of vesting & unknown at the time of reporing, the value s estimoted using the average market value aver the iast
quarter of 2016 of 575.9 pence.

Payments to past directors (oudited)
Save for Mark Allan’s remuneration detailed above, there weare no further payments to past directors during the year.

Implementation of Executive Director remuneration policy for 2017

Base salory
The Committee has approved the foliowing salory increases with effect from 1 March 2017

Base salary fom Base solary from

liune 016t0 28 1ivarch 2017 1028 Percanioge

Executive Crector February 2017 February 2018 noeose

R 5 Smith £430.000 £438,600 %

JJLister £350,000 £357,000 2%

R C Simpson £325,000 £331,500 %
s}
Proposed salary increases are consistent with the average increase applied across the Group (C.2%). %
o
Pension El
Executive Dinectors will continue to receive a pension contribution of up to 20% of salary or an equivalent cash allowance. T
Performance related annual bonus %

Coporate

meqsums wgt

Financiat (75%) Adjusted EPS 25.0%

Totairetum per share 250%

Net debt to EBTDA raiic 25.0%

Non-financial (25%] Customer satisfaction 12.5%

University Reputation 12.5%

The performance related annual bonus for the 2017 financial year will openate on broadty the same basis as in 2016, The Committee

has approved an unchanged maximum bonus opportunity for each executive of 144% of salary. consisting of o maximum of 120% g
of salary under the 'corporate’ etlement and a maximum individual multiplier of 1.2x. @
5
For 2017, the ‘corporate’ elemeant of the annual bonus will continue to be based on a combination of financial and non-financial g
measures, weighted 75% and 25% respectively. The Committee intends 1o supplement customer satisfaction with g measure based 8
on University Reputation, with eoch weighted 12.5%. The inclusion of University Reputation recognises the equalimportance of g‘

Unite's relafionships with Higher Education portners, together with the opinions of our student customers directty, and has been used
as an operational KP| for o number of years, it is also intended that the majority of 2017 objectives under the individual performance
muffiphier will be shared ocross each of the Executive Direclors. Proposed fargef levels have been set to be challenging refative

to business plan, aithough specific targets are deemed fo be commercially sonsitive at this time. it is the Commitiee’s curent
intention to disclose these largets, and the key achievements by each Executive Director, retrospectively in the 2017 Directors’
Rermuneration Report.

Annual bonuses will confinue o be paid in cash, unless the recipient has not met their sharetolding guidelines, in which case up
to 50% of the amount payable will be satisfied by an allocation of shares in the Company, defermed for three years. Clawback and
maolus provisions apply to all awards.
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For 2017, ihe LTIP will confinue to operate broadly on the sarne batis as in the 2014 financial year. The Committee, having considered
the performance of the Company and other relevant foctors, intends that Executive Directors will each receive on award
aquivalent to a maximum of 200% of salkary delivered through o combination of the PSP and ESOS, with the final leved of vesting
dependent on the achievemant of three-year performonce targets relating fo EPS. TR and TSR, os follows:

MaagLne Waghting Targets
2019 Adjusted eamings W3 0% vesting below 36 pence
per share [EPS) 25% vesting for 36 pence

100% vesting for 42 pence or more;
Straight line vesting batween these points

Total retum (TR) per share /3 0% vesting bolow 7% p.a.

p.a. (2017 - 2019} 25% vesting for 7% p.a.
100% vesting for 13% p.a. ormore;
Straight line vesting between these points

TSR outlperformance of the  1/3 0% vesting if Group underperforms the Index
FTSE 350 Real Estate Super 25% vesting for maiching the Index
Sector Index (2017 - 2019} 100% vesting for outperforming Index by 9% p.o.;

Straight line vesting between thase points

Targets have been set with reference tointernal and externat reference points, including our stralegic plkan and broker consensus
esfimates, and are designed to be stretching but achievable for participants, Full vasting under each element will require continued
axceptional performance over the next three yeors. Any owards vesting for performance will be subject to an cdditional two-year
holding period. during which tirme clawback provisions will olso apply. Further details of the grant dote and number of interests
awaorded will be disciosed in the 2017 Annual Report on Remuneration.

Implementation of Non-Executive Director Remuneration Policy tor 2017

Chalrman ond Non-Executive Director Fees

During the final quarier of 2014, the Board undertook its annual review of Non-Executive Director fees. Following consideration of
salary increases ocross the Group and indicative fee increaites al sector and FTSE comparators, the Beard determined that the
basic fee should be increased from £45,000 p.a. to £45.900 p.o. and that additional fees should be increased by a similar rate,

in both cases being broadly in ling with increases for the broader employee population.

In respect of the Chairman of the Board. Phil White, the Committee determined that with the new executive leadership structure
now in place, and given the significont increase in the size of the Company in recent years, the timing was appropriate to undertake
a full market assessment of the Chairman role. Having considered a number of reference points, including data for sector and size
comparators and fime cormmitment, the Committee recommended an increase in the fee payable to the Chairman to £185,000 p.a.
which will position him around lower quarfile against the blended market assessment. The Committee considers this increase
approprate given Phil's significant experience and leadership of the Company over his tenure to dote.

A summary of the fee increases, which are effective | January 2017, is set out in the tabie below.

Pashon X5 hees 2014 fees 27 fees
Base fees
Chairmon ) £127,100 £129.650 £185,000
Non-Executive Direcior £44,100 £45,000 £45900
Additional fees
Senior Independent Diractor £5,125 £5,250 £5,ACO*
Audit Committee Char . £9,150 £9.350 £9.550
Remuneration Committee Chair £9,150 £7,350 £9,.550

_ Nomination Committee Chair n/a n/a nia
Health and $afety Committee Chair £4,475 £6,600 £6.750

" As Chairman of the Board. Mr White daes not receive ony additional fee in respect of ¢hairing this Committee.
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Directors’ interests (audited)

Ordinary Shares Ordnary Shones
of 25p sach ot ol 250 eachat
31 Decernber 3] December

F 11 X015
R § Smith 186,346 81,313
J ) Lister 410,934 430,981
R C Simpson 159,025 75,625
P M White 10,952 10.952
R J Twilson  8a7s " 6275
M Wolstenholme ) 7,995 7,995
A Jones - ' 15,000 15,000
E McMaikan 5.000 5,000

A lable setting aut the beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the share copital of the Company gs at 31 December
2016 is set cut fo the right.

None of the Directors has a beneficiol interest in the shares of any other Group company. Since 31 December 2016, there have been
no changes in the Directors’ inferesfs in shares.

Detalls of Directors’ share options are set outin the fabiles below.

Share price information
As at 31 becember 2014 the middle market price for ordinary shares in the Company was $06p per share, During the course of the
year, the market price of the Company’s shares ranged from 543.5p to 663.5p per ordinary shore.

Executive Directors’ shareholding requirements (avdited)

The tabie below shows the sharehglding of soch Executive Director ogainst thei respective sharehokding requirement as at %"
3 Dacermnber 2014 3
Inferests E
Subectfe  Unvested andior Shanshoding Current g
Ownod  deferaynoidng  sbjeciioped. requiement® shareholong % Requrement
outnght penod condlions salary/flee saiionyffes’ meld §
R S Smith 166,346 99,249 286.627 250% 9% Yes *
1 JLlister 410,936 41,827 277,788 200% 750% Yeos
R C Simpson 159,026 70,088 253.892 200% 358% Yes
P M White 10,952 51%
R J Twilson 6,275 as%
_ M Wolstenhoime 7,995_ 108%
A Jones 15,000 202%
E McMeikan 5.000 &7%

' Incluckes shares subject to a hoiding penod under the 2013 LTIP and deferred bonus shares. where appicable.

2 Based on share price as at 31 December 2014 of 606p. Shares subject to defemal/howding penods are token on o 'net of fax' bass for the purposes
of the cument shareholding cokulation.

* Asof the date that he stepped down from the Board, Mark Alion had exceeded the applicable shareholding guideline of 250% of salary.

VOUDLLUOK JOO
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Directors’ interests in shares and options under Unite incentives (audited)

Deterred bonus
inferests haic nterests et ot
at | Jonuary Gonledduring  Market pnce per Interests vestad inerests iopsed 31 Decembe Defaral
Exscutive 2004 the yaar share of grant dunng the yeor chyring the year 2018 penoa
R C Simpson 0,790 - 31000 30,790 - - 07.03.13
-06.03.16
2277 - 442.0p - - 32277 07.03.14
~06.03.17
43,067 - - 30.79%0 - 2277 -
R § Smith 33849 - 310.00 33,869 - - 07.03.13
-0603.14
32277 - 4420p - - 32.277 07.03.14
-0603.17
2,141 - 533.50 - - 29,181 240215
i -2302.18
$5.307 - - 33,869 - 61,438 -
LTI awards
Outstanding at
Infarests aworded 31 Decombear
durng the yeor 2016 {ondinary
[oniinary snores  Market pnce per Iterasts vested shomes of 25p Pariod of
Intoresis nald  of 25p each inthe share whan  tor performance Interedts lopeed each in the quatitying
Exacutive QtCIDY 16 Compary) oWy dunng he yoor Sunng i yeor Componyt condifiors
JJ Lister 125,482 - 319.0p 125,482 - - 10.04.13
-10.04.16
95,753 - 428.4p - - 95753 10.04.14
—— — - 100437
72094 - 583.5p - - 72094 0204.15
-02.04.18
- 109,941 &41.5p - - 109.941 2306.14
-2306.19
293,329 109,941 - 125482 - 277.788 -
R C Simpson 113,432 - 319.0p 113,432 - - 10.04.13
-1004.16
86,566 - 428.4p - - B4,566 10.04.14
~10.04,37
65,179 - 583.5p - - 65179 020415
~-02.04.18
- 102,147 441.5p - - 102147 230616
~2306.9
245177 102,147 - 113432 - 253,892 -
R § Smith 113,432 - 319.0p 113,432 - -~ 1004.13
~-1004.16
86.564 - 428.6p - - 86,566 10,0414
-100417
65,179 - 583.5p - - 65,179 020415
-0204.18
- 134,882 641.5p - - 134,882 230616
. - 230619
285177 134 882 - 113432 - 284,627 -

' One-thind of owands vested for parfornance are subject fo on addifioral one-vear holding period, i.e. 41,827, 37,811 and 37,811 shares in respect
of Messrs, Lister, Simpson and Smith respectively,
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at 1 Jenuary Gronted dunng Exproised Gplhion pnca 31 Decembar
Executive 2016 tha year dunng the year per share 215 wMalunty date
. 7299 - - 205.5p 7.299 01.12.17
JJ Lister
- 1.705 - 527.6p 1,705 01.12.18
R C Simpson 506 - - 34510 5216 01.12.17
R S Smith — 3411 — 527.6¢ 3411 01.12,18

The highest, lowest and closing share prices for 2016 are shown on page 93,

Details of the qualifying performance conditions, in relotion to the above referred to awords made in 2014 and in 2016, ore set out
earkerin this report. Those details should also be taken as farming part of the ‘auditable part’ of this report. Belqils of performance
conditions applying to the 2015 awards were set out in the 2015 Directors' Remuneration Report.

Awards made in 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2014 took the form of a cornbination of nil cost options under the PSP ond HMRC approved
options under the ESOS. No variations have been made 1o the terms or conditions of any owards,

The fair value in respect of Directors’ share options and LTIP awards recognised in the Income Staterment is as follows:

2006 2005
Exaculive £ £
JJ Lister 312,135 415856
R C Simpson 337,697 429,954
R § Smith 407,570 470,354
M C Alian (469.737) 854,775

The Diractors’ Remuneration Report has been approved by the Remuneration Committee and signed on its behalf by: 'é‘

=

Elizabeth McMeikan g

Chair, Remuneralion Commities g

22 February 20017 &
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

As at 22 February 2017 the Company had
received nofifications from the following
companies and institutions of the voting
interests of themsetves and their clients in
3% or more of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company.

Percentage
of Share
Shareholder Capial
BlackRotk Ing a.0t
APG Asset Management NV 6.36
Cohen & SteersInc 438
Aberdeen Astatl
Management Group 395
Old Mutual plc s
Royallondon
Asset Management 3.40
Invesco Lid 350
Principal Financial Group 331
Norges Bonk
309

Investmeni Management
——

Share capital

At the gate of this report, there are
222.068,787 ordinary shares of 25p eoch in
issue, all of which ane fully paid-up and
quoied on the London Stock Exchange.

During the year and through to the date
of this report, a total of 65,408 ordinary
shares of 25p each wera allotted and
ssued pursuant jo the exercise of options
under the Unita Group plc Savings
Retated Share Option Scheme aond

o fotal of 72,468 ordinary shores of 25p
each were allotled and isswed pursuant
1o the exercse of options under the
Approved Scheme.

The rights attaching fo the Company’s
ordinary shares, as well as the powers of
the Campony's Diractors, are set outin
the Company's arlicles of association.

There are no res'rictions on the fransfer

or voting rights of ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company {other than those
which may be imposed by low from time
to fime or Qs set out in the Company’s
artictes of association].

In accordance with the Market Abuse
Reguiations, certain employees are
requirad to seak opprovol to dealin
the Company's shares.

The Company is not aware of any
agreements between shareholkders that
may result in restrictions on the transfers of
securities and/or voting rights. No person
nolds securitias in the Company canying
special rights with regard fo control of the
Company. Unless expressly specified to
the contrary, the Company’s articles of
association may be amended by special
resobstion of the shorehoklers.

Chuange of control

Allof the Company's share schemes
contain provisions relating to o change

of cantrol. Qutstanding rewards and
options would normally vest and become
exercisable on o chonge of control, subject
to tha safisfaction of any performance
conditions. Cther Shan certain of the
Group’s banking facilities, there are no
other significant agreemants to which the
Company is a parly that offect, alter or
terminate upon a change of control of
the Company folliowing a takeover bid.
Nor are there any agreements between
the Company and its Directars or
employees providing for compensation
for tass of offica or employment that
occurs because of a takeover bid,
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Following o change of control of the
Company, the convertibla bonds issued
by Unite lersey Issuer Limited and
announced on 3 Octoter 2014 becorme
redeamable and/ar convertible inta
ordinory shares of the Company (at the
option of the holder],

The Directors have no outharity to buyback
the Company's shores.

Detaits of proposals 1o be put to the Annual
General Meeting in relation to the power
of Directors o issue shaves irn the Company
are set out under the heading "Annual
General Mesting'.

Going concem and

viablilty statement

The going concem statemeni and
viability statement is set out on pages 65
and 25 respectively and is incorponated
into this Directors’ Report by reference.

Disclosure of Information

to auditors

The Directors who held office at the
date of approval of the Directors’ Repart
canfirm that, so far os thay are each
aware, there is no relevant gudit
information of which the Company's
auditor is unaware; and each Director
has taken all the steps that he ought o
have taken as a Director to make himseif
aware of any relevant oudit information
and fo establish that the Company's
auditors are aware of that information.

Directors’ conflicis of interest

The Company has procedures in place
for managing conflicts of interest. A
Director s to nolity the Chairman [and
the Chairman notifies the Chief Executive)
if they become aware thot they, or any
of their connected partias, may have

an interest in an existing or proposed
transaction with the Company or the
Group. Directors have a continuing duty
1o update any changes to these conflicis.

Political donations
No poiiticat donations were made during
the year ending 2016.
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Othey information

Incorporated by reference
The following inforrmation in the Sirategic
Report is incorporated into this Directors’

Report by reference:

Results and divitend Page |
Post balance sheet events  Poge 109
Greenhouse gos emissions Page 47

Financial instruments and
financialrisk manogement  Page 29

Employrment of disobled
persons/Employee

involvement Page 44

The Corporate Governance Stalement
on pages 50 to 95 and the Statement of
Diractors’ responsibilities on page 99 are
incomarated info this Directors’ Repoct
by referance.

Management Report

This Directors' Report together with the
strategic report and other sections from
the cnnual report forms the Management
Report tor the purpases of DTR 4.1.8R.

Annual General Meeling

The Annual General Mesting of the
Company will be held at 3 Rivergate,
Temple Quay, Bristol BS! 4GD, at 10.00 am
on 11 May 2017, Formal nolice of the
meeling I given on pages 155 to 159.

Resolution 14:

Authotity to allot shares

In addition to the ordinary busingss of the
meating, Resolution 14 will be proposed
as an ordinary resclution to grant the
Directors authority to aliot shares in the
Company, and grant rights 1o subscribe
for or 1o convert any security into shares
of the Company, up to an aggregate
nominal value of £18,505,732 (representing
approximately one third of the issued
share capital of the Company as of the
date of this report). In accordance with
guidelines issued by the Investment
Association, this resclution also granis the
Directors authority to aliot further eguity
securities up to an aggregate nominal
value of £18,505,732. agadin representing
opproximately one third of the nominat
vaiue of the issued share capital of the
Company as of the date of this neport.
This additional guthority may only be
applied to fully pre-emptive rights issues.

Resolutions 15 and 14:
Disapplication of pre-emption
rights resolutions

If the Drectors wish to Gllot new shares
and other equily securities for cash {other
than in connechon with an employee
share scheme), company law requires
that these shares are offered first to the
shareholders, in proportion to their existing
hoidings. The Directors consider it desirable
to have the maximum flexibility permitted
by corporate governance guidelines

o respond fo market developments

and ¢ enable allotrnents 1o loke ploce
to finonce business opportunities without
moking a pre-emptive offer 1o existing
sharehoiders. This cannot be done under
the Companies 2006 Act uniess the
shoreholders have first waived their
pre-emption rights. The purpose of
Resclutions 15 and 16 [together the
‘disapplication of pre-emptions nghts
resolutions’] is ko enabie shareholders

10 50 waive their pre-emplion righis.

Resolution 15 authorises the Directors to
allot new shares pursuant to the authorty
given by Resolution 14 {the alictment
resolution} for cash:

{a} In connection with a rghts issue
or pre-emptive ssue: and/or

{b] Otherwise up to a nominal value
of £2,775,859, equivalent to
approximatety 5% of the total
ksued ordinary share copital of
the Company as of the date of this
report, in each case without the
shares first being offerad to existing
shoreholders in proportion to their
existing holdings.

Resolution 16 additionaily authorises the
Directors to aliot new shares for cash.
without the shares first being offered to
existing shareholders in proportion o their
existing hokdings. in connection with the
financing lor refinancing. if the authority
is 10 be used within six months ofter the
otfginal transaction) of an acquisition

o specified capital investment which

i annouyncaed contemporaneausly with
the allotment or which has taken place
in the preceding six-month period and

s disclosed in the announcernent of the
aliotment. The authority under Resolution
14 is imited 1o a nominal value of
£2.775.85%. equivalent to approxirmnatety
5% of the nominai value of the ordincry
share capital of the Company in issue

as at the date of this report.

7

Taken together, these disaopplication of
pre-emption rights resolutions will allow
he Directors to issue new shares for
cash without offering the shares first

to existing shoreholders in propeortion to
their existing hoidings under the
following circurnstances:

» Inconnection with q rights issue or
other pre-emptive issue, with a nominal
volue equivalent to two-thirds of the
present issued share capital (which will
aliow the Directors to make exclusions
or such other arangements as may be
appropriate 10 resotve legal or
practical problems which, for example,
might orise with overseas shareholders);

» For any other purpase, with a nominal
value equivalent to 5% of the present
issued share capitat and

? In connection with the financing
or refinancing of on acquisition or
specified capitalinvestment which i
announced contemporaneousty with
the allotment ar which has foken plkace
in the prececding six-month period and
Is disclosed in the announcement of
the allotment, with a nominal value
equivalent lo 5% of the present issued
share capital but subject to an
overall aggregote limit equivalent
to two-thirds of the present issued
share capital,

The Directors intend to adhere to the
provisions in the Pre-Emption Group's
Sialement of Principles, as updated in
March 2015, and not to aliot shares for
cash on a non-pre-emptive basis
pursuont to the quthority in Resolution 15
either in excess of on amouni aquai to 5%
of the total issued ordinary share capital
of the Company orin excess of an
armoun! equal to 7.5% of the total issued
ordhinary share capital of the Company
within a roling three-year period, without
prior consvitation with sharehokders.

Even though adherence to the principles
would not preciude issuances under the
cauthornity sought under Resolution 16, the
Direciors cumently do not intend to use
suctt authority without prior consuliation
with leading shareholders.

The allotment ond the disapplication

of pre-ermiption rights resolutions comply
with the Share Capital Management
Guidelines issued by the investment
Asscciation in July 206 and the
disapplication of pre-emption rights
rasolutions follow the resoiution templatas
issued by the Pre-Empftion Group in

Moy 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

if the resolutions are passed, the authorities
will expire ot the conclusion of the next
Annual Generol Meeting of the Company
or, if earfier, 10 August 2018, this being the
date 15 months from the passing of the
resalutions, whichever is the earlier.

Resolution 17:
Amend Article 94 (Directory' fees)

of the Arlicles of Assaciation
Resclution 17 s a proposal to omend
Article 94 of the Articles of Association

to increase the limit on Directors' service
fees (as distinef from saiary, rernuneration
and other payments to the executive
directors} from the curent £500,000 to
E£750,000 per annum. This is 1o allow the
Company some headroam in relation to
any further appointments of Non-Executive
Directors or increases in Dectors fees.
There is no curent intention to utilise the
proposed increased limit and the lavel of
fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors
will continye to be monitored by the
Board, which intends that all such feas
should be in line with market proctice.

Resolution 18:

Notice of General Meetings

The Companies (Sharehoiders’ Rights|
Regulations 2007 (the Shareholders’
Rights Regulations). increosed the nolice
pericd for general mestings of the
Company to 21 days unless sharsholders
approve ashorter notice pericd, which
cannot be less than 14 clear days. At the
annual general meefing of the Company
held in 2015, snareholders authorised the
calling of general meetings, other than
an annual general meating, on not less
tharn 14 clear days' natice. Resolution 18
seeks the approval of shareholders to
renew the authority to be able to call
general meetings ([other than an annual
general meeting) on 14 cleor days’
notice, The flexibility offered by Resolution
18 wil be usad where, faking into occount
the circumstances. the Directors consider
this appropriate in relation to the business
of the meeting and in the interests of the
Company and shareholders as g whole.
The Compony underiakeas to meet the
requirements for electronic voting under
the Shareholders' Rights Reguiafions
before calling o generol meeting on 14
clear days’ notice. If given, the approval
will be effective until the Compony's

next annuct general meeting, when it is
inlended that a similar resolution will

be proposed.

By order of the Board

Christopher Szpojnarowicz
Company Secretary
22 February 2017
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and Accounts ond the
Group and parent company finoncial
stoterments in accondance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors

to prepare Group and parent company
financial statements for each financial
vear. Under that iaw they are required o
prepare the Group financiol statermaents
in accordance with IFRSs as cdopted by
the EU and applicable law and have
elected to prepare the parent company
financial statements on the same basis.

Under company law, the Directors must
not approve the financial siaterments
unless they are satisfied that they give

o true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and parent company and
of their profit or loss for that period.

In preparing each of tha Group ond
parent company financial statements.
the Directors are required fo:

» Select suilable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently

» Make judgments and estimates that
gre reasonable and prudant

> State whether they have been prepared
n accordance with IFRSs as edopted
by the EU

» Prepare the financial sictements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the parent company
will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequote accounting records that ore
sufficient to show and explain the parent
company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at aony time the
financial position of the parent company
and enable them to ensure that its
financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006, They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open o them to safeguard
the assels of the Group and to prevent
and detect froud end other imegularities.

Under applicable law and regulations,
the Directors are also responsibie for
preparing a Directors’ Report, Directors'
Remunermation Report and Corporate
Governance Statement that comply
with that law and those regulations.

The Direclors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website.
Legisiation in the UK goveming the
preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from
legisiotion in other jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors, the name of whom
are set cut on pages 54 and 55, confirms
that to the best of his or her knowledge:

» The Annua! Report and accounts taken
as a whole is fair, balonced and
understandable and pravides the
informaticn nacessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's position

and performance, business modet
and strotegy

The financiol statements, prepared in
accordence with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets, éabilifies,
financial pesition and profit and loss

of the Cornpany and the undertakings
incliuded in the consolidation taken

as awhole

The Directors' Reportincludes

a fair review of the development

and performance of the business

and the position of the issuer ang

the undertakings included in the
consclidation faken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principalrisks ond uncertainties that
they face.

w

v

R Smith J Uister
Director Director
22 February 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

Opinion on financial sialements of The Unite Group plc

Ouwr opinion on the financial siatements is unmodified
In our opinion:

> the financial statements give a frue and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s offairs as
ot 31 December 2016 and of the Group's prefit for the year then ended;

> the Group finoncial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with International Finoncial Reporting
Slandards {IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union;

> the parent company finoncial statements have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurepeaan Union and as applied in occordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; ond

> the finoncial statements have been prepared in accordonce with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ond,
as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulafion.

The financial staterments comprise the Consolidated and Company balance sheets, the Consolidated income staternent, the
Consokdated staterment of comprehensive income. the Consolidoted and Company siatement of changes in sharaholders” equity,
the Consolidated and Company statements of cash Rows and the related notes. The financial reporting frarmework that has been
appled in ther preparation s appicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union ond, as regards the parent company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Golng concem and the directors’ assessment of the principal risks that would fiwealen the solvency

or iquidity of the Group

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’ statement regarding the opproprateness of the going concem basis
of aceounting contained within the Regulatory disclosures section of the Govemance report ta the financial staterments and the
directors’ statement on the longer-terr viabdity of the Group contained within the strategic report on page 25.

We have nothing material to odd or draw attention 1o in relation to:

> the directors’ confirnation on page 99 thot they have carried out o robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group, including those fhat would threaten ifs business model, fufure performeance. solvency of liquidity:

> the disclosures on poges 24 1o 29 that describe those risks and exploin how they are being managed or mitigated:

> the directors' statement in section | to the financiol statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in praparing therm and ther identification of any material uncerainties to the Group's
ability to continue to do so over a period of ot least twelve months from the date of approval of the finoncial statements;

> the director's explanotion on page 99 as to bow they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they
have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expeclation that the Group will be abile to continue in operation and meet its liakilities as they fall due over
the period of ther assessment. including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications
or ossumplions,

We agreed with the directors” odoption of the going concem basis of accounting and we did not identify any such material
uncertainties. However, because not di future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not g guarantee as to the
Group's abiliity to continue as a going concem.

Independence

We are required to comply with the Financiol Reporting Council's Ethical Standards for Audfitors and we confm that we are
independent of the Group and we have fulfifed our other ethical responsiilities in gccordance with thase stondards, We glso confirm
we have not provided any of the prohibited non-audit services referred 16 in those standiards.

Qur assessment of risks of material misstatement
The assessed risks of material misstatement described below are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy,
the allocation of resources in the oudit and drecting the efforts of the engagement teom.

Last year our report nciuded a risk around the recognition of defermed tax assets, which & not included in our report this year. We have
idenfified a new risik relating to the impact of tne Group becoming a REIT on 1 January 2017 as the REIT transition has had a significant
impact on the measurement and presentation of defered tax assets and liabilities.

The description of risks below shouict be read in conjunchion with the significant issues considered by the Audit Commiltee discussed
an page 66.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audil of the finandial statements as o whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opnion on these maters.
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Risk: investiment and development property vaiuation (£2,2746.4 million)

The Group's principal ossefs are investment properties and invesiment properties under development that ore either owned on
batance sheet or through the investments that the Group holds in LSAV and USAF. The investiment properties are caried at far value
based cn an appraisal by the Group's indepencent externai valuers who camy out the valuations at ske-monthly intervals for the Group
in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation — Professional Standards (the *Red Book '), taking into
account ransoctional evidence durng the yeor.

Management conduct g detaied exercise in the assessment of the valuation of the Group's property porttalia. The valuation of these
properties is underpinned by a nurmber of judgements and assumphions, such as property yields, rental growth, occupancy and
property management costs. A small change in these assumptions could have a signiicant impact on the valuation of properfies
and, with respect o the valuation of the USAF properties, could also have a significant impact on a key input fo the caicuiation of
the performance fee recognised for the year ended 31 December 2014 os this 5§ based on the net asset value of the fund.

with regards to the investrment properties under development, odditional judgement is required 1o forecast discoynted cash fiows
with a deduction for Construction costs o complete.

Refer to Section 3.1: Wholly owned property qssets
How the scope of our audif responded to the risk

We performed testing on the property valuations and ariticclly assessed the judgements and estimates that had been made.
This work included:

82uUDLIBADE BjrodIoD

> Understanding and documenting the underlying business process ond then evaluating the design, determining
implementation and testing operating effectivaness of the relevont controls;

> Understanding and challenging the assumptions taken in relation to key drivers such as rental income and growth,
occupancy, yiekds and costs with reference to the trends at the end of the yecr and the following year's budget and
Group's strotegic plon:

> Meeling with the Group’s valuers fo ungerstand the assumptions being token and consistency of the judgements
with prior year:

> Working with our valuation speciaiists within our Deloitte Real Estate team to validate the assumptions used against
market data;

> Assessing the Group's developmant appraisal process through meeting with the development teom ond assessing
the forecast cost to complete against budget and substanfive testing of costs incured te date; ond

> Use of data analytic tools to determine whether there were any anomalies in the valuation spreadsheet data sent
to the valuers.

Key obseivations
We are satisfied with the approach and methodoiogy adopted in vaiuing the property portfolio and consider the valuations to be
suitable for inciusion in the financial statements at 31 December 2016

Risk: ac:counting for joint ventures (£692.9 million)

A sigrificant proportion of the Group's assets are held within USAF and LSAV which are jointly owned entities that are gccounted for
as joint ventures. At 31 December 2014 Unite had a 23% ownership in USAF and 50% ownership in LSAV, and acts as manager of both
joint venture vehiclas.

Due 1o the complexity of the contractuol arangements, and the Group's role as manager of the joint venture vehicles, the
assassment of control involves judgements around ¢ number of significant factors, parficulonty with regards fo USAF given that itis @
mutti-investor fund and the Unite ownership stake is subject to change. In accorgance with IFRS 10, there & a need fo assess contral
with regards to the abiity to direct relevant activities, hove exposure to variable retums and the ability to use power to offect retums

at each reporting period.

Refer to Section 3.4: Investments in joint ventures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

CONTINUED

How the scope of our audii responded to the risk

QOur audit procedures on this area focussed on assessing the activities of the businesses, understanding the contractual ogreements
n place and identifying the methodoiogy applied by management in reaching ther business decisions in order to consider the
appropriateness of the classification of these arangements as joint ventures n accordance with the requirerments of IRS 10.

with regards to both USAF and LSAV, we have:

>  Understocd and documented the undertying business process and evaiugted the design, determined implementotion
and tested operating effectivenass of the relevant controls;

> crficolty assessed the key activities and how they impact the returns fo the Group from the funds and challenged
Management's own consideration of these factors in their application of IFRS 10 and

> assessed the Group’s monitoring of its role and the three key factors relating to control and its exercise in accordance
with the judgement required under IFRS 10.

Given the parficular focus on USAF, we have:

> assessed the role of the USAF Advisory Committee (which represents the inferests of all unithokiers) on an on-going basis,
including cbtaining evidence as to how it has carried out its duties and evoluated where decisions were taken that gid
rnot involve the Committee as to indicalions of the ability of the Group to exercise control; and

> aritically evaluated the impact of the percentage ownership on a regular basis.

Key observafions

There has been no change to the structura and underlying assumptions on determination of control of USAF and LSAV in the
pericd and the role played by Unite as investor and asset/development manager.

we consider the treatment as joint ventures to be appropriate,

Risk: REIT fransifion

The Group possasses significant potential deferred tax liabilities in reiation 1o futura gains on investment properties and unit trusts
and also significant potential deferred tax assets in respect of lax losses. The recognition of both liabilities and assets depend
on an assessment of forecast taxable profits, forecasts themssalves primarily dependent on the conversion to REIT status on

1 January 2017. The recognition of both defered tax assets and fiabilifies in this period therefore involves judgements regarding
their appropriate treatment on REIT conversion and assessment of the certainty of conversion and ongoing maintenance of
REIT status.

Refer to Section 2.5: Tax

How the scope of our audit responded to the dsk
Our audit proceduras ncluded:

> Understanding and documenting the underlying business process and then evaluating the design, determining
implementation and testing opsrating effectiveness of the relevant controls:

> working closely with our tax audit specialist team, including newty infroduced REIT specialists, to ensure that the key
judgements relating to REIT fransition are understood:

» considering the cClarity and presentation of the Group's disclosures of its tax balances and effective tax rate reconciiation;
and

> testing the Group's curent and forecast compliance wilth the REIT regime rulas.

Key observalions

we are sotisfied with Management's assessment of the impact of RET conversion on the defered fax position of the Group and agree
with the resulting credit of £39.8m on the derecognition of deferred tax previously recognised on revalugtion of investment properties,
accelerated capital allowances and property businass tax losses. We consider the presentotion of the discikosures of the fax balances
and effective tax rale reconcliation to be appropriate.
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Our application of materiality

We define materniaity as the magnitude of missiaternent in the financial statements that makes it probable that the ecenomic
deckions of areasonably knowledgeable person woukd be changed or influenced. We use materiaity both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

We deterrnined maleriality for the group 1o be £14.8 milion (201 5: £9.3 million), which is |.0% of net assets (2015: 1% of net assets}.

In addition fo net assets, we consider the EPRA earmings measure 1o be a critical financial perfformance measure for the Group and
we have applied a lower threshold of £3.0 million (2015: £3.1 millon| based on 5% of EPRA earnings {2015; 5% of EPRA eomings) for
testing of revenue, cost of sales, operatling expenses, loon interest and similar charges, finance income, share of joint venture profit

and taxation,

We agreed with the Audit Commitiee that we woulkd report 1o the Committee of qudit differences in excess of £153,000 {2015:
£184,000}, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, wamanted reporfing on qualitative grounds. We ako report
to the Audit Committee on disclosure matiers that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financiai statements,

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our group oudit was scoped by oblgining an understanding of the Graup and its environment, including Group-wide confrols, and
assessing the risks of materal misstaternent at the Group level. The Group is audited by one audit team, Jed by the Senior Statutory
Auditor. The audit is performed centrally, as the books and records for each entity within the Group are mantained ot head office.
we also tested the consolidation process and camed out analytical procedures 1o confirm our conclusion that there werg no
significant risks of material misstaternent of the aggregated financial information, We audit ak of the Group's subsidionies and joint
ventures which are subject to audit ot statutory materiality level, which in many cases is substanfialy lower than Group materiality'.

Opinion on other maiters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:

aoucuBACE sjo0dI0])

> the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006: and
> the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial

stalements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Maditers on which we are required to report by excepfion

Adequacy of explandations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we ofe required 10 repor! to you 1, in our opinion:

> we have not received all the information ond explanations we require for cur qudit; or
> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or refurns adequate for our cudit have not

been received from branches not visited by us; or
> the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these motier.

Direciors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are ako required to report if in our opinion cevtain disckosures of direciors’ remuneration have not
been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and

retums. We have nothing to report arising from these matters.

Corporate Govemance Statement
Under the Listing Rules we are ako required to review port of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s
cormpiance with certain provisions of the UK Coparate Governance Code. We have nothing o report arising from our review.

Q
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

CONTINUED

Ouwr duty to read other information in the Annual Report
Under Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and relond). we are required to report to you if, in our ¢pinion, information in the
annudl report .

>  matenally inconsistent with the informetion in the audited financial statements; or

> apparently materially incomect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acquired in the
coursa of performing our audit: or

> otherwise misleading.

In particulor, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies betweern our knowledge acquired during
the audit and the drectors’ statement Ihat they consider the annual report s for, balanced and understaondable and whether the
annual report approprictely decloses those matters that we communicated to the audit committee which we consider should have
been disclosed. we confiem that we have not identified any such inconsistencies or misleading statements.

Respective responsibilities of directors and audtor

As explained more fully in the Drectors’ Responsibiliies Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financal
statements and for being satisfied that they give a rue and far view. Qur responsibility is 1o oudit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in occordance with applicable low and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and reland}. We also comply
with Intermational $tandard on Quality Contral 1 UK and Irelond). Our audit methodotogy and 1ools aim to ensurs that our quality
confrol procedures ore effective, undersiood ond appked. Our quality controk and systems include our dedicated professional
stondords review team and independent partner reviews.

This repart is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006.
Ouwr audit work has been underiaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we gre required to stale to
thexm in an auditor’s repornt and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assurne responsioility
to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a bodly, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Scope of the audit of the financial stafements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial staterments are free from material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or eror. This includes an
assessment of, whether the occounting polficies are appropriate fo the group's and the parent compony's circumstances and have
been consistently appled and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the drectors;
and the overall presentation of the financial siatements. In addition, we read all the financiol and non-financial information in the
annual report 1o identify material inconsistencies with tha audited financial staterments and to identify any information that is
opparenity materialy incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with. the knowtedge acguired by us in the course of performing
the audit. if we bacome awore of ony apparent materiol misstatements or inconsistencies, we consider the implications for our report.

Nt M

Judith Tacon (Senior skatulory audiior)

for and on behalf of Defolie LLP

Charlered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

22 February 2017
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Thasa financial stialements are prapared in accordance with IFRS. The Board of Direclon alia prasent the Group's performonce
o on the basis recommancied for real eslole companies by the Europeon Publc Real Estabe Associalion (EPRA). The reconcliofion
between IFRS performance measures and EPRA performance measures can be found in Section 2.2 b} for EPRA sarmings
and 2.3 ) for EPRA net asset value (NAV). The adjusiments to the IFRS resulls are infended fo help users in the comparabliity
of these resulls across other isted real estale companies in Europe and reflect how the directors monitor Ihe business.
We have grouped the notes to the inancial stalements under six main headings:
> Resulls for the year, including segmental informvalion, EPRA eomings and EPRA NAV
> Assat management
> Funding
>Working capital
> Key management and smployse benefits o
>Company subsidiaries and Joint ventures §
Each section sets out the relevant accounting policies applied In these finoncial statements together with the key 3
judgements ond eslimates used. s
Q@
Primary stalements §
Conschdated income siatement 3
Consoldated statement of comprehensive income a
Consoidated balance sheet °
Company balonce sheet

Consofdated siatement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Statements of cash flows
Section 1: Boshs of preparation
Section Z Results for the year
2.1 Segmental information
2.2 Eamings
2.3 Net assets
2.4 Revenue and costs
2.5Tax
2.6 Audit fees
Section 3: Asset manogement
3.1 wholly cwned property assets
32inventories
3.3 Other non-current ossets
3.4 Investments in joint ventures
3.5 Investrnents in subsidiaries
Secthion 4; Funding
4.1 Borowings
4.2 Interest rate swaps
4.3 Net financing costs
4.4 Gedxing
4.5 Financial risk factors
4.6 Operating leases
4.7 Capitgl monagement
4.8 Equity
4.9 Dividends
Section 5: Waorking copital
5.1 Cash and cash equivalents
5.2 Trade anct other receivables
5.3 Credit risk
5.4 Trade and other payabies
5.5 Transactions with other group companies
Section &: Key management and smployes benefils
6.1 Staff numbers ond costs
4.2 Key management personnel
6.3 Share based compensation
Seciion 7: Evenls after the bolonce sheet dale
Secfion 8: Company subsidiaries ond joint ventures —
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2015 215
Note Im £m
Rental ncome 2.4 LA 930
Property sales ond cther income 2.4 23.6 1158
Totdl revenue 120.7 2088
Cost of sales 24 (44.9) {1149}
Operating expenses (25.0) {28.5)
Results from operating aclivities 508 45.4
Profit/{Loss) on disposal of property a4 {0.6)
Net valuafion gains on property 31 72 1648
Proftt belore net finoncing cos's 126.4 229.6
Loan interest and similor charges 43 {20.9) (22.6)
Mark to market changes in interast rate swaps 43 - (0.6}
Swap cancellation costs 43 {1.0) -
Finonce cosls 43 (21.9) {232)
Finance incomea 43 0.1 0.2
Net llnﬂnclng cosls 4.3 {21.8) {23.0)
Share of joint venture profit 3.4b 94.8 181.8
Profit belore tax 2014 o84
Cumrent fax 25 {2.3) (+.6}
Deferred tax 25 27.3 [3E.1}
Profit for the yeor 244 3557
Profit for the yeaor alifbutable o
Owners of the parent company 22c 224.0 asle
Minarity interest 2.4 38
2244 355.7
Eomings per share
Basic 22c 101.3p 164.2p
Diuted 22¢c 94.7p 150.3p
All results are derived frorn continuing activities,
For the year ended 31 December 2014
20% Dis
Note £m &m
Profit for the yeor 224.4 355.7
Movements in effective hedges 42 (7-2) e
- Delemed tox in rekition 1o movements in effective hedges 25d (1.1) 1.0
Gains on hedging instruments fransferred to income statemant within mark to market
changes in inferest rate swaps - 03
- Defemed tax in relation to hedging inshuments transfemed to income staterment - 0.1}
Share of joint venture movements in effective hadges 34b {14} 0.5
- Delered tax in relation o share of joint venture moverments in effective hedges 2.5d (0.5) [0.1}
Other comprehensive ncome for the year {12.2) [0.2)
Total comprshemive income for the yeaor 2142 3555
Alttoutoble fo
Owners of the parent company 211.8 3514
Minority interast 24 39
2142 355.5

Al other comprehensive income may be clossified as profit and loss in the fulwre,
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oo
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET .
o
At 31 December 2016 3
)
g
g
F T 015
Note tm £m
Assets
Investment property 3.3 1,061.6 10244
Investment property under development 3 184.6 149.8
Investment in joint ventures 34b 4929 610.6
Other non-current assets 33 ad:) 24.5
Deferred tax asset 2.5d - 1.0
Tolal non-cument assets 1.968.9 1.810.3
Inventories 3.2 29 34 0
Trade and other receivaiies 5.2 719 830 8
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 42,7 270 g
Totol cument assets 1235 134 3
Toted ansets 2,0924 1,923.9 g
a
Liabitties §
Bomowings 4. (1.3) {31.3)
Trade and other payables 54 (2n [115.5)
Current 1ax licibility (2.4) (2.3
Total curent Rabilities (127.4) (149.1)
Borrowings 41 {473.5) (443.8)
Interest rate swaps 4.2 [11.8) (2.3)
Defered tax kobility 2.5d (4.4) 310
Totol non-cument labilties {489.5) (477.1)
Total Robliilles {614.9) (4262}
Net assais 14755 12917
Equity
Issued share capital 4.8 555 h5.5
Share premium 48 493.6 493.3
Merger reserve 402 402
Retcined eamings 847.9 679.5
Hedging resarve (15.0) (28}
Equity portion of convertible instrument 4.1 9.4 9.4
Equily aifribuiabile to the owners of the parent compoany 1.451.6 1.275.1
Minority interest 239 224 0
Totul equity 1A75.5 1.297.7 2
=
These financial statements of The Unite Group plc, registered number 3199160 were approved by the g
22 February 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:
R S Smith 1) Lister 8
Director Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2016

0% 015

Nole 2 £m
Asseis
Investments in subsidiicries s 7254 4£48.3
Total investmenis 7254 64B8.3
Loan to group undertaking 3.5 179.9 179.9
Total non-cument assets $05.3 828.2
Amounts due from group undertakings 5.2 B4 639.3
Cash and cash equivaients 5.1 - -
Total curent assets 686.4 6393
Toldl ossats 1.59.7 1447.5
Current labiitles
Borowings 4.1 {0.1) (1.4
Amounts due to group undertiakings 54 {1.3) {58.2)
Other poyables 5.4 (3.0) {2.7)
Tofal cument kabiifies {£4) (62.3)
Bomowings 4.1 (175.3) (i73.0)
Total non-curent lobliiltes (175.3) (173.0)
Tolal iabiiies (179.7} (235.3}
Net assels 1432.0 12322
Equity
Issied share capital 55.5 58.5
Share prermium 493.4 493.3
Merger reserve 402 40.2
Retained aoamings 8133 4338
Equity porfion of intercompany loan .4 9.4
Total sqully 1.412.0 1.232.2

Total equity is wholly atiributoble to equity holders of The: Unite Group pkc.

Trhese financial staterments of The inite Group pic, registered number 31991 60 were gpproved by the Boord of Directors on
22 February 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

RS Smih 1 J Lister
Dirsctor Diractor

e A
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————
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES .
’ g
IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 3
o
For the year ended 31 December 2015 g.
Ecplly porfion Altriovtable
[T ] Share Marger Ralcined Hedging o converible 0 ownes Mincelty
share caplial premivm reserve eamings L] irwirument of the parent Inderest Tokat
tm tm m tm tm £m £&m tm m
Al Y Jonuary 2016 55.5 4933 40.2 &79.5 (2.8) 4 1,275.1 226 1.297.7
Profit for the year - - - 2240 - - 240 24 2264
Moverments in effective
hedges (net of ! ‘
associated defered fax] - - - - (122) ) - (122) - (122).
Totol comprehensive
income for the year - - - 224.0 (122) - FARR ] 24 2142 o
Shares issued - 0.3 - - - 03 - 0.3 Q
Deferred tax on share §
based paymaeants - - - 0.1) - - {0.1) - (0.1) S
Far value of share based «
payments ~ - - 12 - - 12 - 12 g
Own shares acquired - - - 25 - - (2.5) - 2.5 2
Dividends paid to owners 3
of the parent company - - - (34.2) - - (34.2) - (342) - @
Dividends to minority
interest - - - - - - - (R} ()
At 31 December 2014 55.5 493,46 402 867.9 {15.0) 2.4 1,451.4 239 14755
Ecualy poron Atmbiibie
Bsyped Share Marger Retainec Hagong of commanbie 1o W e Aanorty
share capiia premium neserwe eamnings reserve nstrument of the parant nienest Total
£m £m £m £m Em m £m £m £m
At 1 Jonwary 2015 504 3858 402 3592 (2.5) 5.4 842.5 19.8 8462.3
Profit for the year - - - 3519 - - 3519 8 3558.7
Other comprehensive
income for the yeaor - - - - {0.3) - {0.3) a1 0.2}
Total comprehensive
income for the yeor - - - 518 {0.3) - 351.4 39 355.5
Showres issued 5.1 107.5 - - - - 1126 - 1124
Deferred fax on share
bared payments - - - 08 - - 08 - 08
Foir value of share based
payments - - - 29 - - 29 - 2.9
Own shares acquired - - - {3.4) - - {3.4} - {3.4)
Dividends paid io owners
of the parent company ~ - - 31.9) - - 131.9} - [31.9}
Dividends to minority
interast - - - - - - - {r.1) {1.1}
Al 31 December 2015 555 4933 402 679.5 (2.8) 9.4 1,275.1 2.6 1.297.7

The notes on pages 112 to 153 form part of the financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the year ended 31 Decemicer 2015

oo Shae Marger Reicined Equity poriion of

share coplal premium Ve eqmings  Indercompany loan Toiad

tm £m tm tm £m m

Al 1 Janucory 2016 565 4933 w2 4338 7.4 12322
Profit for the year & other comprehensive income - - - 2137 - 137
Shares issued - 0.3 - - - 0.3
Divickends 1o sharehokders - - - (34.2) - (34.2)
At 31 December 2014 555 493.6 402 813.3 4 14120

bsuad Shae Merger Retanec Equety portion of

share copial prefmium reserve agrwyp  niacompony loon Tota

£m £m £rm £m £m £m

At 1 Jonuary 2015 50.4 3685.9 40.2 3rsa T4 8416
Profit for the year & other comprehensive incorme - - - 899 - 2899
Shares ssued 5.1 107.5 - - - 1124
Dividends to sharehoiders - - - [31.9) - (31.9)
At 31 December 2015 55.5 493.3 402 6328 ?.4 1,232.2

The notas on pages 112 to 153 form part of the financikal statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

podas xBeiong

Group Comparny
e s Fi1] X5

Note tm £m &m £m
Cash flows from operciing aclivities 5.1 70.3 1208 (2.6} {(22)
Cash fiows from faxalon {23) (0.3) - -
Investing activilies
Proceeds from saie of invesiment property 126.1 {0.81 - -
Payments to/on behalf of subsidiaries - - (157.4) {194.9)
Payments from subskdiaries - - 59.1 54.4 O
Repayment received of joint venture investment ioan - - - - ]
Loan 1o joint ventures - {30.5) - - g
Dividends received 292 229 1393 557 g
Interest received 0.1 0.2 - ~ Q
nvestrment in join! venfures - (52.4j - ~ éi
Acquisition of intangible assets (8.2) {7.7) - ~ g
Acquiition of property (131.0) (94.3) - -~ ©
Acquisition of plant and equipment 7 o A ey =~
Cosh flows from Investing ocliviies 1313 {148.5) 41.0 (84.8)
Financing aciivities
Interest paid in respect of financing activities (3.7) {21.8) (5.5) (5.5)
ineffective swap payments - [2.3) - -~
Swap cancellation costs {1.0) - - -
Proceed:s from the issue of share capital 0.3 1126 03 112.6
Payments to acquire own shares 25 {3.4) - -
Proceeds from non-Curent borowings 99.0 17.6 23 1.8
Repayment of borowings {102.3) (38.1) - -
Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company (34.2) (31.9) (34.2) 31.9)
Dividends paid to minority inierr’esiﬂ o [¢R)] {+.n - =
Cash flows from financing aclivilies (45.5) 334 (37.7) 7o
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 18.7 {14.4) 1.3 (100}
Cash and cash equivalents of start of yeor o ) 270 41,4 (1.4) 8.6
Cash ond cash equivolents at end of year 5.1 42.7 270 (0.1) (1.4)

Q
g
T
g
g
g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 1: Basls of preparation

This section lays out the Group's accouniing policles thal relale fo the finoncial ialements as a whols. Where an occounling
policy Is speciic to o parficular note to the finoncial sialemaents, the policy Is described in the hote to which R relates and has
been clearly idenifled in a box.

The financiat statements consolidate those of The Unite Group ple, {the Company} and its subsidiaries (together referred 1o as
the Group] and include the Groug's interests in jointly confrolled entities. The parent company financid statements present
information about the Company as a separate entity ond not as o group.

Both the parent company financiol siatements and the Group financial statements hove been prepared in accordance with
Interaitional Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU [Adopted IFRS) and approved by the Directors. On publishing
the paren! company financial staterments here together with the Group financial stiatements, the Company & toking advantage
of the exernpfion in 5408 of the Componies Act 2006 not 1o presen) its individual incorne staterment and related nates.

The accounting policies have been appled consistantly to all paricds presented in these consolidated financial statements.
The Company is domicled in the bniled Kingdom.

Going concem

The Group's business activities, together with the factors fikely to affect ifs future developrnant and position are set out i the Strategic
Repart on pages | to 49. In addifion, section 4 of these Notes 1o the financicl statements inciudes the Group's objectives, poiicies and
processes for managing its capital; detais of its bomowings ond interest rate swaps: ond in note 5.3 its exposwre fo credit rsk.

The Group has prepared cash flow projections three yeans forward to December 2019 and the Group has sufficient headroom

to meet all its commitments. The Group added £100m ta an existing faciiity duing 201 6 and this together with existing faciities wil

be syfficient fo fund the Group's commiiments over tha next ihrea years. The Group maintains posifive relationships with ifs lending
banks and has historicolly sscured new faciities betore maturity dates and remained within its covenant levels. The Group s in ful
compliance with its covenants at 31 December 20146. Owr debt fachities include loan-to-vaie, interast cover and minimum net worth
covenants, ail of which have a high level of headroom. in order to manage future financial commitments, the Group operate a
formal approval process, theough its Major investment Approvals committee, 1o ensure appropriate review i undertaken before

any kansactions are Qoreed.

The Directon consider that the Group has adequate resowrces fo continue In cperational existence for the foreseeable future.,

Measurement convention
The financiol staternents are prepored on he histoncol cost basis except for nvestment property, nvestment property under
development, investments in subsidianes and inferest rate swaps ai of which are stated at ther far value.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiores are those entifies confrolied by the Company. Confrol exists when the Compaony has an existing right that gives it the
curent abilty 10 direct the relevant aclivities of the subsidiary, tas exposure o right to vanable retums from its invotvement in the
subbsidiary and has the abdity to use its power 1o alfect its returns. The financial staterments of subisidiaries are included in the
consolicated financial stalements from the date that control commences untl the dote thot contral ceases.

Infra-group bakances and transactions, and any urrediised gains ond losses arising from intro-group ransactions. such as property
disposal and manogement fees, are efiminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arsing from
fransactions with joint ventures are efiminated 1o the extent of the Group's retained interest in the entity. Unreaised losses are
ebminated in the same way as urveadlised gains except where the 10ss provides evidence of a reduction in the net reqlisable
valse of curent assets or an imparment in vale of fixed assets.
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Section 1: Basis of preparation confinuved

Impact of accounting standards and inferpretations in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Greup has not applied the lolowing new and revised IFRSs thal have
been issued but are not yet effective ond in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU:

IFRS 7 'Financial instruments”;

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’;

IFRS 16 'Leases’;

IFRS 2 (amendments) *Classification ond Measurement of Share-boased Payment Transaction’

IAS 7 {amendments] 'Disclosure Initiotive”

IAS 12 [amendments) 'Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’

IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 [amendments) *Sale or Contrdbution of Assets between an Investor ond its Associate or Joint Venture”;

VVYVVVVYY

The directors do not expect that the adoplion of the standards isted above will hove g material impact on the financial statements
of the Group in fulure periods, except that IFRS 9 wil impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments, FRS 15
may have an impact on revenue recognifion and related disclosures and IFRS 16 willimpact the reatment of leases. During 2014 the
Group continued 1o monitor the potential impact of these changes. Beyond the information above, it i not practicable to provide
a reasonable esfimate of the effect of IFRS 2, IFRS 15 and FRS 14 until o detaied review has been cormpleted.

aounuweAoB ajoiodion

Accouniing estimales ond judgemenis
The preporation of financial statements requires management fo exercise judgement in applying the Group™s accounting policies.
it also requires the use of estimates and assumgptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and hiabilties, Income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumplions are based on historicol experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reqasonabie under the circumstances, The results of which form the: basis of making judgements about camying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assurnplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis with revisions recognised in the period in which the estmates are revised
and in any luture perlods affected.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement of complexity are set aut below and are explained in more detail in the related
notes to the finoncial statemants.

The areas involving the most sensitive estimates and assumptions that are significant to the financict statements are sat out below ond
in more detail in the related notes:

[
z
Z
=
o
=
™
i~

> valuation of investment property and investment property under development (note 3.1}
The: accounting policy descriptions set out the areas where judgement needs exercising, the most significant of which i as follows:

> classification of joint venture vehicles (note 3.4)

UOUDULOILISHO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 2: Resulis for the year

This seciion focuses on the results ond performaonce of the Group and provides a reconcillation between the pdmary
o stctements and EPRA performance measures. On the following pages you will nd disciosures explaining the Group's

results lor the year, ssgmental Information, kaxallon, eamings and net asset value per share.

The Group Uses EPRA samings and NAY movement as key comparable indiculors across other real estate companies

In Ewrope.

Peiformance measures

Note e 2015
Eamings basic 2.2c £224.0m £351.9m
Eamings dited 22c £227.Tm £351.9m
Bask: eamings per share [pence] 2.2c 101.3p 164.20
Diuted eamings per share (pence) 22c 9.7p 150.3p
Net assets Basic 23c £1.451.6m £1,275.tm
Barsic NAV per share (pence) 2.3d £53p 574p
EPRA performance measures

Note s 15
EPRA eqmings 22a £42.7m £61.3m
EPRA eamings per share (pence) 22¢c 2B.4p 28.6p
Adjusted EPRA eamings 220 £61.3m £49.5m
Adjusted EPRA eamings per share (pence) 22¢c 27.7p 23.1p
EPRA NAY 230 £1,557.3m £1,394.4m
EPRA NAV per shave [pence) 23d Mép 579p
EPRA NNNAY 23c £1,517.3m £1,330.2m
EPRA NMNNAV per share [pence) 2.3d 630p 552p

2.1 Segmental iInformation
The Board of Directors monitor the business along two aclivity lines, Operations and Propenty. The reportatile segments for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are Operations and Property.

The Group undertakes its Operations and Property aclivities directly and through joint ventures with third porties. The joint ventures
are an integral part of eoch segment and are included in the information used by the Board to monitor the businass.

The Group's properties are located exclusively in the United Kingdom. The Group therefore has one geographical segment.

2.2 Eamings

EPRA eamings amends IFRS measuras by removing principally the urrealised investment property valuation gains and losses such
that users of the financials are able 10 see the extant to which dividend payments [dividend per share) are underpinned by eamings
ariing frarm purely operational activity, The reconciiotion batween Profit atibufable to owners of the parent company and EPRA
eamnings & avaikabie in note 2.2 b},

The Operations segment monages rental properfies, owned directly by the Group of by joint ventures. Ifs revenues ore derived from

rental income and asset management fees ecmed from joint ventures. The way in which the Operations segment adds vale fo the
business s set out in the Operations review on pages 30 fo 33. The Operations segment is the main contributor to EPRA eomings and

EPRA EPS and these are therefore the key indicators which are used by the Board to maenitor the Operations business.

The Board does not manage or manitor the Operations segment through the bakance sheet and therefore no segmental information
for assets and hiabiities is provided for the Operations segment.
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Section 2: Resvlts for the year confinved

2.2 Eamings conlinved
a) EPRA scmings
2014
Group on
2o
LRNITE Shesw of joind venlures banle
Tolal USAF LSAY Tota Tolal
fm m Em m £m
Rental income 971 36.9 251 420 1591 8
Property operating expenses {29.3) (10.7} (2.8) {13.5) {42.8) 3
Net operafing Income é7.8 2.2 23 £8.5 116.3 a
@
['n]
Management fees 208 @98 (4.0} (6.8) 140 2
QOperating expenseas (2.4 (0.4) 0.3) {0.n (23.1} §
=1
[e]
Operating lease renials” 3.5 - - - (13.5) i
Net financing cosls {20.8) {5.7) (5.9) {11.8) (32.4)
Operations segment result 31.9 173 121 294 613
Propedy segment result (1.0) - - - (1.0)
Unallocated fo segments 24 - - - 24
EPRA samings 333 173 12.1 294 627 k
ffiold related USAF performance fees (.9 - - - (1.4) ;
.
Adjusied EPRA eamings 3y 173 121 204 6.3 =

* Operating lease rentals arse from properties which the Group has sold ond s now leasing back, These properties were sold to generate finoncing and
they naw cortibute to the Group's rental income ond incur property operating expenses. Therefore the Group consder these ledase costs fo be a fom:
of inancing.

Included in the above is rental incame of £18.5 milion and property operating expenses of £5.9 milion relating to sale and
leqsaback properties.

the unciiocated fo segments balkonce includes the fair value of share basad payments of (£1.2 milian}, UNITE Foundation of
(£1.0 milkon}, fees received from USAF relafing to acquisitions £0.4 milian, net USAF performance fee of £4.5 million, defared tax
of (£0.3 milion) and curent fox charges of (£2.0 million).

Q
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Sechion 2: Resulfs for the year confinued

2.2 Eamings confinued
a) EPRA wamings confinued
2015
Group on
EPRA
UNTE Share of pnt ventures bass
Total USaF 1SAV Totai Total
£m &m im £m £m
Rental ncome 93.0 316 9.7 513 1443
Property operafing expenses 28.2) [9.3) {2.3) {11.6) {39.8)
Net opercting income 4.8 n3 174 M7 104.5
Managernent fees 17.5 2.2 {3.3) {5.5) 12.0
Operating expenses {21.3) [0.3) [0.3) [0.8) [21.5}
610 198 13.8 33.6 Q4.6
Operating lease rentols® {14.5) - - - [14.5)
Net financing costs (23.6) |5.4) (4.4) {100 {33.4)
Operations segment resullt »ny 142 .4 236 4.5
Propeity segmaent result (1.8} - - - (1.8)
Unallocated to segments 184 - - - 16.6
EPRA eamings 37.7 142 9.4 23.6 813
Yieid reialed USAF performance fees {11.8) - - - 11.38)
Adjusted EPRA eomings 259 142 7.4 234 49.5

* Opergling lease rentcls ase from properiies which the Group has sokd and & now leasing back. These propertes were s0kd 1o generate firancing ond
they now contripute to the Group’s rentat ncome and incur property operahng expenses, Therefore the Group consider these lease costs to be o form
of inancing.

included in the above is rental income of £20.3 millon and property operafing expenses of £4.4 mikon relating to sale and
ieaseback properties.

The unafocatad 1o segments bakance inchudes the fak value of share based payments of (£2.9 milion), UNITE Foundation of
[£1.0 miflion), fees received from USAF relafing to acquistions £1.8 mikion, net USAF perfornance fee of £20.2 million, defemed tax
of (£0.1 mifion) ond curent tax chargas of {£1.4 million),
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Secfion 2: Resulls for the year confinved

2.2 Eamings confinued

b} IFRS reconciialion fo EPRA eamings

EPRA eamings excludes movements retating to changes in vaolues of investment properfies and interest rate swaps, profits from the
disposal of properties and property impairments, which are included in the profit reported under IFRS. EPRA eamings reconcile fo the
profit attibutable to owners of the parent company as folkows:

018 015

Notg £m £m

EPRA eamings 22a 62.7 41.3
Net valuation gams on investment property 31 77.2 1448
Property disposak and write downs 0.3 5.8
Share of joint venture gains on investment property 3.4b 588 152.7
Share of joint venture property disposals and wiile downs - 0.3
Mark to market changes n inferest rate swaps*® 43 - [0.6}
Inferest rate swap payments on ineffective hedges* - 1.2
Swap cancelation costs (1.0} -
Share of joint venture swap cancelation costs 3.4b - 0.3}
Deferred tax redating to interest rate swap movemeant - 02}
Deferred tax rekating to properties 27.6 (30.9)
Minority interest share of reconciiing items™ (1.8) {32}
Prof aliributable to owners of the parent company 224.0 351.9

* Swops are designated os hedging instruments within hedge relalionships conciuded to be effective for ihe year ended 31 December 2016 and so are
repored within Other Comprehensive income for the vear. n the prior year certain hedging relatiorships were concluded 1o be ineffective ond hence
the fow value movement of the swaps desgnated as hedging instruments in those relotionshins were recorded within the Income statement rather than
Other comprehonsve income,

* The minoiity interest share., or non-controling interest. arises as @ resutt of the Compony not owning [00% of the: share capital of one of s subsdiaries,
USAF [Feeder) Guerseay Uid. More detall is provided in nate 3.4,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulls for the year continued

2.2 Eamings continved

<) Eamings per share

The Basic EPS calculation & based on the eamings atributable to the equity shareholden of The Unite Group pic and the weighted
average number of shares which have been in issue during the year. Basic EPS b adiusted in Ine with EPRA guidelines in order o allow
users o compare tha business performance of the Group with other lsted real estate companies in o consistent manner and lo refiect
how The business is managed and measured on G day to day txass. EPRA EPS and EPRA £PS pre yield reiated USAF pedormance fee
ore calkculated using EPRA eamings.

The calcukations of bosic and EPRA EPS for the year ended 31 December 2016 s as follows:

2014 is

Note m £m
Eamings
Basic 24.0 3519
Diluted 2217 351.9
EPRA 2.2a 2.7 61.3
Adijusted EPRA [excluding yield related USAF performance fee) 2.2a 1.3 42.5
Weighled average itumber of shaves (thousands)
Basic 21.013 214,304
Dilutive potential ordinary shares [converfitle bond and share aptions) 1935 19,877
Diuted 240,328 234,181
Eamings per shore (pence)
Basic 1N.3p 164.2p
Diuted 4.7p 150.3p
EPRA EPS 28 4p 28.6p
Ad]usted EPRA EPS (excluding vield reicted USAF perdformance fea) 27.7p 23.1p

Movemants in the weighted average number of shares have resutted from the issue of shares arising from the employee share based
payment schemes.

Excluded from the potentici diutive shares (share options), in 2014, are 16,838 (2015: 191,000) options which do not affect the dilutec
weighted average number of shares.
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Section 2: Resulis for the year continued

2,3 Net assets

EPRA Net Asset Value per share mokes adjustments 1o IFRS measures by principally removing some iterms that are not expected to
materiaise in nomnal ckrcumstances fike ilerms of deferred tax and the foir value of financial denivatives. The reconciiiation between
IFRS NAV and EPRA NAV is avafiable in note 2.3 ().

The Group's Property business undertakes the acquisition and development of properties. The Property segrment’s revenue cormprises
revenue from development management fees eamed from joint ventures. The way in which the Property segment odds value to the
business i set ocut in the property review on pages 34 to 39,

a) EPRA net assets
s ams
Wholly owned Showe of IV Tokal Wholy owned Share of Jvs fotal
tm tm tm £m Em £m
Investment properties 1,061.4 1.023.2 20848 1,.024.4 ao0e 1,835.2
Investment properties under development 184.6 7.2 191.8 1498 80.2 230.0
Total property porticlio 1.245.2 1,030.4 2276.6 1,174.2 .o 2,065.2
Debt on properties (474.8) (346.8) (841.6) 1475.1) [304.6) [779.7)
Cash 42.7 3.1 5.8 270 220 49.0
Net detd (432.1) (343.7) (775.8) (448.1) {282.6) (730.7)
Other assets/(liabiities) (14.8) (14.3) (28.9) (4.9 (183} 23.2)
EPRA net assels (pre convertible) 799.5 4724 L4718 T21.2 59%0.1 1L.ALS
Convertible bond* 854 - a85.4 83.1 - B83.1
EPRA net assets B84.9 8724 1,557.3 804.3 590.1 1,394.4
Lodn to value 5% 3% MR 38% kre 3 5%

* Under the tenms of the Converlible Bond. eaty conversion of the debt info equity can be inggered if the share price trades over 1.3 fimes the
conversion prnce for a period of time, see mone detalin Note 4 5b).

Hode: oifiejoug
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 2: Resulls for the year confinued

2.3 Nel asseis confinued
b) Movernent in EPRA NAV duing the year
Conributions to EPRA NAV by each segment during the year is as follows:

2014 Group on
EMRA
UNITE Share of joint veriures bomls
Tokal usAP 124V Tolal Tolat
tm tm tm [ tm
Operaitons
Operations segment result 3.9 17.3 121 294 1.3
Property
Rental growth 358 148 120 268 42,4
Yield movement 4.9 12 15 4.7 19.6
Disposois and ocquisition gains 1.0 - - - 1.0
Investment property gains 4.7 220 175 415 832
Development property goins 345 04 14.5 149 51.4
Pre-confract/other developrment costs {1.0) - - - (1.0)
Totaf property 772 22.4 4.0 564 133.6
Unaliocoted
Shares issued 03 0.3
Investment in joint ventures 33 73 (10.4) {3.3) -
Converlibie bond 23 - - - 23
Dividends paid [34.2) - - - (34.2)
USAF perfarmance fee 4.5 - - - 4.5
USAF property acquisifion fee 0.4 - - - 0.4
Swap cancelation costs {1.0) - - - {1.0)
Other (6.3} - - - (6.3)
Total vnallocated (28.7) 7.3 {10.6) (3.3) (32.0)
Tolal EPRA NAY movemant In the year 804 46.8 ass 823 142.9
Tolal EPRA NAY brought forward B804.3 305.3 2048 590.1 13944
Tolal EPRA NAY corled forward 884.9 3521 no.3 672.4 1.557.3

The £56.3 milich charge that compxises the other balkance within the unallocated segment includes a tax charge of £2.3 miion,
fair vaive of share options charge of £3.0 million and £1.0 milkon for the UNITE Foundation,



THE LWETE GROUP BLC ANNUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2818 121
- T

poda) ibajons

Section 2: Resulis for the year confinued

2.3 Net assets continued
b) Movemert in EPRA NAV duwing the year confinued

Groupon
EPRA
2015 UNTE Shame of jomt verhuaes s
Toial USAF L5AV Total Tetal
£m £m £m £m £m
QOperations
Cperations segment result 29 42 .4 234 4.5
0
Propedy Q
Rental growih 216 58 222 280 49.6 §
Yiekd movement 97.4 37.0 41.1 78.1 175.7 g
Disposals and aoquisition costs {17.3) 0.1 0.2 03 {17.0} Q
Investment property gains 101.9 429 63.5 106.4 208.3 g
Development property gans 457 - 36.1 36.1 818 2
Pre~contract/ofher development costs (1.8] - - - {1.8] @
Total property 145.8 429 9.6 1425 288.3
Unallocated
Shares issued 1126 - - - 1126
Investrment in joint ventures {57.8) 414 16.2 57.8 -
Convertible bond a3 - - - 83.1
Dividends paid 319) - - - 1319
USAF perfomnance fee 19.8 - - - 19.8 =
USAF property aocquisition fee 1.7 - - - 17 Z
Swap losses and debt exit costs (. 03 - (0.3} {1.4) =
Qther (5.4 - - - (S.4) -
Total unollocated 121.0 41.3 162 57.5 178.5 ;
:‘,’.
Total EPRA NAV movement in the yeor 289.7 98.4 1252 223.6 5133 <
Totol EPRA NAV brought forward 514.6 206.9 159.6 366.5 831
Total EPRA NAV carried lotward 804.3 305.3 284.8 §90.1 13944

The £5.4 miion charge that comprises the other bakance within the unalocated segment includes a tax charge of £1.5 midon,
fair value of share options charge of £2.9 milion and £1.0 million for the UNITE Foundation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulls for the year continved

2.3 Net assets continved

<) Reconcilation {0 IFRS

To determine EPRA NAV net assets reported under IFRS are amended to exclude the mark to market valuation of swaps, defered tax
kabiities and to recognise all propertfies at market value,

The Group also manages NAY using EPRA NNNAY, which adjusts EPRA NAY fo include the farr value of swaps and debt. Under EPRA
best praclice guidelines this is considered 1o give stakeholders the mast relevant comparable information on the cument foir value of
all the gssets and kabiities in the Group.

The Net Assets reported under IFRS reconcile o EPRA NAY and EPRA NNNAV as folows:

2016 015
. Noke tm £m
Net asset voiue reported under IFRS 14514 12751
Mark to market interest rate swaps 14.9 4.3
Deferred tax 54 g
EPRA NAV (pre convertible) 23a LAT1.Y 13113
Convertible bond 35.4 83.1
EPRA NAV 1.557.3 13744
Mark 1o market of fixed rate debt (1.0 {28.0)
Mark 10 market interest rate swaps (14.9) (4.3)
QCefered tax (5.4) {31.9)
FPRA NNNAV 1,517.3 1,3302

d} NAYV per share

Basic NAV & based on the net assets atiributable to the equity shareholders of The Unite Group pic and the number of shares in issug
at the end of the year. The Board uses EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAV 1o monitor the performance of the Property segment on a day
to day basis.

P 2015

Note tm £m
Net casets
Basic 2,3c 1,451.4 1,275.1
EPRA 2.3a 15573 1,394.4
EPRA diuted 1.552.9 1,396.7
EPRA NNNAV (diluted) 1.520.0 1.332.5
Number of shares (thoutands)
Basic 22248 222,051
Convertible bond shares 10.426 18,124
Quistanding share options 762 1,027
Diuted 241,456 241,202
Net asast volue per share (pence)
Basic 4583p 574p
EPRA 4Tp 581p
EPRA (fully divled) &44p 57%p

EPRA NNNAY {tully dhued) 430p 552p
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Secfion 2: Resulis for the year confinued

2.4, Revenve and cosls
The Group eoms revenue from the following activities:

01 b-1H]

Note im £m

Remal income Ogperations segment 22a 74 93.0
Management feas Operations segment 16.0 15.2
Development fegas Property segment 10 19
Property sales Unalocated - 770
USAF performance fee Unaliocated 7.0 22.4
1211 2095

Impact of minority interest on monagement fees (0.4} 0.7)
Tolal revenue 120.7 208.8

The cost of sales inchuded in the consolidated income statement includes property operating expenses of £30.3 milion [2015:
£28.% milion), operating lease rentals of £13.5 milion (2015: £14.5 milion). costs associated with development fees of £1.1 milion
[2015: £1.9 milion} and the canying value of property sales of £nll (2015: £69.6 million).

SounuwBAOB 810I0AND

There were no disposals of properties heid as trading propertias during 2016 and therefore no revenue was recognised. During 2015,
Strattord One. a rading asset, was sold 1o LSAV resulting in £77.0m of revenue.

Accounting policies
Revenue s recognised on the following bases:

Renialincome

Rentaiincome from property leased out under operoting leases [comprising direct lets 10 students and leases to Universities and
commercial tenants) is recognised in the Income statement on a siraight-ine basis over the tem of the lease. Lease incentives are
sometines gronted on commercial units; these are recognised os an integral part of the total rental income and spread over the
term of the lease,

Properly soles
Income relafing to the sale of frading properties is recognised once confracts for sale have been unconditionally exchanged.

Manogement ond performonce fees

The Group acts as asset ond property manager for the joint ventures ond receives management fees in reigtion to these services.
In addition, the Group is entitied to performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures outperform cerlain benchmarks.
The Group receives an enhanced aquity interest in the JVs as consideration for the performance fee.

Management and performance fees are recognised, in ling with the management coniracts, in the period to which they rekate
Qs services are provided.

Q
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year confinued

25Tax
The Group has not paid any comoration tax in the recent past due to the avaiability of capital allowances, indexation ond brought
forward losses. However, it does pay UK income tax on rental income that arises from investments held by offshore subsidianies.

Accounting policies
The tax charge for the year is recognised in The income stalement and the staternent of comprehensive income, according to the
accounting freaiment of the rekafed fransaction. The tax charge comprises bath curent and deferred tax.

Curent tax is the expected lox payable or receivable on the taxoble Income or loss for the year and any adjustment to fax payatie
in respect of previous years. The current tax charge is based on tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted at the yeor end.

Detered tax arises due to cerloin tempcerary differences between the canying amounts of assets and kabiiities for financial reporting
puposes and those for taxafion purposes. Tempeorary differences relating to investmants In subsiciianes and joint ventures are not
provided for to the extent thot they wil probably not reverse in the foreseedable future. The amount of deferred tax provided i based
an the expectad manner of realisation of setflernent of the conying amount of assets and liabilities,

During the vear, the Group elecled to become o REIT with effect from | January 2017. As a RET, rental profits and gains on disposal of
investment properties wil be exempt from corporation fax. As a resuit, no defemed tax provision has been recognised of the baonce
sheeat date in respect of property assets [revaluation and capital allowances), and the provision for deferred tax kabiity on property
business assets of £41.1mat 31 Decemiber 2015 has been fully released,

The Group's investments in ynit frusts are not exempt from tax as a REIT and, where they remain within the charge to tax, a defered tax
¥abiity has been recognised as appropriate. The Group will be able to utiise its ax adjusied kosses against gains ansing on the disposal
of its investrnants in unit rusts. As the daferred tax liability on non-property business investments exceeads the asset rekoling to the losses,
the deferred tax asset in respect of the tax adusted losses has been recognised in ful,

a) Tex = iIncome statement
The total taxation charge/{credit) n the income staternent is analysed os follows:

200 15

tm Em

Income fax on UK rental incorme arsing in nonUK. companies 23 1.6
Cumant tax charge 22 1.6
Reversal of deferred tax provision in respect of REIT property business assets {39.8) -
Origination and reversal ot termporary differences 137 27.2
Effect of chonge in tax rote {1.2) 4.1)
Recognition of previously unrecognised asset - 8.0
Deferrad iox charge /(credlt) {27.3) Ny
Tolal lox {cred®)/charge Inincome stalement (25.0) 2.7

During the year, the Group elected to be taxed Qs a RET with affect from 1 January 2017, As a result of this, the Group’s
investment properties are exempt from tax and no deferred tax is required on the balance sheet. Accordingly the Group's
deferrad tax now only relates to non-property investments {being primaority its interests in joint veritures) and historic tax losses.
The removal of the deferred tax provision in respect of REIT property business assets is comprised of crediss of £29.2m in relation
1o invesimeny properties and £11.3m in relation 10 accelerated capital allowances, and a debit ot £0.7m for tax adjusted kosses
extinguished on conversion.

The movernent in deferred tax provided is shown in more detail in note 2.5 d} below.
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Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.5 Tax conlinyed

a) Tax = income siatement conlinued

In the income statement, a tax credit of £25.0 milion orises on a profit before tax of £201.3 mifion, the taxation charge that would arise
at the stondard rgte of UK corporation tax is reconciled fo the actual tax charge as follows:

2006 o

£m £m

Prolit bedore tax 201.4 3084
Income tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2015: 20.25%) 40.3 787 O
Release of defered tax balances due to REIT conversion (39.8) - 3
Property revaluations ot subject to tax {20.4) (28.4) g
Effect of ndexatikon on investments 2.1) (3.4) o
Effect of statutory tax retiefs (1.5) {2.9) g
Incorme due to Unite Foundation (1.0) - 3
Effect of tux deduyction fransferred to equity on share schemes 0.4 IR 2
Rote difference on deferred tax n2 (4.1} ®

Movement on unprovided deferred tax asset - [0.8)

Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset - 7.4}

Prior yeors adjustments 03 (0.3

Totol fax charge in income siclement {25.0) 127

The main rate of carporation tax reduced from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Apxril 2015. Accordingly, the reconciliation cbove has
been cakculaled at arate of 20% (201 5: 20.25%).

Following the Group's election io become a RET (effective | Januery 2017}, deferred 1ax on its REIT property business assets is no
longer required. Accordingly. the Group has recognised a credit of £39.8m in the Income Statement reversing the provision for
deferred fax kabilities and assets recognised at 31 December 2015 refoting to the revaluation of investment property, accelerated
capital allowances, and property business tax losses,

TRILIMTR

Deferred tax s an accounting adiustment intended fo reflect tax that the Group may have 10 pay in the future if certain events occur,
and is distinct from the Group's cument tax charge [the kaiter being the tax actually payabile to HM Revenue 8 Customs for the yaar;.
Accordingly, the release of the deferred tax provision i an accounting only adjustment, and does not result in the Group receiving a
tax credit or refund. The curent tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2014 is unaffected by the election lo become a REIT.

T

“Lh

b) Tax — other comprehensive income
Within other comprehensive income @ fax charge totaling £1.6 milion [2015: £0.8 million credit] has been recognised representing
deferred tax. An gnatysis of this & included in the defermed tax movement on page 126.

<) fax - s'alement of changes in equity
Within the statement of changes in equity o tax charge fotalfing £0.1 milion {2015: £0.8 milkon credit) has been recognised
representing deferred tax. An analysis of this is included in the deferred tax movement on page 126.

UOLDIIOJ DUIO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year confinued

2.5 Tax continved

d) Texx = balance shest

The table below outiines the defered tax llabilities/ (0ssets) that are recognised in the balance sheet, together with their movements
in the year,

2018

A13) December {Crecited) Chaged At 31 December

s “ransgters nncome i squty N

£m £m im £m tm

Investments 14.7 - 2.5 - 172
Investment property (REIT property business assets) 4.1 - {41.1) - -
Property, plont and machinery 0.3 - 0.2 - (0.1)
Share schemes 1.8) - 0.t 0.5 (0.9)
Inferest rate swaps (n.n - 1.1 -
Interest rate swaps rekating to joint ventures {0.5) - 0.5 -
Tax value of cared forward osses recognised 22.3) - 1.0 10.4) {11.8)

Net tax {assefs)/Sabities 30.0 - {27.3) 1.7 4.4

2ns

A¢ 31 December [Crediied) Charged Al 31 December

D4 Transters " income in ety 015

£ Em £m Em £m

investment property 173 - 16.7 - 340
Property, plant and machinery {0.6} - 03 - [0.3)

Investments in joint ventures 10.7 - 11.1 - 218
Share opflions {1.5) - 0.2y 0.1 1.6}
Interast rate swops 0.3) - 0.2 (1.0} 11.1)
Interest rate swaps relating to joint ventures 0.4) - - 0.1 {Q.5)
Tax value of camed forward losses recognised {24.4) - 30 {0.9) {22.3)

Net tax {assets)Mablities 0.6 - na (1.7 30.0

A reduction in the UK corporafion tax rate from 19% to 17% (effective 1 Apnl 2020} was substantively enacted on 26 September 2016.
This will reduce the Group's fulure curent fax charge accordingly. The deferred tax liability ot 31 December 2014 has been calkeulated
based on the rate at which it is expected to reverse.

Foliowing the Group’s election to become a REIT, disposols of nvestrment property will be exempt from ax and as a result no deferred
tax lickiity hos been recognised in relation fo these ossets, The movement of £41.1m in the yeor 8 made up of a combination of in
year movement and reversal of the remaining provision. The Group's investments in property unit trusts {being primcxily its interests

in joint ventures) are not exempt from tax os a REIT, Where $he interest in joint ventures remains subject 10 ax, o deterred tax iability
has been recognised on the excess of the morket value of these assets over ther histodc tax basa cost. At 31 December 2014 the
deferred tax fiabiity in relafion to these investments was £17.2m.

Company
Deferred tax has not been recognised on temporory differences of £118.9 milion (2015: £104.9 million)] in respect of revaluation of
subsidiaries and invesiment in joint ventures as it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

2.6 Audit fees
Disclosures in respect of fees paid to the auditors can be found in the Audit Committee Report, page 64.
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Secfion 3: Asset management

The Group holds Its properly porifollo directly and through s joint ventures. The performance of the propery porifalio

o whedher wholly owned of in Joint ventures is the key factor that drives nel asset value (NAV), one of the Grovp's key
perdormance indicators. The following poges provide disclosures about ive Group's investmaenis in property assels
ond joint venhwes ond thelr paiformance over the yeaor.

3.1 Wholy owned propeily assels
The Gioup's wholly owned property portfolio is heid in fwo groups on the balance sheet at the carying values detailed below,
In the Group's EPRA NAV, all these groups are shown at market value.

i) investment propery (fixed assets)
These are assets that the Group intends 1o hold for a long period to eam rental income or capital oppreciotion, The assets care heid
at far vae in the balkance sheet with changes in fair value taken to the ncome statement.

1) invesiment property under development (fxed arsets)
These are assets which are cumrently in the course of construction and which will be fransferred to 'Investment property’
on completion. The assets are hekd at fair value in the bakance sheet with changes in far vaiue taken to the income statement.

Accounting policies
Properties neld under operating leases are not ncludad in assets, but the future payments due in respect of these properties ore

disclosed In note 4.6a.
Investment property and investment property under devetopment are held at far valve.

Completed properties, properties under development and inventones are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue.

Net reclisable value is the estimated seling prce in the ardinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and seliing
expenses. All costs directy associoled with the purchase and canstruction ot a property, and ak subsequent qualfying expenditure
s capitalised.

The recognition of acquisitions and disposals of investrnent and other property occurs on unconditional exchange of contracts.

Bomowing costs are capitalised if hay are directly atributable to the acquisition and construction of a property asset. Capitaksation
of bomowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are n progress and expenditures and bomowing costs are
being incured. Capitalisation of bomowing cosls continues untk the assets are substantialy ready for ther intended use but stops if
development activifies are suspended. If the resulfing camying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impaiment
loss is recognised. The capitalisation rate is amived at by reterence o the acluat rate payable on borowings for development
purposes or, with regard to that part of the devetlopment cost financed out of general borowings, to the average rate. During the
year the average capitaksation rate used was 6.4% (2015: 6.4%).

The valuation of property assets nvolves significant judgement and changes to the core assumptions; market conditions, rentol
income, occupancy and property management costs, could have a significant impact on the coamying value of these assets.

Yalualion process

The valuations of the properties are performed twice a yeor on the basis of vaiuation reports prepared by extemal. independent
valuers, having an oppropriate recognised professional qualification. The far vales are based on market values as defined in
the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Manual, issued by the Royal Inslitution of Chartered Surveyors. CB Richard Elks Ltd, Jones Lang
LaSalle Ltd and Messts Knight Frank, Chaortered Surveyors were the valuers in the years ending 31 Decemnber 20146 and 2015.

The valuations are based on both:

> Information provided by the Group such as curent rents, occupancy, operating costs, terrms and conditions of keases and
nomingtion ogreerments, capital expenditure, eic. This information is derived from the Group's finoncial systems and
subject to the Group's overall control enviconment.

> Assurmptions and valuation models used by the valuers — the assumptions are typically market related, such as yield and
discount rates. These are based on their professional judgement and market observation.

The information provided 1o the vaksers - ond the assumptions and the valuation models usad by the voluers — are reviewed by the
Property Board ond the CFO. This includes a review of the far value movements over the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management confinved

3.1 Wholly owned properly asseis continued

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPORT ANG ACCOUNTS 2834

The movements in the camying value of the Group's wholly Owned property portfolic duiing the year ended 31 December 2016

are shown in tha table below. While completed property & held at cost on the balance sheet, the Group manrages the assets

based on ther market value (far value). These properties ore included in EPRA NAV at ther far value, valusd on the same basis
o for nvestment property and investment property under development. by external valuers. The fair vake of the Group's wholty
owned properties ot the year ended 31 December 2016 are ako shown below.

2016
Imastrmant
tivesirant  property under Completed

" am o " tm 'ﬁ
At 1 Januory 2014 1.024.4 1498 - 11742
Cost capitalsed T4 101.7 - 100.3
Interest capitalised - 59 - 59
Transfer from investment property under development 346 (36.5) - -
Transfar from work in progress - 80 - a.0
Disposats {(44.0) {8aqy - (128.4)
Valuation gains f a9 a2 - TR
Vatuation lossas : (7.9) {1.0) - (_@
Net vatuation gains 37.0 40.2 - 72
Caomrying value ot 31 December 2014 1.061.6 184.6 - 12442
Valuation gains not recognised undar IFRS but included in EPRA NAY - - - -
Brought forward - - - -
Market value gt 31 December 2016 1.061.6 184.4 - 12462
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Secfion 3: Astet management continved

3.1 Wholly owned property assets confinued
The movermnents in the camying value of the Group's wholly awned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2015 ond
the fair value of the Group's wholy owned property porifolio at the year ended 31 Decemnber 2015 is os follows:

2015
Invesiment
Iovashment property urder Compiwted
propety development preperty Todal
o tm o tm

At 1 Japuary 2015 850.5 432 70.1 969.8
Cost copitolised 86 97.4 - 106.0
Interest capitalised - 27 - 27
Transfer fom investment property under development 412 (41.2 - -
Transfer from work in progress - 1.0 - 10
Disposak - - (70.1) (70.1)
valuation gains 126.4 410 - 1674 |
Valuation losses (2.3) f0.3) - (2.6} |
Net valuation gains 124.1 40.7 - 1648
Conrying value at 31 December 2015 1.024.4 149.8 - 1,174.2
Valyation gains not recognised under IFRS but included in EPRA
NAV
Brought forword - - 3.2 312
Disposals - - [31.2) 31.2)
Market value at 31 December 2015 1.024.4 147.8 - 1.174.2

included within investment properties ot 31 December 2014 are £31.5 milion (2015: £41.4 miion} of assets held under a long leasehold
and £8.9 mifion (2015: £10.5 milion) of assets hesd under short leasehold.

Yotal interest capitaksed in investment and development properties at 31 December 2016 wos £34.9 milion (2015: £35.4 mion)
on a cumulative basis. Total intemal costs relating to construction and developrnent costs of Group properties amount to £51.1 milion
at 31 December 2014 [2015: £49.6 mifion) on o cumulalive bass.

Recurning fair value measurement

Allinvestment and development properties are classified as Level 3 in the far value hierarchy, While completed propesty and property
under development are held ot costin the balkonce sheet, the Group discioses the fair value of these assaets and includes them at fair
value in EPRA NAV. Completed property and property under development far value measurements are categorised as Level 3in the
for value hierarchy and ther fair volue is measured using the same techniques as for investment properties and investment properties
under development,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management confinued
3.1 Wholly owned propedly asseds conlinued

F-A1 ns
Class of asset £ £m
London - Rental properties A424.% 409 .4
Major provinciat — Rental properties 4402 410
Other provincial - Renial properties 1905 1839
Major provincial - Development properties 156.4 94.2
Other provincial - Development properties 28.2 55.6
Market value 1244.2 1.174.2

The valuation technique for investment properties is a discounted cash Aow using the following inputs: net rental incorne, estimated
future costs, occupancy and properly managernen! casts.

Where the osset i leased to a university, the valuations also reflect the length of the lease, the dllpcation of maintenance
ond insurance responsidities Detwaen the Group and the lessee. and the morkel's genero! perception of the tessee’s
credit worthiness.

The resutting valuations are cross-checked ogainst the initial yields and the capital vakie per bed derived from actual
market transactions,

For development properties, the far value is usualy cakukated by estimating the fair value of the completed property
{using the discounted cash flow metnod) less estimated costs o completion.

Falr value using uncbservable inputs (Level 3)

2016 2015

[ £m

Opaning far value 11742 1,001
ains and losses recognised in income statement 77.2 164.8
Gains and losses not recognised on properties under development - -
Acquisitions - -
Capital expenditure 1241 109.7
Disposals (129.3) {101.3)

Cloaing fakr value 1,2462 1,174.2
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Section 3: Assel management confinved

3.1 Wholly owned properly assels confinved
Quantitative information about fair value measurements using unobservable inputs (Levet 3)

131

2014

Fair velus Vawion Waighted
tm fechnicue Unobservable iInpuls fRange average
London Discounted Net rental income (£ per weaek) £179 -£327 £249
- rantal properties 4249 cosh flows Estimatad future rent (%) 1% -6% 4%
Discount rate {yield) (%) 4.5% - 52% 4.T%
Mojor provincial Discounted Netrentol income [£ per week) £105-£162 £129
—rental properties 4402 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 1% - TR 4%
Discount rate [yield] (%) 5.2%-7.0% 57%
Other provincial Discounied Nat rental income (£ per week) E95-£153 £126
—rental properties 196.5 cash flows Estimoted futuee rent (%) % -8% %
Chcount rate [yiekd) (%) 5.5%-120% 62%
MOJOr provincial Discounted Estimated cost to complete (£m) E10.5m - £59.5m £36.1m
- development praperties 1584 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) k4 xR
Discount rate {yiekt) (%} 48% - 5.9% 54%
Other provincial Dicounted Estimated cost to complete (Em) £12.3m —£28.5m £20.lm
- development properties 26.2 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) » 3%
Discount rate (yleld) (%) 5.7% - 5.8% 57%

Falt value ot 31 December 2014 12462

2015

Far vaue Valuaton Waeighted
Em technique Unobsenvable inputs AN average
London Discounted Net rental income (£ per week] £190-£324 £244
~rental properties 409.4 cash flows Estimated future rent (%] 2% - 4% %
Discount rate {yield) (%) 4.6% - 52% 4.9%
Major provincial Discounted Net renial income (£ per week) £95-£146 £120
—rental properties 4311 cash Aows Estimated future rent (%) 1%- 6% 4%
Discount rate [yield) (%) 52%-70% 58%
Other provincial Discounted Nef renfal income (£ per week| £77-£135 £117
- rental properties 183.9 cash flows Estirnated future rent (%) 2%— 6% 4%
Discount rate {yield) {%) 58% -9.4% 6.3%
Maijor provincial Discounted Estimated cost fo complete (Em]  £9.4m - 47.6m £31.6m
- development properties 94.2 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 3% 3%
Discounl rate (yiekd) (%) 5.2%-58% 5.6%
Othar provinciol Discounted Estimated cost to complete (£m) £8.9m - £10.5m £10.1m
- development propertias 55.6 cash flows Estirmated future rent (%) % 3%
Discount rate [vield) (%) 58%-59% 59%

Fair value ot 31 December 2015 1.174.2

A decrease in net rental income, estimated future rents or occupancy will result in a decrease in the far value, wheregs o decredse in
the discount rate {yleld) or the estimated costs fo compiete will rasult in on increase in for volue. There ore interralationships between
these rates os they are partially determined by market rate conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management continuved

3.2 Inventories
0% b
om £m
Interasts in land 0.8 09
Other stocks 21 27
Inventories 9 Y]

At boit 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 the Group only has interests in one piece of iand.

3.3 Other non-cumrent assels

Accounting policies

Property. plont ond equipment

Other than iond and buidings; property, pkint and equipment are siated at cost less cccumuiated depreciation and impoiment
losses (see below). Land and buidings are stated at fair value on the same basis as investment properties. Property, plant and
equiprment mainly comprise leasehold improverments at the Group's head office and London office us well as computer hardware
and software at these sites.

Depreciation is charged 1o the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful fves of items of property,
plant and equipment. Freehcld lond s not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as folows:

>  leasehald mprovements Shorter ife of ledse and economic ife
>  Other assels 4-20 yeors
Intangible assefs

Intangitle assets predomnately comerise intemnally developed computer software which allows custormers to book online ond
proceasses fransactions within the sales cycle. The expenditure capilased includes the cosi of materiak, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overmeads. Expenditure on reseorch activifies is recognised in the ncoma statement as an expense
incumred, 201 &: £NI, {201 5: £Nil]. The assets are amortised on a straight-ine basis over 4 10 7 years being the estimated useful ives
of the intangible assets, kom the date they are available for use. Amortiation is charged to the income staternent within

opecting expenses.

The Group's other non-curent assets can be analysed as foflows:

14 018
Propacty, plant Iaargitie Property. plont ImMangtie
o aquipemant [ ] Tatal and equipment assals Tolal
£m tm tm £m £m £m
Cost ar valuation
At T January 18.9 330 52.0 14.8 25.4 2.2
Additions 3 82 13 4.1 7.7 11.8
At 31 December 220 413 3.3 189 331 520
Deprecialion, omorisafion and
Impoltrment losses
At 1 January 9.4 141 275 8.2 14.7 249
Depreciation/amartiscfion chorge
for the year 1.6 28 44 1.2 1.4 24
Impairment* 1.6 - 14
At 31 December 126 20.9 35 9.4 19,1 275
Camying value at 1 January 9.5 15.0 245 é.6 87 15.3
Canying amount at 31 December 0.4 204 29.8 2.5 150 24.5

* Being wiite down of lecsehold mprovemerts on vorahon of lease.

Intangible assets include £3.9 milion (2015: £10.1 milion) of assets not being amortised as they are not yet ready for use. Property, plant
and equipment assets inciude £1.1m [2015; £ni} of assets ~ot being depreciated as they are not ready for use. At 31 December 2016
the Group had copital commitments amounting to £1,0 milfion relating to intangible assets and £1.8m relafing o Property, Plant &
EQuipment.
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Secfion 3: Asset management confinued
3.4 Invesiments in joint ventures (Group)

Accounting policies

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has jeint conirol, established by confractual agreement. The
consolidated financial statements nclude joint ventures initialty af cost subsequently increased or decreosed by the Group's share of
totaf gains and losses of joint ventures on an equity basis. Interest free joint venfure investment loans are inifialy recorded at fair value
~ the difference between the nominal amount and fair value being freated as on investment in the joint venture. The implied
discount 5§ amortised over the confrocted life of the investment loan.

The Directors consider that the ogreements integrat 1o its joint ventures result in the Group having joint conkrol; a significant degree
of judgement is exercised in this assessment due to the complexity of the coniractual arangements,

USAF and LSAY are jointly owned enfities that are accounted for as joint ventures. Due to the complexity of the contraciual
arangements ond Unite's role as manager of the joint venture vehicles, the assessment of joint control following changes to
accounting standards {IFRS10) involves judgements around a number of significant factors. These factors include haw Unite as fund
manager has the ability to direct relevant activities such as acquisitions, disposals, capital expenditure for refurbishments and funding
whether through debt or equity. This assessment for USAF s complex because of the number of unitholders and how ther rights are
representad through an Advisory Committee. For some of the activities it & not clear who has definitive control of the octivities. n
some scenarias the Group can conirgl, in others the Advisory Committee. However, for the aclivities which are considered to have
the greatest impact on fhe refums of USAF, acquisitions and equity financing, if has been defermined that the Group and the
Advisory Comimittee has joint power in drecting these activities and that on balkance., it is aprropriate to account for USAF as g joint
venture. The assessment for LSAV & more straightforward because the Group and GIC each own 50% of the joint venture and there
s therefore much clearer evidence that control over the key aclivities & shared by the two parties.

BoUDWEAE AICAIOD

The Group hgs two joint ventures;

Group's share
of crssts frasulls Legol sntily n which
Joiri ventune 2014 (D15 Dyecive Parines G hos Intenest
The UNITE UK Student 24.4%* (23.0%) invest and operate Consertium of investors UNITE UK Stucent
Accommodation Fund student accommodation Accommodation Fund,
[USAF) throughout the UK a Jersey Unit Trust
London Student 50% (50%) Develop and operate  GIC Real Estate Pte, Ltd  LSAV Unit Trust, a Jersey Unit
Accommaodation Venture studen! gccommodation in Real estate Trust and LSAY {Hokdings)
{LSA V] London investment vehicle  Lid. incorporated in Jersey
of the Government
of Singapore

* Parl of the Group's Interest s held through a subsidiary. USAF [Feeder) Guemsey Lid, in which there is on extemal investor. A mingrity interest therefore
occurs on consoldation of the Group™s resulls representing the extemal investor's share of profits and assets rekating 10 s Investment in USAF,
The crdinary shareholders of The Unite Group pic are beneficially interested in 23.0% (2015: 21 .4%) of USAF.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management confinved

3.4 invesiments in joint venlures (Group) continued
d) Net assets and resulls o the joint venhures
The summarised balance sheets and results for the yedrr, and the Group's share of these joint ventures are as follows:

201
USAF LAY Tokat
. tm tm
Gross Share Grom Share Grom Shawe
Investrment property 22879 54621 1,009 504 5 3.294.9 1.066.6
Cash 1.8 10.3 270 135 488 238
Debt (755.5) (185.4) (381.4) (190.7) {1.13s.9) (374.3)
Swap liabilities 07 02 {7.1) {3.5) (6.4) (3.3)
Other curent assets 35 0.8 08 04 4.3 1.2
Other current kabiities (55.3) o (14.8) (7.4 {70.1) (19.1)
Net assefs 15231 374.1 4335 3148 2.156.4 4929
Profi/(loss} for the yeor 164.7 4.3 97.0 48.5 261.7 94.8
EPRA nef assels 1,547.1 352 &40.6 3203 2,207.7 &72.4
2015
USAF LAV Tokal
_&m £m £m
Gress Share Cros Share Grass Share
Investment property 20742 477.4 894.4 447.2 2.968.6 924.6
Cash 36.6 84 28.4 14.2 450 22.6
Debt {638.3) (146.9) [336.0) (168.0) 1974.3) [314.9)
swap kabilities - - 3.9 (2.0) (3.5 {20)
Other cunenf assets te 0.5 1.0 a5 29 1.0
Other cument liabiities {66.2) {11.6} {18.2) (9.1) (84.4) [20.7}
Net assets 1,408.2 3278 545.7 2828 1,9735 610.6
Profit/(loss) for the year 2343 417 234.1 1181 470.4 181.8
EPRA net aszels 1,408.2 305.3 549.4 848 1.9778 590.1

Net assets and profit for the year above include the minority interest, whereas EPRA net assets exclude the minority mterest.
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Secfion 3: Asset management confinved
3.4 Investments in joint ventures {Group) continued
b) Movement in canying value of the Group's invesiments in joint vantures
The camying value of the Group'sinvestment in joint ventures has increased by £82.3 milion during the yeor ended 31 December 2016
[2015: £226.8 milfion), resulting m an overal comying value of £692.9 milkon {2015: £410.6 milion). The following fable shows how the
ncrease has been achieved.
200 005
£m £m
Recagnised In the income statement:
Cperations segment result 294 23.6 A
Minorty intefest shore of Operations segment result 12 1.2 9
Management fee adjusiment refated to frading with joint venture 54 4.1 -g
Net revaluation gains 588 152.7 g
Debt exit costs - - 2
Loss on cancelation of inferest rate swaps - 0.3} %
Loss on disposal of properties - 0.3 3
Qther - 0.2 ®
4.8 1814
Recognised in equily:
Movement in effective hedges (1.4) Q.8
Other adjusirnents to the canying value:
Profit adjustment related to froding with joint venture (8.3) {11.9)
Increqse in loan to USAF - 305
Additional copital invested in USAF - 221
Performance fee unifs issued in USAF 254 -
Additional capital invested in LSAY - 233
USAF performarnce fee (1.2) {3.72)
Distriboutions received {29.2) (22.9)
Increase/{decrease) In comying value 82.3 b7 %)
Carmying value at | Jonuary 610.6 3838
Cuanying value al 31 December 472.9 6104
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3; Asset management continued

3.4 invesiments In joint ventures {(Group) continued

b} Movement in carrying vaiue of the Group's iInvesimenis In joint venhares conlirwed

In addition to its equity shares, the Group has also provided interest free investment loans 10 some of the joint ventures, These were
primnarily provided on the selfing up of the joint venture 10 provide capital lo ocguire investment properties. As a result of being
provided interest free, the koans were discounted on recognition to reflect the foi volue, the unwinding of the discount & reflected
n the Group's finance income.

<) Tramactions with joinl ventures

The Group acts as asset and property manager for fne joint ventures and receives management fees in reiation to these services.
in addition, the Group is entitied 1o performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint venhures outperform cerain benchmaorks.
The Group receives an enhanced equity interes! in the joint ventures os considerction for the performonce fee. The Group has
recognised the following fees in its results for the year.

2014 IS5

m £m

USAF 128 8.5
[SAV ao 4.7
Asset ond propery management fees* 208 132
LSAV 1.0 1.4
Deaveslopment management fees 1.0 14
USAF performance fee 8.1 256
USAF acquisition fee 0.5 2.1
Invesitent moanagement fees™ 8.4 217
Total fees 30.3 Q3

® 2016 Asset and property memagemert Fees are shown gross. 2015 Asset and property manogement fees are shown as reported. net of rading
withjoint ventures. The equivalent gross kgures in 2015 ware £10 7m for USAF ond £4.4m for ESAY.

** Included in fhe movement in EPRA NAY & a USAF performiarce fee of £6.5 mtion {2015: £20.2 milkon). This is the gross fee of £8.1 milion (2015:
£25.6 milion) paid by USAF net of agvisory fee costs of £0.5 millon (2015 £2.2 rrillon) and a £).1 millon (201 5: £3.2 rion) odjustrment related to
frading wirth ont ventures. The USAF perfarrnance fiee wik be sethied in units n The UNITE LK Student Accommaodaiion Fund rather thon cash.
Full detals of the USAF parformonce fees are set aut in the Strategic Report on pages | fo 49.

Included in share of joint venture profitin the income statement is @ share of joint venture property monagement fee costs of

£1.6 milion [2015: £1.4 milion). On an EPRA basis these costs ore deducted from the property monogement fees shown above, plus
an adjustment for the minority interest of £0.4 million (2015: £0.2 million). This results in the net fees included in the Dperating Segment
resutt (note 2.2a) of £1 4.0 million [2015; £12 .0 million). Development manogement fees are included in the Property Segrment resutt
[note 2.2a). Investment managemeant foas are included within the unallocated to segmants (note 2.2a}.

Included I the mavernent in EPRA NAV is a USAF property acgukition fee of £0.4 mikion (201 5: £1.7 milion). This is the gross
fee of £0.5 million (2015: £2.1 milion) paid by USAF net of a £0.1 rmilon {2015: £0.4 mikion) adjustment reloted to trading with
joint veniures.

During the yeor the Group has poid pperating lease rentals 1o USAF reiating 1o two properfies under o sale and leosebock
agreement amounting to £2.2 milion {2015: £2.7 milion).
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Secfion 3: Asset management continved

3.4 Invesiments in Joint ventures (Group) continved
<) Transactions with joinl verniures condinued

During the year the Group sold fwo properties to USAF for £88.4 milion. Both properties were held on the balance sheet Qs investment
property under development within non-current assets, the procesds and camying vaiue of the property are therefore necognised in
profit on disposal of property and the cash flows in investing activities. One property was sold to LSAV in 201 5. The profits relating to

saes and associated disposal costs and related cash flows are set oul below:

Proft ond loss Profit and loss

216 D15

LEAY L3ay

£m £m

Inchuded in property sokes and other income (net of joint venture troding adjustment) - 77.2
Included n cost of sales - [70.1)
Profi on disposdl of propesty - 7.1
Prot and loks Proft and loss

2014 015

USAF USAF

£m £

Included in profit on disposal of property {nef of joint venture frading odjustment] 3z -
Proff on disposal of property 32 -
Comh owr Cash fow

2016 5

L3AV LSAV

£m £m

Proceeds - 843
Net cash flows included In cash flows rom operaling activiles - 84.3
Casbfiow Coxtr Ao

s 05

usar USAF

£m £m
Gross proceeds 884 -
884 -

Nef cash flows included In cash fiows from investing activitles
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management confinved
3.5 invesiments in subsidiaries (Company)

Accouniing polcles .
In fhe financial stafements of the Company. nvestiments in subsidicries are held at far value. Changes in far value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity.

Canying value of invesiment in sbsidiories
The movemants in the Company’s interest in unfisted subsidicries and joint ventures durng the yeor are as folows:

o Ivagiment N gUDsOanes _
014 015
£m £Em
At January &48.3 4120
Revaluation 771 2363
Al 31 December 7254 448.3

The camying vale of investment in subsidianes has been calculated using the equity atiributable o the owners of the parent
company from the consolidated balonce sheet adjusted for the far value of fixed rate loans and properties under development, This
includes investment property, investment property under development and swaps at a fair value cakculated by a thind party expert.
Allinvestment propetties and investment properties under development are classified as Level 3 in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy and
have been discussed on page 129. The fixed rote loans range between Level 1 and Level 2 in the IFRS 13 fak value hierarchy and
have been discussed further on page 129,

In addition 1o the equity investment in subsidianes and joint ventures, the Company has provided ¢ loan with inferest chargeabie ot
6.125% to LDC {Hokdings) plc. The carmying value of the loan to LDC (Holdings) plc was £20.0 mifion {2015: £90.0 milion). A further loan
of £89.9 milkon (2015 £82.9 mifion) was provided to LDC [Holdings) pic with interest chargeable at 5.0%,

A full list of the Company's subsidianies and joint ventures can be found in note 7.
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Section 4: Funding

The Group finances s development ond invesiment ociivities through a mixiure of retained somings, borrowings and
o equily. The Group continuously monitors iis financing amongements to monage ks gearing.

Interes! role swaps are used to manage the Group's sk 1o fluctuations in inlerest rate movements.

The following pages provide disciosures about the Group’s funding posifion, including borowings, gearing

ond hedging instruments; s exposure fo marked riske; and s capltal management policies.

4.1 Bonmowings

Accounting policies

Interast bearing borowings are recognised initially of far value, less attributable fransaction costs. Subseguent to initicl recognition.
interest bearing bomowings are stated ot amorfised cost with any difference between cost and redermption value being recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borowings on an effective interest bask.

On 10 October 2013 the Group issued a convertible bond, The unsecured instrument pays a coupon of 2.5% unfi 10 October 2018,

In accordance with (FRS, the equity and debt components of the bond are accourted for separately and the fair value of the debt
component has been determined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond, As a result, £80,3 million was
recognised as a liabiity in the balonce sheet on ssue and the remainder of the proceeds. £9.46 million, which reprasents the equity
component, was credited to reserves, The difference between the far volue of the liability and the prncipal value s omorised
through the income statement from Ihe dote of issue. issue costs of £2.0 millkon were allocaled between equity aond debt and

the elerment rekating to the debt componemnt is being amortised over the life of the bond. The ssue costs apportioned to equity

of £0.2 milkon are not amortsed.

The table below anolyses the Group's borrowings which comprise bank and other ioans by when they fal due for payment:

Croup Campany
214 015 2004 015
Carying Cammg Canying Camying
vaue Falr value vale Fox voiva value voe
tm tn £m £m tm £m
Curent

In one yeor or less, or on demanc 1.3 1.2 313 31.2 0. 1.4

Nen-cunent
In rmore than one yveor but not more than two yeanrs 108.1 1322 15 1.4 85.3 -
In mare than two years but not mare thon five yeors 1263 1258 202.2 2404 0.0 83.0
In more than five years 237.1 2230 240.1 225.5 - %00
473.5 481.0 4438 467.3 175.3 1730
Toldl borowings 4748 4822 475.1 498.5 175.4 174.4

In addition to the borrowings currently drawn as shown abave, the Group has avaikable undrown facilifies of £245.0 milion
{2015; £174.0 milion}, A further overdrafi fociity of £10.0 milion [2015: £10.0 mikon] is olso avaikable.

The camying value of borowings s consideraed to be approximate to fair value, except for the Group's fixed rate loans camed

ot £330.3 milion {2015: £331.4 milien) and the converlible bond comed ot £84.2 milion {201 5: £84.3 milicn). The convertible bond ond
£590.0 milon {2015; £90.0 mition) of the fixed rate loans are classified as Leved 1in the IFRRS 13 far value hierarchy and have a foir value
of £212.5 rmillion (2015: £218.4 milion), The IFRS 13 Level categorsation relates 1o the extent the far vale can be determined by
reference to comparable market vales, The ciassifications range from Level 1 where inshuments are quoted on an active market
through o Level 3 where the assumptions used to anlve at fair value do not have comparabie market data.

The remaining £240.3 mifion (2015 £241.4 milfion) of the fixed rate loans are classified as Level 2 in the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy.
The far vale of these fixed rate loans has been calcukated by a third parly expert discounting estimated future cash fiows on
the basis of market expectations of future interest rates. The far value of these loans is £215.1 milfion (2015: £226.4 miion).

Properties with a carrying value of £998.0 mitiion {2015: £993.6 milion] have been pledged as security against the Group's drawn
down bomowings.

Hoda: Beiong
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continued

4.2 Inferest rate swaps

The Group uses inferest rate swaps to monage the Group's exposure o interest rote fluctuations. In occordance with the:
Group's freasury palicy, the Group does not hold or issue interest rate swaps for frading purposes and only holds swops which
are considered 10 be commercially effective.

Accounling policles
Interest rate swaps are recognised initicty and subsequentty at fair value, with mork to market movements recognised in the income
statement unless cash flow hedge accounting s applied.

Hedge accounting, as defined in IFRS. § when tha interest rate swap is designated as the hedging instrument in @ hedge of the
voriability in cash Rows attibutable 1o he interest risk of borowings. The effective portion of changes in far vaiue of the intergst rate
swap  recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve in equity. Any ineffective portion of
changes in the far value of the interest rate swap k recognised immediately in profit o koss. The Group only applies hedge
occounting when the hedge s expected o be highly effective,

When a hedging insirument or hedge relationship s terminated but the hedged transaction & stil expected fo occur. the cumulative
gain or loss at that point remaing in equity with any subsequent movernents in forr value taken 1o the income statement. If the
hedged fransaction is no longer probabile, the cumukative unrealised goin or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the income
staternent immediately.

The tar vaise of interest rate swaps & the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the
balance sheet date, taking into account cument interest rates and the curent credil worthiness of the swop counterparties.

The following table shows the far value of interest rate swaps:

o4 s
tm £m
Current - -
Non-cument - 1.6 23
Fair value of interest rate swaps 1.6 23

The far values of interest rate swaps have been calculated by a third party expent, discounting estimated futwe cash fiows on the
bast of market expeciations of future interest ratas, representing Level 2 in the IFRS 13 fair valoe hierarchy.

4.3 Net financing cosfs

Accouniing policies
Net financing costs comprise interest payable on bomowings less interast receivoble on funds invested (both calculated using the
offective interest rate method) and gains and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in the income staterment.
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Secfion 4: Funding confinued
4.3 Net financing cosls continved
2016 D5
Recognised in the income siatement: £tm £
Finance income
- Interest income on deposit (LR} {0.2)
Fnonce income {0.1) (0.2)
Gross interest expense on loans 2468 253
Interest capitalised - B ) 59 (2 Q
Loan interest and similar charges 20.9 22.6 §
Changes in mark fo market of interest rafe swaps not aocounted for as hedges - 0.6
Swap cancellation costs 1.0 - %
Finance cosh 219 232 §
Net financing costs 218 230 8

The average cost of the Group's wholly owned investment debt at 31 December 2016 & 4.4% [2015: 4.7%). The overail average cost
of investrment debt on an BPRA basis is 4.2% (2015: 4.5%).

4.4 Gearing

The Group's adiusted gearing ratio is a key indicalor that the Group uses to manage its indebtedness. EPRA net asset value (NAV)
and adjusted net debt are used to calculate adjusted gaaring. Adjusted net debt excludes mark to market of interest rote swaps
as shown belkow,

The Group's gedring ratios are calculated as folows:

2014 n's
Note m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 3.1 427 270
Cumrant borowings 4.1 (1.3 {31.3)
Non-curent borowings 4.) 471.5) 1443.8)
Interest rate swaps iabikties 4,2 {11.8) {2.3)
Net detit per balance sheet {443.7) (450.4)
Mark to market of inferest rote swaps 1.4 23
Adjusted nat debl (432.1) (448.1)
Reported net asset value {aitibutable to owners of the parent comeany} 23¢ 14516 1.275.1
EPRA net asset valye 23c 1.557.3 1,394.4
e
Basic {Net debt/Reported net asset value) IR 35% %
Adjusted gearing [Adjusted net debl/EPRA net asset value) 28% % g
Gearng {EPRA net debt/EPRA net asset value) 2.3a 50% 5% F
Loan to value [EPRA net debt/Total property porffolio) 2.3a % 35% >
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continved

4.5 Financial sk factors

The Group's activiies expose it 1o a varety of financial risks: market risks - primmarly interest rate risk, credit risk and iquidity risk.
The Group's reasury policy focuses on the unpredictabiity of financial markets and seeks to minimise polential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. Details on credil risk can be found in note 5.3.

a} Interast rate risk
Interast rate risk & the risk that the Group s impacted by significant changes in interest rates. Borrowings ssued at or swapped
to floating rates expose the Group to interast rate risk. The Group's policy is seporated into two main areas:

i} Development and refinoncing
The Group had no specific development bomowings as at 31 December 2016 (2015: £nil).

the Group's principal exposure o interest rate fuctuations during development relates to movements in longer term interest rates
which affect the amount of debt the property income & capable of servicing at compietion. Significant adverse moverments
vndemine the Group's abiity o release equity from its developments.

The Group will continue ta review the level of its hedging in the light of the curent low interest rale environment. The Group's policy
allows this exposure fo be maonaged through the use of forward starting swaps.

1) Medium and long-term finance

The Group holds its mediurm and long-term bank finance under both flogling and fixed rate crangernents. The magjority of this floating
debt is hedged through the use of interest rate swap agreements, although not all these arangements qualify for hedge accounting
under IAS 3%. During 2014, the Group’s policy guikdeine has been to hedge 75% and 95% of the Group’™s exposure for temns of
approxmately 2-10 years,

At 31 December 2014, after taking account of interest rate swaps, 100% (2015: 87%) of the Group's medium and long-term investrment
bomowing was held at fixed ratas. Exciuding the £52.9 milion {2015: £1.7 milion) of swaps the fixed investment borrowing is at an
average rate of 4.6% {2015: 4.4%) for an average period of 5 years {2015 6 years), including these swaps the average rate is 4.2%
(20N 5: 4.6%).

The Group halds interest rate swaps ot 31 December 2016 against £92.9 mikion (2015 £1.7 milion} of the Group's borowings.
The maturity of these swaps and the apphcable interest rotes ore as follows:

me 201 015 D5

somingl Applicobie INGranol Appi:able

amount hedged indevast rales  omount hedgea Tikerest rales

tm L3 £ %

Within one year - - - -
Between one and two years - - - _
Between two and five years 47.4 18 - -
More than five years 45.3 22 1.7 54

During the yecr, if interest rates had increased/decreased by 1%, pre-lax profit for the year would have been £0.6 milion
[2015; £0.7 milkon) lower/higher,

b) Uquidiiy sk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group wil not be able to meet its financial obigations as they fall due. For development activities. the
Group has a policy to inject substantially the full amount of equity required for eoch development before drawing debt against the
speciic focility for the devefopment. The funding requirements of each scheme ore therefore substantially ing-fenced’ and secured
at the cutset of works.

The table below analysas the Group's financial iabifties and interest rate swaps inte relevant rmaturity groupings based on the period
remaining until the contractual maturify date. The amounts disciosed in the table are the contractual undicounted cash fiows
(including intesest}, so wil not atways reconcie with the amounts disclosed on the balance sheet.
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Section 4; Funding continued
4.5 Financial risk factors continved
b) Uquidity risk continued
2018
Tokal conlrachual Laws than Belwaen Botwean Over
cash lows 1yacw 1and 2 years 2and 5 yeors 5 yaars
tm tm tm £m £m
Bonk and other loans® 4902 19.7 40.9 1728 254.8
Convertible bonds 238 22 (4] - -
Trade and other payables 1237 1237 - - -
(9]
Interest rate swaps — effective 18.7 0.8 17 82 4.0 §
Interest rate swaps — ineffective - - - - - a
7234 146.4 1352 181.0 260.8 %
<
2015 g
[]
3
Tolal confractuol Lt Ty Betwasan Batwesan Qver 8
cosh flows 1 yacr | and 2years 2 gha S yean 5 yecns
£m £m £m £m i
Bank ond other loans* 509.3 50.3 19.6 171.8 2679
Convertible bonds 96.1 22 22 9.7 -
Trade and other payables 1155 1155 - - -
Interest rate swaps - effective 2.1 03 0.6 48 34
Interest rate swaps —ineffective - — - - -
730.0 168.3 24 268.0 2713

* The confractual undiscounted cashiiows inchude £108 Bm (2015 £114 3mj in relahon 10 the Company.

During 2013 the Group issued £89.9m of convertible bonds. The bonds have a maturity date of 10 October 2018, Under the terms

of the Convertibie 8cnd, earty conversion of the debt info equity can be triggered if the share price frades over 1.3 fimes the
conversion price for o period of fime, As af 31 December 2016 this threshold has not been triggered. This threshold was riggered as at
31 December 201 5; the bandholders had the right fo exercise until 31 March 2014; no bondholders exercised during this period. The
bondholders may exercise the Conversion Right in certain circumstances discussed above byt this is contingent on a number of
factors and therefore the bonds ore shown to maturity in the above disclosure.

c) Covenant complionce

Many of the Group's funding facilities camy covenants. The Group monitors its covenant position and the headroom avaiabie on
an engaoing bosis. At 31 December 2014, the Gioup was in tull compliance with all of its borowing covenants. The Group i able to
use availoble cash to reduce debt to increase headroom on ifs loan to value (LTV) covenants. The covenant headroom posifion
i outiined below and assumes that the Group is able to use a mixture of available cash and odd additional property to banks’

security pools.
31 December 014 3 Docember 11§ g
Weighted Weighled Wagnied weghted @
covenant ociual covenant actual =1
Loon to value 74% 15% 74% 9% g
interest Cover 15 4.04 1.47 4.47 S_
Minimum net worth - - £250m £1.394 g

* Calculated o the basrs that avaliable costts ysed ta reduce dabt and Gvaabile property con be used as addifional security.
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Section 4: Funding confinved

4.4 Operdfing leases
a) Payable

r

Accounting policies

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on @ straight- line basks over the term of the lease,

| Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the 1otal lease expense. Where the property
. interest under an operating lease is classified as an investment property, the property inferest is occounted for as if it weve a finance

| lease and the far volue model s used for the asset recognisad.

The Group has a numiper of sale and lecaseback properties which are accounted for as operafing teases.

The total future minimurn lease rentals payabie under non-cancelloble operating leases fall dug for repayment as follows:

016 2015

m £m

Less than one year 138 147
Between one ond five years 56.2 57.2
More than five yaars 7.0 154.5
Tolal 2410 2264

These leases primarily relate to properties which the group has sold and leased back and on which rental income s eamed. The leases
are generaly for perods between 13 and 18 years and subject to annual RPHbased rent review, The total operaling lease expenditure
incurred during the year was £15.3 milion (2015: £15.4 million).

b) Recetvable
The Group accaunts for its tenancy contracts offered to commercicl and individual tenants as operating leases. The future minimum
lease payments receivable under non-cancelkable operating leases are as follows:

20 215

tm £m

Less than one year 771 B85.4
Between one and five years 1404 1243
More than five years 2672 26.7
Total 484.7 236.4

4.7 Capilal management

The capital structure of the Group consists of shareholders’ equity and adjusted net debt, ncluding cash held on depasit. The Group's
equity & analysed info its various components in the Statement of Changes in Eqguity. The components and calculation of adjusted net
debt is set outin note 4.4. Capital is managed so as ta continue as a going concern and to prormote the long-termn success of the
business and to maintain sustainable retums for shareholders and joint venture partners,

The Group uses a nurmber of key metrics to manoge its capital struchure;

adjusted net debt (4.4}

adjusted gearing [4.4)

LTV (2.30)

weighted average cost of investment debt {4.5qii)

¥ vV VYYyY

in order to manage levels of adusted gearing over the mediurm term, the Group seeks to deliver NAY growih and to recycle capital
invested n lower performing assets into new assets and property developments. £132.4 million of property assets wese sold in 20146 and
we plan 1o sel on average of £150 - £200 milion of property each year. The Group targets a yield on cost of opproximately ¥%. The
Group does not commit to developing new sites until sufficient equity ond funding to fuffil the full cost of the development is secure.

The 8oard monitors the abiity of the Group to pay dividends cut of availaible cash and distibutable profits. The Operations Segment
generated cash of £61.3 milion {2015: £40.8 millian} during the year, theneby covering the propased dividend of £40.0 milfon, 1.5 times
[2015: £33.2 million. 1.2 times).



THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMMUAL REPORT AND ACCDUNTS 28T& 145

{_/2
g
&
O
i
Section 4: Funding confinved
4.8 Equily
Accounting policies
Ordinary shares are classified os equity. External costs drectly aitibutable to the ksue of new shares, other than on o business
combination, are shown as a deduction, net of tax, in equity from the proceeds. Share issue costs incumed directy in connection
with @ business combination are deducted from the proceeds of the issue.
The Company's issued share capital has increased during the year as follows: a
—_ s Ts ‘§
Calied up, aiofted and fully paid ordinary shares of £0.25p T T e 2
aach No. of shares tm tm  Mo.obshares £m £m Q
At start of yeor 21,930,911 555 4933 201.541.803 50.4 3858 §
Share placing - - - 20,137,324 50 1073 §
Share opficns exercised 7 118905 - 03 251782 0.1 0.2 3
At end of year 222,047 616 55.5 493.6 221930911 55.5 4933

The hokders of ordinary shares are entitied 1o teceive dividends as deckared from time o fime and are entitied to ona vote per shore
at meetings of the Company. Al shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

4.9 Dividends

Accounting poficies
Dividends are recognised through equity on the earfier of thetr approval by the Company’s shareholders or ther payrment,

TN

“

Duing the year, the Company declored and paid an interim dividend of £13.2 milien — 6.0p per share (2015: £12.) milion - 5.5p per
share) and paid o £21.0 milion final dividend - 9.5p per share reiafing to the yeor ended 31 December 2013 {2014: £19.8 millon - 9.0p
per share).

-
1"

Atler the yaar end, the Directors proposed a final dividend per share of 12.0p {2015: 9.5p), tringing the total dividend per share for the
year 1o 18.0p (2015; 15.0p). Na provision has been made in redafion to this dividend.

LONOULIOJUI IOUIO)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 5: Working capital

This seclion focuses on how the Group generates i operoiing cash flows. Careful management of working capltal
is vital lo ensure that the Group can meet s frading and financing obligations within bs ordinary operaling cycle.
On the foliowing pages you will find disciosures around the Group's cash posifion and how cash it generated from
the Group's frading aclivilles, and disclosures around frade receivables ond payuables.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

-/
Accourting policles

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balonces and call deposits. Cash equivalants are short-term, highly liquid investrments that
ara readily converfitie to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant rsk of chonges in value. Bank overdrofts
that are repayabie on demand and form on integral port of the Group's cash manogement are inciuded as a component of cash
and cash equivolents for the purpose of the statermant of cash flows.

The Group's cash position at 31 December 2016 was £42.7 milion (2015: £27.0 milien).
At 31 December 201 6 the Company had an overdraft of £0.1 miflion [2015: overdraft £1.4 milion).

The Group's cash batances include £13.4 milion {2015 £8.5 milion) whose use Gt the balance sheel date i resincted by funding
oagreements fo pay operating costs and loan interest relating to specific praperties.

The Group generates cash fiom its opercting octivities as follows:

Group CoAmpaiy
21 015 014 M5
hole £m £m tm £m
Profil/[loss] for the year 226.4 355.7 2138 2899
Adjustments for:
Depreciaion and amortsation a3 4.4 24 - -
Far value of share based payments 4.1 1.2 29 - -
Dividends received - - (139.3) {55.7)
Change in value of nvestment property 31 {77.2) {164.8) - -
Change n volue of investrents 35 - - {77.1) [236.3}
Net finance costs 4.3 s 230 {0.3) 0.3)
{Profit) toss on disposal of investment property (0.4} 0.6 - -
Share of joint venture profit 3.4b {94.8) [181.8) - -
Trading with joint venture adjustment 75 155 - -
Tax charge/ [credit) 2.5a {25.00 327 - -
Caosh flows from operaling aclivilles before
changes in working capital 639 8.4 (2.9) (2.4)
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (20.4) (39.6) - -
Decrease/(increase) in completed property and property
under development - 70.1 - -
Decrease/(increase} in inventories or Q.3 - -
increase/ [decrease) in rade and other payables 26.1 36 0.3 0.2
Cash flows from operating activittes 70.3 120.8 (2.6) (22)

£25.6 mition of the brought forward frade and other receivables was setled in units in the USAF rather than cash,

Cash flows consigt of the following segmental cash inflows/(outiows): Operations £41.3 milion (2015; £40.8 million), property

[£4.0 milion} (2015; (£48.3 mion}) and unaliocated [£3%.6 milion) (2015: £4. milcn). The unallocated amount includes Group
dividends [£34.2 milion] {2015: (£31.9 milion)}, tax payabile of (£2.2 rmilion) (201 5: (£0.3 milion}), investment in joint ventures (£ni)
{2015: (£52.4 milion)). contributions to UNITE Foundation (£1.0 milion) {2015: (£1.0 milion)} and amounts received from shares ssued
£0.3 mition {2015: £112.6 milion).



THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016 147

«
g
X
F]
g
Secfion 5: Working capital coniinued
5.2 Trade and other receivables
Accounling poficies
Trade receivabies are initially recognised at the amount invoiced 1o the customer {farr value} and subsequently at the amounts
considered recoverable {amortised cosl). Estimates are used in determining the level of receivables that will not. in the opinion of
the Board, be collected. These estimates inchude such factors as historical experience ond industry specific factors. A provision for
imparment of rade receivabies is established when there is sufficient evidence that the Group will not be able to collect ol amounts
due. The canying value of trade receivables i considered fo approximate far value.
g
Trade and othex receivables can be analysed as follows, all frade and other receivables are curent. g
Grovp Comparny e
014 2015 0 s Q
tm £m tm £m i
Trade receivables 17.8 23 - - b
Amaounts due from group undertokings - - 4864 639.3 §
Amounts owed by joint ventures 3.3 417 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 84 7.1 - -
USAF perfomance fee a1 256 - -
Other recaivables 7.3 6.3 - -
Trade and othey receivables 77.9 83.0 6864 639.3

The USAF performance fee will be settied in units in USAF,

The Group offers tenancy cantfracs to commerciatl [Universities and retail unit tenants) and individual tenants based on the academic
year. The Group monitars and manages the recoverabiity of its receivables based on the acodemic yedar fo which the amounts
reiate, Rental ncome s payable immediately, therefore all receivabies relating to tenants are past the payment due dale.

2016
Ageing by academic year
Tolal 01617 1514 Prior years
£m £m tm £m
Rental deblors
Commercial tenants (past due and impaired) 0.4 03 0.1 -
Individual tenants (past due and impaired) 188 174 0.9 0.5
Provisions corried (1.4) (o.1) (0.8) (0.5)
Trade receivables 178 17.6 0.2 -
2015
AQesng Dy QCOIEmiC yeor O
Totol p-E74T 2014015 Prior years ¥
£m £m £m o Bm ]
Rental deblon g«
Commercial tenants (past due and impaired) k) 0.6 or 0.1 g
individuai tenants (past due and impared) A4 1.9 Q7 1.0 5
Provisions camied (2.)) {0.4) {0.6) 1.1 2
Trade receivables 23 21 0.2 -

Amounts receivatse from joint ventures are not poast due orimpaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 5: Working capital confinued

5.2 Trade and other receivables continued
Movemens in the Group's provision for impaiment of frade receivables can He shown as folows:

2014 245

tm Ern

At 1 January 2.1 1.7
Irnpairment charged o ncome statement in yeor oz 04
Receivables written off during the year [utiisation of provision) {1.4) -
A} 31 December .4 2.1

5.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer o counterporty lo a financiat instrument fails to meet its confroctual
obfigotions. )t arses principally from the Group's cosh bolances. the Group's receivabies from custorners and joint ventures and loans
rovided 1o the Group’s joint venhures.

At the year end, the Group's exposure to credit risk was as follows:

6 s

Nole &m £m

Cash 5.1 427 270
Trade receivables 52 178 23
Amounts due from joint ventures (exciuding kans that are copitat in nature) 52 343 41.7
9.8 71.0

a) Cash
The Group operatas investment guidelines with respect 10 surplus cash. Counterparty fimits for cash deposits are largely based upon
long-term ratings pubsished by credit rafing ogencies and credit default swap rates.

b) Trade receivables

The Group's custormers can be split into two groups — i) students (individuals] and (i} commaercial erganisations including Universities.
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced by the characteristics of each customer. The Group hoids tenant deposits of

£8.5 milbon (2015: £7.8 million) as coikateral against individual customers. Based on the Group's expenence and historical low level
of bad debt the Group views these receivables as recoverable balances with a low risk of default.

£} Joint ventures
Armounts receivable from joint ventures fall into two categories — working capital balonces and nvestment loans, The Group has
sfrong working retafionships with its joint venture partners therefore view this as a low credit risk bolance.

5.4 Trade and other payables

Accounfing poficies
Trade payables are initially recognisad at the value of the invoice receitved from a suppler (far value) and subsequently at amortised
cost. The canmying value of rade payables i considered approximate to far value.

Trade and other payables due within one year can be analysed as follkows:

Croup Company
% 2015 2014 2015
m £m m im
Trade payables 4.8 207 - -
Retentions on construction contracts for properties 58 46 - -
Amounts due to group undertakings - - 1.3 58.2
Other payables and accrued expensas 458 52.5 30 2.7
Deferedincome ) 55.3 37.7 - -
Trade and other payables 123.7 1155 4.3 0.9

Other payable and accrued expenses include £8.5 milkon {201 5: £7.8 milion) in refation to custorner deposits. These will be retumed af
the end of the tenancy subject 1o the condition of the accommodation and poyment of any outstanding acmounts, Deferred income
refates to rentalincome that has been collected in advance of it baing recognised as revenue.
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Sectfion 5: Working capital continved
5.5 Transactions with other group companies
During the yeor, the Company entered into various interest free loans with its subsidiories, the aggregate of which are disclosed in
the cash flow statement. In addition, the Company was charged by Unite Infegrated Solutions pic for comporate costs of £2.5 milion
{2015: £2.3 million).
As aresult of these intercormpany transactions, the folkowing amounts were due (to) /from the Company's subsidiaries at the year end.
T w5
£m £m
Unite Holdings pic 70.7 103.7 o
LBC [Hoidings) pic 4157 5346 Q
UNITE Jersey Issuer Lid - 10 ¥
o)
Amounts due from Group undedakings 844 639.3 3
©
[+]
<
Unilodge Holding Lid - (58.2) 2
Unilodge Hokdings (UK} Lid - - §
UNITE Jersey Issuer Ltd o (1.3) - ®
Amounts due to Group undertaldngs {1.3) (56.2)

The Company has had a number of fransactions with its joint ventures, which are disciosed in note 3.4c.

The Campany has guaranteed £121 milion of its subsidiary companies' bormowings (2015: £121 mikion]. The guarantees hove been
entered info in the normal course of business. A licbiity would only arse in the event of the subsidiary faling to fulfil its confractual
obligations. These guarantees ore accounted for in accordance with IFRS 4.

Q
=
¥
2
g
g
g
3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section é: Key management and employee benefits

o in place are dimed o heip recognise the conkiibution that Unfe's pecple make fo five peformance of the Group.
Cver the next couple of pages, you will find disclosures on wages and salaries and share opfion schemes which allow

1 The Group's realest resource is its stall ond I works hard to develop and retaln iis psople. The remunaration policies
! eamplcyees of ihe Group to take an equity intenext in the Group.

6.1 Siaff numbers and cosis
The avercge number of persons employed by the Group [including Directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows:

Nurmber of employees
W% D15
Manageria and administrative 325 330
Site operatives aa 758
1,204 1.088

The aggregate payrod costs of these persons were as follows:
20 15
£m £m
Wages ond saianies 58.0 375
Social security costs 35 as
USAF performance fee bonus - 22
Pansion costs 1.2 1.1
Fair value of share based payments 1.2 29
4.0 47.2

The wages and sakaries costs include redundancy costs of £1.0 milion (2015: £0.7 mikion).

Full details of the USAF pertormance fees ore set out in the Strategic Repoft on pages 1 1o 49.

Accounling policles
The Group operales a defined contribution pension scheme. Cbigations for contributions to defined coniibution pension plans are
recognised a5 an expensa in the incomne slaternent as incured.

6.2 Key management personnel

The Board considers thot the key management personnel within the Group are those appointed to the Board. As such, the
remuneration of key management personnel is contained within the Remuneration Report on pages 84 to 95, which covers
the requirements of scheduie 5 of the relevant legisiation.
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Secfion é: Key management and employee benefils confinued

4.3 share based compensation

A framsaction is classiied as a share based fransaction where the Group receives services from employees and pays for these

™ shares or similar equity instrurnents. The Group operales a number of share based compensation schemes allowing empioyees

o ocquire shares in the Company,

a} Share schemes

The Group operates the fallowing schemes:

Executive share option scheme - ‘The Approved Scheme’ } Detaik can be found in the Direclors'

Executive share option scheme - *The Unapproved Scheme’ Remuneration Report o

Executive Long-Temmn Incentive Plan [LTIP) 2

Save As You Eom Scherne (SAYE) Open to employees, vesting periods of three g

to five years, service condifion g

2

Employee Share Qwnership Trust (ESOT) Used to oward port of Directors’ and senior g

managers’ bonuses n shares, vest after hree a

@

yaars' continued service

b) Outstanding shore oplions
The table below summarises the movements in the number of share options ocutstanding for the Group and ther average

Exercise prce:

Number of Rumber of

Weighled average oplions Wenghted average opfions

waerciss price (Mhousads) axsicse price {thousancs)

04 Pt 215 05

Qutstanding at 1 fanuary £0.91 2774 £0.57 3618
Forfeited during the year £0.80 (49%) £1.3 {148}
Exercised during the year £0.40 (845) £035 (1.337)
Granted duwing the year £1.47 679 £1.76 661
Qutstanding ot 31 December £1.32 2113 £0.21 2,774
Exercisable at 3! Decomber £0.58 109

For those opfions exercised in the year, the average share price duiing 2014 was £6.24 (2015 £5.93).

For those options stil outstanding, the range of exercise prices at the yeor end was Op to 842p (2015: Op fo 584p) and the weighted
average rermaining contractual kfe of these options was 1.4 yeors (2015: 0.4 years).

The Group furds the purchase of its own shares by the *Employee Share Ownership Trust' 1o meet the obligations of the LTIP and
executive bonus scheme. The purchases are shown as "Own shares acquired' in retoined eamings. As ot 31 December 2016 the
number of shares held by the ESOT was 1,165,592 (2015: 1,589,285).

The accounfing s in accordance with the relevant standards. No further information is given as ihe amounts for share based
payments are immaoterial.

Q
&
=
g
3
2
S

Secfion 7 Events after the balonce sheet date

1n the nommal course of business subsequent o the year end the Group completed one acquisiion fransaction on 9 February 2017
and one disposal ransactions on 17 february 2017 within Investment Property and Investment Property held within its iInvestment in
joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 8: Company subsidiares and joint ventures

In accordance with Section 407 of the Companies Act 2006, a full Ist of subsidiaries and equity occounted investments as of
31 December 2016 is disclosed below. Unless otherwise siated, the Group's ownarship interest represents 100% of the ordinary shares,
units or partnership capital held indirectty by Unite Group plc. No subsidiary undertakings have been excluded from the consolidation.

Registered office: The Core. 40 5t Thomas Street, Bristol, BS1 61X

Bronchimm Limitect

Frzhardinge Froparias Lmwad

Hirerrea Larrataed (C3128204)™

Infkorth Limited (4334263~

LDC (MR Warehousa) Limhod

LDC {Alcot Road) mded

LOC [Brunel Howse) Lmned {08 750628/™

IDC (Camden Court Lecsetok) Lrled (51 20620}
LDC [Carmden Court} Limnrdend (OS0B2471

LDC [Capsal Ches Nomines no. 1) Limted

LOC (Capricl Ches Marmea o, 2} Umited

LDC [Capial Cites Nommeena 3) Lmted

LD (Caprial Cifes Nominee no. 4) Lmved

DG [Copial Cifies) Limvled

LDC (Causewayend] Lmated

LEC [Chaniy Courl Leasshaold) Urmted (061402551~
LDC [Chaucer Howse) Umited (078980201

LDC [Conshituhon Skeet] Umited 092109981

IDC Koonsiruchon Two] Lmited {04847248)™

LDC (Curzon Sheat) Limwted 10462027 1)

LDC {Ewa Loan Lrmited

LDC {Far Gostard) umited [D91.501 49]*

DC (Ferry Lane 2) GP 3 Lmited

LDC [Feny Lane 2) GP 4 Lmited

LD {Fany Lane 2} Hokings Limited

LDC {Fnonce) invtec

LPC (Frogmore Sieet) Linwled™ (033895845)%

LDC {Greetharn Skeet] tamiedy

LDC {Gt Suffolk §1) Lmded Partnenshg

LDC {Gt Suffok 51) Manogemen Lmiled Parinershio
DC {G1 Sufok Sreet] GP1 Lrmited

LOC (G Suftolk Straes) GP2 Lsmited

LOXC |Gt Suffolk Stneet) Holdings Lirted

LDC (Gt Suffolk Sireet] Managemend GP1 Lmited
LDC {G1 Suffolk Sireet) Management GP2 Lrmited
LT (Hompton Street) umited (0841 5978)=

WOC (Hhecxd ) Limied

LOC (Hosdingsj PLC™

LDC {Holoway Rood 3] umited {D633899)™

LDC (Irmpeanc Whaet] bmited (04541678}

LDC (Infernafional House) Limitad | 10131352)~
LEC {Jarmes Watson Leasehold) bmited (037280261
LDC (Kedham kand) Lmied 51 52229

LDC (Leasehold Al Lrmded (04066733)"

LOC {leasehold 8) Urmstext (057 78242)

LDC (Loughbaroughi mited

LDC (Mognef Court Lecsehald) Limfad {05140255)
LDC [Maristeld) G Lomvied

1DC (marshicid) GP2 umited

LDC (Marshexd) GP3 Limited (07434025)™

LDE {Marsheld) (P4 Lmited (0743401 7)™

DC {Mansfield) Lrmuted

LDC {Manshield) Lmiled Partnershp

DC (Marsheld) Management Umited Parinershp
LDC (Margared Rule Freehold) Lrmited (06641265
LI (MearQarat Rule t eaehoid) Limded {Ddd41241)1
LDC (Milennum Viaw | Limeted (0785903751

LDC {MTF Porticho} Lemsted

ADC [Nam Sheet) GP 3 Limited

LD (Mo Sireet} GP 4 Limved

LD {Neam STesty Hokdings Umitsd

LD (Newgote| Lrmited (CRBFSA49)™

LDC [ Nerw Wakefialkd) Limded

LDC {Cid Hospita) Limited (097021 43
LDC {ndorg Rood Boumemosin Limited (04407305
LDC (Prhwines) Lrmited (05918624)*

LDC {Portfoko 100) Lended

LDC (Portiohc 20) Lirmeted

LOC (Portfolio Five Mominoae} Lrmvled

1DC {Portolio Fve) Lred (04079581)™
1DC |Portfoho Four) Lmited

DG {Peritolo One) Limited

LDC (Portfolo Fen) Lirsted (0487751 7)™

LOC (Portioho) Limdted

LOC {Fragect 110} urted

LDC {Prosect 111) tnited

LDC [Radmersh Road) Limded

LOC (Skethome) Limsted (07898132

LOC (Smthifieidl) Limitea {0X37096]™

LOGC (§H L 2onar) Lemited {DBBPSEA0N

LDC {5t Pancras Way) G Umiled

LDC (5t Pancras Way) GP2 Unvied

LDC (St Pancras Way) GP3 Lmited

LDC: (51 Pancros Wety} GP4 Limnttect

LDC (51 Parcres Way) Holdmgs Lrmited

LDC ($t Pancrss Wayl unmred Parinership
LOC {5t Pancrss Way) Management Limited Parinense
LDC 15t vincenss) Lmited {10218310)

LDC (Swindion NHS) Lirmted

LDC ffarag House) Lrmted K521 42771

LDC [Thurso Street) GP1 Limited (07 199022)™
LOC [Thurso Steet) GP2 Umitad (07 158979
LOC (Thurso Street) GP3 Limitexd [07434001 )
LDC {Thursa Street) GP4 Limited 07434133
LDC {Thursa $traat] imted Partnership

LDC (Thurso Sireat! Manogement Urmied Parinerstyp
LDC {Ventura) Limiled

LDC (vemon Squeret Limited (05444132
LOC (ko ioms () Lirmited

LDC Capstal Cves Two [GP} Lirmiled
Leadmil Rood GP brnded {D6C18425)
Lennon Stuchos Sfuden Accommadiahon Limied
Pexthershp

LSAY [Ange] Lane) GP3 Umied

(SAV (Ange! Lane] GP4 Umited

LSAY (Strafforct GP3 Lrnred

LSAV (STatfond) GP4 brnded

LSAV (Wembiey] GP3 umted

LSAV (wambiey] GA4 Limited

LAV Rent Collechan Umited

LSAV [Stopieton) GP3 Limdec

LSAV (Stopleton} GP4 Limited

Raltyard GF Urited (0405 6485] ™

Radyord Shudkent Accommodation Lirnited Partnersrip
Stargesent Umided

The UNSTE Foundahon

Unde Accommadionon Monopement 14 Lmted
070821 4)~

Urdts Accommadahon Managenmsnt | 7 Limnies
(0|1 &3228~

Unite: Accommoaahon Moncpement '8 Limied
{08328484)*

Unrfe Accommodahon Managament |9 Un-ifed
Unrie Accommaodahan Manogemen 2 Limided
Unite Accommadation Managemen! 20 Limited
Unite Accommodation Management 4 imided
06486225y

Ungie AcCommodation Monagesment & Lmited
Unike ACCOMIMOCGIon Management 8 Liriled
Une Accommaodcrion Managermen® ? Limiad
Cé 190863

Uride Accantmodkahon Maragement LaritacT
Unite Accommadahon Monagement One
Hundred pUrmiled

UNITE Capital Cras Hoidings Lirrled

UNITE Consinuchon {Angek Lone) mited {087¢2704)*
UNTE Consinuchon [Slapleton) Limited 109C2Z2406)™
UMNAE Consiruchon [Wemibiay| Lirmled {00027 4)**
Urwie Fnance Limiled® (04353305

UNTE Fncnce One (ACCommodahon Sansces) Limted
Urvig Reanca One (HoldnGs) Urmtied (34316207
UNTE France One (Property) Limted 04303301)*
UNITE FM Lirded (06807562

UNITE For Success Lrnded

Untte Holdlings L1d" (031 48448)~

UNITE Homes timited (051 40242)*

Unia integrated Sowutons pke

Urvier London Limited

Urte MOCIAT Soluhons Limited

Unile Rent Collechon Lmved (0576935)

LMITE Student Lnvang Lrmited

USAF GP No 11 Manageent Lmbed

USAF LP Limited {8840874)

USAF Maonagemant GP No | 4 urntea

LSAF Manogement GP No_1 S mited

USAF Manogement GP Mo 14 brmtect

USAF Management GF No 17 Lrrvtec

USAF Nomnee No 7 Limited

USAF Montines Mo 7A Umifed

Zerth [Two} Lirnited

USAF Management 10 Limsted

LSAF sMonagemert || Lrwed

USAF Managesmert 12 Limited

USAF Managament |4 Lmied

USAF Managermernt 18 imied

USAF Manogerment 4 Lirsled

USAF Maonagement 8 bmded

USAF Manogerment lmied

LDC {Fanry Lare 2| GP 1 umited [S0.00%)

LDC {Farty Lome 2 GP 2 Limsted [SCO0%}

LDC {Fery Lane 2 Lrnied Porinership {(5000%)
LDC [Farry Lame 2) Manageman' Lm#ed Sarnershin
[SOL0R)

LOC ¢Stratfora; GP urmded {50.00%)
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LSAV(Slapleton) GP2 mited (50.00%)

Uhite Capial Cihes Larsled Partnershap |50 00R)

Unite Coprial Cries Two Lmited Parnershe (5000%)
USAF Management Mo | 5 Lenfed Partnershi (23.20%)
USAF Management No. | 6 Lmited Partnershyo (22.20%)
USAF MONOgement Mo, |7 Lirmited Partnerthep (23.X0%)
USAF No 15 Lrmated Partnership (23200}

Froert Vilage Student Accommedahon Limied
Portnership (22.50%)

Forster Hol Limded Porirerstap (22,90%)

Student Hall Nomnees Lymried (22.90%)

USAF Manogement No 18 LP {2250%)

USAF GP Mo 1 Larwled {14.40%)
USAF GP o 10 Lirmrted {1 4.40%)
USAF GP No 1| Limvted | 14.40%)
USAF GP No 12 Limited | 14.40%,)
USAF GP N 14 brniled {14 40%)
LSAF GP o dLimited [14.40%)
USAF GP No 15 imitea (14 40%}
USAF GP No 18 Lrmitet {1 4.40%}
USAF GP No 5 Limitex (14.40%)
USAF GP No é Limated {14.40%)
USAF GP No 8Lmited {14,40%)

Registered office: 13 Caille Streef, 5t Heller, Jersey, JE4 501

LDC (Gt Suffolk Sty Ut Trust

LDC (Monsiiekd] Ure Trust

LDC {5t Pancras Way) Une Trust
LDC (Thurso Street) Uit Trust

LEAY (Jorsay Manager) bmied
Uriter {Copita) Citkes] Jersey Lrned
UNITE Jersey ksuer Lirmited®

USAF Jarsey invesiments rmeect
USAF lersay Manoger Lmided

LDC {Ferry Lone 2) Und Trust {50.00%)
LOC {Satond) Uind Trust (S0.00%)
LSAV {Hokdings) Umeted (R0.00%)
L5AY [Trustes) Unnded (50.00%)
LSAV Und st (S0L00%)

Registered olfice: Third Floor, La Plaicleris Chambers, $t Peter Port, Guemsey, GY1 IWG

USAF Feeder Guemsey Lrmited (45.20%)
USAF 15F Und Trust {Z3.20%)

Regisiered office: Third Floor, Barclays House. Victoria Sireet, Douglas. Isie of Man, M1 2LE

Leadmil Road Studen! Accomimaodkation Unit Trust
Lennon Studios Studenl Accormodaion Uint Trust

USAF PortiolG 15 Lint st [23.20%)
USAF Portiollo 16 Unit Trust [23.20%)

The Railyard Student Accommadafion Unit Tust

Registered office: Saltire Court, 20 Caslie Temace, Edinburgh, EH1 2 EN

LSAV (GP) mited {50 CO%)

* Heid directly by the Company.

SAV [Propeerty Holdkngs) LP {50 00%)

USAF Nomines NO 8A Limded (14 40%,)
USAF Nomnee No 1A midad (14.40%)
USAF Nomines No S Lrmiled (14 40%)
USAF hominee No 54 Lmited {1 4.40%)
USAF NOminee Mo & Urmted |} 4.40%)
USAF Nommes NG §A Urmned (14,409}
USAF Nominee Mo 8 Larued (1 4.40%]
USAF Momunae No 8A umded (14,40%)
USAF RCC Limied {14 40%}

UNITE Copital Cities Ling Trust {50.00%)
Shudient Halls Lorgg (aase | Und Thust (72 90%]
USAF Portons 18 Uret Trust (22.90%)

LOC (i Street) Unit Tust {2280

UNITE UK Studen? Accommaodahion Fund | 4.40%)

USAF Portfolia 17 Une Trust (23.20%)

FAer! Skeet Student Accommodaton Unet Trust {22.90%)

* The company & exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act relating to the oudit ofindividudl accounts by wirtue of 54794 for the financal yeor

ended 31 December 20146,

e .- o
?
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Section 8: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures continued

Registered office: The Cors, 40 51 Thomas Sreel, Bristol BS? 61X

LOC [Skotford) GP2 Limited {S0.00%) USAF No | irmited Parinershi (22 90%) USAF Holdings BLimted (14.40%]

DX [Swaford)] Livshed Partnanstu (S00%) USAF No 10 Lrmited Pornershe (2290%) USAF Holdings C Lrrted |14.40%)

LSAV [Angsl Lone) GP 1 Lirmitad (50.00%) USAF No || Urmited Parinershep (22 70K USAF Holdings F Laritexy [14 40%|

LSAY {Angel Lane) GP? Limited (50.00%) USAF No 1! Management Lmsted Parfrenshp (2290%) USAF Holdings G rmited (1 4.40%)

LSAV (Angel Lana] rvied Parinerste (50.00%; USAF No [ 2 amnitekd Portnestee (22 90%) USAF Hoiclings H Unvlecd (14, 40%]

LSAV {Anged Lane) Monagermen! Lirmrfed Portnesshun USAF Mo | 4 Liitesct Partnessh [22.90%) USAF Holdings | Limided {14 40%)

[30.00%} USAF No H4 Monagement Limitod Pernarship (22 90%) USAF Hoidings J lirnrlex {1 4.40%)

LSAV (Stopeton} rmited Porinershe (50 00K} LUSAF NG 1§ Limfied Parinerstep [2290%) VSAF Holcingys Livmbed (14.40%)

LSAv (Stapletont Managerment Umited Partnership USAF Mo & Limited Partnershep (22.90%) USAF Normeae Mo 1 Limatedt (14.40%)

50 00%} USAF No § Lrmited Partnershe (22.90%) USAF Narrwree NO 10 Lmited (14 40%) 0O
LSAVY {Skrattord} Managemen Limited Partenhip LD (e Sirmed) Limvied Pornerstup (22 80%) USAF Norminee No 10A Limited {14.40%) 2
150.00%) LOC (om Siee) Management Lirited Parnerh USAF Nomenee No 11 Lmited {14 40%] S
LSAV (Wemoley] GP| urmited (SD.00%) (2za0%; USAF Norminee No 1A Liritad {14 40%,) 9
LSAV {(wembley) GP2 Lavied {SO00%) fiban vikage GP Limred (14 40%) USAF Normines No 12 Limded {14 40%, 2
LSAV (wembiey} Limted Partnertwp (50 00%) Forster Hall G Limre (1 4 4% USAF Norrnee NO 124 Limitex {1 4,40%) 8
LSAV (wembley) Manogemen Linvisd Parinersiu LDC (Now Sheet) GP 1 Urmiled [14.40%) USAF Normnee No 14 Lrmied [14.40%) i
150.00%} LOC fricarrs Stréset) GP 2 Lrrited {14.40%) USAF Nomuoes No 1 44 Limilledt {14.40%) 3
LsAV(siapleton) GP1 Limed (S0.00%) USAE Anance I Lrmited [14.40%) USAF Nomines No 18 ried (14 40%) §

:
g
g
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FINANCIAL RECORD

0 05 014 2013 2012

EPRA NAV per share (pence) &4b 579 434 82 350
IFRS NAV per share {pence} 653 574 414 aro Krgl
EPRA net assets {(£m) 1.587 1.394 831 682 567
IFRS net assets {Em) 1,452 1,275 843 653 516
Managed portfolio value [£my) 4327 3827 2951 2736 2,688
LTV adjusted see-through (%) u% 35% 43% 49% 52%
EPRA earnings [£m) 61 50 33 23 6
Prafit/floss) before tax (£m) 200 388 108 77 126
EPRA earnings per share [pence) 28 x 17 8 10
Adjusted £PRA earnings per share {pence) 8 px 17 14 8]
144 53 46 78

{FRS eom i"]'E’ pear share {pance} 101
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of The Unite Group pic {the Cempany) will e hekd at 3 Rivergate, Temple
Quay, Bristol BS1 4GD at 10,00am on 11 May 2017 for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing Resalutions | to 14 as
ardinary resolufions and Resolutions 15 ¢ 18 as speciol resolutions.

Qrdinary Resolutions

Annvual Report and Accounts

1. Toreceve ihe audited Anrual Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 together with the Directors’
Report, the Strategic Report and the auditors' report on those annual accounts (the Annual Report and Accounts).

Direclors’ Remuneration Report
2. Toopprove the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained within the Annual Report and Accounts,

Fina! dividend
3. Todecior afinal dividend for the yeor ended 31 Decamber 2016 of 12.0p per ordinary shane payable on 19 May 2017
1o shareholders on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 21 April 2017,

Re-election of Directors
4, Tore-elect Mr P M White as a Direclor of the Company.

5. Tore-elect MrR S Smith as a Director of the Compony.

6. Tore-elect Mr } ILister as a Director of the Company.

7.  Tore-elect MrR C Simpsan as a Director of the Company.

8. Tore-slact Mrs M Walstenholme as a Director of the Company.

9. Tore-elect Sir Tim Wiison as a Director of the Company.

10. Tore-slect Mr A Jones as a Director of the Compony.

1. Tore-elect Ms Elzabath Mcheikan as a Director of the Company.

Audhtors

12. Toreappoint Deloitte LLP as auditors of the Company to hotd office until the conciusion of the next general meeting at which
qaccounts are loid before the Company.

13. Toauthorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors.

Authority o allot shares
14. That, in subsfitution for any equivalent authorities and powers granted to the Directors prior to the passing of this Resolution, the
Directors be and are generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant fo Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 [the Ac!):

ta) To axercise all powers of the Company o allot shares in the Company, and grant rights to subscribe for or ko convert any
sacurity into shares of the Company (such shares, ond rights 1o subscribe for or 1o convert any security info shares of the
Company being “relevant securities"), up o an aggregate nominal amount of £18,505,732 (representing approximatety one
fhird of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 22 February 2017). such amount o be
reduced by the nominal amount of any allotments or grants made under paragroph {bf below in excess of £18,505,732

(B) Toallot equity securities (as defined in Section 560(1) of the Act) up to an aggregate nominalamount of £37,011,464
{representing approximately two-thicds of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as
at 22 February 2017) (such amount to be reduced by the nominal amount of any alleiments or grants made under
paragraph (o) above| in connection with an offer by way of rights issue:

{1 In favour of holders of ordinary shares in the copital of the Company, where the equity securities respectivety
attributoble to the interests of such holders are proportionate {as nearly as practicable) to the respective number
of ordinary shares in the capital of the Cormnpany held by them
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

{il  Toholders of any other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or os the Directors otherwise
consider necessary

but subject fo such exclusions or ather arrangements as the Direclors may deem necassary or expedient to deal with

in rekation to treasury shares. fractional entitiements of legal, regulatary or peactical problems arising under the kaws of
requirements of any cverseas teritory or by virtue of shares baing represented by depository receipts or the requrements
of ony relevant regulatary body or stock exchange or any other matter whatsoever, provided that this authority shall expire
{uniess previcusly renewed, varied, extended or revoked by the Company in general meeting} on the date falling 15 monihs
from the passing of this resolution or, if earlier, ot ihe conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company 1o be
heild following the passing of this resolution, save that the Company may at any time before such expiry make an offer or
entar into an agreemeant which woukd or might require relevant securities fo be aflotted after such expiry and the Directors
may oliot relevant secyrities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if this authority had not expred.

Special Resolutions
Authority to disapply pre-emption rights

15,

Thot if Resolution 14 [Authority to allot shares) is possed, the Board be authorised 10 aliot equity securities os defined in the
Companies Act 2006} for cash under the authority given by that resolution and/or to sell ordinary shares held by the Company
as treasury shares for cash as if Section 5461 of the Companies Act 2005 did not cpply 1o any such adliotment or sale. such
authority to be limited:

[a) To allotrments for rights issues and other pre-emplive issues; and

(b} Tothe allotment of equity securities or sale of freasury shares (otherwise than under paragroph [af above) up o o nominat
amount of £2,775,859 {this amount representing not mere than 5% of the ssued ordinary share copital of the Company as
at 22 February 2017},

such authority Yo expire at the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company [or. if earlier, at the close of business
on 10 August 2018, this being Ihe daie which is fifleen months after the date of this meeting) but, in each case, prior to its expiry
the Company may make oHers, and enter into agreements. which would, or mighl, require equity securities o be allotted fand
freasury shares to be sokd) after the auihority expires and the Board may allot equity sacurities (and sell treasury shares) under
any such offer or ggreement as if the authority had not expired.

That if Resohstion 14 (Authority to aliof shares] i passed, the Board be authorised in addition fo any authority gronfed under
Resalution 15 to allot equity securities (as defined in the Companies Act 2006) for cash under the authority given by that
resolution and/or to sell ordinary shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash as it Section 561 of the Companies
Act 2006 did nat apply to any such allotment ar sale, such authority o be:

{a) Umited to the allotment of equity securities or sale of freasury shares up fo a nomingl amount of £2,775,859 [this amount
representing not more than 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Compony as at 22 February 2017); ond

(b) Used only for the purposes of financing [or refinancing. if the authority is to be used within six months after the original
transaction} a transaction which the Board of the Company delermines to be an acquisition or other capital investmant
of a kind contemplated by the Statement of Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently published by the
Pre-Empfian Group prior to fhe date of this notice,

such authority 1o expire a! the and of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (or, if earlier, ol the close of business
on 10 August 2018, this being the date which is fifteen months afier the date of this meeting) but. in each case, prior 1o its expiry
the Company may maoke offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require equity securities 1o be aliotted {ond
freqsury shares 1o e sokd) ater the authority expires and the Board may allot equity securities {and sell treasury shares) under
any such offer or agreement as if the cuthority had not expired.
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podar 2Bsjoug

To amend Arlicle 94 (Directors' fees) of the Ardicles of Associalion
17. That, Aricle 94 {Directors’ fees) of the Articles of Associotion be amended by deleting the existing Article 94 and replkacing it
with the following:

"The Directors [other than altemate Direciorns) shali be entitled 1o receive by way of fees for their services os Directors such sum
as the Board may from time to time determine (not exceeding £750,.000 per annum in aggregate of such other surm as the
Comparty in general meeting shail from time o Hime determine). Such sum {unless otherwise directed by the resolution of the
Company by which it is voted) shall be divided among the Directors in such propertions and in such manner as the Board may
determine or in default of such determination, equally (except that in such event any Director holding office for less than the
whole of the relevant period in respect of which the fees are paid shall only ank in such division in proportion ta the fime during
such period for which he holds office}. Any fees payabie pursuant to this Article shall be distinct from any salary, remuneration
or other amounts payabie fo a Director pursuant to any other provisions of these Articies and shall accrue from day to day.”

Notice of general mesiings
18. THAT, a genergl meeting other than an Annual General Meeting. may be called on not less than 14 clear days' notice.

By order of the Board
Christopher Szpojnarowlicz

Company Secretary
22 February 2017

82UDWBaAOE Brundinn

Registered office:

The Core

40 $i Thomaos Street Bristol
BSY 8JX

Registered in England and Wales with registered number 03199160
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

Notes
i

A member of the Company who wishes fo altand the meeting in person shouid arrive af 3 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol BS1
6GD in good time before the meeling, which will commence at 10.00am In order to gain admittance o the meeting, members
may be required fo produce their attendance card, which is attached fo the form of proxy enclosed with this document, or
otherwise prove their identity.

A member of the Company whao is entitied to atlend, speak and vate at the meeting and who is unable or does not wish to
atlend the meeting is enfitled lo appoint a proxy to exercise all of any of his/her rights 10 atend ana o speak and vole on his/
her behalf ot the meeting. A member may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is oppointed 10 exercise rights
ahached o different shares (5o a mamber must have more than one shara o be able to appoint more than one proxy|. A
proxy need nat be o member of the Company but must attend the meeting to represent his/her appainting member. Appointing
a proxy will not prevent 0 member from attending in person ond voting ot the meeting oithough voting in person ot the meeting
will lerminate o member's proxy appointment, A proxy must vote in accordancs with any instructions given by the member

by whom the proxy is oppoinied. A form of proxy which may be used o make such oppointment and give proxy instructions
accompanies this notice, You can only appoint  proxy using the procedures set cut in these notes and the notas to the

proxy form.

Ta be valid, any form of proxy, and the original or duly certified copy of the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which itis signed or authenticated. must be received by nand or by post at Computershore Investor Services plc, The Pavilions.
Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS99 42Y, no kater than 10.00am on 9 May 2017.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST edectronic proxy appoiniment service may do so
for the meeting ond any adjournment(s} thereof by following the procedures described in the CREST manual. CREST personal
memibers or olher CREST spensored membbers, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider,
should refer to their CREST sponisor or voling service providerisl, who will be able 1o take Ihe appropriate action on ther behalf,

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of CREST 1o be valid, the oppropriate CREST message (a CREST
Proxy Instruction) rmust be properly authenticated in occordance wilh Eurockear UK & Irelond Limited's [Eurocieor) specifications,
and must contain the information required for such instryction, as described in the CREST Manuat. The message, regardless of
whether it constitutes the appointrent of a proxy, the revocation of a proxy or is an amendment to the instruction given o a
previously appointed proxy must, in order to be @ valid, be fransmitted so as to be received by the Company's agent (CREST I
3RAS50) by the latest timea for raceip! of proxy appoiniments specified in note 3 abave. For this purpose. the time of receipt will
be taken to be the time (os defermined by the fimestamp applied to the message by the CREST Application Host] from which
the Company's agent is obie 1o retrieve the message by enquiry fo CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time
any change of instructions to praxies appoinied through CREST should be communicated 1o the appointee through other means.

CREST members and, where applicabie, their CREST sponsors or voting service praviders, should note that Eurociear does not
make available speciol procedures in CREST for any paricukar message. Normal system fimings and limitations will, herefore,
appy in relation to the input of CREST proxy instructions, It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned 1o take (o, if the
CREST member is & CREST persanal member, or sponsared member, or has appointed o voting service provider, to procure
that his/hear CREST spansor or voling servica provider(s) takels)) such oction as shall be necessary to ensure that o message is
fransmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular fime. in this connection. CREST members and, where applicabie.
their CREST sponsors or voting service providers ara refevred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST manuot concerning
practical limitations of the CREST system ang timings.

The Company mary treat as invalid a CREST proxy instruction in the circurmistonces set outin Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2001 jas amended).

If you would ke to submit your proxy vote via the internet, you can do 50 by accessing our registrar's website
[www.eproxyappointment.com). You will require the control number. your unigue PIN [which will expire at the end of the voting
period) and your Sharehoider Reference Number {SRN), printed on the proxy card, in order to log in and submit your proxy vote
electronically. You can access this site from any internet enabled PC. If you submif your proxy via the internet it should reoch the
registrar by 10.00am on ? May 2017, Should you compiete your oroxy form electronically and then post a hard copy, the form
that arrives last will be counted to the axclusion of instructions received earlier. whether electronic or posted. Please refer to the
terrms and conditions of the service on ihe webtite.

In the cose of joint holders of shares, where more than one of the joint holders pumports fo appoint  proxy, only the appointment
submitied by the maost senior holder will be acceptad. Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint
holders appear in the Company’s register of mambers in respect of the joint holding [the fist-named being the most senior).

. {f you sulbmit more than one valid proxy appaintment in respect of the same shares, the appoeintment received last before the

latest ime or the receipt of proxies wil take precedence.



THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REFDRT AND ACCOUNTS 2016 15

1.

Any person {6 whom this notice has been senl who is ¢ person nominated under Section 146 of the Act 1o enjoy information
righis [0 Nomincted Person) may. under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she was nominaied,
have aright fo be appointed {or fo have someone else oppaointed] as a proxy for the meeting. If g Nominated Person has no
such proxy appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, ha/she may, under any such agreement, have a right to give
instructions fo the shareholder gs 1o the exercise of voting rights.

The staterment of the rights of shareholders in retation 1o the appoiniment of proxies above does not apply to Nominated
Persons. These righis can only be exercised by shareholders of the Company.

Pursuant fo Part 13 of the Companies Act 2006 and Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 (as amended],
the Company specifies that onty those shareholkders registered in the negister of mernbers of the Company at 5.00pm on ¢ may
2017 {or. if the meeting is adjourned, 48 hours before the timed fxed for the adjourned meeting) shall be entitied to attend or
vote at the meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their nome ot that time. In each case. changes to the
register of membar: of the Company atter such time shall be disregarged in determining the rights of any person to attend

or vote ol the meeting.

. As at 22 Febryary 2017 [being the last practicable business cay prior to the publication of this Nofice]. the Company's issued

share copital compxrised 222,048,787 ordinaty shares carmrying one vole each at a general meeting of the Company. No
ordinary shares ware hald in treasury and therefore the tolal voting rights in the Company as ot 22 Febryary 2017 are 222.048,787.

You may not use any electronic address provided either in this notice of meeting or any related documents {including the proxy
form) to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressty stated.

Members attending the meeting have the right to ask and, subject 1o the provisions of the Act, the Company must couse o be
answerad, any questions relating to the business being dealt with at the meeting.

The following information is availoble ai www.unite-group.co.uk (1) the matiers set out in this nofice of Annuat General Meeting:
{2) the total numbers of shares in the Compoany in respect of which members are entitied to exercise voting rights at the meeting;
[3} the tofals of the voting rights that members are entited to exercise at the meeting; ond (4) members’ statements. members’
resolutions and members' matters of business received by the Company affter the date on which notice of the meeting

waQs given,

It is possible that, pursuant to requests made by members of the Company under Section 527 of the Act, the Company may
be required to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to: (@) the audit of the Company's accounts
{including the ouditor's report and the conduct of the audit] that are to be laid before the meeting; or (b) any circumstance
connected with an guditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and
reports were loid in accordance with Section 437 of the Act, The Company may not nequire the members requesting any such
websila publication fo pay its expenses in complying with Sections 527 or 528 of the Act. Where the Company is required 1o
ploce a statement on a website under Section 527 of the Act, it must ferward the siatement fo the Company's guditor not later
than the time when it makes the staterment avaikable on the website. The businass which may be dealt with at the meeting
includes any statement that the Company has been required under Section 527 of the Act to publish on G website.

in accordance with Section 338 of the Act, a member or members of the Compony may {provided that the criteria set out

in Section 338(3) of the Act are met} raquire the Company to give t0 members notice of a resolution which may property

be moved and is intended to be maved at the meeting. provided that: (o) the resolution must not be, if passed, ineffective
{whether by reason of inconsistency with any enactment or the Company's constitution or otherwise); and (b} the resolution
must not be defamatory of any person, frivolous or vexatious. Such a request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form,
must be authenticoted by the person or persons making it. must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given and must
e received by the Company nat later than six weeks before the meeting, or, if kater, the time at which notice s given of the
meeting. {In the foregoing sentence. the terms ‘hard copy form’, ‘electronic form' and 'authenticated’ bear their respective
meanings set out in the Act in relation to a communication, or o document or information sent or supplied, to a company.}
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

20. In accordance with Section 338A of tha Act, a member or members of the Company may [provided that the criteria set out
in Section 3384 (3] of the Act are met] nequing the Company fo include in the business 10 be deait with af the meeting a matter
lother than a proposed resolution) which may property be included in the busingss of the meeting, provided that the motteris
not defamatory of any person, frivolous or vexatious. A request may be in hard copy form or electronic form, must identify the
matier o be ncluded in the businets, must ba accompaonied by a statement setting cut the grounds for the request, must be
authenticoted by the person or persons making it ond must be received by the Company not kater than six weeks before the
maeling, or, if Iater, the time at which nofice is given of the Annual General Meeting. (In the foregoing sentence, the ferms *hard
copy formy, *electronic form’ and ‘authenticated” bear the respective meanings set out in the Ac in riotion to a communicotion,
or 0 document or informcrtion sent or suppiied, fo o company.)

21. A member that is a company or other organitation not having a physicol presence connot atlend in person but can appaoint
someone to represent it. This can be done in one of two ways: either by the cppointrent of a proxy {0s described in the notes
above] or of a corponate nepraseniative. Members considering the appointment of a corporate represeniative shoukd check
their own legal position, the Company’s orficles of association and the relevant provisions of the Act,

22. The following documents are avaikable for inspection at the registered office of the Company during the usual business hours
on any weekday {Saturday. Sunday or public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the conclusion of the meating
ond will akso be avaikable for inspection ot the place of the meeting from 9.15am on the day of the meeting untll its conclusion:
{0) copies of the Execulive Drectors’ service contracts with the Company and any of its subsidiary undertakings; ond

(b} letters of oppointment of the Non-Executive Directors.
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GLOSSARY

Adjusted EPRA eamings

Adjusted EPRA earnings are prepaned
on the basis of EPRA eamings excluding
the yield related etement of the USAF
performance fee.

Adjusted EPRA eamings per share
The earnings per share based on adjusted
EPRA earnings.

Adjusted net debt

The Group's debt, net of cash and
unamortised debt raising costs, excluding
the mark to market of interest rotes swaps.

Adjusted net debt

fo property assels

The adjusted net debt os a percentage
of the value of Unite properties.

Masis points (BPS)

A basis point is o term used fo describe a
smoll percentage, usuaily in the context
of change. and equates o 0.0V%.

Direct let

Properties where short-hold tenancy
agreements are made directly between
Unite and the student.

EBITDA

The Group's EPRA garnings before
charging inferest, tox. depreciation ond
amortisation, The profit number is used o
calculate the ratio o net debt,

EPRA samings

EPRA eqmings are prepared on the basis
recommended for reql estate companies
by EPRA, the European Public Real Estate
Association, This excludes movaments
relating to changes in values ot
nvestment properties and interest rate
swaps and the relgted tax effects.

EPRA earnings per share
The earnings per share based on
EPRA eagmings.

EPRA NAY

EPRA NAY is prepared on the basis
recommended for real estate companies
by EPRA, the Eyropean Public Reql Estate
Association. Thisincludes all property

at market value but excludes the mark

o markst of interest rate swops. Thisis
recommended by EPRA os o megsure

of net assets.

EPRA net asset value per share
The diluted NAV per shore figure based
on EPRA NAV.

EPRA NNNAY

As EPRA NAV but includes both delot

and interast rate swaps camied at market
valye. This is recommended by EPRA

as a 'spal’ foir value net assel measure.

Financing costs

Gross financing costs nat of interest
capitolised into developments ong
interest received on deposits.

Gross assef valve

The Group's wholly owned property
porifoiic together with the share of the
Joint Veniures property portfolio.

Gross financing cosis

This includes all interest paid by the
Group. including those capitalised
into developmants and operaling
lease rentals.

#includes all receipts and payments
under interas! rate swaps whether they
are effective or ineffective under IFRS
as economically they all hedge interest
rale exposuras.

interest cover ratio (ICR)

The inferest cover ratio is the income
generated by o property as a multiple of
the interest charge on the debt secured
on the property.

16l

Lease

Propertias which are leased to Universities
for @ number of yaars and have no Unite
mandagement presence.

LSAV

The London Student Accormnmedation
Joint Venture (LSAV] is a joint venture
between Unite and GIC, alongside UCC.
Both Unite and GIC have a 50% stoke
and LSAV has the same maturity date as
UCC (September 2022). It is the primary
vehicle through which Unite undertakes
development activity in London and it
has right of first refusal over Unite's London
development pipeline projects until such
time os its capital investment torgets ore
met. LSAV and UCC were merged during
2012 and the new combined entity is
refered 10 Qs LSAY.

Net debt. EBITDA

The Group see-through debt, net of cash
and unamortised debi raising costs and

excluding mark to market of interest rate
SWOPS QS O proportion of EBITDA,

Net inltial yield (NIY or yield)

The net oparating income generated by
a property exprassed os o percentage
ofits value, faking into account notional
acquisition costs.

Net operating income (NOI)

The rental income fromrental properties
less thoss operating costs directly reiated
1o the property. therefore excluding
central overheod.

Net rental growth

The onnual growth in net operating
income (Measured on a like-for-like
basis, ie excluding impact of completion
and disposals).
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GLOSSARY

CONTINUED

Nominations

Properties where Universifies have
antered info a confract fo guaranfee
occupancy. The Universities nominote
students to live in the building ond Unite
enters into short-hold tenancies with
the students.

Non-core assels

Properties that do not fit with the Group’s
iong-term investment strafegy because of
their location or their size.,

Overhead efficlency

The Group's overhead efficiency
measures thows operating expenses,

nat of management feas, as a propoertion
of the gross osset value,

Rental properties

Investment and completed properties
whose construction has been completed
and are used by the Operaticns ssgment
to ganerate net portfolio contribution.

Sale and leaseback
Proparties that have been soid to

a third party invasior then leased
back to the Company. Unite i also
responsible for the management of
thesa assets on beholf of the owner.

See-throygh

Sae-through refers to the Group's whoily
ownad assets of liabillies in addition

to the share of the joint ventures (USAF
and LSAV) assets or iabilities.

Totol income from

managed portfolic

This reasure indicates the overall scalke
of the property portfolio thot the Group
manages. it comprises rental and related
income, tolalling £304.9 million from
proparties owned by Unite and its
co-investment vehicles.

The Group's share of this gross income
is shawn in note 2.2(a).

USAF/THE FUND

The Unite UK Student Accommodation
Fund [USAF} is Europe's largest fund that
purety focuses on completed income
providing student accommodedtion
investment assets. The fundis an
open-ended infinite life vehicle which
has unique buying access to Unite's
development pipeline. Unite acts as
fund manager for the fund, as well s
owning a significant minority sioke.
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COMPANY INFORMATION
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Richard Smith
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Jou Lister
Chiet Financiol Officer

Richard Simpson
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Registered Office
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40 51 Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 6JX

Registered Number in Englond
3199160

Company Sacretory
Christopher Szpojingrowicz
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Audltor

Deloiite LLP

2 New Streef Square
London EC4 387

Finoncial Advisers
J.P. Morgan Cazenove
25 Bank Street

London E14 5JP

Numis Securfiies

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square

London EC4M 71T

Regishiars

Compulearshare Investor Services pic
PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 7NH
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OTHER INFORMATION

THIS REPORT [S COMPLEMENTED

BY A RANGE OF ONLINE INFORMATION
ABOUT OUR BUSINESS INCLUDING OUR
OPERATIONS AND PROPERTY DIVISIONS,
OUR MARKETS, AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY.

UWHERE TO
F' N D M 0 R E WWW.UNITE-GROUP.CO.UK
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